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The $185,705,000 aggregate principal amount of California Municipal Finance Authority Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A
(Orange County Civic Center Infrastructure Improvement Program — Phase II) (the “Bonds”) are being issued by the California
Municipal Finance Authority (the “Authority”) pursuant to Articles 1 through 4 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of
Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “JPA Act”), and an Indenture, dated as of December 1,2018
(the “Indenture”), by and between the Authority and Zions Bancorporation, National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”).

The Authority will loan the proceeds of the Bonds to the Capital Facilities Development Corporation (the “Corporation”)
pursuant to a Loan Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2018 (the “Loan Agreement”), by and between the Authority and the
Corporation, which the Corporation will use to (i) finance the acquisition, construction and equipping of a new office building that
includes administrative offices of the County of Orange (the “County”), a room for Board of Supervisors and department meetings,
and two levels of below-grade secured employee parking for the County, as Phase II of the County’s Civic Center Infrastructure
Improvement Program, all as further described herein (the “Phase II Project”), (ii) fund capitalized interest accruing on the Bonds,
and (iii) pay costs of issuance of the Bonds. See “ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS” and “CIVIC CENTER FACILITIES
STRATEGIC PLAN AND THE PHASE II PROJECT” herein.

Payments under the Loan Agreement will be made from amounts received by the Corporation from the County pursuant to
the Facility Lease (Phase II), dated December 1, 2018 (the “Facility Lease”). See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR
THE BONDS” herein.

Interest on the Bonds is payable on June 1 and December 1 of each year, commencing June 1, 2019. The Bonds are being
issued as fully registered bonds and, when executed and delivered, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of
The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”). The Bonds, if issued, will be issued in denominations of $5,000
or any integral multiple thereof. DTC will act as securities depository of the Bonds. Individual purchases of Bonds will be made
in book-entry form only. Payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds are to be made to purchasers by DTC through DTC
Participants. Purchasers will not receive physical delivery of the Bonds purchased by them. See APPENDIX F - “BOOK-ENTRY
SYSTEM” hereto.

The Bonds are subject to extraordinary, optional and mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to their stated
maturities, as described herein. See “THE BONDS — Redemption” herein.

The Bonds do not constitute a debt or liability of the State of California (the “State”), or of any political subdivision thereof,
including the County, other than the Authority, but shall be payable solely from the funds provided therefor in the Indenture. The
Authority shall not be obligated to pay the principal of the Bonds, or the redemption premium or interest thereon, except from the
funds provided therefor under the Indenture and neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the Authority, the State or of
any political subdivision thereof, including the County, is pledged to the payment of the principal of or the redemption premium or
interest on the Bonds. The issuance of the Bonds shall not directly or indirectly or contingently obligate the State or any political
subdivision thereof, including the County, to levy or to pledge any form of taxation or to make any appropriation for their payment.
The Authority has no taxing power.

This cover page contains certain information for general reference only. It is not intended to be a summary of the
security or terms of this issue. Investors must read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to
making an informed investment decision.

The Bonds will be offered when, as and if issued, subject to the approval as to their legality by Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe
LLP, Los Angeles, California, Bond Counsel to the Authority, and certain other conditions. Certain legal matters will be passed
upon for the Corporation by Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, for the Authority by Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation,
San Francisco, California, for the County by County Counsel and for the Underwriter by Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, Los
Angeles, California. It is anticipated that the Bonds will be available for delivery through the book-entry facilities of DTC on or
about December 13, 2018.

Citigroup
December 4, 2018
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MATURITY SCHEDULE

Maturity Principal Interest CUSIP{

(June 1) Amount Rate Yield Price (Base No. 13049U)
2023 $3,635,000 5.000% 1.830% 113.536 EGO
2024 3,815,000 5.000 1.940 115.798 EHS
2025 4,005,000 5.000 2.040 117.846 EJ4
2026 4,205,000 5.000 2.160 119.486 EK1
2027 4,415,000 5.000 2.280 120.834 EL9
2028 4,635,000 5.000 2.380 122.089 EM7
2029 4,870,000 5.000 2.560 120.396" ENS
2030 5,110,000 5.000 2.670 119.376 EPO
2031 5,370,000 5.000 2.760 118.548" EQ8
2032 5,635,000 5.000 2.850 117.727 ER6
2033 5,920,000 5.000 2.970 116.644" ES4
2034 6,215,000 5.000 3.080 115.661° ET2
2035 6,525,000 5.000 3.190 114.688" EU9
2036 6,850,000 5.000 3.240 114.248" EV7
2037 7,195,000 5.000 3.290 113.811° EWS5
2038 7,555,000 5.000 3.330 113.463" EX3

$43,820,000 5.000% Term Bonds due June 1, 2043 Yield: 3.440%; Price: 112.512"
CUSIP': 13049UEY1

$55,930,000 5.000% Term Bonds due June 1, 2048 Yield: 3.510%; Price: 111.911°
CUSIP': 13049UEZ8

* Priced to the first optional redemption date of June 1, 2028 at par.

T CUSIP is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association. CUSIP Global Services (CGS) is managed on behalf of
the American Bankers Association by S&P Global Market Intelligence. Copyright © 2018 CUSIP Global Services. All rights
reserved. The CUSIP numbers are not intended to create a database and do not serve in any way as a substitute for CUSIP
service. CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an independent company not affiliated with the Authority, the Corporation or the
County and are included solely for the convenience of the registered owners of the Bonds. None of the Authority, the
Corporation, the County, Bond Counsel, Underwriter’s Counsel or the Municipal Advisor are responsible for the selection or uses
of these CUSIP numbers, and no representation is made as to their correctness on the applicable Bonds or as included herein. The
CUSIP number for a specific maturity is subject to being changed after the issuance of the Bonds as a result of various
subsequent actions including, but not limited to, a refunding in whole or in part or as a result of the procurement of secondary
market portfolio insurance and other similar enhancement by investors that is applicable to all or a portion of certain maturities of
the Bonds.



GENERAL INFORMATION

Use of Official Statement. This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the issuance
and delivery of the Bonds referred to herein and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for
any other purpose. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the purchasers of the
Bonds. No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the Authority, the
Corporation or the County to give any information or to make any representations in connection with the
offer or sale of the Bonds other than those contained herein and if given or made, such other information
or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Authority, the Corporation, the
County or the Underwriter. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation
of an offer to buy nor shall there be any sale of the Bonds by a person in any jurisdiction in which it is
unlawful for such person to make such an offer, solicitation or sale.

This Official Statement, including any supplement or amendment hereto, is intended to be
deposited with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through the Electronic Municipal Marketplace
Access system.

The County maintains a website with information pertaining to the County. However, the
information presented therein is not part of this Official Statement and should not be relied upon in
making investment decisions with respect to the Bonds.

Forward-looking Statements. Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this
Official Statement constitute forward-looking statements. Such statements are generally identifiable by
the terminology used such as “plan,” “expect,” “estimate,” “budget” or other similar words. The
achievement of certain results or other expectations contained in such forward-looking statements involve
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause actual results, performance or
achievements described to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.

99 ¢

Involvement of Underwriter. The Underwriter has submitted the following statement for
inclusion in this Official Statement. The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official
Statement in accordance with, and as a part of, its responsibilities to investors under the federal securities
laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee
the accuracy or completeness of such information.

Information Subject to Change. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject
to change without notice and neither delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder
shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the
Authority or the Corporation or any other entity described or referenced herein since the date hereof. All
summaries of the documents referred to in this Official Statement are made subject to the provisions of
such documents, respectively, and do not purport to be complete statements of any or all of such
provisions.

Stabilization of Prices. The Underwriter may overallot or effect transactions which stabilize or
maintain the market price of the Bonds at a level above that which might otherwise prevail in the open
market. Such stabilizing, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time. The Underwriter reserves the
right to join with dealers and other underwriters in offering the Bonds to the public. The Underwriter may
offer and sell the Bonds to certain dealers (including dealers depositing Bonds into investment trusts) at
prices lower than the public offering prices, and such dealers may reallow any such discounts on sales to
other dealers.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

$185,705,000
CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FINANCE AUTHORITY
LEASE REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2018A
(ORANGE COUNTY CIVIC CENTER INFRASTRUCTURE
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM - PHASE II)

INTRODUCTION

This Introduction contains only a brief description of this issue and does not purport to be
complete. The Introduction is subject in all respects to more complete information in the entire Official
Statement, which includes the cover page, the inside cover page and appendices hereto (the *“Official
Statement™) and the issuance and delivery of the Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of
the entire Official Statement and the documents summarized herein. Investors must read the entire
Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision.

General

The $185,705,000 aggregate principal amount of California Municipal Finance Authority Lease
Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A (Orange County Civic Center Infrastructure Improvement Program —
Phase II) (the “Bonds”) are being issued by the California Municipal Finance Authority (the “Authority”)
pursuant to Articles 1 through 4 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of
the Government Code of the State of California (the “JPA Act”), and an Indenture, dated as of December
1, 2018 (the “Indenture”), by and between the Authority and Zions Bancorporation, National Association,
as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Board of Directors of the Authority approved the issuance of the Bonds
pursuant to Resolution No. 18-124, adopted on October 26, 2018.

The Authority will loan the proceeds of the Bonds to the Capital Facilities Development
Corporation (the “Corporation’) pursuant to a Loan Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2018 (the “Loan
Agreement”), by and between the Authority and the Corporation, which the Corporation will use to (i)
finance the acquisition, construction and equipping of a new office building that includes administrative
offices of the County of Orange (the “County”), a room for Board of Supervisors and department
meetings, and two levels of below-grade secured employee parking for the County, as Phase Il of the
County’s Civic Center Infrastructure Improvement Program, all as further described herein (the “Phase II
Project”), (ii) fund capitalized interest accruing on the Bonds through January 1, 2023, and (iii) pay costs
of issuance of the Bonds. Interest on the Bonds is expected to be paid from capitalized interest amounts
prior to the delivery of a Certificate of Substantial Completion pursuant to the Development Agreement
and the Loan Agreement. See “ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS” and “CIVIC
CENTER FACILITIES STRATEGIC PLAN AND THE PHASE II PROJECT” herein.

Payments under the Loan Agreement will be made from amounts received by the Corporation
from the County pursuant to the Facility Lease (Phase II), dated December 1, 2018, by and between the
Corporation and County (the “Facility Lease”). See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR
THE BONDS” herein.



The Authority

Under the JPA Act, certain California cities, counties (including the County) and special districts
have entered into a joint exercise of powers agreement (the “JPA Agreement”) forming the Authority for
the purpose of exercising to powers common to the members and exercising the additional powers
granted to the Authority by the JPA Act and any other applicable provisions of State law. Under the JPA
Agreement, the Authority may issue bonds, notes or any other evidence of indebtedness, for any purpose
or activity permitted under the JPA Act or any other applicable law. See “THE AUTHORITY.” The
Authority does not and will not in the future monitor the financial condition of the County or the
Corporation or otherwise monitor payment of the Bonds or compliance with the documents relating
thereto.

The Corporation

The Corporation is a nonprofit public-benefit corporation and is not organized for the private gain
of any person. It is organized under the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law for public purposes.
The Corporation was formed for the benefit of the County to help to facilitate financings or other
transactions for the benefit of the County, or otherwise assist the County, and thereby lessen the burdens
of government within the meaning of Section 1.501(c)(3)-1(d)(2) of the Treasury Regulations of the
United States of America. In addition, the Corporation is organized exclusively for the promotion of
social welfare within the meaning of Section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code, specifically by
engaging in the public and charitable purpose of lessening the burdens of government of the County. The
Corporation is currently governed by a three member Board of Directors consisting of the County’s
Executive Officer, Chief Real Estate Officer, and Director of OC Public Works.

The County

The County, incorporated in 1889 and located in the southern part of the State of California (the
“State), is one of the major metropolitan areas in the State and nation. It occupies a land area of 789
square miles with a coastline of 42 miles serving a population of over 3 million. The County is the third
most populous county in the State, and ranks sixth in the nation. The County is governed by a five-
member Board of Supervisors, who each serve four-year terms and represent districts that are
approximately equal in population. The County’s organizational structure consists of six Elected Officers,
seven positions appointed by and reporting to the Board of Supervisors, five Officers appointed by and
reporting to the CEO and nine department heads selected by the Board of Supervisors and reporting to the
Chief Operating Officer.

Additional information with respect to the County, including financial information and certain
economic and demographic information relating to the County is provided in APPENDIX A — “THE
COUNTY” hereto. A copy of the County’s “Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended
June 30, 2017 is attached hereto as APPENDIX B.

The Phase II Project

The project to be financed with the proceeds of the Bonds is Phase II of the County’s Civic
Center Infrastructure Improvement Program. The Phase II Project will consist of the acquisition,
construction and equipping of a new office building that includes administrative offices of the County, a
room for Board of Supervisors and department meetings, and two levels of below-grade secured
employee parking for the County. For a more detailed description of the Phase II Project, see “CIVIC
CENTER FACILITIES STRATEGIC PLAN AND THE PHASE II PROJECT” herein.



Security for the Bonds

The Bonds will be secured by Payments pursuant to the Indenture. “Payments” means (i) all
moneys, if any, received by the Trustee directly from, or on behalf of, the Corporation, pursuant to the
Loan Agreement (excluding Additional Payments), consisting primarily of Base Rental Payments under
the Facility Lease, and (ii) all income derived from the investment of any money in any fund or account
established pursuant to the Indenture.

Under the Ground Lease (Phase II), dated as of December 1, 2018 (the “Ground Lease™), by and
between the County and the Corporation, the Corporation has agreed to lease the Leased Property from
the County. “Leased Property” means the real property on which the Phase 11 Project will be constructed
and the Phase II Project itself. Under the Facility Lease, the County has agreed to lease the Leased
Property from the Corporation. Payments to be made under the Loan Agreement primarily consist of Base
Rental Payments to be made by the County to the Corporation under the Facility Lease for the County’s
beneficial use and occupancy of the Phase II Project. Base Rental Payments are due under the Facility
Lease on the 15™ day of the month proceeding each debt service payment on the Bonds, scheduled for
each June 1 and December 1, commencing on June 1, 2019 (each an “Interest Payment Date™). See
“SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS” herein. Base Rental Payments are
payable from lawfully available funds of the County including from the County’s General Fund as
described herein. The County anticipates that approximately half of the Base Rental Payments will be
reimbursed to the County’s General Fund from non-General Fund sources, including funding from health
care and community services programs. However, the County is not obligated to pay Base Rental
Payments from such non-General Fund sources.

No reserve fund or account is established for the Bonds under the Indenture.
Availability of Legal Documents

The summaries and references contained herein with respect to the Bonds, the Indenture, the
Loan Agreement, the Ground Lease, the Facility Lease, the Development Agreement, statutes,
agreements and other documents, do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive and are qualified by
reference to each such document or statute, and references to the Bonds are qualified in their entirety by
reference to the form thereof included in the Indenture. Copies of the documents described herein are
available from the County’s Public Finance Director, 333 W. Santa Ana Boulevard, Santa Ana, California
92701.

PLAN OF FINANCE

The Bonds are being issued to (i) finance the costs of the Phase II Project, which consists of the
acquisition, construction and equipping of a new office building that includes administrative offices of the
County, a room for Board of Supervisors and department meetings, and two levels of below-grade
secured employee parking for the County as Phase II of the County’s Civic Center Infrastructure
Improvement Program, all as further described further under the caption “CIVIC CENTER FACILITIES
STRATEGIC PLAN AND THE PHASE II PROJECT,” (ii) fund capitalized interest accruing on the
Bonds through January 1, 2023, and (iii) pay costs of issuance of the Bonds. See “ESTIMATED
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS” herein.



ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

The estimated sources and uses of funds are summarized as follows.

Sources:
Principal Amount $185,705,000.00
Original Issue Premium 26.599.282.75
Total Sources $212,304,282.75
Uses:
Project Fund $175,464,991.94
Capitalized Interest Account'” 35,321,368.34
Costs of Issuance Fund® 1,517,922.47
Total Uses $212,304,282.75

(M Represents capitalized interest accruing on the Bonds through January 1, 2023. Interest on the Bonds is expected
to be paid from capitalized interest amounts for that period prior to the delivery of a Certificate of Substantial
Completion pursuant to the Development Agreement and the Loan Agreement.

@ Costs of Issuance include Underwriter’s discount, fees and expenses for Bond Counsel, Underwriter’s Counsel,
Municipal Advisor, and Trustee, printing expenses, ratings fees and other costs related to the issuance of the
Bonds.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]



DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

The following table shows the annual debt service requirements on the Bonds, assuming no
optional redemptions.

Fiscal Year

Ending

(June 30) Principal Interest Total
2019 - $ 4,333,116.67% $ 4,333,116.67
2020 - 9,285,250.00 9,285,250.00
2021 - 9,285,250.00) 9,285,250.00
2022 - 9,285,250.00) 9,285,250.00
2023 $ 3,635,000.00 9,285,250.00) 12,920,250.00
2024 3,815,000.00 9,103,500.00 12,918,500.00
2025 4,005,000.00 8,912,750.00 12,917,750.00
2026 4,205,000.00 8,712,500.00 12,917,500.00
2027 4,415,000.00 8,502,250.00 12,917,250.00
2028 4,635,000.00 8,281,500.00 12,916,500.00
2029 4,870,000.00 8,049,750.00 12,919,750.00
2030 5,110,000.00 7,806,250.00 12,916,250.00
2031 5,370,000.00 7,550,750.00 12,920,750.00
2032 5,635,000.00 7,282,250.00 12,917,250.00
2033 5,920,000.00 7,000,500.00 12,920,500.00
2034 6,215,000.00 6,704,500.00 12,919,500.00
2035 6,525,000.00 6,393,750.00 12,918,750.00
2036 6,850,000.00 6,067,500.00 12,917,500.00
2037 7,195,000.00 5,725,000.00 12,920,000.00
2038 7,555,000.00 5,365,250.00 12,920,250.00
2039 7,930,000.00 4,987,500.00 12,917,500.00
2040 8,325,000.00 4,591,000.00 12,916,000.00
2041 8,745,000.00 4,174,750.00 12,919,750.00
2042 9,180,000.00 3,737,500.00 12,917,500.00
2043 9,640,000.00 3,278,500.00 12,918,500.00
2044 10,120,000.00 2,796,500.00 12,916,500.00
2045 10,630,000.00 2,290,500.00 12,920,500.00
2046 11,160,000.00 1,759,000.00 12,919,000.00
2047 11,715,000.00 1,201,000.00 12,916,000.00
2048 12,305.,000.00 615.250.00 12.920.250.00

TOTAL $185,705,000.00 $182,363,616.67 $368,068,616.67

@ Includes capitalized interest accruing on the Bonds through January 1, 2023.



THE BONDS
General

The Bonds will be dated the date of their delivery and mature on June 1 in the years and in the
amounts shown on the inside cover page of this Official Statement. Interest on the Bonds will be
calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30 day months and will be payable in arrears on each
Interest Payment Date. The principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the
United States of America upon surrender at the Principal Corporate Trust Office. So long as the registered
owner of the Bonds are Cede & Co., payment of principal and redemption shall be made without
presentment.

The interest on any Bond shall be payable to the person whose name appears on the registration
books of the Trustee as the registered owner thereof as of the close of business on the Record Date for the
Interest Payment Date, such interest to be paid by check mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, on the
Interest Payment Date, to the registered owner at his or her address as it appears on such registration
books. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, any Holder of $1,000,000 or more in an aggregate
principal amount of the Bonds shall be entitled to receive payments of interest on the Bonds held by it by
wire transfer of immediately available funds to such bank or trust company located within the United
States of America as such other Holder shall designate in writing to the Trustee by the first Record Date
for such payment. So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the Bonds, principal of and interest
on the Bonds are payable in same day funds by the Trustee to Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository
Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York. Any such interest not so punctually paid or duly
provided for shall forthwith cease to be payable to the Bondholder on such Record Date and shall be paid
to the person in whose name the Bond is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for
the payment of such defaulted interest. “Record Date” means, with respect to an Interest Payment Date
for the Bonds, the fifteenth day of the calendar month immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date,
whether or not such day is a Business Day. A Special Record Date may be fixed by the Trustee, notice
thereof being given to the Bondholders not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date. “Special
Record Date” means the date established by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture as a record date for the
payment of defaulted interest on Bonds.

Redemption

Extraordinary Optional Redemption from Insurance and Condemnation Proceeds. The Bonds
are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity, at the option of the Corporation, as a whole or in
part on any date from moneys required to be transferred from the Insurance Proceeds and Condemnation
Awards Fund to the Special Redemption Account at a redemption price equal to the principal amount
thereof together with interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium.

Optional Redemption. At the option of the Corporation, the Bonds are subject to optional
redemption prior to their respective stated maturities, from any amounts in the Redemption Fund, in
whole or in part on any date on or after June 1, 2028, at a redemption price of par plus accrued interest
thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium.



Mandatory Sinking Account Redemption. The Bonds maturing on June 1, 2043 are also subject
to redemption prior to their respective stated maturities in part, by lot, from Mandatory Sinking Account
Payments in the following amounts and on the following dates:

Mandatory Principal
Redemption Date Amount
2039 $7,930,000
2040 8,325,000
2041 8,745,000

2042 9,180,000
2043° 9,640,000

* Final maturity.

The Bonds maturing on June 1, 2048 are also subject to redemption prior to their respective stated
maturities in part, by lot, from Mandatory Sinking Account Payments in the following amounts and on
the following dates:

Mandatory Principal
Redemption Date Amount
2044 $10,120,000

2045 10,630,000

2046 11,160,000

2047 11,715,000
2048° 12,305,000

* Final maturity.

In the event of any optional redemption of the Bonds or any extraordinary optional redemption of
the Bonds from amounts transferred from the Insurance Proceeds and Condemnation Awards Fund to the
Special Redemption Account, the Corporation will provide the Trustee with a revised sinking fund
schedule for these Term Bonds giving effect to the redemption so completed.

Notice of Redemption. Notice of any redemption of Bonds shall be mailed, by first class mail,
postage prepaid, or by any other acceptable electronic means selected by the Trustee, not less than twenty
(20) nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date to the respective Holders thereof at the
addresses appearing on the bond registration books. Each notice of redemption shall contain all of the
following information: (a) the date of such notice; (b) the name of the Bonds and the date of issue of the
Bonds; (c¢) the redemption date; (d) the redemption price; (e) the dates of maturity of the Bonds to be
redeemed; (f) if less than all of the Bonds of any maturity are to be redeemed, the distinctive numbers of
the Bonds of each maturity to be redeemed; (g) in the case of Bonds redeemed in part only, the respective
portions of the principal amount of the Bonds of each maturity to be redeemed; (h) the CUSIP number, if
any, of each maturity of Bonds to be redeemed; (i) a statement that such Bonds must be surrendered by
the Holders at the Principal Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee, or at such other place or places
designated by the Trustee; (j) a statement that such redemption is conditioned upon the receipt by the
Trustee, on or prior to the redemption date, of moneys sufficient to pay the redemption price or upon the
happening of such other event as shall be specified therein, and if such moneys shall not have been so
received, said notice shall be rescinded and the redemption shall be cancelled; (k) a statement that any
such redemption notice can be rescinded as provided in the Indenture; and (1) notice that further interest
on such Bonds, if any, will not accrue from and after the designated redemption date.



If money is not received, the Trustee shall give notice on or prior to such redemption date to the
persons and in the manner in which the notice of redemption was given, that such moneys were not so
received and that there will be no redemption of the Bonds pursuant to the notice of redemption. Failure
of the Trustee to give such notice or any defect therein shall not in any way impair or affect the validity of
the proceedings for redemption.

Selection of Bonds for Redemption. When any redemption is made pursuant to any of the
provisions of the Indenture and less than all of the Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the Trustee
shall select the Bonds to be redeemed from the Outstanding Bonds not previously called for redemption,
by lot within a maturity and, if from more than one maturity, in such other order of maturity as shall be
specified in a Request of the Corporation. In no event shall Bonds be redeemed in amounts other than
whole multiples of Authorized Denominations. The Trustee shall promptly notify the Authority and the
Corporation in writing of the numbers of the Bonds selected for redemption.

Effect of Notice; Redemption. The actual receipt by the Holder of any Bond or any other party
of notice of redemption shall not be a condition precedent to redemption, and failure to receive such
notice, or any defect in the notice given, shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption
of such Bonds or the cessation of interest, if any, on the date fixed for redemption. Notice of redemption
having been given, and the redemption price of the Bonds called for redemption being on deposit or
otherwise available to the Trustee, the Bonds designated for redemption shall become due and payable on
the specified redemption date and interest, if any, shall cease to accrue thereon as of the redemption date,
and upon presentation and surrender of such Bonds at the place specified in the notice of redemption,
such Bonds shall be redeemed and paid at the redemption price therecof out of the money provided
therefor. The Holders of such Bonds so called for redemption after such redemption date shall look for the
payment of such Bonds and the redemption premium thereon, if any, only to the fund established for such
purpose. All Bonds redeemed shall be cancelled forthwith by the Trustee and shall not be reissued.

Additional Bonds

At the written request of the Corporation, the Authority and the Trustee may, by execution of a
Supplemental Indenture without the consent of the Owners, provide for the execution and delivery of
Additional Bonds payable from additional Payments, as provided in the Indenture. See APPENDIX C —
“SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS” hereto.

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS
General

The Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority secured and payable from all of the Payments
and any other amounts (excluding proceeds of the sale of Bonds deposited to the Costs of Issuance Fund)
held in any fund or account (other than the Rebate Fund and the Costs of Issuance Fund) established
pursuant to the Indenture. “Payments” means (i) all moneys, if any, received by the Trustee directly from,
or on behalf of, the Corporation, pursuant to the Loan Agreement (excluding Additional Payments), and
(i1) all income derived from the investment of any money in any fund or account established pursuant to
the Indenture. The Payments primarily consist of Base Rental Payments to be made by the County to the
Corporation under the Facility Lease. See “— Facility Lease; Annual Appropriation” below. Information
with respect to the County, including financial information and certain economic and demographic
information relating to the County is provided in APPENDIX A — “THE COUNTY” hereto. A copy of
the County’s “Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2017 is attached
hereto as APPENDIX B.



Under the Indenture, the Authority will assign to the Trustee, for the benefit of the Holders from
time to time of the Bonds, all of the Payments and other amounts pledged under the Indenture as
described in the preceding paragraph and all of the right, title and interest of the Authority in, to and
under the Loan Agreement (except for the Retained Rights) and the Development Agreement (to the
extent assigned to the Corporation under the Facility Lease). The Trustee shall be entitled to and shall
receive all of such assigned Payments, and any such Payments collected or received by the Authority will
be deemed to be held, and to have been collected or received, by the Authority as the agent of the Trustee
and shall forthwith be paid by the Authority to the Trustee. The Trustee also will be entitled to and shall
(subject to the provisions of the Indenture) take all steps, actions and proceedings following any event of
default under the Loan Agreement reasonably necessary in its judgment to enforce, either jointly with the
Authority or separately, all of the rights of the Authority assigned to the Trustee and all of the obligations
of the Corporation under the Loan Agreement.

Limited Obligation

The Bonds do not constitute a debt or liability of the State, the County or of any political
subdivision thereof, other than the Authority, but shall be payable solely from the funds provided therefor
in the Indenture. The Authority shall not be obligated to pay the principal of the Bonds, or the redemption
premium or interest thereon, except from the funds provided therefor under the Indenture and neither the
faith and credit nor the taxing power of the Authority, the State, or of any political subdivision thereof,
including the County, is pledged to the payment of the principal of or the redemption premium or interest
on the Bonds. The issuance of the Bonds shall not directly or indirectly or contingently obligate the State,
the County or any political subdivision thereof to levy or to pledge any form of taxation or to make any
appropriation for their payment. The Authority has no taxing power.

Moreover, neither the Authority nor the County shall be liable for any other costs, expenses,
losses, damages, claims or actions, in connection with the Loan Agreement, the Bonds or the Indenture,
except only to the extent amounts are received for the payment thereof from the Corporation under the
Loan Agreement.

Facility Lease; Annual Appropriation

Base Rental Payments. Under the Ground Lease, the Corporation has agreed to lease certain
Leased Property from the County. Under the Facility Lease, the Corporation has agreed to lease such
Leased Property back to the County in consideration for the Base Rental Payments. Capitalized interest
will be funded during the expected construction period for the Phase II Project to make Base Rental
Payments. See “ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS” herein. Base Rental Payments will
commence under the Facility Lease when the Certificate of Substantial Completion pursuant to the
Development Agreement and the Loan Agreement has been delivered to the Trustee.

Assignment by the Corporation. As security for the payment of the Bonds, the Corporation will
assign to the Trustee pursuant to the Facility Lease certain of the Corporation’s rights under the Facility
Lease and under the Ground Lease, including the right to receive Base Rental Payments; and the County
will assent to such assignment and agree to make all payments due under the Facility Lease, including
Base Rental Payments, from lawfully available funds of the County, directly to the Person or Persons
entitled to such payments or for deposit to the appropriate fund or account held by the Trustee under the
Indenture, without defense or set off by reason of any dispute between the County and the Corporation,
the Authority or the Trustee. By virtue of such assignment, the Trustee will be a third party beneficiary of
the Facility Lease and shall have the right to enforce the obligations of the County under the Facility
Lease, subject to the limitations set forth in the Facility Lease.



Additional Payments. In addition to Base Rental Payments, the County will agree under the
Facility Lease to pay Additional Payments in such amounts in each year as are required for the payment
of all costs and expenses (not otherwise paid for or provided for out of the proceeds of sale of the Bonds)
incurred by the Authority or the Trustee in connection with the execution, performance or enforcement of
the Facility Lease, including, but not limited to, all taxes and assessments of any type or character charged
to the Corporation, the Authority or to the Trustee affecting the amount available to the Corporation, the
Authority or the Trustee from payments to be received or in any way arising due to the transactions
contemplated hereby (including taxes and assessments assessed or levied by any public agency or
governmental authority of whatsoever character having power to levy taxes or assessments) but excluding
any taxes based upon the capital and/or income of the Trustee, the Corporation or any other person other
than the County; provided, however, that the County shall have the right to protest any such taxes or
assessments and to require the Authority, the Corporation or the Trustee, as the case may be, at the
County’s expense, to protest and contest any such taxes or assessments assessed or levied upon them and
that the County shall have the right to withhold payment of any such taxes or assessments pending
disposition of any such protest or contest unless such withholding, protest or contest would materially
adversely affect the rights or interests of the Authority, the Corporation or the Trustee.

Covenant to Budget and Appropriate. The County will covenant in the Facility Lease to take
such action as may be necessary to include all Base Rental Payments and Additional Payments due under
the Facility Lease in its operating budget for each fiscal year and to make all necessary appropriations for
such Base Rental Payments and Additional Payments. See, however, “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF
PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS — Rental Abatement” herein.

Loan Agreement; Assignment of Gross Revenues

As security for the payment of the Bonds, the Authority will assign to the Trustee as provided in
the Loan Agreement certain of the Authority’s rights under the Loan Agreement, including the right to
receive payments thereunder, but excluding any deposits to the Rebate Fund; and the Corporation will
assent to such assignment and agree that all Gross Revenues shall be paid directly to the Trustee, without
defense or set off by reason of any dispute between the Corporation and the Authority or the Trustee.
“Gross Revenues” means, for any Fiscal Year, all of the revenues, income, cash receipts and other money
received by the Corporation, or received by the Trustee on behalf of the Corporation pursuant to the
Indenture, that are legally available for payment of the obligations of the Corporation under the Loan
Agreement. By virtue of such assignment and certain obligations of the Corporation to the Trustee, the
Trustee will be a third party beneficiary of the Loan Agreement and will have the right to enforce the
obligations of the Corporation thereunder, subject to the terms thereof. See APPENDIX C -
“SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS” hereto.

Flow of Funds Under Indenture

All Payments, the proceeds of rental interruption insurance, liquidated damages, if any, and any
payments made under of the Development Agreement to the Trustee as loss payee shall be promptly
deposited by the Trustee upon receipt thereof in a special fund designated as the “Revenue Fund” which
the Trustee is directed under the Indenture to establish, maintain and hold in trust. All Payments shall be
held in trust for the benefit of the Holders from time to time of the Bonds under the Indenture but shall
nevertheless be disbursed, allocated and applied solely for the uses and purposes set forth in the
Indenture; provided, however, and notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Trustee receives Payments in an
amount in excess of the amount necessary to pay the amount due and owing on the next Interest Payment
Date or Principal Payment Date, as the case may be, after giving effect to the funds then on deposit in the
Revenue Fund not needed for any other purpose under the Indenture, then amounts in the Revenue Fund
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not needed to make such payments may be utilized by the Trustee, as directed in writing by the
Corporation, for any other purpose.

Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, the Trustee shall deposit the Payments in the
Revenue Fund at the time and in the priority and manner provided in the Indenture in the following
respective accounts, each of which the Trustee agrees to establish and maintain and hold in trust until all
required Payments are paid in full or until such date as the Bonds are no longer Outstanding, and the
moneys in each of such accounts shall be disbursed only for the purposes and uses authorized in the
Indenture. The Trustee shall establish and maintain the Capitalized Interest Account within the Interest
Account until the date all amounts are transferred therefrom in accordance with the Indenture.

(D) The Trustee, on each Interest Payment Date, shall transfer to the Interest
Account, the aggregate amount of interest becoming due and payable on such Interest Payment
Date on all Bonds then Outstanding; provided, however, that on each Interest Payment Date
occurring on or before the later of January 1, 2023 or the delivery to the Trustee of the Certificate
of Substantial Completion, before making said deposit, if and to the extent available in the
Capitalized Interest Account within the Interest Account, an amount equal to the aggregate
amount of interest coming due on such Interest Payment Date, shall be transferred from the
Capitalized Interest Account within the Interest Account to the Interest Account. Upon the later
of January 1, 2023 or the delivery to the Trustee of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, the
Trustee shall transfer any amounts then remaining in the Capitalized Interest Account to the
Interest Account and close the Capitalized Interest Account; and

2) The Trustee, on each Principal Payment Date, shall transfer to the Principal
Account, a sufficient amount of money such that the aggregate of amounts therein equal the
principal or Mandatory Sinking Account Payment coming due on such Principal Payment Date.

No Reserve
No reserve fund or account is established for the Bonds under the Indenture.
Insurance

Prior to Substantial Completion. Prior to delivery to the Trustee of the Certificate of Substantial
Completion pursuant to the Development Agreement and the Loan Agreement, insurance shall be
obtained for the Phase Il Project pursuant to the Development Agreement. See “CIVIC CENTER
FACILITIES STRATEGIC PLAN AND THE PHASE II PROJECT — Phase II Project Development —
Insurance During Construction” herein.

After Substantial Completion. From and after the delivery to the Trustee of the Certificate of
Substantial Completion, the County will secure and maintain or cause to be secured and maintained at all
time with insurers of recognized responsibility all coverage on the Leased Property required by the
Facility Lease. Such insurance shall consist of:

(D) Fire and Extended Coverage Insurance; Insurance Proceeds. The County will
procure or cause to be procured and maintain or cause to be maintained, throughout the term of
the Facility Lease and commencing with the County’s beneficial use and occupancy of the Leased
Property, all-risk property insurance including, without limitation earthquake coverage if
determined by the County in its discretion to be available at a commercially reasonable price.
Such insurance shall be in an amount equal to the replacement cost (without deduction for
depreciation) of the Leased Property, except that such insurance may be subject to deductible
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clauses for any one loss of not to exceed five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) (or a
comparable deductible adjusted for inflation as determined by the County in its reasonable
discretion), or, in the alternative, shall be in an amount and in a form sufficient, in the event of
total or partial loss, to prepay all outstanding principal components of Base Rental Payments due.
Such insurance may be part of a joint-purchase insurance program. The County is, however,
under no obligation to provide insurance against loss or damage occasioned by the perils of
earthquake.

In the event that such coverage is not included in paragraph (1) above, boiler and
machinery coverage against loss or damage by explosion of steam boilers, pressure vessels and
similar apparatus now or hereafter installed on the Leased Property in an amount not less than
$75,000,000 per accident; provided, however, that the amount of coverage required by this
sentence may be reduced to a smaller amount if an insurance consultant or insurance broker
retained by the County provides written advice to the Trustee that, based upon its evaluation of
the County’s maximum foreseeable loss in the event of loss or damage by steam boilers, pressure
vessels and similar apparatus now or hereafter installed on the Leased Property, a specified
smaller amount is believed to be reasonable. Such insurance may be in the form of a policy
which covers the Leased Property and one or more additional parcels of real property leased or
owned by the County which may be limited in amount to $75,000,000 per accident. Such
insurance may at any time include a deductible clause providing for a deductible not to exceed
$100,000 for any one loss. The County may obtain such coverage as a joint insured with one or
more public agencies located within or without the County which may be limited in amount to
$75,000,000 per accident. Otherwise conforming policies satisfying the requirements of this
paragraph (1) may provide that amounts payable as coverage under this paragraph (1) may be
reduced by amounts payable under paragraph (2) for the same occurrence, and vice versa.

In the event of any damage to or destruction of any part of the Leased Property, caused
by the perils covered by such insurance, the County, except as provided in the Facility Lease, will
cause the proceeds of such insurance to be utilized for the repair, reconstruction or replacement of
the damaged or destroyed portion of the Leased Property, and the net proceeds, if any, of the
insurance policy described in this paragraph (1) shall be payable to the Trustee for deposit in the
Insurance Proceeds and Condemnation Awards Fund, to the end that such proceeds shall be
applied to the repair, reconstruction or replacement of the Leased Property to at least the same
good order, repair and condition as it was in prior to the damage or destruction, insofar as the
same may be accomplished by the use of said proceeds. The County shall permit withdrawals of
said proceeds from time to time for the purpose of repair, reconstruction or replacement only in
the event-that the Base Rental Payments payable in each year following such repair,
reconstruction or replacement shall equal the amount of Base Rental Payments payable in such
year as set forth in the Base Rental Payment Schedule. Any balance of said proceeds not required
for such repair, reconstruction or replacement shall be applied by the County as Base Rental
Payments. Alternatively, the County, at its option, and if the proceeds of such insurance together
with any other moneys then available for the purpose are at least sufficient to prepay an aggregate
principal amount of Base Rental Payments equal to the portion of the Leased Property so
destroyed or damaged (determined by reference to the proportion that the acquisition cost of such
portion of the Leased Property bears to the acquisition cost of the Leased Property), may elect not
to repair, reconstruct or replace the damaged or destroyed portion of the Leased Property and
thereupon shall cause said proceeds to be used for the prepayment of Base Rental Payments.
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The Authority and the County will promptly apply for Federal disaster aid or State
disaster aid in the event that the Leased Property is damaged or destroyed as a result of an
earthquake occurring at any time. Any proceeds received as a result of such disaster aid shall be
used to repair, reconstruct, restore or replace the damaged or destroyed portions of the Leased
Property, or, at the option of the County; to prepay all outstanding principal components of Base
Rental Payments due under the Facility Lease if such use of such disaster aid is permitted.

2) Liability Insurance. Except as hereinafter provided, the County will procure or
cause to be procured and maintain or cause to be maintained, throughout the term of the Facility
Lease commencing with the County’s beneficial use and occupancy of the Leased Property, a
commercial general liability insurance policy or policies in protection of the Authority and its
members, directors, officers, agents and employees, indemnifying said parties against all direct or
contingent loss or liability for damages for bodily injury, death or property damage occasioned by
reason of the operation of the Leased Property, with minimum liability limits of two million
dollars ($2,000,000) for bodily injury or death of each person in each accident or event, and in a
minimum amount of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) for damage to property resulting
from each accident or event. Such public liability and property damage insurance may, however,
be in the form of a single limit policy covering all such risks. Such liability insurance may be
part of a joint-purchase insurance program. Such insurance may be maintained by the County in
the form of self-insurance.

3) Rental Interruption Insurance. The County shall maintain insurance issued by a
responsible carrier against rental interruption or loss of use and possession of the Leased Property
or, as an alternative, such insurance may be maintained as part of or in conjunction with any other
insurance carried by the County. Such insurance shall be maintained by the County in an amount
sufficient to pay the maximum annual Base Rental Payments for any two-year period, except that
such insurance may be subject to a deductible clause of not to exceed $500,000 (or a comparable
deductible adjusted for inflation as determined by the County in its reasonable discretion) and
such rental interruption insurance may be included in the policy or policies provided pursuant to
paragraph (1) or (2) without increasing the aggregate limits for coverage with respect to any
hazard covered thereby. Such insurance also may be in the form of a policy which covers the
Leased Property and one or more additional parcels of real property leased or owned by the
County. The County also may obtain an otherwise conforming policy required by this paragraph
(3) as a joint insured with one or more other public agencies within or without the County which
may, with respect to any hazard, be limited in aggregate amount for all insureds to the amount of
the policy or policies required pursuant to paragraph (1) or (2) above, as the case may be, which
insures against such hazard. Otherwise conforming policies satisfying the requirements of this
paragraph (3) may provide that amounts payable as coverage under this paragraph (3) may be
reduced by amounts payable under paragraph (1) or (2), as the case may be, for the same
occurrence, and vice versa.

4) Workers’ Compensation Insurance. The County shall maintain workers’
compensation insurance issued by a responsible carrier authorized under the laws of the State to
insure its employees against liability for compensation under the Workers’ Compensation
Insurance and Safety Act now in force in California, or any act hereafter enacted as an
amendment or supplement thereto. As an alternative, such insurance may be maintained as part
of or in conjunction with any other insurance carried by the County. Such insurance may be
maintained by the County in the form of self-insurance.
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The County shall collect, adjust and receive all moneys which may become due and payable
under any policies contemplated by paragraphs (1) and (2) above, and, may compromise any and all
claims thereunder and shall transfer the net proceeds of such insurance as provided herein or in the
Indenture. The Trustee shall not be responsible for the sufficiency of any insurance herein required. The
Trustee shall be fully protected in accepting payment on account of such insurance or any adjustment,
compromise or settlement of any loss agreed to by the County.

Any insurance policy issued pursuant to paragraph (1) or (2) above shall be so written or
endorsed as to make losses, if any, payable to the County, the Authority and the Trustee as their
respective interests may appear and the net proceeds of the insurance required by paragraphs (1) or (2)
above shall be applied pursuant to the Facility Lease. The net proceeds, if any, of the insurance policy
described in paragraphs (1) and (2) above shall be payable to the Trustee for deposit in the Insurance
Proceeds and Condemnation Awards Fund. The net proceeds, if any, of the insurance policy described in
paragraph (3) above shall be payable to the Trustee and deposited in the Revenue Fund. Each insurance
policy provided for in this section shall contain a provision to the effect that the insurance company shall
not cancel the policy or modify it materially and adversely to the interests of the Authority or the Trustee
without first giving written notice thereof to the Authority and the Trustee at least 30 days in advance of
such intended cancellation or modification.

All insurance required by the Facility Lease will provide that the Trustee shall be given 30 days
written notice of each lapse or a reduction of the coverage below the minimum requirements stated in
paragraphs (1), (2) and (3) above. Neither the Trustee nor the Authority will be responsible for the
sufficiency of any insurance herein required and both the Trustee and the Authority shall be fully
protected in accepting payment on account of such insurance or any adjustment, compromise or
settlement of any loss agreed to by the Authority. The County will pay when due the premiums for all
insurance policies required by the Facility Lease, and shall promptly furnish evidence of such payments to
the Trustee, upon its written request.

The Authority, the Corporation and the County make no representation as to the ability of any
insurer to fulfill its obligations under any insurance policy provided for in the Facility Lease. In addition,
certain risks may not be covered by such property insurance.

Earthquake Insurance. The County currently maintains $125 million of earthquake insurance
on certain County properties, subject to a deductible of 2% of the total insured value for the building with
a minimum deductible of $100,000 per insured unit. Such insurance is expected to include under its
aggregate coverage the Phase II Project once a Certificate of Substantial Completion is signed by the
Architect. Earthquake insurance is required to be obtained and maintained, however, under the Facility
Lease only if determined by the County in its discretion to be available at a commercially reasonable
price. No assurance can be provided that the County will maintain any earthquake insurance for the
Leased Property or any part of the Phase II Project. See “RISK FACTORS — Risk of Uninsured Loss”
herein.

Rental Abatement

Until such time as a Certificate of Substantial Completion has been delivered to the Trustee, the
County’s obligation to pay Base Rental Payments will be limited solely to amounts on deposit in the
Revenue Fund (including, without limitation, the Capitalized Interest Account established pursuant to the
Indenture), and, if, any rental payments with respect to the Leased Property will be at any time abated in
full, and the County will have no obligation to make any Base Rental Payments from any other source.
Except to the extent of (a) amounts held by the Trustee in the Revenue Fund or any account thereof, (b)
amounts received in respect of rental interruption insurance, and (c) amounts, if any, otherwise legally
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available to the Trustee for payments in respect of the Bonds, during any period in which, by reason of
material damage, destruction, title defect, or condemnation, there is substantial interference with the use
and possession by the County of any portion of the Leased Property, rental payments due under the
Facility Lease with respect to the Leased Property shall be abated to the extent that the annual fair rental
value of the portion of the Leased Property in respect of which there is no substantial interference is less
than the annual Base Rental Payments, in which case rental payments shall be abated only by an amount
equal to the difference.

Any abatement of rental payments pursuant to the Facility Lease will not be considered an Event
of Default under the Facility Lease. The County waives all rights to terminate the Facility Lease by virtue
of any such interference and the Facility Lease shall continue in full force and effect. Such abatement
will continue for the period commencing with the date of such damage, destruction, title defect or
condemnation and, with respect to damage to or destruction of the Leased Property, ending with the
substantial completion of the work of repair or replacement of the Leased Property, or the portion thereof
so damaged or destroyed, and with respect to a title defect interfering with the use and possession by the
County of any portion of the Leased Property, ending with the interference with the use and possession
caused by such title defect.

If rental is abated, in whole or in part, pursuant to the Facility Lease due to material damage or
destruction of any part of the Leased Property and the County is unable to repair, replace or rebuild the
Leased Property from the proceeds of insurance, if any, the County agrees to apply for and to use its best
efforts to obtain any appropriate state and/or federal disaster relief in order to obtain funds to repair,
replace or rebuild the Leased Property.

Re-letting of the Leased Property

Upon an Event of Default under the Facility Lease, and in the event the Authority, the
Corporation or the Trustee elects not to terminate the Facility Lease, the Corporation will have the right
and the County irrevocably appoints the Corporation as its agent and attorney-in-fact under the Facility
Lease for such purpose to attempt to re-let the Leased Property at such rent, upon such conditions and for
such term, and to do all other acts to maintain or preserve the Leased Property, including the removal of
persons or property therefrom or taking possession thereof, as the Corporation or the Authority deems
desirable or necessary, and the County hereby waives any and all claims for any damages that may result
to the Leased Property thereby; provided, that no such actions shall be deemed to terminate the Facility
Lease and the County will continue to remain liable for any deficiency that may arise out of such re-
letting, taking into account expenses incurred by the Corporation or the Authority due to such re-letting,
payable at the same time and manner as provided for Base Rental in the Facility Lease.

Substitution or Removal of Leased Property

The County may amend the Facility Lease and the Ground Lease in writing from time to time by
mutual agreement of the parties to substitute other real property and/or improvements (the “Substituted
Property”) for existing Leased Property and/or to remove real property (including undivided interests
therein) and/or improvements from the definition of Leased Property upon compliance with all of the
conditions set forth below. After a Substitution or Removal, the part of the Leased Property for which the
Substitution or Removal has been effected shall be released from the leasehold under the Facility Lease
and under the Ground Lease. No Substitution or Removal shall take place under the Facility Lease until
the County delivers to the Corporation and the Trustee the following:
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() A Certificate of the County containing a description of all or part of the Leased Property
to be released and, in the event of a Substitution, a description of the Substituted Property to be
substituted in its place;

2) A Certificate of the County (A) stating that the annual fair rental value of the Leased
Property after a Substitution or Removal, in each year during the remaining term of the Facility Lease, is
at least equal to the maximum annual Base Rental Payments payable under the Facility Lease attributable
to the Leased Property prior to said Substitution or Removal, as determined by the County on the basis of
commercially reasonable evidence of the annual fair rental value of the Leased Property after said
Substitution or Removal (which commercially reasonable evidence may include, but not necessitate,
appraisals undertaken by appraisers who are employed by the County or independent of the County, or
other information provided to or maintained by the County), which determination shall be final and
conclusive; and (B) demonstrating that the useful life of the Leased Property after Substitution or
Removal equals or exceeds the remaining term of the Facility Lease;

3) An Opinion of the County Counsel of the County to the effect that the amendments to the
Facility Lease and to the Ground Lease contemplating Substitution or Removal have been duly
authorized, executed and delivered and constitute the valid and binding obligations of the County and the
Corporation enforceable in accordance with their terms;

@) (A) In the event of a Substitution, a policy of title insurance in an amount equal to the
principal portion of the then-remaining Base Rental Payments payable under the Facility Lease multiplied
by a fraction, the numerator of which is that portion of the principal portion of the then-remaining Base
Rental Payments payable under the Facility Lease attributable to the Substituted Property and the
denominator of which is the principal portion of the then-remaining Base Rental Payments payable under
the Facility Lease, insuring the County’s leasehold interest in the Substituted Property (except any portion
thereof which is not real property) subject only to Permitted Encumbrances, together with an endorsement
thereto making said policy payable to the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds and any
Additional Bonds, and (B) in the event of a partial Removal, evidence that the title insurance in effect
immediately prior thereto is not affected;

(5) In the event of a Substitution, the Corporation and the County shall consent in writing
and certify to the Trustee that such exceptions and Permitted Encumbrances, if any, contained in the title
insurance policy referred to in (4) above will not materially impair the leasehold interests of the
Corporation or the beneficial use and occupancy of the Substituted Property described in such policy by
the County and will not result in an abatement of Base Rental Payments payable by the County under the
Facility Lease;

(6) An Opinion of Counsel that the Substitution or Removal does not cause the interest with
respect to the Bonds to be includable in gross income of the Holders thercof for federal income tax
purposes; and

(7 Evidence that the County has complied with the insurance covenants contained in the
Facility Lease with respect to the Substituted Property.

Encumbrances
The County and the Corporation will agree under the Facility Lease that they will not create or
suffer to be created any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge or encumbrance upon the Leased Property, except

Permitted Encumbrances. The County and the Corporation will not sell or otherwise dispose of the
Leased Property or any property essential to the proper operation of the Leased Property, except as
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otherwise provided in the Facility Lease. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the
Facility Lease, the County may assign, transfer or sublease any and all of the Leased Property or its other
rights under the Facility Lease, provided that (a) the rights of any assignee, transferee or sublessee shall
be subordinate to all rights of the Corporation under the Facility Lease, (b) no such assignment, transfer
or sublease shall relieve the County of any of its obligations under the Facility Lease, (c) the assignment,
transfer or sublease shall not result in a breach of any covenant of the County contained in any other
section of the Facility Lease, and (d) no such assignment, transfer or sublease will confer upon the parties
thereto any remedy which allows reentry upon the Leased Property unless concurrently with granting
such remedy the same shall be also granted under the Facility Lease by an amendment to the Facility
Lease which shall in all instances be prior to and superior to any such assignment, transfer or sublease.
See APPENDIX C — “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE PRINCIPAL LEGAL
DOCUMENTS?” hereto.

CIVIC CENTER FACILITIES STRATEGIC PLAN
AND THE PHASE II PROJECT

Civic Center Facilities Strategic Plan

On April 25, 2017 the Board of Supervisors approved the County of Orange Civic Center
Facilities Strategic Plan (the “Civic Center Plan”). The Civic Center Plan involves the +/- 11 acre County
“superblock” (bounded by Ross Street, Civic Center Drive, Broadway and Santa Ana Boulevard), as well
as County satellite buildings within the vicinity of the Civic Center. Key goals of the plan are to improve
the delivery of County services to the community by grouping similar and related services; to improve
efficiencies through these departmental adjacencies; reduce energy costs by capitalizing on the Central
Utilities Facility; and to improve space usage which are projected to result in lower long-term operating
and maintenance costs for the County. To accomplish these goals, the plan anticipates the renovation of
several existing facilities and the replacement of several facilities with new construction. The Civic
Center Plan would result in a net increase of 390,000 square feet of government office uses within the
superblock area. Implementation would occur in four phases over approximately 18 years. There are no
contracts yet in place for future phases beyond Phases I and II.

Phase 1

Phase I of the Civic Center Plan consists the acquisition, construction and equipping of an office
building, public serving counter, and events center containing approximately 254,000 gross square feet
and a 350 stall subterranean parking structure. The development of Phase I is currently proceeding ahead
of schedule and under budget and is expected to be substantially completed by January 2020. Proceeds of
the Bonds are not expected to be applied to any portion of Phase 1.

Phase II - Project Summary

The Phase II Project to be financed with the proceeds of the Bonds is located at 645 Ross Street
in Santa Ana, California, in the Civic Center Plaza. The Phase II Project is being constructed to “essential
facility standards (structural)” and consists of the design, construction and equipping of a new office
building that includes administrative offices of the County, a room for Board of Supervisors and
department meetings, and two levels of below-grade secured employee parking for the County. The board
room is sized for approximately 300 people in the public seating area as well as staff in the support area
and officials at the dais. The County Departments scheduled to occupy the Phase II Project are County
Administrative Departments. See “CIVIC CENTER FACILITIES STRATEGIC PLAN AND THE
PHASE II PROJECT — Phase II Project Description” below.
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The Phase IT Project will be constructed for a guaranteed maximum price of $190,112,642.
Substantial completion of the Phase II Project and beneficial use and occupancy by the County is
expected to occur by June 28, 2022, subject to unexpected delays. Upon substantial completion, the
County will maintain and operate the Phase II Project.

The site is fully entitled and all environmental requirements for the Phase II Project will be
satisfied by the mitigation measures identified in the Certified EIR (described below). No hazardous
substances that would impair the Phase II Project have been identified on the site. The Construction
Manager (described below) is installing cross-bracing on each floor to mitigate against any seismic
activity that may occur during the construction period.

See “RISK FACTORS — Construction and Completion Risk” herein.
Phase II Project Description

Office Building. The Phase II Project consists of approximately 254,234 Gross Square Feet
(“GSF”) over 6 floors, and two levels of below-grade secured employee parking (approximately 152,346
GSF) for up to 350 vehicles. Approximately 80% of the floor plan for the building is open space. The
building is being structurally and seismically designed enhanced to meet 150% of building code
requirements and will satisfy “essential facility standards (structural).”

Hearing Room. The Hearing Room is designed for the Board of Supervisors hearings, as well as
other departmental meetings. It will include the dais, room for staff and seating for up to 300 members of
the public. The hearing room will be designed for audio visual display and streaming capabilities for
those viewing from the overflow rooms and/or off-site.

Sustainable Design Attributes. Sustainable design attributes of the Phase II Project include the
following:

Designed to meet LEED NC Silver Certification.

Designed to satisty Green Building Code and Water Quality regulations.

Building aligned on the site for enhanced energy efficiency.

Cost-effective, durable, low-maintenance materials include precast concrete panels at the
exterior and terrazzo flooring at the ground floor interior high traffic areas.

Glazing to be dual-glazed with low-E coating for higher energy efficiency.

e Lighting to be LED for long life, low maintenance, and high energy efficiency.

Charging stations are being provided for electric vehicles.

Phase II Project Team

The Phase II Project will be designed and constructed by the Phase Il Project Team comprised of
Griffin Structures Inc. (the “Developer”), LPA, Inc. (the “Architect”) and Swinerton Builders (the
“Construction Manager”). See APPENDIX G — “DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT” hereto.

The Phase Il Project Team is currently working together on Phase I of the County of Orange
Civic Center Facilities Strategic Plan, which consists the acquisition, construction and equipping of an
office building, public serving counter, and events center containing approximately 254,000 gross square
feet and a 350 stall subterranean parking structure. The development of Phase I is currently proceeding
ahead schedule and under budget and is expected to be substantially completed by January 2020.
Proceeds of the Bonds are not expected to be applied to any portion of Phase I. Building 14 is essentially
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a “twin” structure to Building 16, and is the second Phase of the County’s Civic Center “super block” of
governmental services to the community.

In addition, the Developer and the Architect have successfully collaborated on 25 public-sector
projects over the past 19 years. The Developer and the Construction Manager have successfully
collaborated on 12 projects over the past 12 years, including delivery of the Quartz Hill Library public
private partnership project for the County of Los Angeles, and the City of Salinas police headquarters and
library projects.

Following are brief descriptions of the Phase II Project Team.

Developer. Griffin Structures, Inc. is the Developer for the Phase II Project. The Developer’s
website is: www.griffinholdings.net. Information set forth on such website is not incorporated herein by
reference. The Developer is a California-based, award-winning, development, program, design and
construction management organization providing strategic project delivery solutions to public, non-profit,
and private sector clients since 1981. Headquartered in Irvine, California, the Developer also maintains a
Northern California office in Santa Clara. For more than three decades the Developer has worked with
counties and cities to plan, design, build, and finance facilities needed to serve their communities. The
Developer provides a team of experienced professionals in the design, development, and construction
fields. The firm’s professionals deliver complex projects-managing projects from planning, design,
development, and construction, to entitlements through post-occupancy. Several of the firm’s
professionals are certified construction managers and/or LEED certified. The Developer has provided
services in connection with a wide range of project delivery methods, including: public-private
partnerships, design-build, and project financing.

The Developer has successfully completed over 150 projects for the public sector. The
Developer’s experience includes administration complexes, police, fire and public safety facilities, city
halls, libraries, community/senior centers, parking structures, corporation yards, parks and trail systems,
z0os, non-profit facilities, commercial buildings, and related infrastructure.

In addition to its current portfolio of public projects (e.g. San Bernardino County Civic Center,
Lake Gregory Dam Restoration, Buena Park main police facility, $180 million Anaheim convention
center expansion) the Developer recently completed the Quartz Hill Library, the first public private
partnership project delivered for the County of Los Angeles. The Developer is engaged to deliver new
police headquarters and library projects to the City of Salinas, California. These two projects, with a
combined value of $75 million, are being developed as a public private partnership. Construction for the
projects began in August 2018, with occupancy scheduled for 2020. The Developer is also serving as
development manager and owner’s representative for the Anaheim NHL Ducks for a new $103 million
facility, presently under construction at the Great Park in Irvine, California. LPA, Inc., the architect for
the Phase II Project, is serving as the architect for the Anaheim NHL Ducks project and the City of
Salinas police headquarters project, and Swinerton Builders, the construction manager for the Phase II
Project, is the construction manager for the Anaheim NHL Ducks project, and the aforementioned City of
Salinas projects.

Examples of the Developer’s projects that have received awards include: government campuses
for the County of San Bernardino, the City of Hesperia and the City of Fullerton, city hall projects for
Rancho Santa Margarita, San Dimas and Santa Ana, community centers for Cypress, Delhi, Fullerton
(LEED NC), Huntington Beach, Laguna Beach, Lawndale (LEED Silver), Rancho Santa Margarita and
San Dimas, and educational facilities for the Environmental Nature Center in Newport Beach (LEED
Platinum), the Fullerton Main Library (LEED NC), the Hesperia Public Library and the Tustin Main
Library.
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Construction Manager. Swinerton Builders, the construction manager for the Phase II Project,
was founded in 1888 and undertakes construction projects throughout California and other states. The
Construction Manager’s website is: www.swinerton.com. Information set forth on such website is not
incorporated herein by reference. Swinerton currently has the oldest active California General
Contractor’s License, #92. For the last three years the Construction Manager has been ranked as the
largest general contractor in California by the Engineering News Record. The Construction Manager
completed over $4 billion “put in place” construction in both 2016 and 2017. The firm currently employs
approximately 2,400 professionals throughout 18 offices across the nation including Irvine, Los Angeles,
San Diego, San Francisco, Sacramento, Santa Clara, Denver, Austin, Hawaii, Portland, Bend, Seattle, and
Atlanta. The Construction Manager has an aggregate bonding limit of over $2.5 billion, available bonding
capacity of $1.6 billion, and a maximum bonding limit of $500 million per project. For a description of
the payment and performance bond requirements applicable to the Phase II Project under the
Development Agreement, see “- Payment and Performance Bonds™ below.

Representative Southern California projects completed by the Construction Manager include the
following: LAX Terminal 5 improvements for Delta Airlines, John Wayne Airport Terminal A&B
improvements, High Desert Health System Multi-Service Ambulatory Care Center, Turner Riverwalk,
UCSD Charles David Keeling Apartments, the Carlyle, Sunroad Centrum, a LEED certified office
structure, and NASA Jet Propulsion Laboratory Flight Projects Center. The Construction Manager has
completed more than 200 LEED projects, valued at more than $4.2 billion. The firm’s experience
includes civic infrastructure projects, many of them in collaboration with the Developer, including
Buildings 16 and 14 for the County and the City of Salinas police headquarters and library.

Architect. LPA, Inc. (the “Architect”), the architect for the Phase II Project has been in business
for more than fifty years. Architect’s website is: www.lpainc.com. Information set forth on such website is
not incorporated herein by reference. The Architect has approximately 425 employees: 70% LEED
Accredited Professionals and 47% licensed professionals (Architect, PE, CID, etc.). As one of the largest
integrated design firms in California and Texas, the Architect provides architecture, planning, landscape
architecture, interior design, engineering, and graphic/signage services from early program development
to project closeout. Representative projects completed by the Architect include the following: Building 16
as part of Phase I, NASA Jet Propulsion Laboratory Flight Projects Center, Capital Group Companies,
Premier Automotive Group, 200 Spectrum Center, 520 Newport Center, Santa Clara Gateway, Edwards
Lifescience, Brentwood Civic Center, Hesperia Civic Center and San Bernardino County Public Safety
Operations Center. The Architect has won more than 700 major design awards and completed over 50
LEED certified projects in California. The Developer and the Architect have successfully collaborated
over the past 20 years on numerous projects in the public sector, including Buildings 16 and 14 and the
City of Salinas police headquarters.

Phase II Project Development

Development Agreement and CMAR Contract. The Corporation and the Developer have entered
into a Development Agreement in connection with the Phase II Project; see Appendix G hereto (the
“Development Agreement”). The Development Agreement is the primary document governing
development and construction management services in connection with the construction of the Phase II
Project. The Developer will not personally perform any design or construction services, but has or will
contract directly and separately with (i) the Construction Manager who is to be engaged to construct the
Phase II Project, (ii) the Architect and engineers and related design consultants designing the Phase II
Project, and (iii) such other contractors or consultants who may be engaged to perform discrete elements
of design or construction work on the Phase II Project to the extent not covered by the construction
management contract for the Phase II Project (the “CMAR Contract”) between the Corporation and the
Construction Manager or the Architect Agreement, between the Developer and the Architect.
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Pursuant to the Development Agreement, the Developer will require that the Construction
Manager to include in all Construction Contracts recitations or provisions requiring the following:

Labor Code §1700: Provisions requiring all Contractors employed on the Phase II
Project to be responsible to pay the prevailing rate of wages as defined in California Labor Code
Sections 1700 et seq. (but expressly excluding the Davis-Bacon Act and any rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder), and to indemnify the Corporation, the County, the Developer and the
Trustee for claims arising out of failure to pay proper wages;

Safety: Provisions for initiating, maintaining and providing supervision of safety
precautions and programs in connection with the construction of the Phase II Project;

Indemnity: Provisions for indemnifying the Corporation, the County, the Developer and
Trustee for claims arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of such Contractor and its
employees and agents; and

Assignment: Provisions for assignment to the Trustee upon an Event of Default under
the Indenture for which the Developer has received written notice from the Trustee.

Liquidated Damages. As the Corporation’s sole remedy for delay, the Developer agrees to
forfeit and pay to the Corporation the sum of $45,000 per day as liquidated damages, and not as a penalty
(“Liquidated Damages”), for each calendar day that Substantial Completion of the Phase II Project is
delayed beyond the Developer Obligation Date, as that date may be adjusted pursuant to the terms of the
Development Agreement. The Corporation may deduct such sum from any payments due to or to become
due to the Developer. See APPENDIX G — “DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT” hereto. Developer will
have a claim for (and be able to deduct from amounts owing the Construction Manager or otherwise
collect from the Construction Manager) the actual damages that the Developer suffers as a result of the
Construction Manager’s failure to achieve Substantial Completion as provided in the CMAR Contract,
including Liquidated Damages. Pursuant to the Facility Lease, the Corporation will assign and transfer to
the Authority all right, title, and interest in, to, and under any payments received pursuant to the
Liquidated Damages provisions of the Development Agreement for deposit in the Revenue Fund.

Payment and Performance Bonds. Under the CMAR Contract, the Developer will require the
Construction Manager to furnish a payment bond for 100% of the amount of the construction portion of
the Guaranteed Maximum Construction Price, in accordance with Civil Code Section 9554, and a
performance bond for 100% of the amount of the construction portion of the Guaranteed Maximum
Construction Price, guaranteeing the faithful performance of the CMAR Contract.

Environmental Review. A Geotechnical Exploration Report, Orange County Building 14, dated
July 30, 2018, was prepared by Leighton Consulting, Inc. and a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment
and Subsurface Baseline Screening Report, Building 14, dated July 27, 2018, was Prepared by Leighton
Consulting Inc. Various other reports were prepared in connection with the environment review for the
Phase II Project. No report recommended significant mitigation measures in connection with the Phase 11
Project that would potentially delay construction or impair occupancy by the County. No hazardous
substances that would impair the Phase II Project have been identified on the site. Further, the final
certified Environmental Impact Report, dated April 25, 2017, together with Addendum No. 1, prepared by
PlaceWorks (the “Certified EIR”) identified no environmental impacts that would impair the construction
of the Phase II Project or occupancy by the County following substantial completion of the Phase II
Project.
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Insurance During Construction. During construction of the Phase II Project, the Developer will
be required to procure and maintain, at a minimum, for the duration of the Development Agreement the
insurance coverages set forth in Exhibit G to the Development Agreement. See APPENDIX G —
“DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT” hereto.

Insurance Following Construction. Following delivery of the Certificate of Substantial
Completion pursuant to the Facility Lease, the Corporation or the County will maintain the insurance
coverages described in the Facility Lease. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE
BONDS - Insurance” herein.

Assignment of Documents on Event of Default. Upon written notice from the Trustee to the
Developer of the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Indenture, the Developer will assign the
Development Agreement, the Architect’s Agreement and the CMAR Contract, together with such other
Construction Contracts as the Trustee may request, to Trustee for such time as the Event of Default in the
sole judgment of the Trustee remains uncured.

RISK FACTORS

Purchase of the Bonds will constitute an investment subject to certain risks, including the risk of
nonpayment of principal and interest. Before purchasing any of the Bonds, prospective investors should
carefully consider, among other things, the risk factors described below. However, the following is not
meant to be an exhaustive listing of all the risks associated with the purchase of the Bonds. Moreover, the
order of presentation of the risk factors does not necessarily reflect the order of their importance.

Construction and Completion Risk

The Phase II Project may be subject to Unavoidable Delays for a variety of reasons.
“Unavoidable Delays” under the Development Agreement mean any delay in the performance by
Developer or the Construction Manager of its obligations with respect to construction of the Phase II
Project caused by strikes or labor disputes (other than those caused by Developer’s acts, omissions or
failure to negotiate in good faith), acts of God, unavoidable casualties, adverse weather conditions which
prevent or delay Critical Path construction activities as and when scheduled by the Contractors, acts of
terrorists, delays by an agency having jurisdiction over the Phase II Project (including, but not limited to,
unanticipated delays in providing inspections or approvals by such agency), delays caused by the County
which is not intended to include any period of time provided in the Facility Lease, the Project Schedule,
or the Development Agreement for the County to review and respond to any submission, governmental
embargo restrictions, Differing Site Conditions not reasonably identified by the Developer prior to the
date of the Development Agreement in the exercise of its commercially reasonable due diligence (which
the parties have agreed that the Developer’s due diligence was reasonable), or other causes beyond the
reasonable control of the Developer or the Construction Manager, which, after the exercise of due
diligence to mitigate the effects thereof, delay construction of the Phase II Project. Unavoidable Delays
will entitle the Developer and the Construction Manager to an extension of the Developer Obligation
Date, but will in no way entitle the Developer to additional compensation. See APPENDIX G —
“DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT” hereto. Pursuant to the Development Agreement, the Developer will
procure and maintain, or will direct the Construction Manager to procure and maintain, for the duration of
the Development Agreement, builder’s risk insurance, which will provide funds for reconstruction costs
and the payment of Base Rental Payments under the Facility Lease during any period of reconstruction
required by an insured peril. The Construction Manager is required to obtain payment and performance
bonds to insure its performance under the CMAR Contract. Interest on the Bonds is expected to be paid
from capitalized interest amounts prior to the delivery of a Certificate of Substantial Completion pursuant
to the Development Agreement and the Loan Agreement.
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Abatement

In the event of the loss of, damage to or destruction or condemnation of, or title defect with
respect to the Leased Property that causes substantial interference with the use by the County of the
Leased Property or any portion thereof, the County’s obligation to make the Base Rental Payments due
under the Facility Lease will be abated and, notwithstanding: (i) the provisions of the Facility Lease
specifying the extent of such abatement and (ii) rental interruption insurance covering loss of use of the
Leased Property in an amount adequate to cover 24 months of Base Rental Payments, the resulting Base
Rental Payments (and such other funds) may not be sufficient to pay all of the remaining principal and
interest due with respect to the Bonds. A delay in completion of the Phase II Project could result in an
event of abatement under the Facility Lease. No reserve fund or account is established for the Bonds
under the Indenture.

Substitution or Removal of Leased Property

Pursuant to the Facility Lease, the County will have, so long as the Facility Lease is in effect, the
option, but not the obligation, at any time and from time to time, to substitute other real property and/or
improvements for any portion of the Leased Property under the Facility Lease or remove any identifiable
real property and/or improvements constituting the Leased Property provided that the County satisfies
certain requirements set forth in the Facility Lease. See “SECURITY AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT
FOR THE BONDS — Substitution or Removal of Leased Property” herein.

Limited Obligation

The Bonds do not constitute a debt or liability of the State, the County or of any political
subdivision thereof, other than the Authority, but shall be payable solely from the funds provided therefor
in the Indenture. The Authority shall not be obligated to pay the principal of the Bonds, or the redemption
premium or interest thereon, except from the funds provided therefor under the Indenture and neither the
faith and credit nor the taxing power of the Authority, the State or of any political subdivision thereof,
including the County, is pledged to the payment of the principal of or the redemption premium or interest
on the Bonds. The issuance of the Bonds shall not directly or indirectly or contingently obligate the State
or any political subdivision thereof, including the County, to levy or to pledge any form of taxation or to
make any appropriation for their payment. The Authority has no taxing power.

Risk of Uninsured Loss

The County covenants under the Facility Lease to maintain certain insurance policies on the
Leased Property. These insurance policies do not cover all types of risk. For example, the County is not
required to maintain earthquake insurance with respect to the Phase II Project, unless in its discretion the
County determines such insurance to be available at a commercially reasonable price. In the case of a
circumstance not covered by insurance, an abatement of Base Rental Payments could occur and could
continue indefinitely. In cases where the casualty is covered by insurance, there can be no assurance that
the County’s insurance carriers will in all events be able or willing to make payments under their
respective policies should a claim be made. Further, there can be no assurances that amounts received as
proceeds from insurance or from condemnation of the Leased Property will be sufficient to repair or
replace the Leased Property or to redeem the Bonds.
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No Limitation on Incurring Additional Obligations

Neither the Facility Lease nor the Indenture contains any limitations on the ability of the County
to enter into other obligations that may constitute additional claims against its General Fund revenues. To
the extent that the County incurs additional obligations, the funds available to make Base Rental
Payments may be decreased. The County is currently liable on other obligations payable from General
Fund revenues.

Hazardous Substances

The activities of the County may, from time to time, result in the use of hazardous substances on
the facilities owned and operated by the County, including, but not limited, to the Leased Property.
Accordingly, it is possible that spills, discharges or other adverse environmental consequences of such use
in the future could cause an adverse effect on the fair rental value of the Leased Property and lead, in an
extreme case, to abatement, in whole or in part, of Base Rental Payments. See “— Abatement” above.

Earthquake and Seismic Conditions

The areas in and surrounding the Leased Property, like those in much of California, may be
subject to unpredictable seismic activity. Seismic activity could lead to a reduction of assessed values in
the County. In addition, an occurrence of severe seismic activity in the area of the Leased Property may
result in substantial damage to and/or interference with the County’s right to use and occupy all or a
portion of the Leased Property, leading to the abatement of Base Rental Payments. The County currently
maintains $125 million of earthquake insurance on certain County properties, subject to a deductible of
2% of the total insured value for the building with a minimum deductible of $100,000 per insured unit.
This insurance is expected to cover the Phase II Project once a Certificate of Substantial Completion is
signed by the Architect. However, earthquake insurance is required to be obtained and maintained under
the Facility Lease only if determined by the County in its discretion to be available at a commercially
reasonable price. No assurance can be provided that the County will maintain any earthquake insurance
for the Leased Property or any part of the Phase II Project.

The County relies on a combination of insurance and general reserves as well as the expectation
that some disaster relief funds will be available from the Federal Emergency Management Agency
(“FEMA”) to address any resulting damage from seismic activity. There is no assurance that, in the event
of a significant seismic event FEMA assistance and other sources would be available or sufficient for the
repair or replacement of the Leased Property.

Limited Recourse on Default

If the County defaults on its obligations to make Base Rental Payments under the Facility Lease
with respect to the Leased Property or any portion thereof, the Trustee may have limited ability to re-let
the Leased Property or portions of the Leased Property to provide a source of payments sufficient to make
Base Rental Payments in amounts sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds. Further, no
assurance can be given that the Trustee will be able to re-let the Leased Property or portions thereof so as
to provide Base Rental sufficient to pay principal and interest on the Bonds in a timely manner. In the
event of a default, there is no remedy of acceleration of the total Base Rental Payments due over the
term of the Facility Lease. The County will only be liable for Base Rental Payments on an annual basis
under the Facility Lease, and the Trustee would be required to seek a separate judgment each year for that
year’s defaulted Base Rental Payments. Any such suit for money damages would be subject to limitations
on legal remedies against public entities in the State, including a limitation on enforcement of judgments
against funds needed to serve the public welfare and interest.
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Enforceability of Remedies

The remedies available to the Trustee and the Owners of the Bonds upon an event of default
under the Indenture, the Loan Agreement, the Facility Lease or any other document described herein are
in many respects dependent upon regulatory and judicial actions which are often subject to discretion and
delay. Under existing law and judicial decisions, the remedies provided for under such documents may
not be readily available or may be limited. The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with
the delivery of the Bonds will be qualified to the extent that the enforceability of certain legal rights
related to the Indenture, the Loan Agreement and the Facility Lease are subject to limitations imposed by
bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency or other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally and
by equitable remedies and proceedings generally. See “— Bankruptcy” below.

Bankruptcy

In addition to the limitation on remedies contained in the Indenture, the rights and remedies
provided in the Indenture and the Facility Lease may be limited by and are subject to the provisions of
federal bankruptcy laws and to other laws or equitable principles that may affect the enforcement of
creditors’ rights. The County is a governmental unit and therefore cannot be the subject of an involuntary
case under the United States Bankruptcy Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”). However, the County is a
municipality and therefore may seek voluntary protection from its creditors pursuant to Chapter 9 of the
Bankruptcy Code for purposes of adjusting its debts. If the County were to become a debtor under the
Bankruptcy Code, the County would be entitled to all of the protective provisions of the Bankruptcy Code
as applicable in a Chapter 9 case. Among the adverse effects of such a bankruptcy might be: (i) the
application of the automatic stay provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, which, until relief is granted, would
prevent collection of payments from the County or the commencement of any judicial or other action for
the purpose of recovering or collecting a claim against the County and could prevent the Trustee from
making payments from funds in its possession; (ii) the avoidance of preferential transfers occurring
during the relevant period prior to the filing of a bankruptcy petition; (iii) the existence of unsecured or
secured debt which may have a priority of payment superior to that of Owners of the Bonds; and (iv) the
possibility of the adoption of a plan (a “Plan”) for the adjustment of the County’s debt without the
consent of the Trustee or all of the Owners of the Bonds, which Plan may restructure, delay, compromise
or reduce the amount of any claim of the Owners if the Bankruptcy Court finds that the Plan is “fair and
equitable” and in the best interests of creditors.

In addition, the County could either reject the Ground Lease or Facility Lease or assume the
Ground Lease or Facility Lease despite any provision of the Ground Lease or Facility Lease that makes
the bankruptcy or insolvency of the County an event of default thereunder. If the County rejects the
Facility Lease, the Trustee, on behalf of the Owners of the Bonds, would have a pre-petition unsecured
claim that may be substantially limited in amount and this claim would be treated in a manner under a
Plan over the objections of the Trustee or Owners of the Bonds. Moreover, such rejection would terminate
the Facility Lease and the County’s obligations to make payments thereunder. The County may also be
permitted to assign the Facility Lease (or the Ground Lease) to a third party, regardless of the terms of the
transaction documents. If the County rejects the Ground Lease, the Trustee, on behalf of the Owners of
the Bonds, would have a pre-petition unsecured claim and this claim would be treated in a manner under a
Plan over the objections of the Trustee or Owners of the Bonds. Moreover, such rejection may terminate
both the Ground Lease and the Facility Lease and the obligations of the County to make payments
thereunder.

The Authority is a public agency and, like the County, cannot be the subject of an involuntary

case under the Bankruptcy Code. The Authority may also seek voluntary protection under Chapter 9 of
the Bankruptcy Code. If the Authority were to become a debtor under the Bankruptcy Code, the Authority
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would be entitled to all of the protective provisions of the Bankruptcy Code as applicable in a Chapter 9
case. Such a bankruptcy could adversely affect the payments under the Indenture. Among the adverse
effects might be: (i) the application of the automatic stay provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, which, until
relief is granted, would prevent collection of payments from the Authority or the commencement of any
judicial or other action for the purpose of recovering or collecting a claim against the Authority and could
prevent the Trustee from making payments from funds in its possession; (ii) the avoidance of preferential
transfers occurring during the relevant period prior to the filing of a bankruptcy petition; (iii) the existence
of unsecured or secured debt which may have priority of payment superior to that of the Owners of the
Bonds; and (iv) the possibility of the adoption of a Plan for the adjustment of the Authority’s debt without
the consent of the Trustee or all of the Owners of the Bonds, which Plan may restructure, delay,
compromise or reduce the amount of any claim of the Owners if the Bankruptcy Court finds that the Plan
is fair and equitable and in the best interests of creditors.

In addition, in a bankruptcy of the Authority, the assignment by the Authority to the Trustee of
the Ground Lease and the Facility Lease could be characterized as a pledge rather than an absolute
assignment. Under such circumstances, the Authority may be able to either reject the Ground Lease or
Facility Lease or assume the Ground Lease or Facility Lease despite any provision of the Ground Lease
or Facility Lease that makes the bankruptcy or insolvency of the Authority an event of default thereunder.
If the Authority rejects the Ground Lease, the Trustee, on behalf of the Owners of the Bonds, would have
a pre-petition unsecured claim that may be substantially limited in amount and this claim would be treated
in a manner under a Plan over the objections of the Trustee or Owners of the Bonds. Moreover, such
rejection would terminate both the Ground Lease and the Facility Lease and the obligations of the County
to make payments thereunder. If the Authority rejects the Facility Lease, the Trustee, on behalf of the
Owners of the Bonds, would have a pre-petition unsecured claim and this claim would be treated in a
manner under a Plan over the objections of the Trustee or Owners of the Bonds. Moreover, such rejection
may terminate the Facility Lease and the County’s obligations to make payments thereunder. The
Authority may also be permitted to assign the Ground Lease or Facility Lease to a third party, regardless
of the terms of the transaction documents.

In December, 1994, the County filed for bankruptcy protection under Chapter 9 of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code, following certain collateral calls in connection with County investments. Legislation
enacted by the State in 1995 as part of the County’s recovery plan (Chapters 745, 746, 747, and 748 of the
1995 Statutes) diverted certain revenue to the County from other public agencies or from funds within the
County, and dedicated such revenue to the payment of obligations arising out of the County’s bankruptcy
plan of adjustment. In connection with the bankruptcy plan, in 1996 the County issued certain recovery
bonds, which were refunded in 2005 and matured on July 1, 2017. On November &, 2018, the U.S.
Bankruptcy Court granted the motion of the County for the Order Closing the Bankruptcy.

Loss of Tax Exemption

To maintain the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the interest on
the Bonds, the Authority and the County will covenant to comply with each applicable requirement of
Section 103 and Sections 141 and 150 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The interest on
the Bonds could become includable gross income for purposes of federal income taxation retroactive to
the date of issuance of the Bonds as a result of acts or omissions of the Authority and/or the County in
violation of this or other covenants in the Indenture and/or the Facility Lease. The Bonds are not subject
to redemption or any increase in interest rates should an event of taxability occur and will remain
outstanding until maturity or prior redemption in accordance with the provisions contained in the
Indenture.
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No Liability of Authority to the Owners

Except as expressly provided in the Indenture, the Authority will not have any obligation or
liability to the Owners of the Bonds with respect to the payment when due of the Base Rental payments
by the County, or with respect to the performance by the County of other agreements and covenants
required to be performed by it contained in the Facility Lease or the Indenture, or with respect to the
performance by the Trustee of any right or obligation required to be performed by it contained in the
Indenture.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The State is a significant source of revenue for the County, comprising approximately 38% of the
County’s budgeted General Fund revenues in fiscal year 2018-19. See APPENDIX A — “THE COUNTY”
hereto. A copy of the County’s “Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30,
2017 is attached hereto as APPENDIX B.

The following information concerning the State’s budget for fiscal year 2018-19 has been
obtained from publicly available information which the County believes to be reliable; however, the
County takes no responsibility as to the accuracy or completeness thereof and has not independently
verified such information. Information about the State budget is regularly available at various State-
maintained websites. Text of proposed and adopted budgets may be found at the website of the State
Department of Finance at http://www.dof.ca.gov, under the heading “California Budget.” An impartial
analysis of the budget is posted by the Legislative Analyst’s Office (“LAO”) at http://www.lao.ca.gov.
Many State official statements contain a summary of the current and past State budgets. In addition, the
California State Association of Counties (“CSAC”) Budget Action Bulletin may be found at the website
http://www.counties.org/sites/main/files/file-attachments/legislatures_2018-19 budget_-_june_2018.pdf.
The information referred to is prepared by the respective agency maintaining each website and not by
Authority, the Corporation, the County or the Underwriter, and none of the Authority, the Corporation,
the County or the Underwriter take any responsibility for the continued accuracy of these Internet
addresses or for the accuracy, completeness or timeliness of information posted there, and such
information is not incorporated herein by these references.

Final 2018-19 State Budget. On June 27, 2018, Governor Brown approved the final 2018-19
State Budget (the “2018-19 State Budget”), a $201.4 billion plan (total funds) that reflects an increase in
General Fund resources available to the State of $6.672 billion over the 2018-19 proposed State budget
and reflects an overall improvement in the State revenue forecast from Fiscal Year 2016-17 through
Fiscal Year 2018-19. The 2018-19 State Budget projects a beginning fund balance surplus from Fiscal
Year 2017-18 of $8.483 billion, total revenues and transfers of $133.332 billion, total expenditures of
$138.688 billion, and a year-end surplus of $3.127 billion for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2019.

The 2018-19 State Budget includes funding of $97.2 billion ($56.1 billion General Fund and
$41.1 billion other funds) for K-12 education programs. The 2018-19 State Budget anticipates fully
funding the Rainy Day Fund by June 2019 in accordance with Proposition 2 and uses surplus revenues to
provide one-time funding for initiatives such as homelessness, mental health, and infrastructure projects,
and pay for increased costs for programs of County interest, such as Medi-Cal, child care, In-Home
Support Services (“THSS”), and foster care reform. Altogether, the 2018-19 State Budget includes $5
billion related to affordable housing and homelessness, across multiple State departments and programs
and increases the value of welfare grants through the CalWORKS program with General Fund costs of
$90.1 million in 2018-19 and $359.9 million annually thereafter. The 2018-19 State Budget also includes
$79 million for programs to help those in the United States illegally by funding legal services programs
and assistance for young adults who signed up with the Deferred Action for Childhood Arrivals program.
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Certain features of the 2018-19 State Budget affecting counties include the following:

Homelessness. $609.0 million of one-time General Funds for various programs in Fiscal Year
2018-19 to assist local governments in their immediate efforts to address homelessness.

No Place Like Home. a proposal to place a measure on the November 2018 ballot to validate the
No Place Like Home Program to help address the State’s housing shortage and expand housing
opportunities for individuals with mental illness. The measure was placed on the ballot and
passed on November 6, 2018.

Children’s Mental Health. a repayment of $280.5 million owed to counties as a result of costs
incurred from 2004 to 2011 for three AB 3632 (SB 90) mandates associated with providing
mental health services for severely emotionally disturbed children. Although the State’s May
Revise proposed funding for 14 outstanding mandates, the proposal was amended to exclude
eleven mandates totaling $31.7 million. The total amount of reimbursement identified for Orange
County is approximately $26 million.

In-Home Support Services. an increase of $38.0 million in one-time State General Fund
expenditures in Fiscal Year 2018-19 to partially fund the shortfall in the county administration
allocation.

Medi-Cal. a statewide increase of $56.6 million in Fiscal Year 2018-19 based on an adjustment to
the existing funding level using the increase in the California Consumer Price Index. The increase
is based on an interim methodology that will be used until a new budgeting methodology is
developed for calculating base costs related to county Medi-Cal administration. The 2018-19
State Budget also assumes an increase in statewide savings of $242.7 million in 1991-92
Realignment Program funding redirected from counties to the State in Fiscal Year 2018-19.

CalWORKs. an additional allocation of $23.5 million in one-time State General Fund
expenditures to the employment services portion of the CalWORKSs Single Allocation.

Voting Systems Upgrade and Replacement. a one-time expenditure from the State General Fund
of $134.3 million to support voting systems upgrade and replacement. This funding would be
made available to all 58 counties. There is a 50 percent match funding requirement.

Emergency Child Care Bridge Program for Foster Children. $31.0 million of statewide funding
in Fiscal Year 2018-19 for the Emergency Child Care Bridge Program for Foster Children. This
program will provide emergency child care vouchers for foster youth caregivers, access to a child
care navigator, and trauma-informed care training for foster youth child care providers.
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CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS
AFFECTING COUNTY REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

Property Tax Rate Limitations — Article XTITA

Article XIITA of the California Constitution limits the amount of any ad valorem tax on real
property to one percent of the full cash value thereof, except that additional ad valorem taxes may be
levied to pay debt service on indebtedness approved by the voters prior to July 1, 1978 and on bonded
indebtedness for the acquisition or improvement of real property which has been approved on or after
July 1, 1978 by two-thirds of the voters on such indebtedness. Article XIIIA defines full cash value to
mean “the county assessor’s valuation of real property as shown on the 1975-76 tax bill under “full cash
value,” or thereafter, the appraised value of real property when purchased, newly constructed, or a change
in ownership have occurred after the 1975 assessment.” The full cash value may be increased at a rate not
to exceed two percent per year to account for inflation. Article XIITA has subsequently been amended to
permit reduction of the “full cash value” base in the event of declining property values caused by damage,
destruction or other factors, to provide that there would be no increase in the “full cash value” base in the
event of reconstruction of property damaged or destroyed in a disaster and in other minor or technical
ways.

Legislation Implementing Article XIIIA

Legislation has been enacted and amended a number of times since 1978 to implement
Article XIITA. Under current law, local agencies are no longer permitted to levy directly any property tax
(except to pay voter-approved indebtedness). The one percent property tax is automatically levied by the
County and distributed according to a formula among taxing agencies. The formula apportions the tax
roughly in proportion to the relative shares of taxes levied prior to 1989.

Increases of assessed valuation resulting from reappraisals of property due to new construction,
change in ownership or from the two percent annual adjustment are allocated among the various
jurisdictions in the “taxing area” based upon their respective “situs.” Any such allocation made to a local
agency continues as part of its allocation in future years.

All taxable property is shown at full market value on the tax rolls, with tax rates expressed as $1
per $100 of taxable value. All taxable property value included in this Official Statement is shown at 100%
of market value (unless noted differently) and all tax rates reflect the $1 per $100 of taxable value.

Appropriations Limitations — Article XIIIB

An initiative to amend the State Constitution entitled “Limitation of Government Appropriations”
was approved on September 6, 1979 thereby adding Article XIIIB to the State Constitution
(“Article XIIIB”). Under Article XIIIB, the State and each local governmental entity has an annual
“appropriations limit” and is not permitted to spend certain moneys that are called “appropriations subject
to limitation” (consisting of tax revenues, state subventions and certain other funds) in an amount higher
than the appropriations limit. Article XIIIB does not affect the appropriations of moneys that are excluded
from the definition of “appropriations subject to limitation,” including debt service on indebtedness
existing or authorized as of January 1, 1979, or bonded indebtedness subsequently approved by the
voters. In general terms, the appropriations limit is to be based on certain 1978-79 expenditures, and is to
be adjusted annually to reflect changes in consumer prices, populations, and services provided by these
entities. Among other provisions of Article XIIIB, if these entities’ revenues in any year exceed the
amounts permitted to be spent, the excess would have to be returned by revising tax rates or fee schedules
over the subsequent two years.

29



“Appropriations subject to limitation” are authorizations to spend “proceeds of taxes,” which
consist of tax revenues, state subventions and certain other funds, including proceeds from regulatory
licenses, user charges or other fees to the extent that such proceeds exceed “the cost reasonably borne by
such entity in providing the regulation, product or service,” but “proceeds of taxes” excludes tax refunds
and some benefit payments such as unemployment insurance. No limit is imposed on appropriations of
funds which are not “proceeds of taxes,” such as reasonable user charges or fees, and certain other non-
tax funds.

Not included in the Article XIIIB limit are appropriations for the debt service costs of bonds
existing or authorized by January 1, 1979, or subsequently authorized by the voters, appropriations
required to comply with mandates of courts or the federal government and appropriations for qualified
capital outlay projects. The appropriations limit may also be exceeded in certain cases of emergency.

The appropriations limit for the County in each year is based on the County’s limit for the prior
year, adjusted annually for changes in the cost of living and changes in population, and adjusted, where
applicable, for transfer of financial responsibility of providing services to or from another unit of
government. The change in the cost of living is, at the County’s option, either (1) the percentage change
in State per capita personal income, or (2) the percentage change in the local assessment roll on
nonresidential property. Either test is likely to be greater than the change in the cost of living index,
which was used prior to Proposition 111.

As amended by Proposition 111, the appropriations limit is tested over consecutive two-year
periods. Any excess of the aggregate “proceeds of taxes” received by a County over such two-year period
above the combined appropriations limits for those two years is to be returned to taxpayers by reductions
in tax rates or fee schedules over the subsequent two years. As originally enacted in 1979, the County’s
appropriations limit was based on 1978-79 authorizations to expend proceeds of taxes and was adjusted
annually to reflect changes in cost of living and population (using different definitions, which were
modified by Proposition 111). Starting with Fiscal Year 1990-91, the County’s appropriations limit was
recalculated by taking the actual Fiscal Year 1986-87 limit, and applying the annual adjustments as if
Proposition 111 had been in effect. The County’s appropriations limit for Fiscal Year 2018-19 is
$12,288,836,159, an increase of 4.59% compared with Fiscal Year 2017-18. The estimated appropriations
for Fiscal Year 2018-19 subject to the limitations total $1,034,482,474.

Articles XIIIC and XIIID of California Constitution — Proposition 218

On November 5, 1996, the voters of the State approved Proposition 218, known as the “Right to
Vote on Taxes Act.” Proposition 218 added Articles XIIIC and XIIID to the California constitution,
which contains a number of provisions affecting the ability of the County to levy and collect both existing
and future taxes, assessments, fees and charges.

Article XIIIC requires that all new local taxes or increases in existing local taxes be submitted to
the electorate before they become effective. Taxes for general governmental purposes of the County
require a majority vote and taxes for specific purposes, even if deposited in the County’s General Fund,
require a two-thirds vote. The voter-approval requirements of Proposition 218 reduce the flexibility of
the County to raise revenues for the General Fund, and no assurance can be given that the County will be
able to impose, extend or increase such taxes in the future to meet any increased expenditure
requirements.

Article XIIID contains provisions relating to how local agencies may levy and maintain

“assessments” for municipal services and programs. “Assessment” is defined to mean any levy or charge
upon real property for a special benefit conferred upon the real property. Article XIIID also contains
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several provisions affecting “property-related fees” and “charges,” defined for purposes of Article XIIID
to mean “any levy other than an ad valorem tax, a special tax, or an assessment, imposed by a local
government upon a parcel or upon a person as an incident of property ownership, including a user fee or
charge for a property related service.” All new and existing property-related fees and charges must
conform to requirements prohibiting, among other things, fees and charges which (i) generate revenues
exceeding the funds required to provide the property-related service, (ii) are used for any purpose other
than those for which the fees and charges are imposed, (iii) are for a service not actually used by, or
immediately available to, the owner of the property in question, or (iv) are used for general governmental
services, including police, fire or library services, where the service is available to the public at large in
substantially the same manner as it is to property owners. Further, before any property-related fee or
charge may be imposed or increased, written notice must be given to the record owner of each parcel of
land affected by such fee or charge. The County must then hold a hearing upon the proposed imposition
or increase, and if written protests against the proposal are presented by a majority of the owners of the
identified parcels, the County may not impose or increase the fee or charge. Fees for electrical and gas
service are explicitly exempted from the definition of “property-related” under Article XIIID.
Property-related fees or charges for services other than sewer, water and refuse collection services may
not be imposed or increased without majority approval by the property owners subject to the fee or charge
or, at the option of the local agency, two-thirds voter approval by the electorate residing in the affected
area. In addition to the provisions described above, Proposition 218 removes many of the limitations on
the initiative power in matters of reducing or repealing any local tax, assessment, fee or charge.

Proposition 218 continues to be interpreted by California courts. The State Supreme Court’s
2006 decision in Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency found that metered charges for consumption of
water by a public agency fell within the “property-related” fees subject to Proposition 218. Fees for
sewer and refuse collection could also be found to be within the definition of property-related fees. If
such charges are property-related charges, rate increases would be subject to notice, hearing and majority
protest, but not prior voter approval, and rates and charges could be reduced by referendum.

Proposition 1A

Proposition 1A (SCA 4), proposed by the Legislature in connection with the 2004-05 Budget Act
and approved by the voters in November 2004, provides that the State may not reduce any local sales tax
rate, limit existing local government authority to levy a sales tax rate or change the allocation of local
sales tax revenues, subject to certain exceptions. By adding Section 25.5 to Article XIII of the State
Constitution, Proposition 1A generally prohibits the State from shifting to schools or community colleges
any share of property tax revenues allocated to local governments for any Fiscal Year, as set forth under
the laws in effect as of November 3, 2004. Any change in the allocation of property tax revenues among
local governments within a county must be approved by two-thirds of both houses of the State
Legislature.

Proposition 1A provides, however, that the State may shift to schools and community colleges up
to 8% of local government property tax revenues, which amount must be repaid, with interest, within
three years, if the Governor proclaims that the shift is needed due to a severe state financial hardship, the
shift is approved by two-thirds of both houses of the State Legislature and certain other conditions are
met. The State may also approve voluntary exchanges of local sales tax and property tax revenues among
local governments within a county.

By amending Section 15 of Article XI of the State Constitution, Proposition 1A also provides that
if the State reduces the Vehicle License Fee rate currently in effect, which is 0.65 percent of vehicle
value, the State must provide local governments with equal replacement revenues. Further, by amending
Section 6 of Article XIIIB of the State Constitution, Proposition 1A required the State, beginning on
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July 1, 2005, to suspend State mandates affecting cities, counties and special districts, schools or
community colleges, excepting mandates relating to employee rights, in any year that the State does not
fully reimburse local governments for their costs of compliance with such mandates.

Proposition 22

On November 2, 2010, voters in the State approved Proposition 22. Proposition 22, known as the
“Local Taxpayer, Public Safety, and Transportation Protection Act of 2010,” eliminates or reduces the
State’s authority to (i) temporarily shift property taxes from cities, counties and special districts to
schools, (ii) use vehicle license fee revenues to reimburse local governments for state-mandated costs (the
State will have to use other revenues to reimburse local governments), (iii) redirect property tax increment
from redevelopment agencies to any other local government, (iv) use State fuel tax revenues to pay debt
service on State transportation bonds, or (v) borrow or change the distribution of State fuel tax revenues.

Proposition 26

On November 2, 2010, voters in the State also approved Proposition 26. Proposition 26 amends
Article XIIIC of the State Constitution to expand the definition of “tax” to include “any levy, charge, or
exaction of any kind imposed by a local government” except the following: (1) a charge imposed for a
specific benefit conferred or privilege granted directly to the payor that is not provided to those not
charged, and which does not exceed the reasonable costs to the local government of conferring the benefit
or granting the privilege; (2) a charge imposed for a specific government service or product provided
directly to the payor that is not provided to those not charged, and which does not exceed the reasonable
costs to the local government of providing the service or product; (3) a charge imposed for the reasonable
regulatory costs to a local government for issuing licenses and permits, performing investigations,
inspections, and audits, enforcing agricultural marketing orders, and the administrative enforcement and
adjudication thereof; (4) a charge imposed for entrance to or use of local government property, or the
purchase, rental, or lease of local government property; (5) a fine, penalty, or other monetary charge
imposed by the judicial branch of government or a local government, as a result of a violation of law; (6)
a charge imposed as a condition of property development; and (7) assessments and property-related fees
imposed in accordance with the provisions of Article XIIID. Proposition 26 provides that the local
government bears the burden of proving by a preponderance of the evidence that a levy, charge or other
exaction is not a tax, that the amount is no more than necessary to cover the reasonable costs of the
governmental activity, and that the manner in which those costs are allocated to a payor bear a reasonable
relationship to the payor’s burdens on, or benefits received from, the governmental activity. The County
does not expect the provisions of Proposition 26 to materially and adversely affect its ability to pay Base
Rental Payments when due.

Proposition 30

The passage of the Governor’s November Tax Initiative (“Proposition 30”) placed on the
November 2012 ballot results in an increase in the State sales tax by a quarter-cent for four years and, for
seven years, raising taxes on individuals after their first $250,000 in income and on couples after their
first $500,000 in earnings. These increased tax rates will affect approximately 1 percent of California
personal income tax filers and will be in effect starting in the 2012 tax year, ending at the conclusion of
the 2018 tax year. The quarter-cent sales-tax component expired on December 31, 2016. The passage of
the Tax Extension to Fund Education and Healthcare (“Proposition 55”) in November 2016 extends the
income tax increase on high-income taxpayers for an additional 12 years through 2030. The LAO
estimates that, as a result of Proposition 55, increased state tax revenues of about $4 billion to $9 billion
annually from fiscal years 2019 through 2030 depending on the economy and stock market.
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Future Initiatives

Article XIIIA, Article XIIIB and the other Propositions referenced above were each adopted as
measures that qualified for the ballot pursuant to the State’s initiative process. From time to time, other
State or local initiative measures could be adopted, which may place further limitations on the ability of
the State, the County or local districts to increase revenues or to increase appropriations which may affect
the County’s revenues or its ability to expend its revenues.

TAX MATTERS

In the opinion of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel (“Bond Counsel”), based
upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions, and assuming, among other
matters, the accuracy of certain representations and compliance with certain covenants, interest on the
Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”) and is exempt from State of California personal income taxes. Bond
Counsel is of the further opinion that interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes
of the federal alternative minimum tax. A complete copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond
Counsel is set forth in Appendix E hereto.

Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount higher than their
principal amount payable at maturity (or, in some cases, at their earlier call date) (“Premium Bonds™) will
be treated as having amortizable bond premium. No deduction is allowable for the amortizable bond
premium in the case of bonds, like the Premium Bonds, the interest on which is excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes. However, the amount of tax-exempt interest received, and a
Beneficial Owner’s basis in a Premium Bond, will be reduced by the amount of amortizable bond
premium properly allocable to such Beneficial Owner. Beneficial Owners of Premium Bonds should
consult their own tax advisors with respect to the proper treatment of amortizable bond premium in their
particular circumstances.

The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from
gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the Bonds. The Authority,
the Corporation and the County have made certain representations and covenanted to comply with certain
restrictions, conditions and requirements designed to ensure that interest on the Bonds will not be
included in federal gross income. Inaccuracy of these representations or failure to comply with these
covenants may result in interest on the Bonds being included in gross income for federal income tax
purposes, possibly from the date of original issuance of the Bonds. The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes
the accuracy of these representations and compliance with these covenants. Bond Counsel has not
undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not taken), or events
occurring (or not occurring), or any other matters coming to Bond Counsel’s attention after the date of
issuance of the Bonds may adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Bonds.
Accordingly, the opinion of Bond Counsel is not intended to, and may not, be relied upon in connection
with any such actions, events or matters.

Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from State of California personal income taxes, the
ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of amounts treated as interest on, the Bonds may
otherwise affect a Beneficial Owner’s federal, state or local tax liability. The nature and extent of these
other tax consequences depends upon the particular tax status of the Beneficial Owner or the Beneficial
Owner’s other items of income or deduction. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such
other tax consequences.
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Current and future legislative proposals, if enacted into law, clarification of the Code or court
decisions may cause interest on the Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, to
federal income taxation or to be subject to or exempted from state income taxation, or otherwise prevent
Beneficial Owners from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such interest. The
introduction or enactment of any such legislative proposals or clarification of the Code or court decisions
may also affect, perhaps significantly, the market price for, or marketability of, the Bonds. Prospective
purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding the potential impact of any
pending or proposed federal or state tax legislation, regulations or litigation, as to which Bond Counsel is
expected to express no opinion.

The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on current legal authority, covers certain matters not
directly addressed by such authorities, and represents Bond Counsel’s judgment as to the proper treatment
of the Bonds for federal income tax purposes. It is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”)
or the courts. Furthermore, Bond Counsel cannot give and has not given any opinion or assurance about
the future activities of the Authority, the Corporation or the County, or about the effect of future changes
in the Code, the applicable regulations, the interpretation thereof or the enforcement thereof by the IRS.
The Authority, the Corporation and the County have covenanted, however, to comply with the
requirements of the Code.

Bond Counsel’s engagement with respect to the Bonds ends with the issuance of the Bonds, and,
unless separately engaged, Bond Counsel is not obligated to defend the Authority, the Corporation, the
County or the Beneficial Owners regarding the tax-exempt status of the Bonds in the event of an audit
examination by the IRS. Under current procedures, parties other than the Authority, the Corporation, the
County and their appointed counsel, including the Beneficial Owners, would have little, if any, right to
participate in the audit examination process. Moreover, because achieving judicial review in connection
with an audit examination of tax-exempt bonds is difficult, obtaining an independent review of IRS
positions with which the Authority, the County or the Corporation legitimately disagrees, may not be
practicable. Any action of the IRS, including but not limited to selection of the Bonds for audit, or the
course or result of such audit, or an audit of bonds presenting similar tax issues may affect the market
price for, or the marketability of, the Bonds, and may cause the Authority, the Corporation, the County or
the Beneficial Owners to incur significant expense.

THE AUTHORITY

The Authority was formed pursuant to the JPA Act and the JPA Agreement for the purpose of
exercising to powers common to the members and exercising the additional powers granted to the
Authority by the JPA Act and any other applicable provisions of State law. Under the JPA Agreement,
the Authority may issue bonds, notes or any other evidence of indebtedness, for any purpose or activity
permitted under the JPA Act or any other applicable law.

None of the Authority, any Authority member or any person executing the Bonds is liable
personally on the Bonds or subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of their issuance.
The Bonds do not constitute a debt or liability of the State, the County or of any political subdivision
thereof, other than the Authority, but shall be payable solely from the funds provided therefor in the
Indenture. The Authority shall not be obligated to pay the principal of the Bonds, or the redemption
premium or interest thereon, except from the funds provided therefor under the Indenture and neither the
faith and credit nor the taxing power of the Authority, the State or of any political subdivision thereof,
including the County, is pledged to the payment of the principal of or the redemption premium or interest
on the Bonds. The issuance of the Bonds shall not directly or indirectly or contingently obligate the State
or any political subdivision thereof, including the County, to levy or to pledge any form of taxation or to
make any appropriation for their payment. The Authority has no taxing power
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The Authority will not be required to advance any moneys derived from any source other than the
Payments and certain other moneys and securities held by the Trustee as provided in the Indenture,
whether for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds or for any other purpose of the
Indenture.

The Authority may sell and deliver obligations other than the Bonds. These obligations will be
secured by instruments separate and apart from the Facility Lease, the Loan Agreement and the Indenture,
and the holders of such other obligations of the Authority will have no claim on the security for the
Bonds. Likewise, the Owners of the Bonds will have no claim on the security for such other obligations
that may be issued by the Authority.

Neither the Authority nor its independent contractors has furnished, reviewed, investigated or
verified the information contained in this Official Statement other than the information contained in this
section and the section entitled “LITIGATION — The Authority.” The Authority does not and will not in
the future monitor the financial condition of the County or the Corporation or otherwise monitor payment
of the Bonds or compliance with the documents relating thereto. Any commitment or obligation for
continuing disclosure with respect to the Bonds or the County or the Corporation has been undertaken by
the County. See “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE” herein.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The Authority has determined that no financial or operating data concerning the Authority is
material to any decision to purchase, hold or sell the Bonds and the Authority will not provide any such
information.

The County will covenant for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds
pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure Certificate, dated the date of delivery of the Bonds (the “Continuing
Disclosure Certificate) to provide certain financial information and operating data relating to the County
(the “Annual Report”) no later than February 25 after the end of each fiscal year, commencing with the
report due for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018, and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain
enumerated events through the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic Municipal Market
Access system (the “EMMA System”). The specific nature of the information to be contained in the
Annual Report and the enumerated events is set forth in APPENDIX D — “FORM OF CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE” hereto.

During the last five years, the County failed to comply in certain respects with continuing
disclosure undertakings related to outstanding bond indebtedness. The failure to comply fell into five
general categories: (i) failure to provide event notices with respect to changes in the ratings of outstanding
bonds, primarily related to changes in the ratings of various bond insurers insuring the bonds of the
County or its related entities, which notices of rating changes were subsequently provided between 2 days
and 1,344 days after the occurrence of the related event; (ii) omission of required financial and operating
data required to be included in certain annual reports and late filing of annual reports with respect to a
number of the bond issues, which submissions were made between 296 days to 1,027 days after the
applicable deadline therefor; (iii) failure to file audited financial statements as a part of certain annual
reports, which submissions were made between one day to 997 days after the deadline therefor, although
copies of the County’s audited financial statements were available to investors from other sources; (iv)
failure to file annual reports with respect to certain bonds after they were economically (but not legally)
defeased and (v) failure to provide event notices with respect to late filings described in (ii), (iii) and (iv)
above.
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The County and various related entities have made additional filings to provide certain of the
previously omitted information; provided, that with respect to ratings changes, notice has been provided
only of the existing rating or ratings applicable to each outstanding series of bonds. Each of these filings
may be accessed through EMMA.

The County has adopted policies and procedures, and has contracted with Applied Best Practices
a “dba” of Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc., to maintain compliance with its continuing disclosure
undertakings.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements of the County for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2017, included in
APPENDIX B of this Official Statement, have been audited by Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP, certified
public accountants, as stated in their report therein dated December 14, 2017. The County has not
requested nor obtained permission from Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP to include its report in
APPENDIX B. Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP has not undertaken to update its report or to take any
action intended or likely to elicit information concerning the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the
statements made in this Official Statement, and no opinion is expressed by Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP
with respect to any event subsequent to the date of its report. See APPENDIX B — “Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2017 attached hereto.

RATINGS

S&P Global Ratings, a business unit of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC (“S&P”) and
Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) have assigned a rating of “AA” and “AA+,” respectively, to the Bonds. Such
ratings reflect only the views of S&P and Fitch and any desired explanation of the significance of such
ratings should be obtained from S&P or Fitch. Generally, a rating agency bases its rating on the
information and materials furnished to it and on investigations, studies and assumptions of its own. There
is no assurance any such rating will continue for any given period of time or that such rating will not be
revised downward or withdrawn entirely, if in the judgment of S&P or Fitch, circumstances so warrant.
Any downward revision or withdrawal of a rating by S&P or Fitch may have an adverse effect on the
market price of the Bonds.

NO LITIGATION
The Authority

To the knowledge of the Authority, there is no litigation pending or threatened against the
Authority concerning the validity of the Bonds or any proceedings of the Authority taken with respect to
the issuance thereof.

The Corporation and the County

No litigation is pending or threatened against the Corporation or the County seeking to restrain or
enjoin the sale, issuance, delivery or validity of the Bonds or contesting or enjoining the execution of the
Development Agreement, the Ground Lease, the Facility Lease, the Loan Agreement or the Indenture or
in any way contesting or affecting the validity of the foregoing or any proceedings of the Corporation or
the County taken with respect to any of the foregoing.
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Other than as otherwise addressed in this Official Statement, the aggregate amount of the
uninsured liabilities of the County and the timing of any anticipated payments of judgments which may
result from suits and claims are not expected to materially affect the County’s ability to make Base Rental
Payments. See APPENDIX A — “THE COUNTY - Litigation Management” hereto.

UNDERWRITING

Citigroup Global Markets Inc. (the “Underwriter”) has agreed, subject to certain customary
conditions precedent to closing, to purchase the Bonds from the Authority a price equal to
$211,466,382.02, which represents the principal amount of the Bonds of $185,705,000.00, plus an
original issue premium of $26,599,282.75, and less an underwriting discount of $837,900.73. The
Underwriter intends to offer the Bonds to the public initially at the prices set forth on the inside cover
page of this Official Statement, which prices may subsequently change without any requirement of prior
notice.

The Underwriter reserves the right to join with dealers and other underwriters in offering the
Bonds to the public. The Underwriter may offer and sell the Bonds to certain dealers (including dealers
depositing Bonds into investment trusts) at prices lower than the public offering prices, and such dealers
may reallow any such discounts on sales to other dealers.

The Underwriter has entered into a retail distribution agreement with Fidelity Capital Markets, a
division of National Financial Services LLC (together with its affiliates, “Fidelity”). Under this
distribution agreement, the Underwriter may distribute municipal securities to retail investors at the
original issue price through Fidelity. As part of this arrangement, the Underwriter will compensate
Fidelity for its selling efforts.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the Bonds and certain other legal matters are subject to the approving opinion of
Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority. A complete copy of the proposed
form of opinion of Bond Counsel is attached as Appendix E hereto. Bond Counsel undertakes no
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of this Official Statement. Certain legal matters
will be passed on for the Corporation by Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, for the Authority by Jones
Hall, A Professional Law Corporation, San Francisco, California, for the County by County Counsel and
for the Underwriter by Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, Los Angeles, California. Compensation paid to
Bond Counsel and Underwriter’s Counsel is contingent on the successful issuance of the Bonds.

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR

KNN Public Finance, LLC has served as municipal advisor (the “Municipal Advisor”) to the
County in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. The Municipal Advisor has not been engaged, nor
has it undertaken, to audit, authenticate or otherwise verify the information set forth in this Official
Statement with respect to accuracy and completeness of disclosure of such information. The Municipal
Advisor makes no guaranty, warranty or other representation respecting accuracy and completeness of
this Official Statement or any other matter related to this Official Statement.
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"~ ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The summaries and references contained herein with respect to the Indenture, the Loan Agreement,
the Facility Lease, the Bonds, the statutes, agreements and other documents, do not purport to be
comprehensive or definitive and are qualified by reference to each such document or statute and references
to the Bonds are qualified in their entirety by reference to the forms thereof. Copies of the documents
referenced in this paragraph are available for inspection during the period of initial offering on the Bonds
at the offices of the Municipal Advisor.

The execution of this Official Statement by the undersigned Board Member of the Corporation has
been duly authorized by the Corporation.

CAPITAL FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

. il

\ Board Membef

38



APPENDIX A
THE COUNTY
General

The County of Orange (“County”) is bordered on the north by Los Angeles and San Bernardino Counties,
on the east by Riverside County, on the southeast by San Diego County, and on the west and southwest by the
Pacific Ocean. The County encompasses 789 square miles, has a population of over 3 million, and approximately
42 miles of ocean shoreline provide beaches, marinas, and other recreational areas for use by residents and visitors.

County Government

The County is a charter county divided into five supervisorial districts on the basis of population. The
County is governed by an elected five-member Board of Supervisors (the “Board of Supervisors”) with each
Supervisor serving a four-year term. A Supervisor cannot serve more than two consecutive terms, however, there
is no limitation on the total number of terms. The Chairman and Vice Chairman positions are elected annually by
and from the members of the Board of Supervisors.

The County’s organizational structure consists of six Elected Officers, seven positions appointed by and
reporting to the Board of Supervisors, five Officers appointed by and reporting to the County Executive Officer
(“CEQ”) and ten department heads selected by the Board of Supervisors and reporting to the Chief Operating
Officer. The Elected Officers are elected by a countywide vote to four-year terms: the Assessor, Auditor-
Controller, Clerk-Recorder, District Attorney-Public Administrator, Sheriff-Coroner, and the Treasurer-Tax
Collector (the “Treasurer”). The positions appointed by and reporting to the Board of Supervisors are the Clerk
of the Board, County Counsel, Performance Audit, Executive Director of the Office of Independent Review, CEO,
Executive Director of the Office of Campaign Finance and Ethics Commission, and Internal Audit Director. The
Board of Supervisors appoint all department heads including the Chief Probation Officer. The Presiding Judge of
the Orange County Superior Court must concur with the appointment of the Chief Probation Officer. The positions
appointed by and reporting to the CEO are the Human Resources Officer, Chief Information Officer, Chief
Financial Officer (“CFO”), Chief Real Estate Officer, and Chief Operating Officer. The remaining ten positions
are the Registrar of Voters and department heads within the infrastructure, public services, and community
services areas.

For Fiscal Year 2018-19, the Board of Supervisors eliminated the positions in the Office of the
Performance Audit. The Board of Supervisors maintained the budget appropriations for the Office of the
Performance Audit, however performance audit services will be performed under contracts with professional
consultants as needed.

County Services

The County provides a wide range of services to its residents, including police, medical and health
services, senior citizen assistance, library services, airport service, roads, solid waste management, harbors,
beaches and parks, lifeguard services, and a variety of public assistance programs.

California counties administer numerous health and social service programs as the administrative agent
of the State and pursuant to State law. Many of these programs have been either wholly or partially funded with
State and federal funds. Under State law, the County is required to administer State and federal health programs
and to provide for a portion of their costs with local revenues. The County is also responsible for all indigent
medical care in the County pursuant to State law. The County does not operate its own hospital, but contracts for
such services with private facilities. Certain municipal services are provided by the County to unincorporated
communities and, on a contract basis, to some of the 34 incorporated cities within its boundaries. This
arrangement is designed to allow cities to contract with the County for municipal services without incurring the
cost of creating numerous city departments and facilities. Under the plan, the County provides any or all services
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to a city at the same level as provided in the unincorporated areas, or at any higher level for which the city may
contract. Services are generally provided at cost.

There are two special districts, separate legal entities from the County, which provide services to County
residents: the Orange County Flood Control District and the Orange County Housing Authority. The Board of

Supervisors, sitting as each district’s legislative body, governs these districts.

Regional fire protection services are provided by the Orange County Fire Authority, a joint powers
authority with its own Board of Directors.

County Employment

As of July 2, 2018, the number of permanent filled employee positions of the County was 16,368. The
following table sets forth the total number of County employees since 2010:

TABLE A-1

COUNTY OF ORANGE

Employment Positions”
2000 et e 16,239
20T e e 15,965
2002 e 15,771
203 15,852
2004 e e 16,108
20 S 16,144
2006 et e 16,341
20 e 16,365
20 e e 16,368

() Employment Positions represent the number of filled positions at fiscal year-end.

Source: County of Orange, County Budget Office.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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Most County employees are represented by one of 17 bargaining units within eight labor organizations,
the principal labor organization being the Orange County Employees Association (“OCEA”), which consists of
the Community Services, County General, Office Services, Sheriff Special Officers, Supervisory Management,
and Health Care Professional Units. Represented County employees and their appropriate bargaining agents are
shown in the following table.

TABLE A-2

COUNTY OF ORANGE
Employee Bargaining Representation
and Number of Positions"

Number of

Bargaining Agents Positions Contract Term
Orange County Employees Association 11,050 June 23,2017 to June 20, 2019
Association of Orange County Deputy Sheriffs (AOCDS) 2,062 July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2019
AOCDS Probation Units 952 June 26, 2015 to June 22, 2018®
American Federation of State, County and Municipal
Employees 1,546  June 24, 2016 to June 23, 2019
Orange County Managers Association 1,257 January 10, 2014 to June 20, 2019
Orange County Attorneys Association 522  May 15, 2015 to June 30, 2019
Teamsters Local 952 485 December 13, 2016 to June 20, 2019
International Union of Operating Engineers 141  June 26, 2015 to June 22, 2018®
Association of County Law Enforcement Managers 76  June 22,2018 to June 20, 2019
Unrepresented 166 N/A

(@ Position data includes filled and vacant positions as of June 11, 2018.

@ On September 27, 2017, the Association of Orange County Deputy Sheriffs became the exclusively recognized representative
for the Probation Supervisory Management and Probation Services Units under the Orange County Employee Relations
Resolution. These Units were previously represented by the Orange County Employees Association. Contract negotiation is
currently in process with the Probation Units to establish a new contract.

3 Contract negotiation currently in process. County employees in the bargaining unit currently in the process of negotiations have
historically continued to work under the terms of their previous contract with no interruption.

Source: County of Orange, County Budget Office.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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COUNTY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Financial Statements

The County’s accounting policies and audited basic financial statements conform with generally accepted
accounting principles for financial reporting established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (the
“GASB”).

The basic financial statements include both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and the economic
resources measurement focus. The government-wide financial statements report long-term liabilities and deferred
outflows and inflows, including those related to pension and other retirement benefits, and capital assets, including
intangible assets. Depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation are included in the government-wide
financial statements for equipment, buildings, and infrastructure. Amortization expense and accumulated
amortization are included in the government-wide financial statements for intangible assets. The fund financial
statements for the governmental funds are prepared under the modified accrual basis of accounting and the current
financial resources measurement focus with revenues being recorded when available and measurable and
expenditures recorded when related fund liabilities are incurred, with all current unpaid liabilities being accrued
at year end. Fund financial statements are shown separately for specific major governmental funds, and in total
for all other governmental funds. Fund financial statements for proprietary funds are reported under the accrual
basis of accounting and the economic resources measurement focus.

The Auditor-Controller maintains the accounting system and records of account for all County funds. A
separate Internal Audit Department, which reports to the Board of Supervisors, continually monitors internal
controls. Legal compliance audits of State programs are conducted by State Controller auditors.

All of the County funds can be divided into three major categories of funds: governmental, proprietary,
and fiduciary. Governmental funds include most of the County’s basic services and are used to account for
essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
Proprietary funds consist of two types of funds: enterprise funds (which the County uses to account for its airport,
waste management operations, and compressed natural gas facility) and internal service funds (which are used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County’s various functions, such as insurance services,
transportation, publishing and information technology). Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on
behalf of outside parties.

The major governmental funds include the following funds: the County’s General Fund; Flood Control
District; Other Public Protection; and Mental Health Services Act. Financial data for nonmajor governmental
funds are aggregated and reported under the “Other Governmental Funds” column in the fund financial statements.
The major governmental funds associated with general government activities are briefly described below:

. The General Fund accounts for resources traditionally associated with government and all other resources,
which are not required legally, or by sound financial management, to be accounted for in another fund.
Revenues deposited to the General Fund are primarily derived from intergovernmental revenues (many
of which are for restricted purposes such as public health and public assistance), property taxes, other
taxes, charges for services, and other revenues. General Fund moneys are primarily expended for
functions of public protection, public ways and facilities, health and sanitation, public assistance and
general government. “General Purpose Revenues” describes that portion of the General Fund over which
the County has discretion as to its expenditure, consisting primarily of property taxes. For discussion of
General Purpose Revenues see “County General Fund Budget” herein.
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. The Flood Control District is a group of funds used to account for the planning, construction, and
operation of flood control and water conservation works, such as such as dams, basins, and trunk channels,
and for the retardation, conservation, and controlled discharge of storm waters. Revenues consist
primarily of property taxes restricted for flood control activities and charges for services.

. The Other Public Protection Fund accounts for certain safety and law enforcement activities such as the
child support program, automated fingerprint identification systems, and investigation team. Revenues
consist primarily of federal grants, state grants, fines, use of money and property, and charges for services.

. The Mental Health Services Act Fund became a major fund in Fiscal Year 2015-16. The Fund accounts
for the County’s mental health programs for children, transition age youth, adults, older adults and
families pursuant to the State of California Mental Health Services Act. Revenues are derived primarily
from a one percent income tax on personal income in excess of one million levied by the State.

The following table presents a summary of revenues and other financing sources, expenditures and other
financing uses, and the net changes in fund balances for the governmental funds for the Fiscal Years ended
June 30, 2014 through June 30, 2017.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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TABLE A-3

COUNTY OF ORANGE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES®
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2014 through June 30, 2017
(In Thousands)

2014 2015® 2016 2017

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
General Fund $ 2,879,856 $ 3,001,243 $ 3,038,491 $ 3,167,897
Roads 109,937 - - -
Flood Control District 169,260 163,096 128,929 151,353
Other Public Protection 49,261 66,846 63,506 79,074
Teeter Plan Notes 50,786 - - -
Mental Health Services Act - 141,713 116,978 153,076
Other Governmental Funds 600,011 641,234 904,098 1,193,132

Total $ 3,859,111 $4,014,132 $ 4,252,002 $ 4,744,532
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
General Fund $ 2,808,016 $ 2,853,121 $2,975,161 $ 3,144,843
Roads 107,694 - - -
Flood Control District 154,993 121,287 116,206 144,469
Other Public Protection 48,203 66,747 63,656 81,587
Teeter Plan Notes 43,959 - - -
Mental Health Services Act - 104,115 115,244 138,075
Other Governmental Funds 615,209 649,795 810,900 1,014,615

Total $ 3,778,074 $ 3,795,065 $ 4,081,167 $ 4,523,589
NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
General Fund $ 71,840 $ 148,122 $ 63,330 $ 23,054
Roads 2,243 - - -
Flood Control District 14,267 41,809 12,723 6,884
Other Public Protection 1,058 99 (150) 2,513)
Teeter Plan Notes 6,827 - - -
Mental Health Services Act - 37,598 1,734 15,001
Other Governmental Funds (15,198) (8,561) 93,198 178,517

Total $ 81,037 $ 219,067 $ 170,835 $ 220,943

(@ This statement is a summary statement only. For Fiscal Year 2016-17 results, see APPENDIX B — “COUNTY OF ORANGE,
CALIFORNIA COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017.” The
complete Orange County Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as of June 30, 2017, including the Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements therein, is an integral part of this Official Statement.

@ There was a change in major governmental funds in Fiscal Year 2015-2016 in which Mental Health Services Act became
identified as a major fund and Roads and Teeter Plan Notes are no longer identified as major funds. For comparative purposes,

the balances shown in Fiscal Year 2014-15 reflect the change of major funds in Fiscal Year 2015-16.

Source: Orange County Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports dated June 30, 2014, June 30, 2015, June 30, 2016, and June 30, 2017.



The following table sets forth the audited General Fund Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 through June
30, 2017.

TABLE A4

COUNTY OF ORANGE
GENERAL FUND BALANCE SHEET®
June 30, 2014 through June 30, 2017

(In Thousands)
2014 2015 2016 2017
ASSETS
Pooled Cash/Investments $ 425,057 $ 441,060 $ 419,457 $ 531,226
Imprest Cash Funds 1,864 1,862 1,834 1,834
Restricted Cash and Investments with Trustee 1,536 9 15 1
Investments® -- 118,940 221,772 67,557
Receivables
Accounts 18,909 10,420 10,486 9,590
Taxes 11,900 7,035 10,367 5,701
Interest/Dividends 533 2,600 1,454 1,794
Deposits 492 460 562 524
Advances 30 33 30 40
Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables (4,399) (6,237) (4,844) 4,077)
Due from Other Funds 63,956 89,278 78,793 104,918
Due from Component Unit 455 201 375 339
Due from Other Governmental Agencies 350,784 353,350 353,668 330,367
Inventory of Materials and Supplies 902 867 891 838
Prepaid Costs 316,320 331,939 327,198 367,934
Advances to Other Funds 3,800 3,800 3,800 3,800
Total Assets $ 1,192,139 $ 1,355,617 $ 1,425,858 $ 1,422,386
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 65,154 $ 49,300 $ 56,689 $47,903
Salaries and Employee Benefits Payable 57,182 83,350 103,724 43,688
Retainage Payable 2,044 1,395 1,495 1,750
Interest Payable 1,135 1,084 1,671 2,376
Deposits from Others 1,553 1,654 1,615 1,534
Due to Other Funds 35,780 31,311 35,954 43,725
Due to Component Unit - 3 -- -
Due to Other Governmental Agencies 27,847 13,822 20,410 14,634
Unearned Revenue 19,410 44,410 25,450 38,668
Bonds Payable 325,405 339,625 334,275 375,540
Advances from Other Funds 3,134 2,351 1,567 784
Total Liabilities $ 538,644 $ 568,305 $ 582,850 $ 570,602
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES®
Unavailable Revenue- Intergovernmental Revenues $ 73,769 $ 72,172 $ 68,501 $ 58,651
Unavailable Revenue- SB 90 Mandated Claims, Net 47,926 39,653 28,404 24,637
Unavailable Revenue- Property Taxes 9,485 9,078 8,878 8,364
Unavailable Revenue- Others 5,929 1,901 9,387 9,240
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 137,109 $ 122,804 $ 115,170 $ 100,892
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable® $321,022 $ 336,606 $331,889 $372,572
Restricted 42,028 31,486 49,230 39,581
Assigned 153,336 269,529 321,064 265,293
Unassigned - 26,887 25,655 73,446
Total Fund Balances $516,386 $ 664,508 $ 727,838 $ 750,892
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of $ 1,192,139 $ 1,355,617 $ 1,425,858 $ 1,422,386

Resources and Fund Balances

(footnotes on next page.)
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This Statement is a summary statement only. The complete Orange County Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports dated June 30, 2017,
including the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements therein is an integral part of this statement. For Fiscal Year 2016-17 results, see APPENDIX
B — “COUNTY OF ORANGE, CALIFORNIA COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,
2017.”

Non-pooled investments with the Treasurer for General Fund Tax Exempt Non AMT securities for any excess cash over the 5% reasonable
working capital reserve.

GASB Statement No. 65 established new accounting and financial reporting standards that, among other things, reclassify certain items of
unavailable revenue that were previously reported as liabilities as deferred inflows of resources. See Note 1 the “Notes to the County’s Basic
Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017” in Appendix B of this Official Statement.

Includes an amount equal to pension obligation bonds sold to prepay the subsequent year’s pension obligations, which are reserved as
nonspendable as a “prepaid cost”. Pension prepayments represent $316 million for Fiscal Year 2014, $332 million for Fiscal Year 2015, $327
million for Fiscal Year 2016, and $368 million for Fiscal Year 2017. As a result, GASB 54 presentation does not represent the County’s budgetary
and financial planning allocation of fund balance. See “County General Fund Budget,” “Strategic Financial Plan” and “Reserves,” herein.

Sources: Orange County Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports dated June 30, 2014 through June 30, 2017.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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The following table presents a more detailed summary of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances for the General Fund for Fiscal Years 2013-14 through 2016-17.

TABLE A-5

COUNTY OF ORANGE
COMPARISON OF STATEMENT OF GENERAL FUND
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE®
Fiscal Years Ended June 30

(In Thousands)
2014 2015 2016 2017

REVENUES

Taxes?® $ 599,366 $ 629,603 $ 671,363 $ 681,836
Licenses, Permits & Franchises 22,595 22,929 25,154 25,362
Fines, Forfeitures & Penalties 33,039 82,063 44,375 67,648
Use of Money and Property 5,260 5,272 18,318 6,733
Intergovernmental Revenues 1,593,107 1,602,817 1,626,855 1,613,969
Charges for Services 410,108 408,872 386,117 442,591
Other Revenues 13,124 15,601 18,648 17,790
TOTAL REVENUES $ 2,676,599 $2,767,157 $ 2,790,830 $ 2,855,929
EXPENDITURES

General Government $ 140,816 $ 177,280 $ 176,002 $ 195,250
Public Protection 1,082,961 1,126,878 1,182,458 1,260,068
Public Ways and Facilities 35,570 32,192 30,792 30,633
Health and Sanitation 620,256 514,371 526,216 577,050
Public Assistance 795,582 851,488 881,261 891,309
Capital Outlay 12,454 18,901 20,794 23,532
Principal Retirement 21,622 21,568 4,530 5,129
Interest 9,844 8,172 7,451 8,564
Debt Issuance Costs 200 -- -- --
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $2,719,305 $ 2,750,850 $ 2,829,504 $ 2,991,535

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues Over $ (42.706) $ 16307 $ (38,674) $ (135,606)

Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In®® 203,257 234,086 247,661 311,968
Transfers Out® (88,711) (102,271) (145,657) (153,308)
Total Other Fin. Sources (Uses) 114,546 131,815 102,004 158,660
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 71,840 $ 148,122 $ 63,330 $ 23,054
Fund Balances — Beginning of Year 444,546 516,386 664,508 727,838
FUND BALANCES - End of Year $ 516,386 $ 664,508 $ 727,838 $ 750,892

(M This Statement is a summary statement only. The complete Orange County Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports dated June 30, 2017,
including the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements therein is an integral part of this Official Statement. For Fiscal Year 2016-17 results, see
APPENDIX B — “COUNTY OF ORANGE, CALIFORNIA COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2017.”

@ Primarily property taxes, as well as local sales and other taxes.

®  Interfund transfers reflect the flow of assets between funds and component units of the County. See Note 8 in the “Notes to the County’s Basic
Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017” in Appendix B of this Official Statement.

Sources: Orange County Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports dated June 30, 2014 through June 30, 2017.



County General Fund Budget

Budget Process. The County’s annual budget process begins in late December. The CEO’s County
Budget Office (the “Budget Office”) prepares budget policy and detailed budget instructions for County
departments. County departments then prepare their budget requests and submit them to the Budget Office. The
Budget Office reviews and analyzes the departments’ budget requests and makes recommendations to the CEO.
The Budget Office will also, in coordination with the Auditor-Controller’s office, establish the level of non-
departmental, County-wide revenues that will be available to the County. The budget is compiled, balanced, and
reviewed with the CFO and CEO.

The main focus of the budget is the “Discretionary General Fund,” a component of the General Fund,
which represents the County programs that are funded by General Purpose Revenue. General Purpose Revenue
is revenue received in the General Fund that is not specific to a program or service, and consists primarily of
property taxes. General Purpose Revenue is available to meet lease revenue and pension bond debt service
requirements, match or maintain requirements in State and federal programs and can otherwise be allocated at the
discretion of the Board of Supervisors. General Purpose Revenues total $811.2 million or about 12.6% of the
total Fiscal Year 2018-19 Adopted Budget as of August 8, 2018 and approximately 23.5% of the General Fund
Budget. In comparison, General Purpose Revenue totaled $794.9 million or about 11.6% of the total Fiscal Year
2017-18 Final Budget and approximately 23.2% of the General Fund Budget. The General Fund Net County Cost
(“NCC”) totals $820 million and is approximately 12.8% of the total Fiscal Year 2018-19 Adopted Budget as of
August 8, 2018 and approximately 23.7% of the General Fund Budget.

The Board of Supervisors annually holds budget hearings and adopts a final budget for the County in
June. The Board of Supervisors adopted a final budget for Fiscal Year 2018-19 on June 26, 2018. After budget
adoption there are budget adjustments that occur throughout the fiscal year which are primarily presented in
Quarterly Budget Reports to the Board of Supervisors. The adopted budget and adjustments are referred to as the
Modified Budget.

Strategic Financial Plan. In 1997, the County initiated a strategic financial planning process to establish
strategic priorities. The process is a management tool and provides a structure to help the County face both short-
term and long-term operational decisions. The Strategic Financial Plan, which is updated annually, contains a
baseline revenue and expense forecast over a five-year horizon. In addition, a ten-year horizon is used to estimate
the ability of the County to fund certain strategic priorities and implementation of new initiatives, programs, or
facilities. The most recent Strategic Financial Plan was released in December 2017 and was used in the
development of the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Budget.

Reserves. As of August 8, 2018, the County had $653.1 million budgetary reserves within the General
Fund, which had the following balances: $427.7 million assigned toward the reserve target (equal to two months
of General Fund operating revenue or $508.5 million); assigned for operations $60.0 million (which includes
$55.0 million allocated for future repayment to the State of Vehicle License Fee Adjustment Amounts; see
“General Fund Revenues—Vehicle License Fee Revenue Reallocation and Repayment” herein); $30.0 million
Teeter loss reserves fund excess; maintenance and construction reserve $11.6 million; capital project reserve $57.0
million, contingency reserve of $65.0 million, and a imprest cash/cash difference reserve of $1.8 million. These
reserve balances, at fiscal year-end, would be included in the Basic Financial Statement for Governmental Funds
in the County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The General Fund reserve balance for assigned reserve
target would be reported as Nonspendable Fund Balance (see Note 4 on Table A-4 herein). The reserve balances
for operations, Teeter loss reserve fund excess, maintenance and construction, capital projects, and contingencies
would be reported as Assigned Fund Balance. These reserve balances are not legally restricted for any specific
purpose; however, they are reserved by Board action and require a four-fifths vote to appropriate.

Certain other funds held outside the County General Fund have also been established, including program
reserves in the amount of approximately $63.1 million as of July 31, 2018 for sheriff and law enforcement, child
support, social services, and the health care agency.



In addition, the County maintains an account (the “Investment Account”), originally funded with proceeds

of the County’s 1994 Pension Obligation Bonds in the Orange County Employees Retirement System (“OCERS”)
which is commingled with the OCERS pool for investment purposes. Pursuant to an agreement between the
County and OCERS, the County may direct the expenditure of any portion of the Investment Account to offset
County contributions to OCERS. The monies in the Investment Account may not be withdrawn by the County or
used for expenditures other than OCERS contributions. The balance in the Investment Account as of June 30,
2018 was $135.4 million. For recent expenditures from the Investment Account, see “Table A-18, Orange County
Employee Retirement System County Contribution.”

Comparative Budgets for Fiscal Years 2015-16 through 2018-19

The following table sets forth the County’s Final General Fund Budgets (which include all budget

adjustments made after budget adoption) for Fiscal Year 2015-16 through Fiscal Year 2017-18 and the Adopted
Budget for Fiscal Year 2018-19.

TABLE A-6

COMPARISON OF GENERAL FUND
FINAL OR ADOPTED BUDGETS FOR FISCAL YEARS 2015-16 TO 2018-19

2015-16"
Final Budget

2016-17
Final Budget

2017-18®
Final Budget

2018-19"
Adopted Budget

REQUIREMENTS:

Public Protection

Health & Community & Social Services

$ 1,154,900,802
1,635,346,756

$1,213,516,840
1,677,616,903

$1,263,275,290
1,710,518,620

$1,258,326,465
1,747,526,592

Infrastructure & Environmental Resources® 96,542,552 98,972,335 116,899,628 113,094,736
General Government & Services® 175,633,084 175,235,341 177,290,869 168,171,413
Capital Improvements 58,804,388 70,473,040 71,724,289 64,003,054
Debt Service® 58,359,689 28,915,270 8,514,959 1,542,115
Insurance, Reserves & Miscellaneous® 41,997,963 88,233,890 74,518,200 102,386,846
Total Requirements $ 3,221,585,234 $3,352,963,619 $ 3,422,741,855 $ 3,455,051,221
AVAILABLE FUNDS:

Property Taxes” $ 645,114,419 $ 664,066,177 $ 693,860,000 $ 739,230,000
Sales and Other Taxes 7,642,000 7,421,000 7,952,000 8,165,000
Licenses, Permits & Franchises 24,801,856 26,191,782 26,541,617 26,397,738
Fines, Forfeitures & Penalties® 33,973,817 63,426,590 32,651,489 34,632,714
Use of Money & Property® 15,960,550 6,837,144 8,783,507 11,314,080
Intergovernmental Revenues!'” 1,648,932,484 1,650,849,929 1,680,118,352 1,712,494,533
Charges for Services!" 441,372,018 478,731,879 489,839,549 502,311,201
Miscellaneous Revenues!? 25,629,773 19,813,105 28,407,826 16,784,204
Other Financing Sources'® 345,247,026 404,386,614 444,542,184 394,911,798
Decreases to Reserves!'¥ 32,911,291 31,239,399 10,045,331 8,809,953
Total Available Funds $3,221,585,234 $3,352,963,619 $3,422,741,855 $3,455,051,221
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Final Budgets include all budget adjustments throughout the year after budget adoption. Adopted Budget was approved by the Board of
Supervisors on June 26, 2018.

Fiscal Year 2017-18 budget included increase in Debt Service for Central Utility Facility Bonds and decrease in cost reimbursements from
County departments for Utilities and Custodial Services, which resulted in overall increase in appropriations.

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Budget included $6.5 million for the Countywide Accounting and Personnel System software upgrade and $10 million in
additional funding for current operations and one-time costs. Fiscal Year 2016-17 and 2017-18 included additional funding for one-time costs
for Property Tax System upgrades and increase in funding for current operations.

Fiscal Years 2015-16, 2016-17, 2017-18, and 2018-19 include one-time additional funding for planned capital projects.

Fiscal Year 2016-17 budget decrease is due to the reduction in debt service payments for 2005 Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds. Fiscal Years
2017-18 and 2018-19 budget decrease is due to a reduction in waste importation revenue to pay down balances in the plan administered accounts.
Fiscal Years 2015-16,2016-17,2017-18, and 2018-19 Budgets include the AB 701 Vehicle License Fee Revenue Allocation (VLFAA) settlement
payment to the State, $15 million, $25 million, $50 million, and $55 million respectively, contingency funds for mid-year adjustments, and
funding for one-time capital projects.

Fiscal Years 2016-17, 2017-18, and 2018-19 increase is due to a recovering housing market and additional allocation of residual property taxes
from the dissolution of Redevelopment Agencies.

Fiscal Year 2016-17 increase is due to one-time $26 million litigation settlement with a contractor related to the development of a new property
tax system.

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Budget included a one-time $10.2 million in state-mandated cost reimbursements (SB90). FY 2017-18 and 2018-19 increase
is due to higher interest earnings and higher cash balances.
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This funding is comprised of Federal and State grants and reimbursements, matching funds and State-distributed revenues. The overall changes
are due to changes in caseload and additional revenues from the State for the 2012 Realignment of various public safety, social services, and
health programs. See “Fiscal Year 2012 Realignment,” below.

Increases due to an increase in billings for cost of services to cities which contract for Sheriff services, increase in correctional medical services,
and charges from Health Care Agency for Mental Health Services.

Fiscal Year 17-18 includes increase in revenue from the Sheriff Court Operations of $4.5 million.

Includes operating transfers from other funds within the County including transfers from the Teeter Program and departmental transfers from
Non-General Funds for the reimbursement of program expenditures. Increase from Fiscal Year 2016-17 to 2017-18 is due to increased transfers
from the Health Care Agency, Social Services Agency, Teeter Program, and OC Waste and Recycling importation program.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncement No. 54 requires all year-end fund balance available be reclassified and transferred
to reserves. Although budgeted as a decrease, Fiscal Years 2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-18 actual year-end fund balance reclassified and
transferred to reserves were $53.8, $46.7 and $35.1 million respectively

Source: County of Orange, County Budget Office.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]



Comparative General Purpose Revenue and Net County Cost for Fiscal Years 2015-16 through 2018-19

The following table sets forth the County’s Final Budgets for General Purpose Revenue and Net County

Cost (which include all budget adjustments made after budget adoption) for Fiscal Year 2015-16 through Fiscal
Year 2017-18 and the Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2018-19.

TABLE A-7

COMPARISON OF GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUE AND NET COUNTY COST
FINAL OR ADOPTED BUDGETS FOR FISCAL YEARS 2015-16 TO 2018-19

2015-16" 2016-17V 2017-18" 2018-190

Final Budget Final Budget Final Budget Adopted Budget
NET COUNTY COST:
Public Protection ® $ 406,034,712 $ 430,607,525 $ 457,672,145 $ 441,667,262
Health & Community & Social Services 125,775,607 132,332,350 123,314,050 129,428,329
Infrastructure & Environmental Resources 21,031,559 21,930,934 39,291,299 37,104,879
General Government & Services ) 130,244,596 118,317,744 120,987,210 116,247,148
Capital Improvements ) 30,324,060 27,326,273 16,519,934 22,933,197
Debt Service 872,229 872,229 871,929 236,347
Insurance, Reserves & Miscellaneous 10,869,682 36,715,927 46,291,421 72,383,004
Total Requirements $ 725,152,445 $ 768,102,982 $ 804,947,988 $ 820,000,166
AVAILABLE FUNDS/ GENERAL PURPOSE
REVENUE (GPR):
Property Taxes $ 622,618,000 $ 663,714,000 $ 694,170,000 $ 739,753,000
Sales and Other Taxes 7,642,000 7,421,000 7,952,000 8,165,000
Licenses, Permits & Franchises 2,758,368 2,807,635 2,657,824 2,724,255
Fines, Forfeitures & Penalties 18,571,000 19,773,000 19,083,000 21,469,000
Use of Money & Property © 1,600,000 2,775,000 4,600,000 6,500,000
Intergovernmental Revenues 2,808,000 2,810,000 3,659,000 3,197,000

22,395,000

Charges for Services 21,783,000 16,449,406 21,371,000
Miscellaneous Revenues ® 2,486,000 1,560,000 2,521,671 1,256,000
Other Financing Sources ) 11,974,786 19,332,542 39,198,162 6,253,958
Decreases to Reserves ('¥ 32,911,291 31,239,399 10,045,331 8,809,953
Total Available Funds $ 725,152,445 $ 768,102,982 $ 804,947,988 $ 820,000,166
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Final Budgets include all budget adjustments throughout the year after budget adoption. Adopted Budget was approved by the Board of
Supervisors on June 26, 2018.

Fiscal Year 2016-17 Net County Cost increase for Public Safety for: (a) additional $23 million funding to maintain the current level of service
and (b) additional $4 million funding to expand level of service for District Attorney, Sheriff-Coroner, and Public Administrator. Fiscal Year
2017-18 increase and subsequent Fiscal Year 2018-19 due to a one-time adjustment to Net County Cost for Public Safety in Fiscal Year 2017-
18.

Fiscal Year 2016-17 Net County Cost decrease for General Government & Services for: (a) decrease in one-time funding for CAPS+ Upgrade
by $6.5 million, outside legal counsel services by $3 million, and 2015 primary election services by $4.5 million offset by increases in $2.4
million funding to maintain the current level of service for Assessor, Auditor-Controller, Clerk of the Board, and Treasurer-Tax Collector and
$0.5 million funding to expand level of services for newly created Campaign Finance and Ethics Commission. Fiscal Year 2017-18 Net County
Cost increase for additional $0.8 million funding for Assessor, Auditor-Controller, and Clerk of the Board. Fiscal Year 2018-19 reduction in Net
County Cost due to reduced general election expenses.

Fiscal Years 2016-17 and 2017-18 Net County Cost decrease due to decrease in one-time funding for capital projects. Fiscal Year 2018-19
increase due to capital projects for the Sheriff’s facilities.

Fiscal Years 2015-16, 2016-17, 2017-18 and 2018-19 increase in Net County Cost is primarily from Miscellaneous Fund budget for increase in
VLFAA appropriations and other one-time appropriations for capital projects.

Changes in Use of Money & Property is due to changes in interest earnings from increases of cash balances.

Fiscal Year 2016-17 decrease is due to one-time decline in Assessment and Tax Collection Fees (PTAC) revenue.

Fiscal Years 2016-17,2017-18 and 2018-19 changes in Miscellaneous Revenues is due to increases and decreases in excess revenue distribution
from Bankruptcy Plan of Adjustment.

Fiscal Years 2016-17 and FY 2017-18 increase in Other Financing Sources is due to an increase of a one-time transfer amount from the Teeter
Fund and transfer of excess reserves funding from 2005 Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds. Fiscal Year 2018-19 decrease is due to lower budgeted
transfer from the Teeter Fund.

The draw from reserves is primarily related to the use of prior year fund balance for one-time planned capital projects and changes approved by
the Board.

Source: County of Orange, County Budget Office.



Revenue Assumptions Incorporated into the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Budget
The following additional assumptions were incorporated into the Fiscal Year 2018-19 County Budget:

o The Fiscal Year 2017-18 Local Assessed Roll of Values increased by 6.02%. The estimated Fiscal Year
2018-19 total property tax revenue reflects an overall 4.4% increase which is consistent with
economists’ forecasts.

e Revenue from secured property taxes is assumed to grow in Fiscal Year 2018-19 based on a projection
of 4.5% growth, which is consistent with economists’ forecasts.

e The intergovernmental revenue from Public Safety Sales Tax (Proposition 172) is assumed to increase by
3.5% based on State and economists’ projections and trend data.

o The Statewide allocation of AB109 (2011 Public Safety Realignment) revenue is budgeted with an
increase of approximately $5.7 million (or 6.7%) combined in base and growth revenue for Orange
County.

General Fund Revenues

The largest single source of funding in the General Fund portion of the County Budget is
intergovernmental revenue, many of which are for restricted purposes such as public health, assistance and other
human services and public safety. Other revenues include shared taxes, such as the statewide sales tax for public
safety. Budgeted intergovernmental revenue accounted for 51.7%, 49.7%, 49.2%, and 49.7% of all General Fund
revenue sources for Fiscal Years 2015-16, 2016-17, 2017-18, and 2018-19 respectively. Approximately 38.2%
of the County’s Fiscal Year 2018-19 Adopted Budget total revenues are from the State. Changes in the revenues
received by the State can affect the amount of funding, if any, received by the County from the State. The County
cannot predict the outcome of future State budget negotiations and there are no assurances that actions taken by
the State will not materially affect the financial condition of the County. The County has historically not backfilled
State revenues shortfalls with discretionary revenues. See “STATE OF CALIFORNIA FINANCIAL
INFORMATION” in the forepart of this Official Statement.

Ad Valorem Property Taxation

The largest source of discretionary General Fund revenues is derived from property taxes, which make up
approximately 21.4% of the General Fund budget and 90% of discretionary revenues. Property taxes are levied
by the County for each fiscal year on taxable real and personal property that is situated in the County based on the
owner of record as of the preceding January 1. For assessment and collection purposes, property is classified
either as “secured” or “unsecured” and is listed accordingly on separate parts of the assessment roll. The “secured
roll” is that part of the assessment roll containing State assessed property and property on which a lien on real
property is sufficient, in the opinion of the Assessor, to secure payment of the taxes. Other property is assessed
on the “unsecured roll.” In addition to regular secured taxes, supplemental taxes may also be levied by accelerating
property reassessment when a change of ownership or completion of new construction has occurred.
Supplemental tax bills representing the taxes on the changes in assessed value are prorated from the date of
completion or change in ownership to the end of the fiscal year.

Secured Property Roll. Annual property taxes on the secured roll are due in two installments:
November 1 and February 1 of each fiscal year. Property taxes are collected by the Treasurer in accordance with
the California Revenue and Taxation Code. If unpaid, such taxes become delinquent after December 10 and
April 10, respectively, and a 10% penalty accrues with respect to any delinquent payment. If such taxes remain
unpaid as of July 1 of the fiscal year for which the tax was levied, the property securing the taxes is considered
tax defaulted and may only be redeemed by payment of the delinquent tax, ten percent delinquency penalty,
redemption fee, collection cost, and an additional penalty of 1.5 % per calendar month beginning July 1 of the
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year the property became tax defaulted. Delinquent taxes may be paid under an installment plan by paying current
taxes plus all delinquent taxes over a five-year period. If ad valorem taxes are unpaid for a period of five years
or more and an installment plan is not active, such properties may thereafter be sold by the Treasurer as provided
by law unless paid in full by the day before the tax auction.

Teeter Plan. On June 29, 1993, the Board of Supervisors adopted the Teeter Plan pursuant to Sections
4701 through 4717 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code (the “Teeter Plan”). The taxing agencies in the
County which participate in the Teeter Plan annually receive from the County the full amount of their share of
taxes from the secured property tax roll, whether or not these taxes have been collected. The Teeter Plan provides
these participating agencies with stable and timely cash flow without the collection risk, and the County receives
the delinquency and redemption penalty amounts when the taxes are paid.

The County has used a combination of internal resources and external borrowing to finance its advances
under the Teeter Plan. In 2013, the County issued its Teeter Plan Series B Notes (the “Teeter Notes™), which
replaced a commercial paper program, for the purpose of financing its then current Teeter Plan distribution to
taxing agencies participating in the Teeter Plan (the “Participating Agencies™). The Teeter Notes were purchased
by Wells Fargo Bank, National Association through a direct placement pursuant to a Note Purchase and
Reimbursement Agreement. In July of each year, the County issues additional Teeter Notes to fund the
distribution to Participating Agencies under the Teeter Plan. On June 5, 2018, the County authorized the issuance
of additional Teeter Notes in the maximum amount of $100 million under an Amended and Restated Note
Purchase and Reimbursement Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association. On July 16, 2018, the
County issued $61.1 million in Teeter Notes to fund the distribution to Participating Agencies and pay off the
prior Notes outstanding. As of November 30, 2018, $61.1 million in Notes remains outstanding. The County
expects to retire portions of the Teeter Notes in December 2018 and June 2019 using delinquent base tax revenues
associated with the Teeter Plan. The final maturity of the Notes is July 30, 2021.

Under the Teeter Plan, the penalties and interest associated with delinquent taxes, along with interest
earnings on program cash and investment balances constitute General Purpose Revenue once the Tax Losses
Reserve Fund is funded to its requirement (equal to 25% of delinquencies) and expenses of the program have been
paid.

Unsecured Property Roll. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due as of August 1 and become
delinquent after August 31. A 10% penalty attaches to delinquent properties on the unsecured roll, and an
additional penalty of 1.5% per month begins to accrue on November 1. The Treasurer has four ways of collecting
delinquent unsecured personal property taxes: (1) a civil action against the taxpayer; (2) filing a certificate in the
Office of the County Clerk specifying certain facts in order to obtain a judgment lien on certain property of the
taxpayer; (3) filing a certificate of delinquency for recordation in the County Recorder’s Office, in order to obtain
a lien on certain property of the taxpayer; and (4) seizure and sale of personal property, improvements or
possessory interest belonging or assessed to the delinquent taxpayer.

Allocation of Property Taxes. Property taxes are allocated to local governments pursuant to legislation
implementing Article XIII A of the California Constitution. See “CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY
LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND APPROPRIATIONS—Article XIII A of the State Constitution” in the forepart
of this Official Statement. Due to legislation enacted as part of the Fiscal Year 2004-05 State Budget and effective
for Fiscal Year 2004-05 and thereafter, counties, including the County, and cities received property taxes from
the schools’ Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (“ERAF”) allocation to replace local sales taxes and
vehicle license fees transferred to the State. The County has historically received approximately 11% of property
tax revenues collected in the County for general revenue purposes. Legislation enacted with the Fiscal Year 2009-
10 State Budget Act (SB 8 X3) increased property tax revenue allocations to the County by $35 million annually
in Fiscal Year 2009-10 and Fiscal Year 2010-11 and by $50 million annually thereafter. With the Adoption of
Assembly Bill 701 (“AB 701”) on September 27, 2013, these revenues are no longer allocated to the County. For
additional information regarding these revenues, see “Vehicle License Fee Revenue Reallocation and Repayment”
herein.



Assessed Valuation. The Assessor assesses all property within the County except state-assessed
properties (i.e., utility property, regulated railroads) which are assessed by the State Board of Equalization.

Since Fiscal Year 1981-82, property in California has been assessed at 100% of full cash value. Under
Proposition 13, Article XIIT A of the California Constitution, the maximum ad valorem tax on real property is
limited to 1% of the full cash value, to be collected by counties and apportioned according to law. The full cash
value may be adjusted upward annually to account for inflation at a rate not to exceed 2% per year, or to reflect a
reduction in the consumer price index or comparable data for the area under taxing jurisdiction, or may be reduced
in the event of declining property value caused by substantial damage, destruction or other factors. When property
is transferred or new construction occurs it is assessed at its cash value at the time of such transfer or new
construction. Due to the changes in assessment methodology under Article XIII A of the California Constitution,
the County assessment roll is no longer proportional to market value. See “CONSTITUTIONAL AND
STATUTORY LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND APPROPRIATIONS—Article XIII A of the State
Constitution” in the forepart of this Official Statement.

The following table shows a history of assessed valuations in the County since Fiscal Year 2008-09.

TABLE A-8
COUNTY OF ORANGE
DETAIL OF ASSESSED VALUATION®
Fiscal Year Secured Unsecured Total % Change
2008-09 $ 408,491,848,742 $20,317,375,534 $ 428,809,224,276 3.91%
2009-10 402,572,097,312 20,393,498,698 422,965,596,010 -1.36
2010-11 400,814,188,871 19,937,386,517 420,751,575,388 -0.52
2011-12 405,588,977,572 19,180,663,956 424,769,641,528 0.95
2012-13 414,121,659,108 18,780,614,687 432.902,273,795 1.92
2013-14 429,070,697,346 18,678,458,709 447,749,156,055 3.43
2014-15 455,733,167,806 20,570,122,070 476,303,289,876 6.38
2015-16 485,007,445,623 19,642,914,061 504,650,359,684 5.95
2016-17 511,774,616,621 19,277,541,199 531,052,157,820 5.23
2017-18 543,455,064,150 20,206,980,147 563,662,044,297 6.14
2018-19 578,490,557,698 20,410,457,844 598,901,015,542 6.25

M Figures in table include incremental value for redevelopment agencies. Property is assessed at taxable full cash value, pursuant

to California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 135(a).

Sources: Orange County Office of Auditor-Controller, Assessed Valuation Reports.
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Largest Secured and Unsecured Taxpayers. Table A-9 provides a list of the twenty largest secured
taxpayers in the County for Fiscal Year 2017-18. For purposes of this table, multiple properties may be
consolidated into a single entry.

TABLE A-9

COUNTY OF ORANGE
TOP 20 SECURED TAXPAYERS
FISCAL YEAR 2017-18

Secured Tax % of

Taxpayers® Charge Taxes®

1.  Irvine Company $ 94,856,224 1.47%
2. Walt Disney Parks & Resorts US 55,322,385 0.86
3. Southern California Edison Company (Edison International) 38,457,750 0.59
4.  Five Points Holdings, LLC 19,541,581 0.30
5. Sempra Energy (SDG&E, So. Cal. Gas) 10,785,475 0.17
6. AT&T (Pacific Bell Telephone Company) 10,025,636 0.16
7. United Laguna Hills Mutual (Laguna Woods) 9,882,519 0.15
8.  BEX Portfolio, Inc. 8,442,913 0.13
9.  Blackstone Real Estate Partners Fund (Ritz-Carlton, Montage) 7,571,665 0.12
10. Belle Terra Associates, LLC 5,949,022 0.09
11.  South Coast Plaza 4,683,956 0.07
12. Olen Properties Corporation 4,558,001 0.07
13.  Mainplace Shoppingtown LLC 3,913,858 0.06
14.  Knott’s Berry Farm 3,891,187 0.06
15. B. Braun Medical, Inc. 3,866,035 0.06
16. The Mayer Corporation (Waterfront Beach Resort) 3,498,770 0.05
17.  Marblehead Development Partner 3,449,820 0.05
18. KSL Capital Partners (Monarch Beach Resort) 3,195,103 0.05
19. Manulife US REIT (Hancock S-REIT Irvine Corp.) 3,147,357 0.05
20. Vestar 3,120,030 0.05

TOTAL $ 298,159,287 4.61%

(M Taxpayers are grouped under a parent company, if identifiable.
@ Total Secured Taxes as of September 30, 2017 were $6,464,862,139.

Source: Orange County Treasurer-Tax Collector.
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Table A-10 provides a list of the ten largest unsecured taxpayers in the County for Fiscal Year 2017-18.
TABLE A-10
COUNTY OF ORANGE

TOP 10 UNSECURED TAXPAYERS
FISCAL YEAR 2017-18

Unsecured Tax

Taxpayers® Charge % of Taxes?

1.  Charter Communications, Inc. $ 3,783,915 0.93%
2. Cox Communications 2,614,215 0.65
3.  Boeing Company 2,463,752 0.61
4.  Broadcom Corporation 1,517,019 0.37
5. Southwest Airlines Company 1,454,917 0.36
6.  Allergan 1,313,276 0.32
7.  Panasonic Avionics Corporation 1,289,557 0.32
8.  Jazz Semiconductor, Inc. 1,276,757 0.32
9.  Applied Medical 1,274,081 0.31
10. Kimberly-Clark Worldwide, Inc. 1,209,888 0.30

TOTAL $ 18,197,377 4.49%

(M Taxpayers are grouped under a parent company, if identifiable.
@ Total Unsecured Taxes as of September 30, 2017 were $405,006,210.

Source: Orange County Treasurer-Tax Collector.
Vehicle License Fee Revenue Reallocation and Repayment

All counties in California receive property taxes in lieu of Vehicle License Fee (“VLF”) pursuant to
Section 97.70 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. This system of property taxes in lieu of VLF started in 2004
when the Legislature enacted the so-called “VLF swap” pursuant to which the State took VLF revenues that were
previously allocated to cities and counties through the Motor Vehicle License Fees Account (“MVLFA”) and
replaced these revenues with property tax revenues that were drawn from the Educational Revenue Augmentation
Fund (“ERAF”) and paid to the counties and cities through the Vehicle License Fee Adjustment Amount
(“VLFAA”).

In recognition of the County’s pledge of VLF revenues to secure the repayment of certain County
bankruptcy debt, the Legislature enacted Assembly Bill 2115 (“AB 2115”) in 1995. AB 2115’s provisions
allocated to the County, at the time of the VLF swap beginning in the 2004-2005 fiscal year, $54 million in VLF
each year. Both the VLFAA and the amount of actual VLF received by the County under AB 2115 were adjusted
to reflect growth or losses in property taxes for VLFAA and VLF receipts.

On June 30, 2011, the Governor signed Senate Bill 89 (“SB 89), which terminated the County’s annual
receipt of approximately $49.5 million (adjusted from $54 million) in VLF under AB 2115. The County believed
the action by the State in eliminating the VLF to the County required the County’s Auditor-Controller, consistent
with other counties, to recalculate the property taxes that must be allocated to the County as part of the VLFAA
under Revenue & Taxation Code Section 97.70. The Auditor-Controller’s calculation of the VLFAA for Fiscal
Year 2011-12 determined that the County should receive approximately $73.5 million more in VLFAA compared
to the prior year and the Auditor-Controller allocated such additional amounts to the County. On April 5, 2012,
the California Department of Finance (“DOF”) and the Chancellor of the California Community Colleges filed a
lawsuit against the County contending that the County incorrectly computed the amount of property taxes to be
allocated to the County under Revenue and Taxation Code Section 97.70 as a part of the VLFAA. On
August 30, 2013, the Orange County Superior Court issued a judgment that required the Auditor-Controller to
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calculate future VLFAA without the additional $73.5 million adjustment in VLFAA. The judgment further
required the County to repay $148.6 million (plus interest) in VLFAA previously allocated to the County under
the disputed calculation method used in Fiscal Years 2011-12 and 2012-13. On September 27, 2013, Assembly
Bill 701 (“AB 701”) was signed by the Governor as a legislative resolution to the dispute between the State and
the County. AB 701 provides for $53 million in annual VLFAA in lieu of the $50 million previously provided by
SB 8 X3. For additional information regarding SB 8 X3, see “General Fund Revenues - Allocation of Property
Taxes” herein. AB 701 also sets forth the repayment schedule by fiscal year shown in the following table. The
Board of Supervisors took action to reserve the repayment amount in the County’s strategic priority reserves. The
VLFAA reserve is reported in the Basic Financial Statement for Governmental Funds in the County’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as a portion of the General Fund Assigned Fund Balance (Assigned to
General Services: Operations). The following table provides the repayments of VLFAA made by the County. The
final repayment of $55 million will be made in June 2019.

TABLE A-11

COUNTY OF ORANGE
REPAYMENT OF VLFAA ALLOCATION UNDER AB 701 BY FISCAL YEAR

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 Total

$5,000,000 $15,000,000 $25,000,000 $50,000,000 $55,000,000 $150,000,000

Source: County of Orange, County Budget Office.

Fiscal Year 2012 Realignment

The Fiscal Year 2011-12 State Budget Act included a Realignment Plan which transferred authority and
funding responsibility for certain State programs to local governments including: court security, adult offender
and parolees, public safety grants, mental health services, substance abuse treatment, child welfare programs,
adult protective programs, and California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids (CalWORKSs). The
realignment of these Public Safety and Health and Human Services programs went into effect July 1, 2011, with
the exception of the funding for the realignment of adult offender and parolee populations (which is referred to as
Assembly Bill 109 (“AB 109), which went into effect October 1, 2011. AB 109 is funded by a dedicated portion
of sales tax revenue and vehicle license fees per SB 89 and Assembly Bill 118 (“AB 118”). SB 89 provided
revenue to counties for local public safety programs and AB 118 established a Local Revenue Fund 2011 for
counties to receive revenues and appropriate funding for AB 109. The Schools and Local Public Safety Protection
Act (“Proposition 30”) approved by voters on November 7, 2012, among other things, guarantees the ongoing
revenues redirected to counties in 2011 to fully fund public safety programs transferred as part of the Realignment
Plan. The realignment of these programs was expected to have a minimal financial impact on the County as long
as the programs remained fully funded by the State.

The Fiscal Year 2017-18 AB 109 allocation received by the County was $84.8 million. The Fiscal Year
2018-19 AB 109 allocation is projected to increase by $5.7 million to be $90.5 million based on revised
information received from the California Department of Finance. For Fiscal Year 2018-19, the County estimates
the AB 109 allocation will increase by $6 million to $91 million. This estimate is based on the State’s FY 2018-
19 Budget.
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Dissolution of Redevelopment Agencies

Pursuant to Assembly Bill x1 26 (“AB x1 26”) (a companion bill to the Fiscal Year 2011-12 State Budget
Act), redevelopment agencies were dissolved, and any net tax increment revenues remaining after payment of
redevelopment bonds debt service, other enforceable obligations and administrative costs will be distributed to
cities, counties, special districts and school districts. Another companion bill, Assembly Bill x1 27 (“AB x1 27”),
authorized redevelopment agencies to continue operations provided their establishing cities or counties agreed to
make a specified payment to school districts and county offices of education, totaling $1.7 billion statewide. As
a result, the County Development Agency was dissolved effective February 1, 2012 and the County became the
successor agency to the County Development Agency. The County is in the process of winding down the
operations of the County Development Agency in accordance with the requirements of AB x1 26. The County
estimates that it will receive approximately $27.8 million in additional property tax revenue in Fiscal Year 2018-
19 from the dissolution of redevelopment agencies and expects the additional revenue to continue at least at this
level on an annual basis.

Sales Tax

A sales tax is imposed upon retailers for the privilege of selling tangible personal property in California.
Most retail sales and leases are subject to the tax. However, exemptions have been provided for certain essentials
such as food for home consumption, prescription drugs, gas delivered through main gas lines and electricity. Other
exemptions provide relief for a variety of sales ranging from custom computer software to aircratft.

Currently the total state and local sales tax rate of 7.75% is imposed in the County. The breakdown of
the state and local sales tax rate is as follows:

. 3.9375% imposed as a State General Fund tax;

. 0.5% dedicated to local governments (including the County) for health and social programs realignment;

. 0.5% dedicated to local governments (including the County) for public safety services (“Proposition 172
Funds”);

. 1.25% local tax imposed under the Uniform Local Sales and Use Tax Law (known as the “Bradley-Burns

Act”), with 0.25% dedicated to county transportation purposes and 1% for city and county general purpose
use (the County receives the 1% portion of the tax for sales that occur in unincorporated areas);

. 0.5% Optional Local Sales Tax for transportation improvements (“Measure M Sales Tax”’); and
. 1.0625% to fund the Local Revenue Fund 2011 for AB 109.
Recent State Impacts to the County

Fiscal Year 2018-19 In-Home Support Services Program. Effective July 1, 2017, the State established a
new county In-Home Support Services (“IHSS”) maintenance of effort (“MOE”) structure which shifted significant
costs to counties. To help mitigate the impact of this change, the State dedicated $1.1 billion in State General Funds
over four years to help offset the cost. In addition, the State made changes to 1991 Realignment whereby growth
revenues are to be paid to counties in the fiscal year earned as opposed to being paid up to 18 months in arrears.
However, the State also temporarily redirected the public health growth funds to the social services program to help
mitigate the increases in costs. With robust realignment revenues in Fiscal Year 2017-18 and projected for Fiscal Year
2018-19, the State is anticipating only slight impacts to counties in the near term. The California State Association of
Counties (“CSAC”) has established a working group with includes the County of Orange to work with the new
administration to address the issues and concerns. The County of Orange continues to evaluate the situation and has
been proactive in controlling IHSS costs and evaluating all options to help mitigate the anticipated increase in costs.
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Outstanding Long Term Debt and Lease Obligations

The County’s outstanding long-term debt as of July 20, 2018 is shown in the following table.

TABLE A-12
COUNTY OF ORANGE
OUTSTANDING LONG-TERM DEBT AND LEASE OBLIGATIONS
OQutstanding Final
Source of Principal Balance Maturity
Description Repayment (July 20, 2018) Date
Orange County Public Facilities Corporation Refunding Certificates of General Fund $391,274 2018
Participation (Civic Center Parking Facilities Project), 1991
County of Orange Taxable Refunding Pension Obligation Bonds, General Fund 8,219,389 2021
Series 1997 AM
South Orange County Public Financing Authority Juvenile Justice General Fund 5,030,000 2019
Center Facility Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012
County of Orange Teeter Plan Obligation Notes, Series B Series A Taxes 61,107,000 2018
South Orange County Public Financing Authority, Central Utility General Fund 52,515,000 2036
Facility Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2016
SUBTOTAL- GENERAL FUND OBLIGATIONS $ 127,262,663
County of Orange, Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A Airport Revenues $ 55,760,000 2039
County of Orange, Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2009B Airport Revenues 90,415,000 2039
Successor Agency to the Orange County Development Agency Redevelopment 8,130,000 2022
(Neighborhood Development and Preservation Project) Tax Allocation  Property Tax Trust
Refunding Bonds, Issue of 2014 Fund
Successor Agency to the Orange County Development Agency (Santa Redevelopment 12,900,000 2023
Ana Heights Project Area) Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Issue of Property Tax Trust
2014 Fund
TOTAL $ 294,467,663
California Municipal Finance Authority Lease Revenue Bonds, Series General Fund $152,400,000 2047

2017A (Orange County Civic Center Infrastructure Improvement
Program - Phase 1) @

(M The outstanding Taxable Refunding Pension Obligation Bonds, Series 1997A were economically defeased on June 22, 2000, through the deposit

with the trustee of $175.492 million principal amount of AAA-rated debt securities issued by Fannie Mae, together with irrevocable instructions
that these securities and other cash amounts and investments held by the trustee, will be used solely to retire the remaining Pension Obligation

Bonds as they mature.

@ The lease payments for the Series 2017A Bonds will become an obligation of the County upon substantial completion of Phase I and the County

has taken occupancy.

Source: County of Orange, CEO Public Finance Unit.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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The County’s General Fund debt service payments (excluding the economically defeased Pension
Obligation Bonds, Series 1997) for Fiscal Years 2018-19 through 2022-23 is shown in the following table.

TABLE A-13

COUNTY OF ORANGE
GENERAL FUND DEBT SERVICE

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Description 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Orange County Public Facilities Corporation Refunding
Certificates of Participation (Civic Center Parking Facilities $2,600,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
Project), 1991

South Orange County Public Financing Authority Juvenile Justice

Center Facility Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 5,281,500 0 0 0 0

County of Orange Teeter Plan Obligation Notes, Series B 0 0 0 61,107,000 0

South Orange County Public Financing Authority, Central Utility

Facility Lease Revenue Bonds, Serics 2016 4,487,000 4,486,000 4,487,000 4,489,250 4,486,250

TOTAL GENERAL FUND DEBT SERVICE $12,368,500  $4,486,000 $ 4,487,000 $ 65,596,250 $ 4,486,250

California Municipal Finance Authority Lease Revenue Bonds, $0 $0 $3,095,263 $3,393,370 $3,392,605
Series 2017A (Orange County Civic Center Infrastructure
Improvement Program - Phase ) @

(M Represents scheduled debt service. Historically, the County has voluntarily retired portions of the Teeter Notes throughout the year using

delinquent tax revenues associated with the Teeter Plan. In July of each year, the County has issued additional Teeter Notes to fund the
distribution to Participating Agencies under the Teeter Plan. The Teeter Notes mature on July 30, 2021. For additional information, see “Teeter
Plan Notes” herein.

The lease payments for the Series 2017A Bonds will become an obligation of the County upon substantial completion of Phase I and the County
has taken occupancy. Debt service amount reflects projected General Fund portion of approximately 34% (based on estimated occupancy) of
total debt service.

2)

Source: County of Orange, CEO Public Finance Unit.

Short Term Debt

For the past several years, the County has issued 18-month pension obligation bonds to finance the pre-
payment of its contributions to its retirement system in order to secure a discount. On January 12, 2018, the County
issued its Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds, 2018 Series A (the “2018 Series A Bonds”) in the amount of $375.3
million. The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2018 was $375.3 million. The 2018 Series A Bonds will mature
on April 30, 2019. The 2018 Series A Bond proceeds were combined with $30.1 million in contributions from
County departments to prepay the County’s Fiscal Year 2018-19 pension obligation. The OCERS Board of
Retirement approved a discount rate of 4.5% for the pension prepayment in connection with the issuance of the
2018 Series A Bonds. The discount, combined with the interest and issuance costs, resulted in a net savings of
$9.7 million to the County.

In Fiscal Year 2012-13, $3.9 million was borrowed from the OC Waste & Recycling Department’s solid
waste enterprise fund for costs associated with the upgrade of various information technology projects. The
amount borrowed was fully repaid over five years in equal principal installments including interest at the Treasurer
commingled pool rate. The Fiscal Year 2018-19 County budget includes $23.5 million in additional internal
borrowing for the Probation Department’s multi-purpose gym and Sheriff-Coroner Musick jail projects. The
repayment of these projects is required over a three year period.
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The County has not issued Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes since 2011, as sufficient cash is available
due to an increased General Fund reserve balance.

Capital and Operating Lease Obligations

The County is the lessee under a number of capital leases in effect with respect to real property and
equipment used by the County. For additional information, see Note 12 in the Notes to the County’s Basic
Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 in Appendix B of this Official Statement.

Civic Center Master Plan

On April 25, 2017, the Board of Supervisors approved the County of Orange Civic Center Facilities Strategic
Plan. The Facilities Strategic Plan involves the approximately 11 acre County “superblock” (bounded by Ross Street,
Civic Center Drive, Broadway and Santa Ana Boulevard), as well as County satellite buildings within the vicinity of
the Civic Center. Key goals of the plan are to improve the delivery of County services to the community by grouping
similar and related services; to improve efficiencies through these departmental adjacencies; reduce energy costs by
capitalizing on the Central Utilities Facility; and to improve space usage which are projected to result in lower long-
term operating and maintenance costs for the County. To accomplish these goals, the plan anticipates the renovation
of several existing facilities and the replacement of several facilities with new construction. These activities would
result in a net increase of 390,000 square feet of government office uses within the Facilities Strategic Plan area.
Implementation would occur in four phases over approximately 18 years. Phase I of the Facilities Strategic Plan was
financed with $152.4 million California Municipal Finance Authority Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A. The Phase
I project is currently in process with an expected completion date in January 2020. There are no contracts yet in place
for future phases beyond Phase II. See “THE PROJECT” in the forepart of this Official Statement for Phase II.

Overlapping Debt and Debt Ratios

The County contains numerous municipalities, school districts, and special purpose districts such as water
and sanitation districts, which have issued indebtedness that is repaid out of tax revenues. Set forth in the
following table is a direct and overlapping debt report (the “Debt Report”) prepared by California Municipal
Statistics, Inc. as of June 30, 2018. The Debt Report is included for general information purposes only. Neither
the County nor the underwriter makes any representations as to its completeness or accuracy. Some of the issues
may be payable from self-supporting enterprises or revenue sources other than property and other taxes.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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TABLE A-14

COUNTY OF ORANGE
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
As of June 30, 2018

2017-18 Assessed Valuation: $563,662,044,297 (includes unitary utility valuation)

OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT: % Applicable Debt 6/30/18
The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 20.333% $ 12,321,798
Coast Community College District 99.999 781,326,691
North Orange County Joint Community College District 97.715 201,345,667
Rancho Santiago Community College District and School Facilities Improvement District No. 1 100. 368,129,249
Unified School Districts 0.146-100. 1,817,695,594
Anaheim Union High School District 100. 200,528,955
Fullerton Joint Union High School District 91.701 155,584,502
Huntington Beach Union High School District 100. 187,014,998
Elementary School Districts 100. 621,258,502
Irvine Ranch Water District Improvement Districts 100. 568,600,000
Moulton-Niguel Water District Improvement Districts 100. 2,830,000
Santa Margarita Water District Improvement Districts 100. 74,380,000
Cities 100. 28,030,000
Orange County Community Facilities Districts 100. 481,326,990
Other Community Facilities Districts 100. 1,970,302,288
City and Special District Special Assessment Bonds 100. 834,875,839
County 1915 Act Bonds 100. 41.815,000
TOTAL OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT $8,347,366,073
OTHER DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT:
Orange County General Fund Obligations (1) (2) 100. % $ 210,347,000
Orange County Pension Obligation Bonds 100. 383,564,389
Orange County Office of Education Certificates of Participation 100. 13,990,000
Coast Community College District Certificates of Participation 99.999 3,284,967
Unified School District Certificates of Participation 0.146-100. 372,016,235
High School District Certificates of Participation 91.701-100. 119,854,798
Elementary School District Certificates of Participation 100. 106,498,253
City of Anaheim General Fund Obligations 100. 606,340,522
Other City General Fund Obligations 100. 433,345,008
Moulton-Niguel Water District Certificates of Participation 100. 72,265,000
TOTAL GROSS OTHER DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT $2,321,506,172
Less: City of Anaheim supported obligations 606,340,522
TOTAL NET OTHER DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT $1,715,165,650
OVERLAPPING TAX INCREMENT DEBT (Successor Agencies):
Anaheim Redevelopment Agency 100. % $156,455,000
Brea Redevelopment Agency 100. 135,446,668
Westminster Redevelopment Agency 100. 114,655,000
Fullerton Redevelopment Agency 100. 78,595,000
Buena Park Redevelopment Agency 100. 72,160,000
Other Redevelopment Agencies 100. 407,928,707
TOTAL OVERLAPPING TAX INCREMENT DEBT $965,240,375
GROSS COMBINED TOTAL DEBT $11,634,112,620
NET COMBINED TOTAL DEBT $11,027,772,098

(1) Excludes Teeter Obligation Notes, see Table A-12
(2) Includes CMFA Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A — Phase I of the Civic Center Master Plan

3)

(3) Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and non-bonded capital lease obligations. Qualified Zone

Academy Bonds are included based on principal due at maturity.

Ratios to 2017-18 Assessed Valuation:

Total Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt.........ccoceeecninenenee 1.48%
Combined Direct Debt ($593,911,389) 0.11%
Gross Combined Total Debt.........ccveuiiririeinieiieeee e 2.06%
Net Combined Total Debt ........c.c.eeviririeieirininiecineee e 1.96%

Ratios to Redevelopment Successor Agencies Incremental Valuation ($61,059,615.022):
Total Overlapping Tax Increment Debt 1.58%

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
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COUNTY RETIREMENT SYSTEM
General

The County contributes to OCERS, which was established in 1945 pursuant to the County Employees
Retirement Law of 1937 (California Government Code § 31450 et seq.) (the “Retirement Law”). OCERS is an
independent, defined-benefit retirement plan in which member employees of the County, Orange County Superior
Court, and certain cities and special districts within the County participate. Participating entities, including the
County, share proportionally in all risks and costs, including benefit costs. OCERS is governed by the Board of
Retirement (the “Retirement Board”), which is independent of the Board of Supervisors, although the Board of
Supervisors appoints four members of the nine-member Retirement Board. In addition, the Treasurer sits as an
ex-officio member of the Retirement Board, as required by the Retirement Law. The California Constitution vests
the Retirement Board with sole and exclusive responsibility over OCERS, including without limitation, the assets
of OCERS, the administration of OCERS and the actuarial services provided to OCERS. Members of the
Retirement Board must discharge their duties solely in the interest of and for the exclusive purposes of providing
benefits to participants and their beneficiaries, minimizing employer contributions, and ensuring reasonable
expenses of OCERS. The Retirement Board’s duty to OCERS participants and their beneficiaries takes precedence
over any other duty. The Retirement Board also determines the annual contributions required of the County and
other participating local governmental entities to fund OCERS.

OCERS practice has been to determine contribution rates by conducting an actuarial valuation on an
annual basis as of each December 31. The County and other participating entities begin making contributions
attributable to each annual valuation eighteen months after the respective valuation date. County payments
represent approximately 75% of the payments into OCERS. The Retirement Law requires the Board of
Supervisors to annually make budgetary appropriations for the purpose of making required County contributions
to OCERS.

OCERS provides a “defined benefit” pension to eligible members (all regular full-time employees or part-
time employees scheduled to work 20 hours or more per week) upon retirement (OCERS also provides certain
disability and death benefits). Benefits formulas authorized under the Retirement Law are typically adopted
through labor contracts negotiated between the County and employee bargaining units. Members’ annual benefits
are determined by multiplying a specified percentage of pay times years of service. The product constitutes the
member’s retirement benefit. In addition, benefit formulas include an age at which the member can retire and
begin to receive the full amount of his benefit. There are various benefit formulas depending on the employee’s
hire date and bargaining unit. The majority of General members hired prior to January 1, 2013 are enrolled in a
2.7% at age 55 retirement formula. Due to the passage of the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (“PEPRA”)
of 2013, most new General members hired on or after January 1, 2013 are enrolled in a 1.62% at age 65 retirement
formula. The majority of Safety members hired prior to January 1, 2013 are enrolled in a 3% at age 50 retirement
formula. As aresult of PEPRA, new Safety members hired on or after January 1, 2013 are enrolled in a 2.7% at
age 57 retirement formula.

Actuarial Valuation and Funding Methodology

OCERS?’ actuarial valuations determine, as of the date of the calculation (e.g., December 31, 2017), the
funding (contributions) required for the Fiscal Year commencing eighteen months from the valuation date, based
substantially upon analysis of the prior year’s plan experience. OCERS uses the Entry Age Normal Actuarial
Costs Method for funding. The actuary employs a series of economic and demographic assumptions including
expected return on invested assets, the assumed future pay increases for current employees, assumed rates of
disability, the assumed retirement ages of active employees, the assumed marital status at retirement, and the post-
employment life expectancies of retirees and beneficiaries, contributions to OCERS, inflation, and other factors.
All OCERS actuarial assumptions are subject to change at the direction of the Retirement Board. See “Recent
Changes to Actuarial Assumptions” below. Assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation
include:
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Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Inflation Rate 2.75% per annum

Cost of Living Adjustments 2.75% per annum

Real Across the Board Salary Increase  0.50%

Projected Salary Increases 4.25% to 12.25% for General Members; 4.75% to

17.25% for Safety Members based on Service

The valuation determines annual contribution requirements, which are expressed as a percentage of pay
for each benefit formula. Employer contribution rates are comprised of both normal cost and an amount to
amortize the outstanding balance of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (“UAAL”). The “normal cost”
represents the amount of contributions required to fund the cost associated to the current year of service, plus a
cost of living factor. Member employees also pay a normal contribution, based on formulas specified in the
Retirement Law. Additionally, certain bargaining agreements require employees to pay a portion of the UAAL
on behalf of the County.

The UAAL represents the amount by which the actuarial accrued liability (the present value of projected
future benefits earned by employees as of the respective valuation date) of OCERS exceeds the Actuarial Value
of Assets. The Actuarial Value of Assets means the market value of assets exclusive of the unrecognized gains
and losses from investment over the previous five years. The unrecognized return is equal to the difference
between the actual return and the assumed return on a market value basis. The difference each year is “smoothed”
by separately recognizing the difference in 20% increments over the subsequent five (5) years. The “smoothing”
technique is intended to recognize market value gains and losses over time to reduce volatility in resulting
contribution rates. The UAAL is owed to OCERS by all participating agencies, including the County, amortized
over a period of years and once a UAAL is determined, in order to calculate required contributions, OCERS uses
differing amortization periods for gains and losses depending upon the reason for such gain or loss.

In 2013, OCERS reset the UAAL amortization period combining and re-amortizing the entire outstanding
balance of the December 31, 2012 UAAL over a single 20-year period. Any future changes in UAAL due to
actuarial gains or losses or due to changes in assumptions or methods will be amortized over separate 20-year
periods. Any changes in plan amendments will be amortized over separate 15-year periods and any change in
UAAL due to early retirement incentive programs will be amortized over a separate period of up to 5 years.

December 31, 2017 Actuarial Valuation

OCERS’ December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation (the “2017 Valuation”) calculated UAAL as of
December 31, 2017 as $5.438 billion (County’s portion is approximately $4.4 billion), an increase of $607.819
million from OCERS’ December 31, 2016 valuation (the “2016 Valuation”). The primary contributing factor for
the UAAL increase were changes in actuarial assumptions, actual contributions being less than expected, and
other actuarial losses, offset somewhat by favorable investment return (after smoothing), lower than expected
salary increases, lower than expected COLA increases, and additional UAAL payments by pool participants. The
ratio of the Valuation Value of Assets (the Actuarial Value of Assets less certain non-valuation reserves) to
Actuarial Accrued Liabilities in the 2017 Valuation decreased to 72.30% from 73.06% in the 2016 Valuation.
The aggregate employer contribution rate has increased from 36.43% of payroll to 37.97% of payroll in the 2017
Valuation. For more information regarding the funding progress of OCERS, see table A-16 herein. The County
would begin making contribution payments attributable to the 2017 Valuation on July 1, 2019, although it has
been the County’s practice to prepay these contributions in January.
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Significant Changes to Actuarial Assumptions

On October 16, 2017, the Retirement Board voted to reduce the assumed investment rate of return from
7.25% to 7.00%, reduce the assumed inflation rate from 3.00% to 2.75% and implementation of generational
mortality tables (to acknowledge reduced rates of mortality). The estimated increase to OCERS” UAAL due to
the assumption changes is $822 million. The Retirement Board approved a three-year phase in of the cost of the
UAAL impact beginning in July 2019 and the cost impact on the normal cost are reflected in the 2017 Valuation.

OCERS?’ rate of return on an actuarial and market basis for the last ten years is shown in the following

table.
TABLE A-15
ORANGE COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM
INVESTMENT RETURNS
Actuarial Value Market Value
Year Ended December 31 Investment Return Investment Return
2008 4.23% (20.76)%
2009 3.60 17.32
2010 5.02 10.47
2011 3.28 0.04
2012 3.49 11.92
2013 9.11 10.73
2014 7.34 4.52
2015 5.26 (0.45)
2016 6.33 8.72
2017 7.44 14.79
5-Year Average Return 7.09 7.53
10-Year Average Return 5.49 5.16

Source: Orange County Employees Retirement System Actuarial Valuation and Review December 31, 2017.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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Table A-16 shows the funding progress for OCERS: the funding ratio and the ratio of UAAL to annual payroll.
OCERS’s Actuarial Value of Assets recognizes each year’s asset gains or losses over a five year period, one fifth per

year.
TABLE A-16
ORANGE COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
(Dollars in Thousands)
Total
Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Market Accrued Accrued Actuarial Market Projected Percentage of
Valuation Value of Value of Liability Liability Funded Funded Covered Projected
Dec. 31 Assets) Assets (AAL) (UAAL)® Ratio® Ratio® Payroll® Payroll®

2008 $7,748,380 $6,248,558 $10,860,715 $3,112,335 71.34% 59.45% $1,569,764 198.27%

2009 8,154,687 7,464,761 11,858,578 3,703,891 68.77 64.22 1,618,491 228.85

2010 8,672,592 8,357,835 12,425,873 3,753,281 69.79 68.92 1,579,239 237.66

2011 9,064,355 8,465,368 13,522,978 4,458,623 67.03 62.60 1,619,474 275.31

2012 9,469,208 9,566,659 15,144,888 5,675,680 62.52 63.17 1,609,600 352.55

2013 10,417,125 10,679,292 15,785,042 5,367,917 65.99 67.65 1,604,496 334.55

2014 11,449,911 11,428,133 16,413,124 4,963,213 69.76 69.63 1,648,160 301.14

2015 12,228,009 11,548,440 17,050,357 4,822,348 71.72 67.73 1,633,112 295.29

2016 13,102,978 12,657,330 17,933,461 4,830,483 73.06 70.58 1,759,831 274.49

20170 14,197,125 14,652,521 19,635,427 5,438,302 72.30 74.62 1,811,877 300.15

() The Actuarial Value of Assets exclude assets held in the Investment Account and prepaid employer contributions. See “County
General Fund Budget — Reserves™ herein.
@ Actuarial Accrued Liability minus Actuarial Value of Assets, County’s December 31, 2017 portion is approximately $4.4 billion.
3 Actuarial Value of Assets divided by Actuarial Accrued Liability.
& Market Value of Assets divided by Actuarial Accrued Liability.

) Annual payroll against which UAAL is amortized.

©®  UAAL divided by Covered Payroll.
@ Increase in UAAL in 2017 due to changes in assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 Actuarial Valuation including rate of
return and inflation rate reductions and the use of generational mortality tables.

Source: OCERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports and actuarial valuations.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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TABLE A-17

ORANGE COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM
CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

(In Thousands)
Years Ended December 31
2015 2016 2017

Contributions Received" $ 859,750 $ 870,318 $ 896,642
Net Investment Income (Loss) (12,700) 1,079,787 1,977,225
Net Securities Lending Income 1,051 1,227 1,646
Participant’s Benefits (697,661) (739,018) (786,498)
Withdrawals and Refunds (11,857) (13,643) (13,866)
Administrative Expenses (12,565) (16,914) (17,051)
Increases in Net Position

Restricted for Pension and OPEB $ 126,018 $ 1,181,757 $ 2,058,098

@ Includes employer and employee pension and retiree health care contributions to OCERS (See “Post Employment Health Care
Benefits” section herein for information regarding the Retiree Medical Trust held at OCERS).

Sources: OCERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports.

Table A-18 below shows the County’s required contributions and the percentage contributed for Fiscal
Years 2008-09 to 2017-18.

TABLE A-18
ORANGE COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

COUNTY CONTRIBUTIONS
(Dollars in Thousands)

Total Annual

Year Ended County Cash Investment Account Required Percentage
June 30 Contribution Contribution" Contribution Contributed
2009 $256,531 $36,500 $293,031 100%
2010 279,574 11,000 290,574 100
2011 296,084 11,000 307,084 100
2012 310,736 11,000 321,736 100
2013 328,953 0 328,953 100
2014 348,597 10,000 358,597 100
2015 371,810 0 371,810 100
2016 384,133 0 384,133 100
2017 405,493 0 405,493 100
2018 433,098 0 433,098 100

M See “County General Fund Budget — Reserves” herein.

Sources: Orange County Office of Auditor-Controller.
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The UAAL, the funded ratio, calculations of normal cost as reported by OCERS and the resulting amounts
of required contributions by the County are “forward looking” information. Such “forward looking” information
reflects the judgment of the Retirement Board and its actuaries as to the amount of assets which OCERS will be
required to accumulate to fund its liabilities for future benefits over the lives of the currently active employees,
vested terminated employees and existing retired employees. These judgments are based upon a variety of
assumptions, one or more of which may prove to be inaccurate or may be changed in the future.

For additional information, see Note 17 in the “Notes to the Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2017,” which appears in Appendix B of this Official Statement. Various reports for OCERS including
the OCERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report are posted from time to time on the OCERS’s website,
www.ocers.org. Such reports are not incorporated as part of this Official Statement.

Post-Employment Health Care Benefits

Plan Description. The County of Orange Third Amended Retirece Medical Plan (the “Retiree Medical
Plan”) is an Other Post Employment Benefit plan (“OPEB”), intended to assist career employees in maintaining
health insurance coverage following retirement from County service. The Retiree Medical Plan was established by
the Board of Supervisors. The Board of Supervisors is also the authority for amending the Retiree Medical Plan. The
Retiree Medical Plan is not required by the Retirement Law. Eligible retired County employees receive a monthly
grant (the “Grant”), which helps offset the cost of monthly County-offered health plans and/or Medicare A and/or
B premiums. The Retiree Medical Plan does not create any vested right to the benefits.

In order to be eligible to receive the Grant upon retirement, the employee must have completed at least
10 years of County service (although exceptions for disability retirements exist), be enrolled in a County sponsored
health plan and/or Medicare, qualify as a retiree as defined by the Retiree Medical Plan and receive a monthly
benefit payment from the OCERS. To qualify as a retiree as defined by the Retiree Medical Plan, the employee
upon retirement must be at least 50 years of age or have at least 20 years of service for a safety member of OCERS
or at least 30 years of service for a general member of OCERS.

The monthly Grant amount is determined by a formula that multiplies a base number by the number of
years of qualifying County employment up to a maximum of 25 years. The base number for calendar year 2017 is
$22.09 (absolute dollars) per year of County service, and the maximum monthly Grant is $552.25 (absolute dollars). The
amount of the Grant is netted against the monthly health plan premium and/or reimburses Medicare premiums
paid by the retiree for retiree and dependent coverage with the retiree obligated to pay the remaining balance. In
no case shall the Grant exceed the actual cost to a retiree for the Qualified Health Plan and Medicare premiums.

The Grant is reduced by 50% once the retiree becomes Medicare Parts A and B eligible. Retirees who
were age 65 and/or Medicare Parts A and B eligible on the date the Board of Supervisors approved the
restructuring of the Retiree Medical Plan for each labor agreement are not subject to the Medicare reduction. The
Grant is also reduced by 7.5% for each year of age prior to age 60 and increased by 7.5% for each year of age
after age 60 up to age 70 for current employees retiring after the effective date. The effective date varies by the
date the Board of Supervisors approved each labor agreement. Safety employees and disability retirements are
exempt from the age adjustment.

The base number for the Grant is adjusted annually based on a formula defined in the Retiree Medical
Plan document with a maximum increase/decrease of 3%. Surviving dependents of a deceased employee or retiree
eligible for the Grant are entitled to receive 50% of the Grant that the employee/retiree was eligible to receive.

The Retiree Medical Plan also provides a lump sum payment to terminated employees not eligible for the
Grant. The qualifying hours of service for calculation of the lump sum payment is frozen and the effective date
varies by labor agreement. The frozen lump sum payment is equal to 1% of the employee’s final average hourly
pay (as defined in the plan) multiplied by the employee’s qualifying hours of service (as defined) since the Retiree
Medical Plan’s effective date.
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Employees represented by the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees
(“AFSCME”) who retired before September 30, 2005 are not subject to the Medicare reduction or age adjustment
to the Grant. The amount of the Grant for these retirees is adjusted annually with a maximum increase/decrease
of 5%. AFSCME employees who were employed on or after September 30, 2005 are not eligible for the Grant or
the lump sum payment. They may participate in the County-offered health plans at their own cost if they meet
the minimum plan requirements.

Employees represented by the Association of Orange County Deputy Sheriffs (“AOCDS”) who were
hired on or after October 12, 2007 are not eligible to participate in the Retiree Medical Plan. Service hour accruals
for the Grant and lump sum calculations for employees represented by AOCDS who were hired before October
12,2007 were frozen. A Health Reimbursement Arrangement (“HRA”) plan was established to replace the Grant
for new (employed after October 12, 2007) AOCDS employees, and to supplement the frozen grants for current
AOCDS employees.

Employees represented by the Association of County Law Enforcement Managers (“ACLEM”) who were hired
on or after June 19, 2009 are not eligible for participation in the Retiree Medical Plan. Service hour accruals for
the Grant calculations for Law Enforcement Management employees who were hired before June 19, 2009 were
frozen. The qualifying hours of service for calculation of the lump sum payment for Law Enforcement
Management employees were frozen as of June 23, 2006. A health reimbursement arrangement Plan was
established to replace the Grant for new employees, and to supplement the frozen grants for current employees.

Employees represented by the Orange County Attorneys Association (“OCAA”) hired on or after July 8,
2016 are not eligible for participation in the Retiree Medical Plan. A Defined Contribution Plan, Health
Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) was established to replace the Grant or Lump Sum for all active OCAA
employees.

Effective January 1, 2008, health insurance premium rates were separated by active and retired employees
except for employees represented by AOCDS. Effective July 1, 2008, retiree health insurance premium rates for
retired employees enrolled in the AOCDS health plans will be 10% higher than active employees. See “Retired
Employees Association of Orange County, Inc. v. County of Orange” herein.

Funding Policy. Prior to Fiscal Year 2007-08, the County paid Retiree Medical Plan liabilities on a “pay-
as-you-go” basis from a combination of County contributions and certain excess reserves from OCERS. In order
to more adequately fund benefits under the Retiree Medical Plan, on June 19, 2007, the Board of Supervisors
adopted the County of Orange Retiree Medical Trust (the “115 Trust”) effective July 2, 2007. The 115 Trust is a
trust under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the County and OCERS have entered into
agreements for OCERS to establish an Internal Revenue Code Section 401(h) Trust (the “401(h) Trust”) and to
invest monies and pay benefits from the 401(h) Trust (except for the lump sum payment). The County has
deposited the full Annual Required Contribution (“ARC”) into the 401(h) Trust beginning in Fiscal Year 2007-
08 and intends to contribute the full ARC in future years. The costs to administer the Trust are paid from the Trust.

The County is currently contributing 0.3% for AFSCME, 0.4% for OCAA, 5.0% for AOCDS, 8.1% for law
enforcement management, 4.4% for the Probation Department safety personnel, and 3.9% of payroll for all other
labor groups, which is the ARC for those groups. Additionally, effective July 10, 2015, contributions by employees
represented by AOCDS and ACLEM hired before April 4, 2009 were reduced from 2.6% to 1.6% of base, while
employees hired on or after April 4, 2009 were reduced from 1% to 0%.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. The County contracts with an outside actuarial consultant, Bartel
Associates, LLC (“Bartel”), to prepare the bi-annual actuarial valuation in conformance with GASB Statements
No. 43 and 45. The County received a June 30, 2017 valuation for Fiscal Years 2018-19 and 2019-20 for the
Retiree Medical Plan. Among the actuarial methods and assumptions used in the 2017 valuation are:

The entry age normal actuarial cost method.

Closed period amortization of the June 30, 2008 UAAL over 29 years as a level percentage of payroll
(20 years remaining as of June 30, 2018).

A 7.00% long-term expected rate of return on funds held in the Trust.

A 3.25% per annum payroll increase assumption.

A 2.75% per annum general inflation rate assumption.

The assumed annual increases in the monthly Grant of 5% for American Federation of State, County
and Municipal Employees (“AFSCME”) employees and 3% for non-AFSCME employees. The
healthcare trend (the growth in healthcare costs) was assumed to be greater than or equal to the Grant
through 2021 and beyond. Therefore, healthcare trend rates have little impact on the projected benefits
and UAAL due to the 3% (or 5% for AFSCME) cap on Grant annual increase.

There are an estimated 26,494 participants in the plan of which 18,162 are employees, 31 are deferred
retirees, and 8,301 are retirees.

The 2017 valuation reports a UAAL of $406.7 million for the Retiree Medical Plan for the Fiscal Year
ended June 30, 2017. This is a reduction from the $1.4 billion UAAL reported in the 2005 valuation. The
reduction in UAAL is due to the restructuring of the Retiree Medical Plan benefits, including but not limited to
splitting of active employees and retirees into separate pools for premium rate setting purposes and the
establishment of the 401(h) Trust to achieve a higher rate of return on assets.

TABLE A-19

ORANGE COUNTY RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

(Dollars in Thousands)
UAAL as
Unfunded a
Actuarial Actuarial Percentage
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Accrued Annual of
Valuation Value of Liability Liability Funded Covered Covered
as of Plan Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
June 30D (a) (b) (b-a=c) (a/b) (d) (c/d)
2009 $94,110 $456,005 $361,895 20.6% $1,267,427 28.6%
2011 116,804 528,639 411,835 22.1 1,273,636 323
2013 155,702 573,763 418,061 27.1 1,217,052 344
2015 217,556 614,500 396,944 354 1,188,727 334
2017 273,936 680,652 406,716 40.2 1,277,714 31.8

(M Valuation reports are received every other year.

Source: 2009 through 2015, Orange County Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports. 2017, actuary valuation.
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Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation/Asset. The Annual OPEB cost is the OPEB expense that
the County reports in its annual financial statements. It equals the ARC with certain adjustments if the County’s
actual contributions differ from the ARC in prior years. The net OPEB obligation/asset is the cumulative sum of
the difference between Annual OPEB cost and the amounts actually contributed to the plan. The following table
shows the calculation of the net OPEB asset for Fiscal Years 2012-13 through 2016-17.

TABLE A-20

ORANGE COUNTY RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN
CALCULATION OF OPEB ASSET

(In Thousands)
2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
Annual Required Contribution $ 42,713 $ 43,298 $ 44921 $ 44368 $ 45921
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation (2,608) (3,030) (3,043) (3,470) (3,456)
Amortization of Net OPEB Obligation 2,392 2,868 2,976 3,541 3,666
Annual OPEB Cost 42,497 43,136 44 854 44,439 46,122
Contributions Made (48,336) (50,060) (41,181) (42,490) (47,853)
Decrease/(Increase) in Net OPEB Asset (5,839) (6,924) 3,673 1,949 (1,731)
Net OPEB Obligation/(Asset), Beginning of year (35,966) (41,805) (48,729) (45,056) (43,107)
Net OPEB Obligation/(Asset), End of year $ (41,805) $ (48,729) $(45,056)  $(43,107) $(44,838)

Sources: Orange County Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports dated June 30, 2013 through June 30, 2017.

Certain changes to the Retiree Medical Plan and the methodology by which a retiree health plan premiums are
determined are being judicially challenged by a class action of County retirees. See “Litigation Management -
Gaylan Harris, et al. v. County of Orange” herein.

Insurance

The County has maintained a formal risk management program since the mid 1970’s. The functions of
CEO Risk Management include risk identification, avoidance, prevention, transfer, mitigation and financing
programs. Risk financing is achieved through both self-insurance (risk retention) programs and the purchase of
commercial insurance. Claims and litigation management also includes subrogation cost recovery activities.

Resources are budgeted in the Workers’ Compensation Internal Service Fund and the Property and
Casualty Risk Internal Service Fund. These internal service funds pay program costs including losses, expenses
and administration costs. The cash reserves held in these internal services funds are retained for the payment of
current and future costs. Actuarial studies are performed annually to determine the funding requirements for these
activities.

Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for the County’s property and for certain specialized liability
exposures, including those related to airport, aircraft and watercraft operations. Additional coverages include but
are not limited to earthquake, crime policies, cyber liability, notary bonds, and excess insurance for liability
exposures. General and auto liability exposures are self-insured up to $5 million. Excess liability insurance
provides up to an additional $100 million in liability coverage. Workers” Compensation is self-insured up to $20
million. Various risk control techniques, including employee accident prevention training and regular work-site
inspections, have been established to minimize losses.
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Litigation Management

The Office of County Counsel generally represents the County’s interests in lawsuits involving actions of
the Board of Supervisors, County employees or agents of the County. These actions include employment,
environmental and land use, contractual obligations, inverse condemnation and property tax refunds. Legal
matters controlled by the CEO’s Office of Risk Management are assigned to a panel of lawyers and law firms
selected by the Board of Supervisors following a recommendation by the Office of Risk Management. There are
a number of lawsuits pending against the County which, depending on their outcome, may have financial impacts
on the County. The County believes however, that the aggregate liability it might incur as a result of adverse
decisions in such cases will not have a material adverse effect on the County’s ability to make Base Rental
Payments in amounts sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as described in this Official
Statement.

Retired Employees Association of Orange County, Inc. v. County of Orange

In late 2006, the Board of Supervisors approved agreements with a number of employee bargaining units
addressing the County’s Retiree Medical program. These changes included, but were not limited to, separately
pooling current employees and retirees for the purposes of health premium setting beginning in 2008, reducing
the maximum annual adjustment in the program’s Grant to 3% beginning in 2008, and reducing the Grant by 50%
for retirees eligible for Medicare no sooner than late 2007.

On November 5, 2007, the Retired Employee’s Association of Orange County (“REAOC”) filed a
complaint in the United States District Court for the Central District of California contesting the splitting of the
pool for purposes of determining health insurance premiums.

On August 13, 2012, the District Court granted summary judgment in favor of the County. On February
13, 2014, the Ninth Circuit affirmed the District Court’s decision, effective April 9, 2014, and the case was
dismissed. The Ninth Circuit’s ruling became final on June 30, 2014.

Gaylan Harris, et al. v. County of Orange

This case was filed as a class action on behalf of County retirees on January 22, 2009 by a retired
employee. The issues and claims in Harris are, for the most part, similar to those raised in the REAOC matter
described above. Harris includes the claims raised in REAOC and, in addition, seeks monetary damages for
alleged lost benefits, challenges changes to the Retiree Medical Grant program, which is a monthly premium
subsidy, and asserts that splitting the pool violated the age-discrimination provisions of California’s Fair
Employment and Housing Act.

In June 2013, the Court entered a judgment in the County’s favor. Plaintiffs appealed the Court’s decision
to the Ninth Circuit. Oral argument was heard in February 2014. The Clerk estimated that a decision would be
rendered by December 4, 2017. However, Judge Pregerson, who was on the Ninth Circuit panel, passed away in
November, 2017 and a reconstituted panel issued a decision on September 5, 2018. The panel upheld the District
Court’s judgment dismissing the allegations of age-discrimination as well as the class-wide challenge to the
County’s action to de-pool its health insurance group. The matter was remanded to the District Court but only to
consider contractual claims limited to the Retiree Medical Grant benefit. Plaintiffs filed a petition for rehearing
to the Ninth Circuit panel which was denied on October 24, 2018.

Orange County Catholic Worker et al. v. Orange County et al.
On January 29, 2018, the Orange County Catholic Workers and seven homeless individuals (“Plaintiffs™)
filed a complaint in federal court against the County, and the cities of Anaheim, Costa Mesa and Orange

(“Defendants”), asking the Court to enjoin Defendants from enforcing any ordinances or statutes that prevent
trespassing or camping in the Santa Ana Riverbed because the Defendants failed to provide reasonable alternative
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housing. On February 6, 2018, Judge David O. Carter granted the Plaintiffs’ request for a temporary restraining
order and commenced proceedings the next week. Judge Carter lifted the restraining order on February 20, 2018,
when the parties reached an agreement that temporarily addressed the Plaintiffs’ concerns.

On March 15, 2018, the City of Santa Ana filed an ex parte application for leave to intervene as a
defendant in the action, which was granted by the Court. On April 26, 2018, the City of Santa Ana filed a Cross-
Complaint against the County and all cities in the County, claiming that the City of Santa Ana has been
disproportionally burdened by the homeless population and had incurred expenses. To date, only the County,
and none of the named cities, has been officially served with the Cross-Complaint.

On July 26, 2018, the Defendants were served a First Amended Complaint (“FAC”). The FAC added a
new plaintiff who seeks to represent a class of individuals who had lived in the Santa Ana Riverbed or the Santa
Ana Civic Center in 2018 and allegedly had been harmed by the Defendants because of their status as homeless
persons. The new plaintiff also seeks to represent a group who suffer from a serious and persistent mental illness
and were removed from a named full service partnership program. Plaintiffs estimate that the members of the
class, if approved by the court, will exceed 1,500 people. The FAC also alleges that the recent seasonal closure
of the armories in the County has resulted in further harm to homeless persons. The FAC added additional causes
of action for violations under the U.S. Constitution and federal and state housing and disability laws.

In the FAC, Plaintiffs seek monetary damages in an unspecified amount plus attorneys’ fees and orders
enjoining the Defendants from removing Plaintiffs from specified programs and placements without due process
of law. Plaintiffs request that the Defendants be prevented from enforcing their anti-camping and loitering
ordinances and be required to set up locations where Plaintiffs may access services. Plaintiffs ask for an order
enjoining the issuance of all development permits in the Defendants’ jurisdictions, until compliance with the
Housing Accountability Act is met. It is too premature to predict what financial liability, if any, Defendants might
incur in this litigation.

The parties are in settlement negotiations and the County currently has an open extension of time to
respond to the FAC. The parties and cities in the County have discussed building additional homeless shelters
and housing to settle the litigation. The City of Santa Ana has begun construction of a 200 bed shelter. The 13
cities from North Orange County, Anaheim and Tustin are all planning on opening shelters. The County may
agree to contribute to or participate in the construction of these or other additional shelters or housing, but does
not believe that the General Fund will be meaningfully impacted because the County would likely use state
funds dedicated to low-income housing and mental health treatment to fund this housing and related services. If
the case does not settle, the parties will engage in discovery and start preparing for trial.

Ramirez et al. v. The County of Orange

On February 7, 2018 the People’s Homeless task force and seven allegedly disabled homeless individuals
(“Plaintiffs””) brought action in federal court claiming the County violated the United States and California
Constitutions, the American with Disabilities Act and the Civil Rights Act because the Plaintiffs were removed
from the Santa Ana Riverbed without reasonable alternative housing. This case has been deemed related to the
OC Catholic Worker case. On March 26, 2018, Plaintiffs amended their complaint to include additional violations
of federal and state disability and housing laws.

Plaintiffs seek monetary damages in an unspecified amount, attorney’s fees, declaratory and injunctive
relief. This case is also in settlement negotiations along with the OC Catholic Worker Case. It is too premature
to predict liability at this stage. In light of the settlement negotiations, the County has an open extension to respond
to the FAC. If the case does not settle, the parties will engage in discovery and start preparing for trial.
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People for the Ethical Operation of Prosecutors and Law Enforcement
(P.E.O.P.L.E)), et al. v. Rackauckas, et al.

On April 13,2018, plaintiffs P.E.O.P.L.E. (a purported association of Orange County residents) and three
individuals (collectively “Plaintiffs”) filed suit in state court against District Attorney Anthony J. Rackauckas and
Orange County Sheriff Sandra Hutchens (“Defendants”). Plaintiffs are represented by offices of the American
Civil Liberties Union (“ACLU”) and the law firm of Munger, Tolles & Olson. The Complaint arose out of two
high-profile murder cases, People v. Scott Dekraai and People v. Wozniak, and alleges that the Defendants ran an
illegal jailhouse informant program that caused civil rights violations under both the U.S. and California
Constitutions.

Plaintiffs do not seek monetary damages, but rather, only prospective relief such as a declaratory
judgment, permanent injunctions and writs of mandate; they have requested attorney fees and the appointment of
a monitor, which, if Plaintiffs prevail, could result in costs to the County parties.

Heritage Fields El Toro, LLC v. County of Orange
Sacramento Superior Court Case

City of Irvine v. County of Orange
Sacramento Superior Court Case

These matters arise out of the County’s November 14, 2017 approval of the El Toro 100-Acre Parcel
Development Plan Project and related EIR certification. The Development Plan is an administrative framework
for a proposed mixed used development of County property within the political boundaries of the City of Irvine. In
December 2017, the County was served with separate Complaints and Petitions for Writ of Mandamus from the
City of Irvine (“Irvine”) and Heritage Fields El Toro, LLC (“Heritage Fields”) seeking to halt the County’s
development of the property as proposed. Lowe Enterprises Real Estate Group is named as the real party in
interest. Compensatory and punitive damages and attorney fees are also sought in an unspecified amount.

Both actions have been transferred to Sacramento County Superior Court, and are currently pending
before Judge Allen Sumner. Both Heritage Fields and Irvine have filed Government Claims, with the latter
asserting significant damages. Assessment of liability is premature, as litigation is still in early stages, the County
has not commenced development, and any claim of damages is subject to proof at trial. Further, should the County
decide not to pursue development, or to pursue other uses for the property, to the extent there exists potential
liability for damages, that liability could be significantly reduced or eliminated.

City of Irvine v. County of Orange
Orange County Superior Court

On July 5, 2018, the City of Irvine (“Irvine”) filed and subsequently served on the County a Petition
for Writ of Mandate and Complaint regarding the June 5, 2018 approval of the West Alton Parcel Development
Plan project. Lowe Enterprises Real Estate Group is named as the real party in interest.

Irvine seeks a writ of mandate for CEQA violations, declaratory and injunctive relief, damages, in an
unspecified amount, for breach of contract, litigation costs, and attorneys’ fees. After filing its lawsuit, the City
of Irvine filed a Government Claim asserting significant damages. Assessment of liability is premature, as
litigation is still in early stages, the County has not commenced development, and any claim of damages is subject
to proof at trial. Further, should the County decide not to pursue development, or to pursue other uses for the
property, to the extent there exists potential liability for damages, that liability could be significantly reduced or
eliminated.
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COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY

The Treasurer is granted the authority to deposit and invest County and County agency funds under the
Treasurer’s control pursuant to California Government Code Section 27000 et seq. and Section 53600 et seq. and
certain actions of the Board of Supervisors. Additionally, community college and school districts located in the
County are required to deposit their moneys with the Treasurer pursuant to the California Education Code. The
deposits of funds from other districts and local agencies may be invested with the Treasurer pursuant to a
procedure established by California Government Code Section 53684 and other statutory provisions.

The total investment responsibility of the Treasurer as delegated by the Board of Supervisors includes:
the Orange County Investment Pool (the “County Pool”) that includes the Voluntary participants’ funds, the
Orange County Educational Investment Pool (the “Educational Pool”), the John Wayne Airport Investment Fund,
and various other small non-Pooled investment funds. The investment practices and policies of the Treasurer are
based on compliance with State law and prudent money management. The primary goal is to invest public funds
in a manner which will provide maximum security of principal invested with secondary emphasis on providing
adequate liquidity to Pool Participants and lastly to achieve a market rate of return within the parameters of prudent
risk management while conforming to all applicable statutes and resolutions governing the investment of public
funds.

The Treasurer established three Money Market Funds: the Orange County Money Market Fund, the
Orange County Educational Money Market Fund, and the John Wayne Airport Investment Fund, which all are
invested in cash-equivalent securities and provide liquidity for immediate cash needs. On March 6, 2017,
Standard & Poor’s reaffirmed their highest rating of AAAm Principal Stability Fund Ratings for the Orange
County Money Market Fund and Orange County Educational Money Market Fund. These pools are not registered
with the SEC. The Treasurer also established the Extended Fund, which is for cash needs between one and five
years. The County Pool is comprised of the Orange County Money Market Fund and portions of the Extended
Fund. The Educational Pool is comprised of the Orange County Educational Money Market Fund and portions
of the Extended Fund. The Board of Supervisors approved the 2018 Investment Policy Statement on November
14, 2017. A copy of the 2018 Investment Policy Statement (“IPS”) is located at ocgov.com/ocinvestments.

The maximum maturity of any investment in the Orange County Money Market Fund and the Orange County
Educational Money Market Fund is 13 months, with a maximum weighted average maturity of 60 days. The
maximum maturity of any investment in the John Wayne Airport Investment Fund is 15 months, with a maximum
weighted average maturity of 90 days. The maximum maturity of the Extended Fund is 5 years, with an effective
duration not to exceed that of a leading 1-3 year index +25%. The investments in the pools are marked to market
daily to determine the value of the pools. To further maintain safety, adherence to an investment strategy of
purchasing only top-rated securities and diversification and maturities, as well as maintenance of internal controls
for proper accounting and reporting, compliance, document safekeeping, collateralization, and qualified broker-
dealers is required.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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TABLE A-21

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS

Orange County IPS

CA Gov Code Maximum Final Orange County IPS
o,
Type of Investment oA g'ol;]u(ljl(()](:e * Orange County IPS Maximum Maturity (All Maximum Final
¥p Permitted 8 ty Final Pooled Funds Maturity (Short-
Maturity Except Short-Term Term Fund)
Funds)
U.S. Treasury Securities 100% 100% 5 Years 5 Years 397 Days
100% Total, no more than
U.S. Government o) >, .
Agency Securities 100% >0% 10 one 1ssuer excluding 5 Years 5 Years 397 Days
(GSEs) securities with final

maturities of 30 days or less

30% Total, no more than
Municipal Debt 100% 5% in one issuer except 5 Years 5 Years 397 Days
10% - County of Orange

30% Total, no more than

Medium-Term Notes 30% o) : . 5 Years 3 Years 397 Days
5% in one issuer
0, 0, 0,
Bankers Acceptances 40.%’ 30.A) ofa 4004 Total,. no more than 180 Days 180 Days 180 Days
single issuer 5% in one issuer
0, 0, 0,
Commercial Paper 40.%’ IO.A) ofa 4004 Total,. no more than 270 Days 270 Days 270 Days
single issuer 5% in one issuer
. . o
Negotlab!e Certificates 30% 300A> Total,. no more than 5 Vears 3 Years 397 Days
of Deposits 5% in one issuer
State of California Local $65 million per
Agency Investment P $65 million per pool N/A N/A N/A
Fund account
0,
Repurchase Agreements 100% 20% Total, 110 more than 1 Year 1 Year 1 Year
10% in one issuer
Money Market Mutual 20% 20% Total N/A N/A N/A
0,
Investment Pools 100% 20% Total, no more than N/A N/A N/A
10% in one pool
0,
Supranationals 30% 30% Total, no more than 5 Years 5 Years 397 Days

5% in one issuer

Source: Orange County Treasurer-Tax Collector.

The IPS expressly prohibits leverage, reverse repurchase agreements, structured notes, structured
investment vehicles (“SIV”), or any investment commonly considered a derivative instrument or any Money
Market Mutual Funds that do not maintain a constant Net Asset Value (“NAV”). Examples of structured notes
include inverse floaters, leveraged floaters, structured certificates of deposit, and equity-linked securities. This
includes all floating rate, adjustable rate, or variable rate securities in which a change in interest rates or other
variables that can reasonably be foreseen to occur during their term would result in their market value not returning
to par at the time of each interest rate adjustment.
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Rating Restrictions

e All short-term debt purchased within the money market funds shall have a rating of A-1/P-1/F1 or better
from any two of the Nationally Recognized Statistical Ratings Organizations (“NRSRO”) and not less
than the aforementioned. Split ratings are not allowed, i.e. A-1/P-1/F2 or similar. An issuer of short-term
debt must have no less than an “A” rating on long-term debt, if any.

e All long-term debt purchased within the money market funds or with remaining maturities of 397 days or
less shall be rated by at least two NRSROs and have obtained no less than an “A” rating by any. All long-
term debt purchased in the Extended Fund with maturities longer than 397 days shall be rated by at least
two NRSROs and have obtained no less than an “AA” rating by any. If any issuer of long-term debt has
a short-term rating, then it may not be less than A-1/SP-1 or P-1/MIG1 or F1 and should be rated by two
NRSRO:s.

e [ssuing Municipalities must have a short-term rating of not less than A1/P1 and a long-term rating of not
less than an “A” from the NRSROs, and two NRSRO ratings of “A” or better are required unless they
have a single NRSRO rating of AA-/AA3 or better.

e U.S. Government obligations as defined in Table A-21 above are exempt from the aforementioned credit
ratings requirements.

e Municipal debt issued by the County of Orange is exempt from the credit rating requirements listed above.
e Supranational securities eligible for investment shall be rated “AA” or better from at least two NRSROs.

e Any issuer that has been placed on “Credit Watch-Negative” by a NRSRO will be placed on hold and
current holdings reviewed for possible sale within a reasonable period of time unless the issuer has (a) an
A-1+ or F1+ short term rating; or (b) at least an AA or Aa2 long-term rating and also approved in writing
by the Treasurer prior to purchase. If any issuer is placed on “Credit Watch-Negative” by a NRSRO, all
related entities, including parent and subsidiaries, will also be placed on hold and subject to the above
requirements.

On December 19, 1995, pursuant to the Government Code, the Board of Supervisors established the
Treasury Oversight Committee. The Treasurer nominates and the Board of Supervisors confirms the public
members of the Treasury Oversight Committee, which is currently comprised of the CEO, the Auditor-Controller,
the County Superintendent of Schools and four public members, a majority of which is required to have expertise
in public finance.

Pursuant to the IPS, monthly, quarterly, and annual reports (in compliance with Government Code
Sections 53607, 53646, and 27134) will be submitted to the Treasury Oversight Committee, the Pool Participants,
the CEOQ, the Director of Auditor-Controller Internal Audit, the Auditor-Controller, and the Board of Supervisors.
These reports will contain sufficient information to permit an informed outside reader to evaluate the performance
of the investment program and will be in compliance with Government Code. In accordance with GASB 31 and
GASB 40, financial information is reported within the County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The
annual audit report of the Treasury will be provided as required by California Government Code Section 26920-
26923. In addition, an annual compliance audit is conducted as required by California Code Section 27134. Daily
compliance of the investment portfolio is performed by the Compliance Unit in the Office of the Treasurer Tax
Collector.
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In addition to the above reports, the Auditor-Controller, at the request of the Treasury Oversight
Committee, conducts quarterly compliance monitoring of the Treasurer’s investment portfolio. The purpose of
the Auditor-Controller’s monitoring is to determine whether the County’s investment portfolio managed by the
Treasurer is in compliance with certain provisions specified in the IPS and that all portfolio non-compliance,
including technical incidents and required diversification disclosures, are properly reported in the Treasurer’s
Monthly Investment report.

As of June 30, 2018, the market value of the County Pool was $4,018,864,086. The diversification of the
County Pool’s assets as of June 30, 2018 is shown in the following table.

Type of Investment % of County Pool
U.S. Government Agencies 54.02%
U.S. Treasuries 27.24
Local Agency Investment Fund 0.80
Medium-Term Notes 8.46
Money Market Mutual Funds 242
Municipal Debt" 4.62
Certificates of Deposit 2.44

@ TIncludes $185,696,876 of County’s Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds, 2018 Series A (market value)

Source: Orange County Treasurer-Tax Collector.

The weighted average maturity of the County Pool was 350 days. The current year-to-date gross interest yield of
the County Pool at June 30, 2018 is 1.28%.

Amendments to the County Investment Policy

There are proposed from time to time, the State Legislature other bills which could modify the currently
authorized investments and place restrictions on the ability of public agencies, including the County, to invest in
various securities. Therefore, there can be no assurances that the investments in the Pools will not vary
significantly from the investments described herein or as authorized by Section 53601 of the California
Government Code. There can be no assurance that State law and/or the IPS will not be amended in the future to
allow for investments which are currently not permitted under such State law or the IPS, or that the objectives of
the County with respect to investments will not change.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
Population
Growth 2007-2016. The County is the third most populous county in the State and the sixth most
populous in the nation. During the period 2008 through 2017, the population of the County increased by
approximately 7.9%, compared to 8.0% for the State and 7.1% for the United States.
TABLE A-22

COUNTY OF ORANGE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND
UNITED STATES POPULATION GROWTH

Date County State United States
2008 2,957,593 36,604,337 304,093,966
2009 2,987,177 36,961,229 306,771,529
2010 3,017,116 37,327,690 309,338,421
2011 3,053,465 37,672,654 311,644,280
2012 3,085,386 38,019,006 313,993,272
2013 3,113,649 38,347,383 316,234,505
2014 3,136,750 38,701,278 318,622,525
2015 3,160,576 39,032,444 321,039,839
2016 3,177,703 39,296,476 323,405,935
2017 3,190,400 39,536,653 325,719,178

Sources: U.S. Census Bureau statistics, May 2018.

Projected Growth Through 2060. Table A-23 includes population projections for the County, the State
and the United States. The County is expected to have growth rates lower than both the State of California and
national levels between 2020 and 2060, 12.8%, 25.4% and 21.4% respectively.

TABLE A-23

COUNTY OF ORANGE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND
UNITED STATES POPULATION PROJECTIONS

Year County State United States
2020 3,206,012 40,639,392 332,555,000
2030 3,433,510 43,939,250 354,840,000
2040 3,558,071 46,804,202 373,121,000
2050 3,615,935 49,077,801 388,335,000
2060 3,616,576 50,975,904 403,697,000

Sources: Orange County and State Projections — California State Department of Finance, January 2018. United States Projections —
Census Bureau, March 2018.

Public Schools (Elementary and Secondary)
Public instruction in the County is provided by twelve elementary school districts, three high school
districts, and fourteen unified (combined elementary and high school) districts. For 2017-18, the largest district,

the Capistrano Unified District, had 53,622 students enrolled. Public school enrollment for the period 2012-13
through 2017-18 is presented in Table A-24.
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TABLE A-24

COUNTY OF ORANGE
PUBLIC SCHOOL ENROLLMENT
Grade Levels 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18
Total Enrollment K-12 501,801 500,487 497,116 493,030 490,430 485,835

Source: California Department of Education, DataQuest Reports.
Colleges and Universities

The County has a number of top-rated, college-level educational institutions, including the University of
California at Irvine, the California State University at Fullerton, several private colleges, universities and law
schools and four community college districts.

Employment

The following table summarizes the historical numbers of workers in the County since 2012.

TABLE A-25
COUNTY OF ORANGE
ESTIMATED WAGE AND SALARY WORKERS BY INDUSTRY"
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Agricultural 2,800 2,900 2,800 2,400 2,400 2,200
Mining & Logging 600 600 700 600 600 700
Construction 72,900 78,400 83,100 91,700 97,400 101,700
Manufacturing (Durable & Nondurable) 158,300 158,000 157,400 157,000 157,000 158,600
Trade, Transportation and Utilities 249,200 252,400 255,800 259,200 260,500 263,000
Information (Telecom & Publishing) 24,300 25,000 24,500 25,500 26,400 27,300
Finance, Insurance & Real Estate 108,300 113,100 113,600 116,100 117,600 119,000
Services (Professional, Health, Ed. Etc.) 662,800 686,700 709,200 738,100 765,300 785,800
Government 147,900 148,700 152,200 156,400 159,600 160,500
Total All Industries 1,427,100 1,465,800 1,499,300 1,547,000 1,586,800 1,618,800

*  Does not include proprietors, self-employed, unpaid volunteers or family workers, domestic workers in households, and persons
involved in labor/management trade disputes. Employment reported by place of work. Items may not add to totals due to
independent rounding.

Source: California Employment Development Department.
Agriculture

Although representing a small percentage of the jobs in the County, agriculture remains an important
sector of the County’s economy. The total gross freight on board (f.0.b.) value of County agricultural products
decreased by 1.4% to $113,237,000 in 2017 relative to 2016. The f.o.b. is an indicator of the first point of sale
for a farmer and includes cost of production, harvesting and preparation for market. A five-year summary of farm
production in the County is provided in Table A-26.
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TABLE A-26

COUNTY OF ORANGE
GROSS VALUE OF FARM PRODUCTION

Production Type 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Animal Industry $396,010 $195,000 $184,000 $887,000 $2,094,000
Field Products 425,653 551,000 874,000 732,000 1,187,000
Nursery 73,567,293 67,242,000 63,961,000 55,685,000 61,670,000
Orchards 40,984,835 45,473,000 40,268,000 38,344,000 33,935,000
Vegetables 21,665,539 18,792,000 20,189,000 19,147,000 14,351,000
Total $137,039,330  $132,253,000  $125,476,000  $114,795,000  $113,237,000

Source: Orange County Agricultural Commissioner, Annual Orange County Crop Reports.
Labor Force, Employment and Unemployment

The following table summarizes the labor force, employment, and unemployment figures over the period
2010 through 2017 for the County and the State.
TABLE A-27

COUNTY OF ORANGE AND STATE OF CALIFORNIA
LABOR FORCE, EMPLOYMENT AND UNEMPLOYMENT

YEARLY AVERAGE
Civilian
Civilian Labor Civilian Civilian Unemployment

Year and Area Force Employment Unemployment Rate
2010

Orange County 1,537,200 1,387,400 149,700 9.7%

California 18,336,300 16,091,900 2,244,300 12.2
2011

Orange County 1,546,400 1,406,400 140,000 9.1

California 18,415,100 16,258,100 2,157,000 11.7
2012

Orange County 1,562,100 1,439,300 122,900 7.9

California 18,523,800 16,602,700 1,921,100 10.4
2013

Orange County 1,565,300 1,462,300 103,100 6.6

California 18,625,000 16,958,400 1,666,600 8.9
2014

Orange County 1,572,700 1,486,400 86,300 5.5

California 18,758,400 17,351,300 1,407,100 7.5
2015

Orange County 1,588,800 1,517,800 70,900 4.5

California 18,896,500 17,724,800 1,171,700 6.2
2016

Orange County 1,602,500 1,537,700 64,800 4.0

California 19,093,700 18,048,800 1,044,800 5.5
2017

Orange County 1,618,800 1,561,700 57,000 3.5

California 19,311,700 18,387,800 923,900 4.8

Source: California Employment Development Department. Data not seasonally adjusted. March 2017 Benchmark, data as of March 2018.
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Taxable Sales
Table A-28 summarizes the annual volume of taxable transactions since 2012.
TABLE A-28

COUNTY OF ORANGE
TAXABLE TRANSACTIONS®

(In Millions)
Type of Business 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018®
General Merchandising and Clothing $8,933 $9,150 $8,836 $8,892 $9,089 $9,342
All Food and Drink 8,298 8,814 9,636 10,020 10,230 10,524
Motor Vehicles and Parts 7,148 7,766 8,353 8,649 8,915 9,063
Service Stations 4,707 4,675 3,768 3,347 3,552 3,838
All Other 28,506 29,693 30,766 31,604 32,220 32,871
Total Taxable Sales $57,591 $60,097 $61,358 $62,511 $64,006 $65,639

(@ May not add due to rounding
@ 2018 reflects year-end forecast.

Source: The Chapman University Economic & Business Review, June 2018.

Housing Characteristics

The total number of housing units in the County was estimated by the California State Department of
Finance to be 1,094,169 as of January 1, 2018. This compares to 969,484 reported in 2000 and 875,105 in 1990.
According to CoreLogic the May 2018 median home price in the County was $740,000 as compared to the
$537,450 for the six Southern California Counties combined. Since 2011, the median home price in the County
has grown more than 50%.

Building Permits

The total valuation of residential building permits issued in the County is projected to exceed $3.9 billion
in 2018 and was $3.3 billion in 2017. Table A-29 provides a summary of residential building permit valuations
in the County during the period 2013 through 2018.

TABLE A-29

COUNTY OF ORANGE
RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT VALUATIONS

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018M
Permit Valuation
Residential* $2,654 $ 2,640 $2,834 $ 3,160 $ 3,321 $ 3,908
Nonresidential* 1,521 1,993 2,196 2,487 2,284 2,787

2018 reflects year-end forecast.
* Permit valuations are in millions

Source: The Chapman University Economic & Business Review, June 2018.
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Water Supply

Maintaining the County’s water supply is the responsibility of the Orange County Water District, manager
of the County’s groundwater basin, and the Municipal Water District of Orange County, the County’s largest
manager of imported water. Approximately 75% of the County’s water is from local groundwater sources; the
rest is imported. The County’s natural underground reservoir is sufficient to carry it through temporary shortfall
periods, but local supplies alone cannot sustain the present population.

Clean Water Compliance

The federal Clean Water Act (“CWA”) was adopted to restore the physical, chemical, and biological integrity
of the nation’s waters by, among other requirements, establishing water quality standards. The states are required to
evaluate the quality of their jurisdictional waters against these water quality standards periodically. Failure to meet
standards results in a finding that a water body is impaired, which requires development of a Total Maximum Daily
Load (“TMDL”) for every pollutant contributing to impairment. A TMDL establishes the maximum amount of a
pollutant that a water body can receive and still achieve water quality standards under the CWA.

The CWA made it unlawful to discharge anything except clean rainwater into the waters of the United States
without a permit from the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (“NPDES”), which was also established
by CWA. In California, nine California Regional Water Quality Boards (“Regional Boards™) issue NPDES permits,
with approval by the California State Water Resources Control Board and the US Environmental Protection Agency
(“EPA”). Municipal separate storm sewer systems (“MS4”) are required to have MS4 NPDES permits. The County and
local cities are under the jurisdiction of two MS4 permits. The County serves as lead permittee for both permits and the
cities are co-permittees. Jurisdictions in the northern portion of the County are subject to the Santa Ana Regional Board
MS4 NPDES permit, while jurisdictions in the south are subject to the San Diego Regional Board MS4 NPDES permit.

The MS4 NPDES permits have numerous requirements with which the County must comply, including
compliance monitoring of water quality, reporting, and implementation actions to reduce pollutants in the MS4
discharges. Although unlikely to occur, the applicable water boards are able to assess administrative fines of up to
$10,000 per day of violation. In addition, the CWA allows any citizen to sue for non-compliance and therefore the
County could be exposed to litigation by third parties.

The newest MS4 NPDES permits will have new requirements for comprehensive plans to address water quality
in the County. The MS4 NPDES permits renewal process is several years behind schedule and the applicable watershed
management plans are still in development. Thus, the capital projects required for water quality improvement are not
yet known, and as a result, it is not possible to estimate the implementation costs with any reasonable specificity.
However, the costs of such capital projects could be very significant over time.

The County is employing a multi-faceted strategy to comply with the MS4 NPDES permit requirements and
reduce the estimated costs to implement the watershed management plans. The County works closely with the
applicable Regional Boards to evaluate monitoring data and implement special studies to help identify the causes of
water quality impairments, which in turn may lead to amendments to water quality regulations and reductions in
implementation costs. In this way, the County can focus its resources on improvements that are likely to have greater
benefits to water quality. The County also implements a public education and outreach program to help educate the
citizens of the County on the importance of water quality, with a substantial effort toward educating youth. One of the
goals of this approach is to prevent pollutants from entering water bodies in the first place, which is much more efficient
that mitigating water pollution after it has already occurred. Another strategy the County and other MS4 co-permittees
employ is to seek outside funding opportunities, including grants, to help fund special studies and water quality
improvement projects, which will help defray compliance costs.

Recreation and Tourism
The County is a tourist center in Southern California because of the broad spectrum of amusement parks

and leisure, recreational, and entertainment activities that it offers. These tourist attractions are complimented by
the year-round mild climate.
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Along the County’s Pacific Coast shoreline are five state beaches and parks, five municipal beaches, and
five County beaches. There are three small-craft harbors in the County; Newport, Huntington, and Dana Point
harbors.

Other major recreational and amusement facilities include Disneyland, Disney’s California Adventure,
Knott’s Berry Farm, and the Spanish Mission of San Juan Capistrano. Also located within the County are the
Anaheim Convention Center, Angel Stadium of Anaheim home of the Major League Baseball Team Los Angeles
Angels of Anaheim, Honda Center of Anaheim home of the National Hockey Team Anaheim Ducks, Segerstrom
Center for the Arts, and the Art Colony at Laguna Beach with its annual art festival.

Transportation

The County is situated in one of the most heavily populated areas in California and has access to excellent
roads, rail, air, and sea transportation. The Santa Ana Freeway (I 5) provides direct access to downtown Los
Angeles and connects with the San Diego Freeway (I 405) southeast of the City of Santa Ana providing a direct
link with San Diego. The Garden Grove Freeway (SR 22) and the Riverside Freeway (SR 91) provide east-west
transportation, linking the San Diego Freeway, Santa Ana Freeway and the Newport Freeway (SR 55). The
Newport Freeway provides access to certain beach communities.

Drivers in the County have access to five toll roads. The 91 Express Lanes is a 10-mile express lanes toll
road in the median of the SR 91 connecting Orange County and Riverside County. The San Joaquin Toll Road
(73) runs from Costa Mesa to Mission Viejo connecting to the 1-405 and the I-5 freeways. The Foothill Eastern
Toll Roads consisting of the 241, 261 and 133 connect to the SR 91 near the Riverside County line and I-5 freeway
in the City of Irvine, the Laguna Canyon Road, and other cities in South County.

Rail freight service is provided by the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railway and the Union Pacific
Railroad Company. Amtrak provides passenger service to San Diego to the south, Riverside and San Bernardino
Counties to the east, and Los Angeles and Santa Barbara to the north. Metrolink provides passenger service to
San Bernardino and Riverside Counties to the east, San Diego County to the south and Los Angeles County to the
north. Bus service is provided by Greyhound Bus Lines. The Orange County Transportation Authority provides
bus service between most cities in the County. Most interstate common carrier truck lines operating in California
serve the County.

John Wayne Airport is located in the unincorporated area between the cities of Costa Mesa, Irvine, and
Newport Beach and is owned and operated by the County. The airport is classified as a medium air traffic hub by
the Federal Aviation Administration, serving the County and portions of Los Angeles, Riverside, San Bernardino
and San Diego counties (its “Trade Area”). The airport is an origination and destination airport, primarily for
short-to-medium haul markets in its Trade Area. Presently, thirteen airlines operate out of the airport, including
ten commercial airlines (Alaska, American, Delta, Frontier, Southwest, United, Compass, Horizon, Skywest
Commercial, and WestJet), one commuter airline (SkyWest dba United Express and Delta Connection) and two
cargo airlines (FedEx and UPS). From January through December 2017, the airport served approximately 10.4
million passengers. General aviation activities at the airport are served by two full service Fixed Base Operators.

Natural Disasters
Natural disasters, including floods, fires, and earthquakes, have been experienced in the County. Seismic

records spanning the past half century and historic records dating from the 1700s through the early 1900s indicate
that the County is a seismically active area.
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Cybersecurity

The County relies on a large and complex technology environment to conduct its operations. As a
recipient and provider of personal, private and sensitive information, the County and its departments face multiple
cyber threats including, but not limited to, hacking, viruses, malware and other attacks on computers and other
sensitive digital networks and systems. There have been many cyber-attack attempts on the County’s computer
system, but not any resulting in a material compromise of the system, data loss or breach that the County has
identified.

In 2014, the County created the Cybersecurity Joint Task Force (“CSJTF”) comprised of County
department operations, policy and Information Technology (IT) staff. The CSJTF meets monthly to produce the
County Cybersecurity Best Practices Manual. The CSJTF has also developed, reviewed and approved
Countywide Security policies, plans and guidelines.

Through the Enterprise Privacy & Cybersecurity Program, the County implements a mandatory
Cybersecurity Awareness Training (CSAT) to its workforce members. The County is establishing a Security
Operations Center “SOC” with cybersecurity professionals for cyber-attack monitoring, investigation, and
response. The County is deploying the Security Information & Event Management (SIEM) which enable security
administrators to collect log data of all events from a wide variety of network devices in the County to identify
and report on security threats and suspicious behavior. Implementation of an integration threat solution anti-virus
using artificial intelligence (Al) to County workstations has been implemented in many departments. The County
is also in the process of deploying a next generation cloud-based proxy and firewall that would provide Internet
security, including web security.

In 2017, the Board of Supervisors authorized the Chief Information Officer to execute a contract with
Tevora Business Solutions, Inc. to conduct a Countywide Cybersecurity Assessment and Audit of all departments.
The assessment and audit was based on 10 security domains established by the Department of Homeland Security
(DHS) Cyber Resilience Review (CRR), Vulnerability Assessment, and On-site Validation of Physical Security
Controls.

No assurances can be given that the County’s security and operational control measures will ensure
against any and all cybersecurity threats and attacks. A cybersecurity incident or breach could damage the
County’s Information Technology systems and cause disruption to County services and operations. Although the
County carries cyber liability insurance in the amount of $75 million, the cost of any such disruption or remedying
damage caused by future attacks could be substantial. The County will continue to assess cyber threats and protect
its data and systems.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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December 14, 2017
The Citizens of Orange County:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the County of Orange, State of California (County), for the
year ended June 30, 2017, is hereby submitted in accordance with the provisions of Sections 25250 and 25253 of
the Government Code of the State of California. The report contains financial statements that have been prepared in
conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) prescribed for governmental entities.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the County. A comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed and
established to provide reasonable assurance that the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and changes in financial position of County
funds. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the County's comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the
financial statements will be free from material misstatements.

The CAFR has been audited by the independent certified public accounting firm of Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP
(MGO). The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial
statements of the County for the year ended June 30, 2017, are free of material misstatement. The independent
certified public accounting firm has issued an unmodified (clean) opinion on the County’s basic financial statements
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017. The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial
section of this report.

This letter of transmittal is designed to complement and should be read in conjunction with Management's
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) that immediately follows the independent auditor’s report. MD&A provides a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The County, incorporated in 1889 and located in the southern part of the State of California, is one of the major
metropolitan areas in the state and nation. The County occupies a land area of 798 square miles with a coastline of
42 miles serving a population of over 3 million. It represents the third most populous county in the state and ranks
sixth in the nation.

The County is a charter county as a result of the March 5, 2002, voter approval of Measure V, which provides for an
electoral process to fill mid-term vacancies on the Board of Supervisors. Before Measure V, as a general law
county, mid-term vacancies would otherwise be filled by gubernatorial appointment. In November 2008, voters
approved Measure J, which added Article Ill, Section 301 to the Charter of Orange County requiring voter approval
for increases in future retirement system benefits of any employee, legislative officer, or elected official of the County
in the Orange County Employees Retirement System (OCERS) or any successor retirement system, with the
exception of statutorily-established cost of living adjustments, salary increases, and annual leave or compensatory
time cash-outs. In June 2012, voters approved Measure B, which requires that any Orange County Supervisors
elected or appointed on or after June 5, 2012 can enroll only in the minimum pension option, i.e., the least lucrative
pension plan, offered to Orange County employees. At present, the minimum pension plan is a 1.62% at 65 pension

Introductory Section
Letter of Transmittal
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

plan. This measure amends the County Charter and applies to any current or previous Supervisor. In June 2016,
voters approved Measure B, which requires the County Auditor-Controller to review any Countywide measure
placed on the ballot and prepare a fiscal impact statement.

The County is like a general law county and governed by a five-member Board of Supervisors (the Board), who
each serve four-year terms, and annually elect a Chairman and Vice-Chairman. The Supervisors represent districts
that are each approximately equal in population. The district boundaries were revised effective September 6, 2011,
incorporating the results of the 2010 census. A County Executive Officer (CEO) oversees 16 County departments,
and elected department heads oversee six County departments. The Supervisorial Districts map below shows the
boundaries of Orange County and the areas governed by each member of the Board.
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The County provides a full range of services Countywide, for the unincorporated areas, and contracted services for
cities. These services are outlined in the following table:

Countywide Services Unincorporated Area Services

Affordable Housing Animal Care &

(Housing Authority) Veterans Services Canital Libraries

Agricultural Commissioner Indigent Medical Services Flood Control Parks

Airport Jails & Juvenile Facilities Land Use Waste Disposal Collection
Ch”d. GotscticniiSReccal Juvenile Justice Commission Law Enforcement

Services

Child Support Services Landfills & Solid Waste Disposal

Clerk-Recorder Law Enforcement

Coroner & Forensic

St Probationary Supervision

Contracted Services for Cities

District Attorney Public Assistance Animal Care & Control Libraries

Introductory Section
Letter of Transmittal
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Elections & Voter
Registration

Environmental / Regulatory
Health

Public Defender/ Alternate
Defense

Public & Mental Health

Law Enforcement PUb!iC W_orks &
Engineering
Utility Billing and Check

Remittance Processing

appropriations do not lapse at year-end; outstanding encumbrances are carried forward. Additional information on
the budgetary process can be found in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, in the Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements section.

The County’'s eGovernment website portal at www.ocgov.com provides online services and extensive information
about the County government to Orange County residents, businesses, partners, and Vvisitors. It
includes information about the Board, County job listings, purchasing bid solicitations, assessment appeals, links to
court information and local court rules, voter information, County permits and forms, public safety, health and
human services programs and financial information. The site also provides several online services, including live
and archived Board meeting videos, the ability to order birth, death and marriage certificates, search fictitious
business names, find polling locations and election results, license pets, view and pay property taxes, request and
track services provided by OC Public Works such as pothole repair and sidewalk maintenance, and subscribe to
receive emergency alerts. The County continuously strives to improve our constituent’s ability to conduct business
online.

FACTORS AFFECTING ECONOMIC CONDITION

Table 1: Unemploy 1t Rate Comparison

Local Economy August 2017

o Primary Government Entity Unemployment Rate
Two indicators of the Orange County economy are: how

Flood Control &

i nior Servi "
Transportation Senior Services Sources: County departments

OC Parks Collection & Appeals

Disaster Preparedness Weights & Measures

Property Tax Assessment,
Grand Jury App%rtit))lnment & Collection

In addition to these services, the County is also financially accountable for the reporting of component units.
Blended and fiduciary component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the County's
operations and, therefore, data from these units are combined with data of the County. The County has two
discretely presented component units, the Children and Families Commission of Orange County (CFCOC) and
CalOptima, which require discrete presentation in the government-wide financial statements. The County’s fiduciary
component unit, County of Orange Redevelopment Successor Agency (Successor Agency), was established as a
result of the dissolution of the former Orange County Development Agency. The following entities are presented as
blended component units in the basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017: the Orange County
Flood Control District, Orange County Housing Authority, Orange County Public Financing Authority, Capital
Facilities Development Corporation, South Orange County Public Financing Authority, Orange County Public
Facilities Corporation, County Service Areas, Special Assessment Districts, Community Facility Districts, and In-
Home Supportive Services Public Authority. Additional information on these entities can be found in Note 1,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, in the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements section.

The County maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the Board. Activities of the General Fund and most of the Special Revenue, Debt
Service, Capital Projects and Permanent funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of
budgetary control (that level which cannot be exceeded without action by the Board) is at the legal fund-budget
control unit level, which represents a department or an agency. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this
report for each governmental fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. The Budgetary
Comparison Statements for the General Fund and major Special Revenue Funds are part of the Basic Financial
Statements. The Budgetary Comparison Schedules for the nonmajor Governmental Funds with appropriated annual
budgets are presented in the Supplemental Information section for governmental funds. The County also maintains
an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbered

well the local economy performs relative to surrounding United States 4.5%
counties, the state, and the nation (external indicators); California 5.4%
and hqw vyell the Iocall economy performs relaltive tovits Riverside County 6.5%
OWI‘IlhIStOI'ICa.| trends (internal |n(ld|cat0rs).' Thls section San Bemnardino County 5.8%
provides various external and internal indicators that Los Angeles G 5.49
describe the current and projected outlook of the Orange 0s Angeles County A%
County economy. San Diego County 4.7%

Orange County 4.2%

In terms of the external indicators, Orange County’s
economy continues to out-perform local surrounding
counties, the state, and national economies (in annual
percentage growth), and, in fact, ranks higher (in absolute
growth rate dollars) than the economies of the majority of
the world’s countries.

Orange County’s unemployment rate continues to be
below that of all surrounding Southern California counties,
the State of California, and the National level (see Table

1).

According to the California Department of Finance,
inflation, as measured by the increase of the Consumer
Price Index (CPI) in 2017, is expected to be 2.8% for
Orange County, lower than the State of California at 3.0%,
but higher than the U.S. at 2.3% (see Table 2).

Unemployment Rate

= United States

Califomia

6.0%

m Orange County

5.0%
2.0%
3.0% +
2.0%
10%
0.0% +

Unemployment
Rate

Table 2: 2017 - Projected Increase of the CPI

ted States California range County

2.3% 3.0% 2.8%

Sources: State of California, Employment Development Department
California Department of Finance, April 2017
Note:  Unemployment rates are for the month of August 2017
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According to the Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Orange County’s median family income is
expected to be $88,000 (absolute dollars) in 2017,
compared to $85,000 (absolute dollars) in 2016. Median
family incomes in Orange County continue to exceed all
surrounding Southern California counties, the State of
California, and the nation (see Table 3).

Table 3: Median Family Income Comparison

Median Family Income

Primary Government Entity (absolute dollars)

United States $68,000
California $73,300
Orange County $88,000
San Diego County $79,300
Los Angeles County $64,300
Riverside County $63,200

Sources: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, 2017

Comparisons of Inflation and Median Family
Income

o 3%

2%

©

g

3
f
I
|

Median Family Income
(in Thousands)

Inflation (CPI Increase)

s20 - -————J-———-- -1

0%

United States California Orange County

Sources: Calfornia Department of Finance, April 2017
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, 2017

According to CorelLogic Information Systems, the
median home sales price for new and existing homes in
Orange County was $685,000 (absolute dollars) in
August 2017, representing a 5.5% increase relative to
August 2016. The median sales price in Orange County
continues to exceed all surrounding counties (see
Table 4).

In terms of internal trends, current and projected
indicators suggest that the Orange County economy
will continue to gradually improve with job growth
expected to be 1.5% in 2017.

Table 4: Median Home Sales Price Comparison-
Southern California Counties — August 2017

Primary Median Home  Median Home
Governme les Price Change Sales Price

Entity increase (absolute dollars)
Orange County 5.5% $685,000
Los Angeles County 9.4% $580,000
San Diego County 7.4% $535,000
Riverside County 7.7% $365,000
San Bernardino County 12.5% $315,000

Table 4: Comparison of Median Home Sales Price
and Price Changes Among Counties

$800 - —————mmm e 14%

$700 12%

600
$ 10%
$500
8%
$400

Price
(in thousands)

6%
$300

9
$200 4%

$100 2%

$0

0%

Orange  Los Angeles San Diego  Riverside San
County ~ County ~ County  County Bernardino
County

Sources: CoreLogic Information System, August 2017

Percentage Change in Sales Price
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Table 5 shows various internal indicators reflecting steady Table 5: Orange County Historical Data
growth of Orange County’s economy. The unemployment

rate decreased to 4.2% for the month of August 2017 LIS
relative to 4.3% for the month of August 2016. Job growth Unemployment

is expected to decrease to 1.5% in 2017. Median home Rgteg 6.7% 54% 4.6% 4.3% 4.2%
prices increased by 5.5% in August 2017, relative to 6.4% Annual Job Growth

in August 2016. Annual change in sales tax receipts is Rates 25% 26% 31% 23% 1.5%
forecasted to be 4.1% in 2017.

al Indicators 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Annual CPl Inflation  1.1% 1.3% 09% 22% 2.8%
Median Home Sales

Price Increase 258% 54% 43% 64% 55%
Annual Change in

Sales TaxReceipts  4.3% 4.4% 34% 41% 4.1%

Data in Tablo 5 for prior years may be different from previous years CAFR due to the timing of obtaining data.
data

Orange County Historical Data Comparison Data for 2017 is based on forecasted dat

(Shown as a y to-y P g
9,
30.0% = Unemployment Rates
0,
25.0% Annual Job Growth Rates
20.0% = Annual CP! Inflation
15.0% = Median Home Sales Price
Increase
10.0% ® Annual Change in Sales Tax
Receipts
5.0%
0.0%
o g o° o o

Sources: State of California, Employment Development Department
Economic & Business Review, Chapman University, June 2017
Corelogic Information Systems, August 2017
California Board of Equalization

In summary, the economy in Orange County continues to show signs of moderate but steady growth.
Long-Term Financial Planning

Strategic Plan: In March 1997, the Board initiated a financial planning process that is a key component of the
County’s commitment to fiscal responsibility, accountability, and efficiency. The plan includes projections of County
general purpose revenues, departmental projections of operating costs, revenues, capital and information
technology needs for current programs and services and anticipated caseload changes. New programs, services
and capital projects are identified and prioritized on a Countywide basis with financial impacts identified over the plan
period. The plan covers a five-year period and includes a ten-year analysis of operating costs in cases where new
programs and facilities are assessed to ensure the ability to pay for long-term operational costs.

The 2017 Strategic Financial Plan (SFP) was presented to the Board on December 12, 2017. The 2017 SFP is the
foundation in planning for continued financial stability and will be augmented by the monitoring and establishment of
budgetary control via the quarterly budget reporting process and adoption of the Annual Budget. The five-year SFP
projections indicate that General Purpose Revenue growth will be in the range of 4.5% for the first year of the plan
with growth rates averaging 3.1% in years two through five. The moderate growth rate for revenue, coupled with the
increasing cost of doing business, will require the County to carefully manage programs and services levels. The
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County continues to believe that sustained job growth and reduced unemployment are the key indicators for
economic growth.

In order to address identified budget issues and prepare for the continued uncertainty of the general and local
economy, the following represent some of the actions taken or identified as options for early planning. Early action
is critical to ensure baseline services are met and that the County continues to experience financial stability.

e The SFP reflects a 0% increase in Net County Cost allocations to departments for the fiscal year 2018-19,
and 1% for each of the following fiscal years, with the remaining excess funds distributed and/or set-aside to
address the most critical strategic needs for the County

e Continuation of the policy to not backfill State budget reductions

e Position Policy: delete aged vacant positions

* Internal financing program to support major capital and information technology projects

e Maintaining prudent levels of General Fund and Contingency Reserves

The County continues to move forward on several large projects identified below. In addition, the County is in

various stages of planning and implementing several other projects. Financial plans are in place for the upgrade of

the 800 MHz Countywide Coordinated Communications System, replacement of the Central Utility Facility
infrastructure, new OC Animal Care Center, Bridges at Kraemer Place and other homelessness initiatives, and the
first phase of the Civic Center Facilities Master Plan. Development of the County property at the former Marine

Corps Air Station El Toro in Irvine and other various County-owned properties such as the Greenspot and Prado

Dam properties will require up-front financial planning and investment in order to generate revenue in future years

on a long-term basis.

Santa Ana River Mainstem Project: The Santa Ana River Mainstem Project (SARMP) was initiated in 1964, in partial
response to a resolution of the United States House Committee on Public Works adopted May 8, 1964. A survey
report was completed by the Orange County Flood Control District in 1975. The report was reviewed and submitted
to Congress in September 1978. In September 1980, the United States Army Corps of Engineers completed the
General Design Memorandum for the SARMP. Construction for the SARMP was authorized by the Water
Resources Development Act of 1986. Construction for the SARMP was initiated in 1989, and completion is
scheduled for December 2029.

The SARMP is designed to provide flood protection to the growing urban communities in Orange, Riverside and San
Bernardino Counties. The proposed improvements to the system cover 75 miles, from the headwater of the Santa
Ana River, east of the city of San Bernardino to the mouth of the river at the Pacific Ocean between the cities of
Newport Beach and Huntington Beach. The project will increase levels of flood protection to more than 3.35 million
people within the three county areas. The project includes seven independent features: Seven Oaks Dam, Mill
Creek Levee, San Timoteo Creek, Oak Street Drain, Prado Dam, Santiago Creek and the Lower Santa Ana River.
To learn more about the SARMP, visit the Orange County Flood Control Division's website at www.ocflood.com.

OC Dana Point Harbor Revitalization Plan: The OC Dana Point Harbor Revitalization Plan (Plan) includes
revitalization of Dana Point Harbor’s commercial core, marinas, and hotel. The Plan is a multi-phased and long-term
public-private partnership project, where total development costs have been estimated in excess of $150,000
pending final project design approvals. The Plan is a phased and systematic long-term rehabilitation and/or
replacement of the commercial core, hotel, and waterside elements. County Executive Office Real Estate staff
managed the process for selection of a potential private partner for the project and are working with OC Parks staff
to finalize the financial strategy for the complete Plan that will meet the long-term needs and expectations of the
community and the County. On October 17, 2017, the County selected Dana Point Harbor Partners, LLC (DPHP)
as the primary developer and Dana Point Partners, LLC as the alternate developer for the lease, development, and
management of certain portions of Dana Point Harbor. The Board authorized the Chief Real Estate Officer (or
Designee) to negotiate option and lease agreements with DPHP as primary developer and return to the Board for
approval.

James A. Musick Facility Expansion: On March 8, 2012, the County received a conditional award from the State for
$100,000 in funds for expansion of the James A. Musick Facility Assembly Bill 900 (AB900). On March 8, 2013, the
State approved the funding to complete design and construction for the project, of which establishment allows the
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County to commit funding to design and construction that is reimbursed from the AB900 Phase Il $100,000
award. This project is estimated for completion in FY 2020-21. The County must front costs initially until the notice
to proceed for construction is approved by the State. At that time, all past eligible costs incurred can be invoiced for
reimbursement by the State in full, and all future costs will be invoiced for reimbursement by the State on an ongoing
basis until construction completion and occupancy. It is anticipated that costs will be reimbursed beginning in FY
2018-19.

On March 13, 2014, the State approved $80,000 in funds for the County for further expansion of the James A.
Musick Facility (Senate Bill 1022). This project will be completed in parallel with the AB900 project. Because of
schedule compaction during design, the State approved executing both project phases into a single construction
project. The financial requirements for this second phase are consistent with those described above.

La Pata Avenue Gap Closure and Camino Del Rio Extension Project: The County is nearing completion of the
construction of the La Pata Avenue Gap Closure Project (Project) that widens La Pata Avenue and implements a
gap closure between the cities of San Juan Capistrano and San Clemente. This is a cooperative project between
the City of San Clemente, City of San Juan Capistrano, OC Waste & Recycling, and OC Public Works, with the
County acting as the lead agency. The total Project cost is estimated at $127,000 and is funded from State
Proposition 1B, Orange County Measure M1 and M2, gas tax, La Pata Fee Program, OC Waste & Recycling,
developer agreement, and community facility district revenues. A construction contract for $72,741 was awarded by
the Board on December 10, 2013 and a construction management contract for $7,706 was awarded on February 4,
2014.

The groundbreaking ceremony was held on April 4, 2014. The ribbon cutting ceremony for the roadway gap closure
was held on August 13, 2016 and the roadway was open to the public on August 14, 2016. Construction of the
Camino Del Rio Extension Phase was completed in April 2017. Completion of the final phase of the La Pata
Widening is anticipated in July 2018.

Bridges at Kraemer Place Year-Round Emergency Shelter (Bridges): On November 17, 2015, the Board approved
the acquisition of 1000 N. Kraemer Place for $4,250 as the site of a new 200-bed Year-Round Emergency Shelter
and Multi Service Center to serve the homeless with $1,250 in funding support from the cities of Anaheim, Fullerton,
Brea, and La Habra. Bridges currently has a 100 person capacity, with a second phase to be completed in 2018
bringing the total capacity to 200 occupants.

OC Animal Care Center: In December 2015, the Board approved negotiated terms for a land swap between the
County, the South Orange County Community College District, and the city of Tustin regarding ten acres of land
for the construction of a new state-of-the-art OC Animal Care Center to replace the existing shelter in the city of
Orange. Construction on the new center began in July 2016, and completion is expected in January 2018. The
expected opening date of the new center is March 2018.

Central Utility Facility (CUF) Infrastructure Upgrade Project: The County is approximately 75% complete with
construction of the CUF Project (Project) in the city of Santa Ana. The Project replaces the cooling tower, chillers
and pumps and has added a boiler and related equipment at the CUF. The final Project will replace most of the
original 1968 CUF components which are beyond useful life and required upgrades and replacement to be
reliable and energy efficient. The Project also includes expansion of the present thermal utility distribution system
to new thermal utility clients and improving the cogeneration system efficiency and performance by using the full
capacity of the cogeneration components. The primary component of the thermal expansion is the replacement
of chilled water lines which are now approximately 90% complete with construction. The total Project is on budget
at an estimated $68,000 and is funded from CUF Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 issued in June 2016. A
Guaranteed Maximum Price Contract of $59,165 to provide construction manager at risk construction phase
services for the Project was awarded by the Board on January 26, 2016. The Project Architect-Engineer (A&E)
Agreement was amended on April 26, 2016 for a new total not-to-exceed amount of $7,063. The A&E contract
includes engineering and design for the Project, construction observation, commissioning, and support services.
The completion of the Project is anticipated in April 2018.

Orange County Civic Center Facilities Master Plan: On April 23, 2013, the Board adopted an ordinance approving a
public-private partnership to develop the Civic Center Facilities Strategic Plan. On February 24, 2016, the Board
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approved a Program Management and Design Agreement for Phase | planning and design of the Orange County
Civic Center Facilities.

Included in Phase | is a six-story, approximately 254,000 square foot building located at 601 N. Ross Street.
Building 16 is to be occupied by several County departments and includes a one-stop shop public counter where the
public will access services from multiple departments. There will be a 6,600-square-foot event/conference center
which is planned to be used by the County and the public. There will be 350 underground parking spaces. The
expected completion date is January 2020.

The project’s financing was facilitated through a Board adopted ordinance on May 9, 2017, identifying the legal
authority for the issuance of bonds, approving a Ground Lease, a Facility Lease, and forming the Capital Facilities
Development Corporation (Corporation). On June 22, 2017, the California Municipal Finance Authority (Authority)
issued $152,400 Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A. The Authority loaned a total of $175,340 to the Corporation,
pursuant to a loan agreement, for the construction. Upon filing the certificate of substantial completion, the County
will commence base rental payments, under the Facility Lease, to repay the loan to the Authority, which pays debt
service to the bondholders.

Relevant Financial Policies

To achieve the goal of providing outstanding and cost-effective regional public services, the County applies sound
management practices and policies that enhance the quality of life of its citizens. Such financial management
practices have been identified by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) and recognized by Fitch Ratings as best practices that promote financial soundness, efficiency in
government, and solvency in public finance.

General Fund Reserves Policy

The County General Fund Reserves Policy provides guidance in the creation, maintenance and use of reserves.
The policy covers formal and informal reserves, and includes provisions for reserves such as appropriations for
contingencies, reserve-like appropriations, and reserve-like funds held by others such as the OCERS Investment
Account. The policy also recognizes whether funds are legally required or discretionary or have special restrictions.
The reserves policy is maintained and updated, as needed, through the County’s annual SFP process. The
reserves policy targets and balances are included in the annual SFP document.

The General Fund Reserves policy is designed to provide flexibility to the County as well as the following:

Resources to address unanticipated or cyclical economic conditions

Resources for emergencies and/or catastrophic events

Mitigation of the volatility of revenues and expenditures in managing temporary cash flow shortages
Capacity to cover unexpected large one-time expenses and opportunities

Capacity to fund capital investments

Capacity to minimize borrowing costs

Capacity to provide some level of protection against statutory changes to County revenues and impacts
from federal and state actions

The County has a variety of reserve funds available to both the General Fund and Non-General Funds including:

Fund Balance Assigned for Contingencies

Fund Balance Assigned for Operations

Fund Balance Assigned for Construction and Maintenance
Fund Balance Assigned for Capital Projects

Fund Balance Assigned for Teeter Loss Reserve

Fund Balance Assigned for Reserve Target

Reserve-Like Funds

Reserve-Like Appropriations

Department-Type Reserves

Introductory Section
Letter of Transmittal
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Al of the previously mentioned are reserves normally modified at the time of budget adoption (Government Code
Section 29085) or at fiscal year-end. Changes to reserve amounts at other times require a 4/5 vote of the Board. A
4/5 vote is also required to make such reserves available for appropriation to expend the funds, if needed, during the
fiscal year (Government Code Section 29130).

Reserve Targets and Descriptions

Under GFOA recommended practice, the County establishes an overall reserve target and allocates the calculated
target among the classes of obligated fund balances as appropriate. The County may fund more or less to each
reserve class for a variety of reasons, such as its current financial condition, the need to set aside for particular goals
or directives, the need to bridge one-time gaps, etc. The goal is to ensure a prudent reserve balance that is
maintained and replenished on a regular basis.

In implementing the GFOA’s best practice, the County elected to establish a funding target based upon two months
of General Fund operating revenues. Analysis of the historical average of two months of operating revenues, as
well as FY 2017-18 adopted budgeted revenues, yielded a funding target of approximately 17% of General Fund
operating revenues.

Contingencies

The purpose and use of this reserve is to cover unanticipated and severe economic downturns, major emergencies,
or catastrophes that cannot be covered with existing appropriations. In particular, continued drought conditions with
the attendant risk of wildfires, highlights the potential for catastrophic events within the County. A significant event
could create the need for a higher funding level of this reserve. The target amount for this reserve is 15% of ongoing
annual General Purpose Revenues (excluding fund balance unassigned and one-time amounts and transfers).

The following table summarizes the County’s financial management practices:
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Relevant Financial Policies

Multi-Year SFP The County’s SFP is based on a five-year financial forecast and includes a 10-year
analysis of operating costs in cases where new programs and facilities are
recommended to ensure the ability to pay for long-term operational costs. Performance
measures and strategies are key elements of the SFP process.

Five-Year Capital The County’s five-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a long-term list of significant
Improvement Plan projects funded by the General Fund in the Capital Projects budget. It also includes
the five-year capital program for Non-General Fund agencies. The CIP aids the County
in its assessment of the best use of funds available in order to establish and prioritize
its capital asset goals, while maintaining long-term financial stability.

UNCIETTL M ELTIT Y The five-year Information Technology Plan (ITP) is a compilation of significant IT|
Projects projects including upgrades or replacements of existing systems, greater or equal to
$150 and less than $1,000 in any one fiscal year of the five years in the plan. Costs
for ongoing system support and maintenance are included. The ITP is a tool used by
the County to assess IT projects, leverage overlap, and prioritize the use of County
General Funds available to IT projects.

(eIEVCH A TTG RN EY T8 The County Executive Office issues quarterly budget reports that provide the Board,
County departments, members of the public, and other interested parties with an
owveniew of the current status of budgeted revenues and expenditures, total budgeted
positions and various departmental issues requiring adjustments to the County’s
budget.

LOLUEINETGREIR LI G EEI The Annual Budget reflects the County’s disciplined approach to fiscal management:
and Guidelines and is consistent with the County’s SFP process. Department budgets are consistent
with the priorities and operations plans contained in the SFP. Departments use these
planning processes, along with outcome indicators, to evaluate programs and redirect!
existing resources as needed for greater efficiency to reduce costs and minimize the
need for additional resources.

VLG R-EIELCERIEEETE The  County General Fund currently contains formal and informal reserves,
Policy appropriations for contingencies, appropriated reserve-type funds, and reserves held by
others. The purpose of these reserves is to protect community programs and senvices
from temporary revenue shortfalls and provide for unpredicted, sudden and unawidable
one-time expenditures.

Contingency Planning The County’s General Fund maintains a reserve for contingencies, which was
Policy established through the SFP process. The target amount for this reserve is 15% of|
ongoing annual General Purpose Revenues (excludes fund balance unassigned and
one-time amounts and transfers), or $113,356. This compares to the GFOA guidelines
for funding contingencies at 15% or higher. The November 30, 2017 balance is $65,000,
approximately $48,356 below the target.

In addition to the reserve for contingencies, the County budgets an annual appropriation
for significant unanticipated emergencies, catastrophes, one-time expenditures and
opportunities of no less than $5,000 in the General Fund.

Debt Disclosure The County presents a set of debt disclosures in the County’s adopted Budget
Practices document and the CAFR, as well as Continuing Disclosure Annual Reports on its
website and the Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) repository.

Introductory Section
Letter of Transmittal
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Relevant Financial Policies (Continued)

CEVZEREC M= JIZ1 I The County’s long-term practice has been to use pay-as-you-go funding for capital
Funding projects whenever possible. The use of systematic long range financial planning assists
in making fiscal decisions such as debt vs. pay-as-you-go capital project financing.
The SFP forecasts sources of the County’s revenue and operating expenses and
incorporates a list of previously identified and prioritized projects that will benefit the
citizens of the County. The financial planning for capital projects considers the
County’s limited funding sources, the capital and operating costs, useful life of projects,
and good business practices.

Credit and Debt The County’s long-term practice has been to rapidly repay debt when practicable. The
Management Policy Policy is intended to maintain long-term financial stability by ensuring that its long-term
financing commitments are affordable and do not create undue risk or burden, achieve:
and maintain high credit ratings, minimize debt senice interest expense and issuance
costs, provide accurate and timely financial disclosure and reporting, and comply with
applicable State and Federal laws and financing covenants.

Public Financing The Public Financing Advisory Committee (PFAC) is responsible for the review,
Advisory Committee approval, and modification or denial of debt financing proposals. No County debt
financing proposal is considered by the Board unless recommended in writing by the:
PFAC. The PFAC membership consists of the following: five public voting members,
each representing a district, and three Ex-Officio County government members (the
County Executive Officer (non-woting), the elected Treasurer-Tax Collector, and the
elected Auditor-Controller).

Audit Oversight The Audit Oversight Committee (AOC) is an advisory committee to the Board that
Committee provides oversight of the activities of the County Auditor-Controller's Internal Audit
Division and the County’s external audit coverage, including financial reporting and
federal and state audit activities, and discusses the adequacy of the County’s internal
control structure. The AOC membership includes the Chair and Vice-Chair of the
Board, the County Executive Officer, and five private sector members appointed by the
Board. The private sector members shall be appointed by the Board for a term of four
years and may be reappointed or removed by the Board.

The Treasury Owersight Committee (TOC) is responsible for reviewing and monitoring
the annual Investment Policy Statement (IPS) prepared by the Treasurer. In addition,
the TOC causes an annual audit of the Treasurer's compliance with the IPS. The TOC
shall also investigate any and all irregularities in the Treasurer's operations which
become known to the TOC. The TOC will develop and document policy and procedures
to investigate and report such irregularities.

Annually, the TOC reviews the Treasurer’'s IPS, including all proposed amendments or|
modifications to the policy. The Treasurer then submits the IPS to the Board for
approval, including any additions or amendments thereto. The TOC membership
consists of the following: The elected Auditor-Controller, the County Executive Officer,
the elected County Superintendent of Schools, or their respective designees, and four:
members of the public. The public members shall be nominated by the Treasurer and
confirmed by the Board.

24/7 Fraud Hotline The Fraud Hotline is part of an ongoing fraud detection and prevention effort. The Fraud
Hotline is intended for use by County employees, the general public, or vendors for
reporting suspected waste, fraud, violations of County policy or misuse of County
resources by vendors, contractors or County employees.
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Major Initiatives

Funding Equity: The County hovers at the bottom of funding for counties statewide, receiving the lowest percentage
of property taxes in California to support services-about 6 cents on the dollar; the state average is 17 cents. The
formula for returning local property taxes to the counties where they were collected was set in 1978 and has not
been updated since. This systematically disadvantages the County’s ability to provide services to its diverse
population.

The County’s predicament does not have easy fixes. Shifting funding formulas could affect other counties receiving
more of their share of taxes, as well as other taxing entities such as cities, special districts, and schools, which have
constitutional protections for state funding. Therefore, the answer to assuring funding equity for Orange County lies
in increasing funding, programs, and partnerships that specifically benefit County programs and services. When the
state shifts or adds responsibilities at the county level, the County will seek enough funding for those programs to
ensure their success. The County’s robust legislative agenda seeks creative and substantive ways to assure our
residents are provided with their fair share of the taxes they pay to support the programs and services they deserve.

State Prison Realignment: With the passage of Assembly Bill 109 in 2011, California ordered the realignment of
certain state prisoners to serve their sentences in county jails instead of state prisons to comply with court-ordered
overcrowding reductions. The County accounts for 8.1% of the state’s population and 6.4% of the total prison
population. In FY 2016-17, the County spent $77,876 and carried over $0 surplus to FY 2017-18.

Realignment has led to multiple challenges, including: the need for more in-custody housing options and bed space,
additional case-management resources, inmate screening and medical/psychiatric programs. Felony caseloads
have increased substantially with a corresponding increase in the need for additional court hearings and
appearances. On November 4, 2014, voters passed Proposition 47, “The Safe Neighborhood and Schools Act,”
which reduced the classification of most non-serious, non-violent property and drug crimes from felonies to
misdemeanors. This change reduced the number of new felony cases and permitted re-sentencing for anyone
currently serving a sentence for those offenses, ultimately reducing the AB 109 and general jail populations. This
change resulted in lower felony caseloads and a temporary increase in workloads due to the large number of re-
sentencing hearings.

Labor Agreements: Most County employees are represented by one of 17 bargaining units, which are separated into
eight labor organizations. The principal organization is the Orange County Employees Association (OCEA), which
represents six bargaining units totaling about 9,765 permanent filled employee positions. The next largest unions are
the Association of County Deputy Sheriffs, which represents three bargaining units totaling about 2,795 members
and the American Federation of State and Municipal Employees at about 1,433 members. All contracts have been
successfully negotiated and County employees continue to work under their contract terms with no interruption.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

GFOA Awards: The GFOA awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the
County for its CAFR for the year ended June 30, 2016; this represents the County’s 22" consecutive award. The
Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition for excellence in state and local government financial
reporting.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized CAFR, whose contents conform to program standards. Such a CAFR must satisfy both GAAP
and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe
our current report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it
to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the County issued its 14th consecutive Popular Annual Financial Report (PAFR) titled the “OC Citizens’
Report” for the year ended June 30, 2016. The County received the GFOA Award for Outstanding Achievement in
Popular Annual Financial Reporting for this PAFR. The award is a prestigious national award recognizing
conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government popular reports. In order to

Introductory Section
Letter of Transmittal
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

be awarded, a government must publish a PAFR that reflects the program standards of creativity, presentation,
understandability, and reader appeal. The “OC Citizens’ Report” is available for viewing at http://www.ac.ocgov.com

Distinguished Budget Presentation Award: The GFOA awarded a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award to the
County for its FY 2016-17 Annual Budget; this is the County’s first such award. The award is the highest form of
recognition in governmental budgeting. In order to receive the award, the entity had to satisfy nationally recognized
guidelines for effective budget presentation. These guidelines are designed to acknowledge how well an entity’s
budget serves as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a communications device.

Counties Financial Transactions Reporting Award: The County received the Financial Transactions Reporting
Award from the State Controller’'s Office for its Year-End Financial Transaction Report for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2016. The award is in recognition of the professionalism demonstrated by Counties in preparing accurate and
timely financial reports and for those counties that meet the review criteria of the award program.

Acknowledgments: We would like to express our sincere appreciation to County staff and the staff of the certified

public accounting firm of MGO. We hope this report will be of interest and use to those in county government, other
governmental agencies, and the public interested in the financial activities of the County of Orange.

Respectfully submitted,
L= N 4) IMAg i

Eric H. Woolery, CPA Michelle AgHirre
Auditor-Controller Chief Financial Officer
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable Board of Supervisors
County of Orange, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the County of Orange, California (County), as of and for the year ended June
30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the Children and Families Commission of Orange County (CFCOC) and the
Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated
Medical Assistance (CalOptima), which collectively represent 100% percent of the assets, net position, and
revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those statements were audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for CFCOC and CalOptima, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the County, as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for
the General Fund, Flood Control District Fund, Other Public Protection Fund, and Mental Health Services
Act Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 17 to the basic financial statements, the total net pension liability of the County as of
June 30, 2017, which was measured as of December 31, 2016, was $4.04 billion for the Orange County
Employees Retirement System (OCERS). The fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension
liability as of December 31, 2016, was 69.56% for OCERS. The actuarial valuation is very sensitive to the
underlying actuarial assumptions, including a discount rate of 7.25%, which represents the long-term
expected rate of return for OCERS. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, schedules related to the OCERS, schedules related to the Orange County Extra-
Help Defined Benefit Plan, and schedule related to the Orange County Retiree Medical Plan as listed in the
table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and budgetary comparison schedules included in supplemental
information in the financial section, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

Macias Gini & O'Connell LLP
4675 MacArthur Court, Suite 600
Newport Beach, CA 92660 www.mgocpa.com
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The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and budgetary comparison schedules are
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and budgetary
comparison schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Mhcias G .5’ OComel (P

Newport Beach, California
December 14, 2017
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
(UNAUDITED)

This section of the County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) provides a narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the County for the year ended June 30, 2017. We hope that the information
presented here, in conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal, provides a clear picture of the County’s overall financial
status. Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts in this section are expressed in thousands of dollars.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e Total change in net position, which is the difference between total revenues (including transfers in) and
expenses (including transfers out), was $319,442 for the fiscal year, and it increased net position by 15% from
prior year.

e Long-term debt obligations decreased by $98,581 or 21% during the current fiscal year.

e The County's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $2,578,469, an increase of
$220,943, or 9% in comparison with the prior year.

e General Fund revenues and other financing sources ended the year 4% below budget.

e General Fund expenditures and other financing uses ended the year 7% below budget.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements presented in the County's CAFR are divided into three different sections:

e Government-wide Financial Statements
¢ Fund Financial Statements
* Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Basic Financial Statements

Management's

Discussion and Analysis
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Government-wide Fund Financial Statements
Financial . o
Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds
Balance Statement of
Statement of Sheet Net Position Statement of
Net Position F|du<:|a'r'y
Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Expenses, and Changes in
Changes in Fund Balances Fund Net Position
Statement of
Statement of P
Activities N i Changes in El_dumary
ucgetary Gomparison Statement of Cash Flows Net Position
Statements
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The following table summarizes the major features of the basic financial statements:

Government-wide
[ALELE]
Statements

17 CXSELERETI Statement of
Statement Net Position

Statement of
Activities

Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet

Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund
Balances

Budgetary Comparison
Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary Funds

Statement of
Net Position

Statement of Revenues,

Expenses, and Changes
in Fund Net Position

Statement of Cash Flows

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary
Net Position

Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Position

Entire entity (except
fiduciary funds)

Day-to-day operating
activities for basic
services

Day-to-day operating
activities for business-
type services

Resources on behalf of
others

LISV N =EEEM Accrual accounting and
ENGNT EEETELIE A economic resources
Focus measurement focus

Modified accrual
accounting and
current financial
resources
measurement focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources
measurement focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources
measurement focus
(except for agency funds)

Type of Asset, All assets, deferred
DI NIT T2 outflows of resources,

of Resources, liabilities, and deferred
Liability, and inflows of resources, both
DS b i e A financial and capital, short:
Resources term and long-term

Information

Current assets, liabilities,
and deferred inflows of
resources that come due
during the year or soon
thereafter

All assets, deferred
outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources both
financial and capital, short-
term and long-term

All assets, deferred
outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources held
in a trustee or agency
capacity for others

All revenues and
expenses during the year,
regardless of when cash
is received or paid

Type of Inflows
and Outflows
Information

Revenues for which cash
is received during the
year or soon thereafter;
expenditures for when
goods or services have
been received, and the
related liability is due and
payable

All revenues and
expenses during the year,
regardless of when cash
is received or paid

All additions and
deductions during the
year, regardless of when
cash is received or paid
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Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements consist of the following two financial statements: the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities. Both of these statements were prepared using an accounting method and a
measurement focus similar to those used by private-sector companies, the accrual basis of accounting and the
economic resources measurement focus. The Statement of Net Position provides information regarding all of the
County’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources with the difference
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating. The Statement of Activities, on the other
hand, provides information on how the government’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year
regardless of the period when the related cash or cash equivalent is received or paid. Therefore, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (for
example, uncollected taxes, and earned but unused vacation leave).

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities distinguish functions of the County that are principally
supported by taxes (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the
County include (1) general government, (2) public protection, (3) public ways and facilities, (4) health and sanitation,
(5) public assistance, (6) education, and (7) recreation and cultural services. The business-type activities of the
County include John Wayne Airport (Airport), Orange County Waste Management and Recycling (Waste
Management), and Compressed Natural Gas (CNG).

The government-wide financial statements also provide information regarding the County’s component units, entities
for which the County (the primary government) is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component
units, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the County’s operations; therefore, data from these
component units are combined with data of the primary government. Financial information for the CFCOC and
CalOptima, discretely presented component units, are reported separately from the financial information presented
for the primary government itself. Separate stand-alone annual financial reports can be obtained by accessing the
County’s website at the following address: www.ac.ocgov.com. A separate stand-alone CalOptima annual financial
report can be obtained by accessing the website at http://wpso.dmhc.ca.gov/fe/search/.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements report on groupings of related funds
that are used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. A fund is a separate
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Like other
state and local governments, the County uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. The focus of governmental and proprietary fund

e Fund - a separate accounting entity
with a self-balancing set of
accounts.

e Focus is on major funds.

* Provides information regarding the financial statements is on major funds as determined by the criteria
three major categories of all County set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
funds: governmental, proprietary, Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements — and Management'’s
and fiduciary. Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments,” and

GASB Statement No. 65, “ltems Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities.” All of the County funds can be divided into three major
categories of funds: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds include most of the County’s basic services and are used to account
for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental funds financial statements are prepared
using the modified accrual basis of accounting and current financial resources measurement focus.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Reconciliations are prepared for the
governmental funds’ Balance Sheet and the governmental funds’ Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances to facilitate comparisons between governmental funds and governmental activities. The
primary differences between the government-wide and fund financial statements relate to noncurrent assets, such

22

Management's
Discussion and Analysis
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

as land and structures and improvements, and noncurrent liabilities, such as bonded debt and amounts owed for
compensated absences, capital lease obligations, and net pension liability, which are reported in the government-
wide statements but not in the fund financial statements.

The County maintains several individual governmental funds organized according to their type (General Fund,
Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects and Permanent funds). Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds’ Balance Sheet and in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances for the General Fund, which is always a major fund, and all other major funds which may change each
year depending on if they meet the major funds criteria. Information for nonmajor funds is presented in the
aggregate as “Other Governmental Funds” in these statements. Individual fund data for each of the nonmajor
governmental funds is presented in the Supplemental Information Section of this CAFR. The County adopts an
annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds. Budgetary comparison statements and schedules have
been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with the budget and are presented in the Basic Financial
Statements and Supplemental Information Section of this CAFR, respectively.

Proprietary Funds - The County maintains two different types of proprietary funds: Enterprise funds and Internal
Service funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its Airport, Waste
Management, and CNG activities. Internal Service funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs internally
among the County’s various functions such as insurance, transportation, publishing services, and information
technology. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions,
Internal Service funds have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Airport
and Waste Management operations, which are both considered to be major funds of the County. Conversely, the
Internal Service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial
statements with the individual fund data provided in the combining statements, which can be found in the
Supplemental Information Section of this CAFR.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds include the Trust and Agency funds and are used to account for assets held on
behalf of outside parties, including other governments. Financial information for fiduciary funds is not reported in the
government-wide financial statements because the resources of these funds are not available to support the
County’s programs. The combining statements for fiduciary funds are included in the Supplemental Information
Section of this CAFR.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. To find a specific note, refer to the Table of
Contents.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator
of the County’s financial position. At June 30, 2017, the County’s
combined net position (governmental and business-type activities)
totaled $2,505,151, an increase of 15% from FY 2015-16.

COMPONENTS OF NET POSITION

e Net Investment in Capital Assets
The largest component of the County’s net position, which totals
$3,521,582, was net investment in capital assets, which represents | ® Restricted
the County’s investment in capital assets less any related outstanding .
debt used to acquire those assets and debt-related deferred outflows | ® Unrestricted
and inflows of resources. The County’s capital assets are used to
provide needed services to its citizens. Since the capital assets
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themselves cannot be used to liquidate the associated debt, the resources needed to repay the debt must be
provided from other sources.

The County’s restricted net position of $1,595,032 represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
their use and are available to meet the County’s ongoing obligations for programs with external restrictions. External
restrictions include those imposed by grantors, contributors, laws/regulations of other governments, or restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or legislation including those passed by the County itself.

The unrestricted net position is the final component of net position. Unrestricted net position is resources that the
County may use to meet its ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. As of June 30, 2017, the County’s
unrestricted net position totals a deficit of $2,611,463. Among governmental activities, the deficit was $3,074,958 in
unrestricted net position compared to the deficit of $2,979,945 at June 30, 2016. The main contributor of the deficit
continues to be the reporting of the County’s proportionate share of net pension liability on the financial statements.

The following table presents condensed financial information derived from the government-wide Statement of Net
Position:

NET POSITION - Primary Government

Management's
Discussion and Analysis
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

The following table provides summarized data of the government-wide Statement of Activities:

CHANGES IN NET POSITION - Primary Government
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

June 30, 2017 and 2016
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ASSETS
Current and Other Assets $ 3,635,467 $ 3,451,250 § 895,588 § 878,991 § 4,531,055 $ 4,330,241
Capital Assets 2,933,640 2,808,923 897,739 848,929 3,831,379 3,657,852
Total Assets 6,569,107 6,260,173 1,793,327 1,727,920 8,362,434 7,988,093
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 822,809 1,097,039 17,251 22,951 840,060 1,119,990
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 822,809 1,097,039 17,251 22,951 840,060 1,119,990
LIABILITIES
Long-term Liabilities 4,893,118 5,197,639 454,141 466,575 5,347,259 5,664,214
Other Liabilities 696,941 724,748 94,819 78,920 791,760 803,668
Total Liabilities 5,590,059 5,922,387 548,960 545,495 6,139,019 6,467,882
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 546,666 444,828 11,658 9,664 558,324 454,492
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 546,666 444,828 11,658 9,664 558,324 454,492
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,813,296 2,707,493 708,286 663,280 3,521,582 3,370,773
Restricted 1,516,853 1,262,449 78,179 67,429 1,595,032 1,329,878
Unrestricted (3,074,958) (2,979,945) 463,495 465,003 (2,611,463) (2,514,942)
Total Net Position $ 1,255,191 § 989,997 § 1,249,960 $ 1,195,712 § 2,505,151 § 2,185,709

As of June 30, 2017, the County’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources increased by 1% or $94,411
during the current fiscal year. Capital assets increased by $173,527 primarily due to construction projects for Airport
Terminal Improvements, Central Utility Facilities Upgrade, OC Animal Care Center, and various other projects
completed for road infrastructure. In addition, there was an increase of $200,814 in current and other assets
primarily due to an increase in restricted cash and cash equivalents for a loan provided by the California Municipal
Finance Authority for the Civic Center Facilities Master Plan construction. Offsetting these increases was a decrease
for deferred outflows of resources of $279,930 primarily due to a decrease in deferred outflows related to pension
which reflects the changes in net pension liability measurements as required by GASB Statement No. 68,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27,” (GASB Statement
No. 68).

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources for FY 2016-17 decreased by 3% or $225,031. Long-term liabilities
decreased by 6% or $316,955, primarily due to a decrease in the County’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability and decrease in bonds payable. Offsetting this decrease was an increase in long-term liabilities due to the
loan for the Civic Center Facilities Master Plan construction project. Deferred inflows of resources related to pension
increased by 23% or $103,832, calculated as required by GASB Statement No. 68.
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Governmental
Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016
REVENUES
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 624,210 $ 557,450 $ 304,350 $ 297,293 § 928,560 $ 854,743
Operating Grants and Contributions 2,067,777 2,037,311 69 171 2,067,846 2,037,482
Capital Grants and Contributions 113,481 105,776 1,828 2,174 115,309 107,950
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 510,072 500,507 - - 510,072 500,507
Property Taxes in Lieu of
Motor Vehicle License Fees 351,011 333,595 - - 351,011 333,595
Other Taxes 98,216 78,184 78 72 98,294 78,256
Grants and Contributions not Restricted
to Specific Programs 8,434 4,583 - - 8,434 4,583
State Allocation of Motor
Vehicle License Fees 1,234 1,100 - - 1,234 1,100
Other General Revenues 99,989 80,857 4,883 8,696 104,872 89,553
Total Revenues 3,874,424 3,699,363 311,208 308,406 4,185,632 4,007,769
EXPENSES
General Government 186,340 203,394 - - 186,340 203,394
Public Protection 1,485,137 1,433,421 > - 1,485,137 1,433,421
Public Ways and Facilities 97,928 142,071 - - 97,928 142,071
Health and Sanitation 593,617 554,872 - - 593,617 554,872
Public Assistance 1,097,327 1,097,129 = - 1,097,327 1,097,129
Education 44,510 46,170 - - 44,510 46,170
Recreation and Cultural Services 112,749 115,136 = - 112,749 115,136
Interest on Long-Term Debt 17,544 20,112 - - 17,544 20,112
Airport - - 125,522 120,921 125,522 120,921
Waste Management - - 105,149 96,301 105,149 96,301
Compressed Natural Gas - - 367 283 367 283
Total Expenses 3,635,152 3,612,305 231,038 217,505 3,866,190 3,829,810
Excess before Transfers 239,272 87,058 80,170 90,901 319,442 177,959
Transfers 25,922 21,518 (25,922) (21,518) - -
Change in Net Position 265,194 108,576 54,248 69,383 319,442 177,959
Net Position - Beginning of the Year 989,997 881,421 1,195,712 1,126,329 2,185,709 2,007,750
Net Position - End of the Year $ 1,255,191 $ 989,997 $ 1,249,960 $ 1,195712 $ 2,505,151 $ 2,185,709
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The County’s net position increased by $319,442 during the current fiscal year. Revenues for the year totaled
$4,185,632, an increase of $177,863 from the prior year's total revenues. Expenses totaled $3,866,190, an increase
of $36,380 from the previous year's total expenses.

Governmental Activities

The County’s governmental activities rely on several sources of revenue to finance ongoing operations. Operating
grants and contributions comprised the largest revenue source for the County, followed by charges for services.
Operating grants and contributions are monies received from parties outside the County and are generally restricted
to one or more specific programs such as State and Federal revenues for public assistance and for health care.
Charges for services are revenues that arise from charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from the goods, services, or privileges provided. Examples of the types of services that fall under this
category include engineering services provided to cities under contract, park and recreation fees, and law
enforcement services provided to other governmental agencies under contract.

At the end of FY 2016-17, total revenues for governmental activities including transfers from the business-type
activities were $3,900,346 an increase of $179,465 from the previous year. Expenses totaled $3,635,152, an
increase of $22,847 from the prior year. During the current fiscal year, net position for governmental activities
increased by $265,194 from the prior fiscal year for an ending balance of $1,255,191. Key elements of the increase
are as follows:

Revenues

e Charges for services increased by $66,760, primarily from revenue received for Mental Health Services Act
(MHSA) programs, law enforcement contracts, and increased South County Roadway Improvement Program
(SCRIP) Fee Credits relinquished to the County for building permits.

o Operating grants and contributions increased by $30,466, primarily due to increased allocations from the State
for Mental Health Services.

e Other taxes increased by $20,032, primarily due to transfer of excess Teeter Tax Loss Reserves to the Teeter
Series A debt service fund, increased pass-through revenues from dissolved Redevelopment Agencies (RDA),
and increased property taxes from real estate market transactions.

e Property taxes in lieu of VLF increased by $17,416, primarily due to growth in secured property tax roll values.

Expenses

« Expenses in public protection increased by $51,716, due to increases in salaries and employee benefits (S&EB)
primarily in the Sheriff-Coroner’s Department and increases for professional services provided for various flood
control projects such as dredging, levee repairs, facility inspections, vegetation removal, and a one-time
settlement payment to a contractor for the Santa Ana River Interceptor Mainline (SARI Line) project.

e Expenses in public ways and facilities decreased by $44,143, primarily for less SCRIP fee credits paid to the
developer for the |-5/0rtega Highway Interchange project and La Pata Avenue Improvements and higher
disposition of assets for the Road fund.

e Expenses in health and sanitation increased by $38,745, primarily due to increases in S&EB and program
expenses for MHSA, Correctional Medical Services, Medical Safety Net, and Children and Youth Services.

e Expenses in general government decreased by $17,054, primarily due to a decrease in bankruptcy related
payments from litigation reserves, lower cash disbursements of bankruptcy claims and fewer reimbursement
payments made to Santa Margarita Water District for work on the CFD 2015-1 Village of Esencia construction
project. Offsetting these decreases was an increase for the Civic Center Facilities Master Plan project.

o Expenses in interest on long-term debt decreased by $2,568, primarily due to a lower interest expense on
Capital Appreciation Bonds.

e Expenses in recreation and cultural services decreased by $2,387, primarily due to higher capital asset
dispositions. Offsetting this decrease was an increase for communications equipment, office equipment, S&EB
for OC Parks, and major alterations and improvements primarily at Irvine Regional Park, Mile Square Regional
Park, Yorba Regional Park, and Aliso Creek Trail.

« Expenses in education decreased by $1,660, primarily due to less extra-help staff and pension expenses for OC
Public Libraries and fewer purchases of library materials.
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The following chart presents a comparison of expenses by function and the associated program revenues for
governmental activities:

Expenses and Program Revenues- Governmental Activities
® Expenses

General Government [F— ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ Program Revenues

Public Protection

Public Ways & Facilities [S= ‘ ‘
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The chart below presents the percentage of total revenues by source for governmental activities:

Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities

3 @ Operating Grants and Contributions (53.4%)

@ Charges for Services (16.1%)

i Property Taxes (13.2%)

uProperty Taxes in Lieu of Motor Vehidle License
Fees (9.1%)

@ Other General Revenues (2.6%)

@ Other Taxes (2.5%)

14 Capital Grants and Contributions (2.9%)

M Grantsand Contributions not Restricted to
Specific Programs (0.2%)
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Business-Type Activities

The County has three business-type activities: Airport, Waste Management, and CNG. In keeping with the intent of
recovering all or a significant portion of their cost through user fees and charges, business-type activities reported
charges for services as their largest source of revenues.

Expenses and Program Revenues- Business-Type Activities

# ‘

B Expenses

Program Revenues

Airport

Waste
Management

$- $50,000 $100,000 $150,000 $200,000

At the end of FY 2016-17, the business-type activities’ total revenues exceeded expenses and transfers resulting in
an increase of $54,248 in net position compared to the prior year's increase in net position of $69,383. Revenues
totaled $311,208, an increase of $2,802 from the previous fiscal year, primarily attributable to increases from Waste
Management’s importation revenue and a gain on Coyote Flare Station capital asset disposal. Offsetting this
increase was a decrease in the Airport’s capital grant contributions from the Transportation Security Authority (TSA)
for the Terminal A & B Baggage Screening project and a decrease in Waste Management's interest revenue and
available cash distributions from the County.

Expenses, including transfers to governmental activities, totaled $256,960, representing an increase of $17,937 from
the previous year. This increase is primarily due to Waste Management's pollution remediation expenses, taxes and
other fees, and contributions to other agencies, as well as increases for the Airport’'s professional and specialized
services and other services and supplies (S&S). Other factors concerning the finances of the County’s two major
enterprise funds are discussed in the proprietary funds section of the “Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds.”

The following chart displays expenses and the associated program revenues by function for the business-type
activities (major enterprise funds):

Revenue by Source - Business-Type Activities

u Charges for Services (97.8%)

® Other General Revenues (1.6%)

|

ud Capital Grants and Contributions
(0.6%)
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S FUNDS

The County uses fund accounting to demonstrate legal compliance and aid financial management by segregating
transactions related to certain government functions or activities.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are accounted for using the current financial resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, only current assets, current liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources related to unavailable
revenue generally are included on the balance sheet, with the difference reported as fund balance. Fund balance,
excluding nonspendable and restricted fund balances, may serve as a valuable measure of the government's available
financial resources for spending at the end of a fiscal year. This amount is available for spending at the discretion of
the Board in order to achieve the established function of the respective funds.

At June 30, 2017, the County’s governmental funds reported total fund balances of $2,578,469, which is an increase of
$220,943 in comparison with prior year ending fund balances.

Comparative Analysis of Changes in Fund Balances

The following schedule presents a summary of revenues and other financing sources, expenditures and other financing
uses, and the net change in fund balances for the governmental funds for the current and previous fiscal year:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCES
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Revenues and Other Expenditures and Other Net Change in

Financing Sources Financing Uses Fund Balances

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
General Fund $ 3167897 $ 3038491 § 3,144,843 § 2975161 § 23,054 $ 63,330
Flood Control District 151,353 128,929 144,469 116,206 6,884 12,723
Other Public Protection 79,074 63,506 81,587 63,656 (2,513) (150)
Mental Health Services Act 153,076 116,978 138,075 115,244 15,001 1,734
Other Governmental Funds 1,193,132 904,098 1,014,615 810,900 178,517 93,198

Total § 4,744,532 $ 4,252,002 $ 4,523,589 $ 4,081,167 $ 220,943 $ 170,835

In addition to the effects of expenditure-driven grants, the following information provides explanations for the
significant changes in fund balances:

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of FY 2016-17, revenues and other financing
sources exceeded expenditures and other financing uses resulting in an increase in fund balance of $23,054 compared
to last year's increase in fund balances of $63,330. Revenues and other financing sources increased by $129,406,
and expenditures and other financing uses increased by $169,682. The following is a brief summary of the primary
factors that contributed to the increase in the net change in fund balance for the General Fund in FY 2016-17:

Revenues

o Transfers to the General Fund increased by $64,307, primarily for multi-year capital projects, such as the Year-
Round Emergency Shelter and Multi Service Center, Civic Center Facilities Master Plan, and replacement of air
handlers at the Health Care Agency’s (HCA) Health Clinic. There was also an increase in Proposition 63
drawdowns from the MHSA, increases in transfers of excess Proposition 172 Public Safety Sales Tax for
Sheriff-Coroner projects, and computer replacements, and increases for Social Services Agency (SSA)
Wraparound program claims.
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e Charges for Services increased by $56,474, primarily due to increases in revenue for the Proposition 63 MHSA
program for Children & Youth and Outpatient Adult Mental Health Services. There was also an increase in law
enforcement revenue from contract cities such as San Clemente, Mission Viejo, and Rancho Santa Margarita.

Expenditures

« Expenditures in public protection increased by $77,610. Factors contributing to this increase were the ongoing
operational cost increases in the Sheriff-Coroner's Department for S&EB, Workers’ Compensation Insurance,
Property & Liability Insurance, and S&S. There were also S&EB increases for the District Attorney (DA) due to
additional positions added to support current increases in administrative and legal workload demands and
further projected increases resulting from growing evidentiary and discovery requirements.

e Expenditures for health and sanitation increased by $50,834, mainly in programs such as MHSA, Correctional
Medical Services, and Medical Safety Net. There were also increases in S&EB for HCA due to additional
positions added to support various health programs and outreach and engagement services.

e Expenditures for the general government increased by $19,248, primarily due to the higher third of five
payments per the Vehicle License Fee Adjustment Amount (VLFAA) settlement agreement and the Civic Center
Facilities Master Plan project that began construction in FY 2016-17.

Flood Control District

This group of funds is used to account for the planning, construction, and operation of flood control and water
conservation works, such as dams, basins, and trunk channels, and for the retardation, conservation, and controlled
discharge of storm waters. At the end of FY 2016-17, there was an increase in fund balance of $6,884 compared to
last year's increase of $12,723. Revenues and other financing sources increased by $22,424 mainly due to an
increase in secured property tax collections and intergovernmental revenues related to Santa Ana River (SAR)
Subvention claims. Offsetting these increases was a decrease in intergovernmental revenues from the Department
of Water Resources and State Water Resources Control Board, higher unrealized investment loss, decrease in
interest from investments, and a decrease in bankruptcy available cash distributions. Expenditures and other
financing uses increased by $28,263, primarily due to an increase in expenditures related to the Santa Ana River
Dredging project, a settlement paid to contractor for the SARI Line project, and various maintenance improvement
projects such as Peters Canyon Wash Sediment & Vegetation Removal, San Diego Creek Pilot Channel Emergency
Interim Sand Management, and Santa Ana River Levee System Repair. Offsetting this increase was a decrease in
loan repayments for the SARI Line project to OC Sanitation District (OCSD) and Santa Ana Watershed Project
Authority (SAWPA).

Other Public Protection

This group of funds is used to account for safety and law enforcement activities. At the end of FY 2016-17, there
was a decrease in fund balance of $2,513 compared to last year's decrease in fund balance of $150. Revenues and
other financing sources increased by $15,568, which was primarily attributable to an increase in intergovernmental
revenue of $8,800 from the U.S. Marshals Service Asset Forfeiture Division as part of the equitable sharing
disbursement and transfers in of $6,692 from the General Fund for the 800 MHz backbone costs and next
generation radios. Expenditures and other financing uses increased by $17,931, primarily due to the replacement of
obsolete radio equipment for the 800 MHz Countywide Coordinated Communications System and higher
expenditures for DA Consumer Protection. Offsetting these increases in expenditures were decreases in equipment
costs for mobile digital video recorders and related equipment and also lower maintenance and building
improvement costs.

Mental Health Services Act (MHSA)

This fund accounts for purpose restricted MHSA revenues. At the end of FY 2016-17, fund balance increased by
$15,001 compared to last year's increase in fund balance of $1,734. Revenues and other financing sources
increased by a total, net amount of $36,098, primarily due to higher allocation from the State. Expenditures
increased by $22,831, primarily due to an increase in transfers out to the General Fund for eligible reimbursement of
MHSA related services.
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Other Governmental Funds

Other governmental funds encompass nonmajor funds, which include special revenue funds, debt service funds,
capital projects funds, and a permanent fund. At the end of FY 2016-17, fund balances increased by $178,517 in
comparison to prior year’s increase in fund balances of $93,198. Revenues and other financing sources increased
by $289,034 primarily due to loan proceeds from the California Municipal Finance Authority to construct part of the
Civic Center Facilities Master Plan. Expenditures and other financing uses increased by $203,715, primarily due to
an increase in transfers out for projects such as the Civic Center Facilities Master Plan construction, Central Utilities
Facility (CUF) Infrastructure Upgrade, OC Animal Care Center, and Year-Round Emergency Shelter and Multi
Service Center, as well as an increase in debt service costs for lease revenue bonds. Offsetting these increases
were decreases in debt service costs for the Teeter Plan Obligation Notes, Series B and a decrease in construction
costs for the Cow Camp Road and La Pata Avenue Gap Closure projects. There were also decreases in public
ways and facilities expenditures for lower SCRIP fee credits paid to developers and lower bankruptcy related
expenditures.

The following chart shows the fund balances, and percentage change in fund balances for governmental funds for
the current and previous fiscal year:

COMPARATIVE FUND BALANCE
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016 Increase/(Decrease) %

General Fund $ 750,892 $ 727,838 3%
Flood Control District 438,552 431,668 2%
Other Public Protection 143,297 145,810 )%
Mental Health Services Act 256,959 241,958 6%
Other Governmental Funds 988,769 810,252 22%
Total § 2,578,469 § 2,357,526 9%

Proprietary Funds

The proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary funds financial statements provide separate information for the
Airport and Waste Management funds, which are considered to be major funds of the County, and Compressed
Natural Gas fund. Internal Service Funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary
funds financial statements.

Comparative Analysis of Changes in Fund Net Position

The following table presents the enterprise funds’ revenues, expenses, contributions, transfers, and changes in fund
net position for the current and previous fiscal year:

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, CONTRIBUTIONS, TRANSFERS, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Revenues, Contributions Expenses Change in
and Transfers and Transfers Fund Net Position
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Airport $ 152,880 §$ 155,495 § 126,052 $ 121,023 § 26,828 $ 34,472
Waste Management 158,045 152,630 131,430 117,667 26,615 34,963
Compressed Natural Gas 326 345 517 534 (191) (189)
Total $ 311,251 $ 308,470 $ 257,999 $ 239,224 $ 53,252 $ 69,246
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Airport

This fund accounts for major construction and self-supporting aviation related activities rendered at the Airport. At
the end of FY 2016-17, there was an increase of $26,828 in fund net position compared to the prior year increase of
$34,472. Revenues, contributions, and transfers decreased by $2,615, primarily due to a decrease in capital grant
contributions from the TSA for Terminal A & B Baggage Screening project. Expenses increased by $5,029, primarily
due to increased professional and specialized services and other S&S for projects such as terminal improvements.

Waste Management

This fund is used to account for the operation, expansion, closing of existing landfills, and the opening of new
landfills. Monies are collected through gate tipping fees which users pay based primarily on tonnage. At the end of
FY 2016-17, there was an increase of $26,615 in fund net position compared to the prior year increase of $34,963.
Revenues, contributions, and transfers increased by $5,415, primarily due to increased sanitation and landfil
disposal tonnage and fees collected for waste, recycling and importation. Expenses and transfers increased by
$13,763, primarily due to increased pollution remediation expenses, taxes and other fees, and contributions to other
agencies.

Compressed Natural Gas (CNG)

This fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the CNG facility. Revenues consist primarily of
compressed natural gas sales to both the County and the public. At the end of FY 2016-17, there was a decrease of
$191 in fund net position compared to the prior year decrease of $189. Revenues decreased by $19 due to a
decrease in CNG fuel sales and CNG/Propane tax refunds and credits received. Expenses decreased by $17 due
to a decrease in transfers out to reimburse the OC Flood Control District fund for the annual payment for the
construction of the compressed natural gas station and a decrease in merchant fees charged for credit card
purchases made by CNG. This decrease was offset by an increase in maintenance and repairs and higher federal
excise taxes paid.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

This section provides a summary of the primary factors involved in the variances between: 1) the Original Budget
and the Final Budget; and 2) the Final Budget and the budgetary based Actual Amounts for the General Fund. In
addition to the effects of expenditure-driven grants, the following information provides explanations for significant
variances. Refer to the General Fund Budgetary Comparison Statement for a full budgetary comparison.

Original Revenue Budget vs. Final Revenue Budget

The following provides a summary of the primary factors attributable to the increase in the General Fund final budget
revenues and other financing sources compared to the original budget revenues and other financing sources:

Fines, Forfeitures, and Penalties

e An increase of $26,000 for a one-time litigation settlement over a failed replacement to the County's
automated Property Tax Management System.

Intergovernmental

e Anincrease of $5,932 in the Social Services Agency (SSA) due to the anticipation of more State and Federal
allocations for various programs, such as Medi-Cal, CalFresh, In-Home Supportive Services Non-Medical
Out-of-Home Care, and Work Incentive Nutrition Supplement.

e Anincrease of $2,024 in the Trial Courts due to the anticipation of more State allocations for the Community
Service Provider and Orange County Victim Services Grant.

e An increase of $1,503 mainly due to the Community Corrections Partnership approval for disposition of
unspent State allocations to partially reimburse the General Fund for the prior years for which 2011 Public
Safety Realignment (AB 109) funding was insufficient and partially for anticipated reimbursement to the Local
Law Enforcement agencies in the current fiscal year.
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Transfers In

e An increase of $11,584 primarily due to the anticipation of higher importation revenue which will be
transferred from Waste Management Bankruptcy Recovery Plan to the 2005 Lease Revenue Refunding
Bonds fund.

e Anincrease of $6,000 in SSA from the SSA Wraparound fund to ensure sufficient appropriations are available
to pay for eligible expenditures (the “Wraparound” label refers to the fact that services are intended to wrap
around the child in a way that supports the child in all aspects of the child’s life).

e An increase of $3,883 in the Miscellaneous fund for the transfer of residual balances as a result of the 1996
Recovery Certificates of Participation Series A fund closure.

e Anincrease of $2,891 in HCA for operations to cover anticipated increased eligible program costs for the OC
Tobacco Settlement and Bioterrorism Center for Disease.

e Anincrease of $2,067 to the Sheriff-Coroner to cover unanticipated costs for salaries, IT projects and S&S.

Final Revenue Budget vs. Actual Revenue Amounts

The following information provides a summary of the primary factors that caused significant variances in the General
Fund actual revenues and other financing sources compared to the final revenue and other financing sources
budget:

Transfers In
o A $96,998 less than budgeted amount was primarily comprised of the following:
- $42,121 less revenue transferred to HCA due to lower claims in OC Tobacco Settlement Revenue and
lower than expected drawdowns in the MHSA for reimbursements of eligible costs.
- $12,222 less revenue transferred to SSA due to less than anticipated Wraparound expenditures and less
utility cost reimbursements for the Tustin Family Campus Program.
- $11,000 less revenue transferred from the Teeter Tax Loss Reserve fund as a result of redistributing the
annual calculation of the excess Tax Loss Reserve requirement to the Teeter Debt Service fund.
- $7,185 less transfers of surplus from the Debt Service funds after principal, interest, and fund reserve
requirements were met.
- $6,442 less revenue transferred to Sheriff-Coroner due to the deferral of the Automated Jail System and
Field Based Reporting projects.
- $4,300 less revenue transferred to Property Tax System Centralized Operations and Maintenance
Support due to delay in the Property Tax System re-platforming project to the next fiscal year.

Charges for Services
e A $27,166 less than budgeted amount was primarily comprised of the following:

- $8,821 less received in Sheriff-Coroner from law enforcement service contracts with the Harbor Patrol,
the Airport security, Mission Viejo, San Clemente, Lake Forest and other contract cities. This was offset
with $1,935 higher than budgeted revenues received from a service agreement with U.S. Immigration and
Customs Enforcement.

- $7,241 less received in reimbursements from various County departments for charges for services
provided by OC Public Works.

- $4,704 less received in revenue for HCA primarily related to an anticipated transfer in for Public Health
Services which will not be completed until FY 2017-18, offset by an increase of $3,674 in Federal Medi-
Cal revenue.

- $4,610 less received in revenue for OC Community Resources primarily as a result of less contracts and
less corresponding reimbursement revenues received by Homeless Prevention for the Year-Round
Shelter and the Community Investment Division.

- $3,137 less received primarily due to less revenue from Traffic School and Bail.

Intergovernmental
e A $22,521 less than budgeted amount was primarily comprised of the following:
- $40,707 less received in SSA primarily due to lower eligible expenditures for program claims as a result
of higher than anticipated staffing vacancies, lower contract services expenditures, and delayed IT and
facility projects.
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- $11,628 more received by the Sheriff-Coroner for AB 109 to recognize the full allocation of jail operation
costs the County incurred.

- $10,337 more received in HCA primarily related to the Federal Whole Person Care pilot program, State
Realignment, and a one-time release of State mental health funds from a prior year liability account.

Original Expenditure Budget vs. Final Expenditure Budget

The following provides a brief summary of the primary factors attributable to the increase in the General Fund final
budget expenditures and other financing uses compared to the original budget expenditures and other financing
uses:

Miscellaneous

e An increase of $27,729 primarily due to the anticipation of an increase in transfers out for the 800 MHz
Countywide Coordinated Communications System, the Property Tax System re-platforming project, and the
Teeter Series A Debt Service to properly align excess Tax Loss Reserves recorded at the end of FY 2016-17.

Sheriff-Coroner

e Anincrease of $19,814 primarily due to unanticipated higher costs associated with providing law enforcement
services to cities, traffic safety, forensic science, and homeland security. Also higher appropriations for
equipment purchases were expected for a patrol ready helicopter, transportation vehicles to carry out law
enforcement activities, and transfers to construction and facility development for parking lot, quartermaster,
and James A. Musick security fence projects.

Social Services Agency

e An increase of $16,752 for the anticipated higher costs for Medi-Cal, CalWORKSs, In-Home Supportive
Services, and various other State programs to fund mandated support services, as well as added positions to
support new federal overtime regulations per the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act.

2005 Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds

e Anincrease of $11,719 to transfer the anticipated increase in trash importation revenues that will be used to
pay remaining bankruptcy related losses to County Administered Accounts in accordance with the Bankruptcy
Second Amended Modified Plan of Adjustment.

Capital Projects

e A net increase of $5,752 primarily due to the anticipation of an increase in transfers out to the Countywide
Capital Projects fund for the re-budget of multi-year projects and various other projects, such as parking
facilities for enhanced safety and security services in the Civic Center area, Coroner Biological Evidence
Freezer, and Theo Lacy Kitchen Floor project.

Final Expenditure Budget vs. Actual Expenditure Amounts

In anticipation of the State's termination of the Coordinated Care Initiative (CCI) in FY 2017-18, which would result
in an estimated $38 million increase in County costs associated with the In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS)
program, the County implemented a countywide hiring freeze and restricted discretionary expenditures in FY
2016-17. This measure has the impact of lowering actual S&EB within the General Fund. Other items provide a
summary of the primary factors that caused significant variances.

Social Services Agency

e A $64,942 lower than budgeted amount primarily due to 6.60% lower than budgeted caseloads for Foster
Care Non-Federal Wraparound cases, savings in health insurance costs, and a hold on spending related to
pending IHSS, as well as lower S&S costs due to less contracts, IT expenditures, and facility projects.

Health Care Agency

e A $58,238 lower than budgeted amount primarily due to lower contract professional services expenditures in
Behavioral Health Services, savings in contracted pharmaceutical expenditures related to the Affordable Care
Act implementation, and decreased patient care costs in California Children’s Services.
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Sheriff-Coroner
o Atotal of $14,216 lower than budgeted amount was primarily the result of lower than expected utility costs and
lower expenditures for equipment.

Capital Projects

e A total of $11,355 lower than budgeted amount was primarily the result of lower expenditures for various
structure and improvement projects, such as the replacement of deteriorated ductwork and variable-air-volume
boxes throughout the Gates Building, replacement of chilled-water cooling coils located on the roof of the Gates
Building, and the Year-Round Emergency Shelter and Multi Service Center.

Miscellaneous

e A total of $10,493 lower than budgeted primarily due to annual leave payouts for small departments that were
budgeted but not used, potential union negotiation impacts that were budgeted but not utilized, and contingency
appropriations that were budgeted but not fully utilized in FY 2016-17.

OC Community Resources

e A total of $10,470 lower than budgeted amount primarily due to lower contract and administrative expenditures
combined for programs with the Community Investment, Office on Aging, and Veterans Services programs, less
operating costs spent for the Year-Round Emergency Shelter and Multi Service Center, Santa Ana Courtyard
Transitional Homeless Center initiatives, and for training, meetings, and tuition reimbursement.

OC Public Works

e A total of $9,069 lower than budgeted amount primarily due to lower expenditures in areas such as janitorial
services and supplies, maintenance and improvements, OCIT services support, and garage expenditures for
parking.

Property Tax System and Centralized Operations & Maintenance Support
e A total of $4,684 lower than budgeted amount due to the postponement of the Property Tax System re-
platforming project to the next fiscal year.

District Attorney
e A total of $4,539 lower than budgeted amount was primarily the result of cost containment efforts by the
department which reduced expenditures for S&S and IT equipment purchases.

OC Watersheds
o Atotal of $4,269 lower than budgeted amount was primarily due to the result of a reduction in contract services
for environmental monitoring and water quality compliance.

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2017, the County’s capital assets for both the governmental and business-type activities amounted to
$3,831,379, net of accumulated depreciation. The investment in capital assets includes land, structures and
improvements, land improvements, equipment, software, infrastructure, intangible in progress, land use rights,
and construction in progress. The total increase in the County’s investment in capital assets for the current year
was 5%.
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Capital assets for the governmental and business-type activities are presented below to illustrate changes:

CAPITAL ASSETS

(Net of Depreciation)
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Governmental Business-Type Increase
Activities Activities Total (Decrease)
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 % Change
Land $ 839,273 $ 834,406 $ 37,842 § 37,842 § 877,115 §$ 872,248 1%
Structures and
Improvements 552,210 572,331 481,227 499,151 1,033,437 1,071,482 (4)%
Land Improvements 3,811 2,436 - - 3,811 2,436 56 %
Equipment 139,846 109,997 25,589 23,898 165,435 133,895 24 %
Software 44,208 38,713 2,891 1,126 47,099 39,839 18 %
Infrastructure 1,165,681 1,121,121 246,003 244,289 1,411,684 1,365,410 3%
Intangible in
Progress 5,562 3,453 255 2,068 5,817 5,521 5%
Land Use Rights 7,602 7,602 - - 7,602 7,602 -
Construction in
Progress 175,447 118,864 103,932 40,555 279,379 159,419 75 %
Total $ 2,933,640 $ 2,808,923 $ 897,739 $ 848,929 $ 3,831,379 $ 3,657,852 5%

The following lists the significant capital asset expenditures in FY 2016-17:

General Fund

« $3,821 for the purchase of an office building for Probation

o $3,026 for Sheriff-Coroner upgrade of video management system and services, purchase of portable devices,
and integrated control systems for patrol vehicles

e $1,635 for the purchase of an Airbus helicopter for Sheriff-Coroner

e $1,376 for the construction costs associated with the Year-Round Emergency Shelter and Multi Service
Center

Flood Control District

$5,152 for the Greenville-Banning Channel Improvements project

$4,676 for the Santa Ana Dredging project

$2,016 for the Edinger Storm Channel Improvements project

$1,568 for the purchase of vehicles such as trailers, ten wheel haul trucks, and street sweepers
$1,542 for the Glassell Yard Campus Stormwater Low Impact Development Retrofit project
$1,465 for the Fullerton Creek Channel Project

Other Public Protection
« $11,500 for the purchase of communications equipment
e $9,729 for the replacement of obsolete radio equipment

Other Governmental Funds

$36,304 for the CUF Infrastructure Upgrade project

$19,212 for the new OC Animal Care Center construction

$14,449 for the La Pata Avenue Gap Closure/Camino Del Rio Extension construction
$3,436 for the Dana Point Harbor Revitalization

$2,641 for the Riley Wilderness Park Wagon Wheel creek restoration

$3,693 for the James A. Musick Facility Jail Expansion project
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Airport

e $51,630 for the Terminal Improvements project

o $2,895 for the Common Use Passenger Processing System Upgrade project
e $1,339 for the lighting systems upgrade project

Waste Management
$11,736 for the Frank R. Bowerman Landfill Soil Buttress and Composite Liner Construction project

.
* $11,308 for the Olinda Alpha Landfill Front Slope Improvement project

o $4,009 for the purchase of heavy equipment at the north regional landfill

* $2,106 for the purchase of heavy equipment at the central regional landfill

Internal Service Funds
e $12,270 for the purchase of vehicles for OC Fleet Services

Additional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in Note 4, Changes in Capital Assets.

Commitments for Capital Expenditures
At the end of FY 2016-17, significant commitments for capital expenditures included the following:

$154,618 for the Civic Center Facilities Master Plan project

$42,128 for the Airport's Terminal Improvements project

$19,015 for the Frank R. Bowerman Landfill Soil Buttress and Liner Construction project
$17,391 for the Edinger Avenue Bridge Replacement Over Bolsa Chica Channel project
$13,159 for the Olinda Front Face Improvement project

$12,339 for the La Pata Avenue Gap Closure/Widening, Phase | & Il project

$12,002 for the San Juan Creek Channel Phase IV-3700' to 6100’ U/S Stonehill Dr project
$9,923 for the Fullerton Creek Channel, D/S Western Ave to U/S Beach Blvd project
$7,945 for the purchase of Law enforcement and other vehicles

$6,426 for the CUF Infrastructure Upgrade project

$5,925 for the Santa Ana River Interceptor Line Construction

$4,915 for the purchase of an Airbus helicopter

$3,483 for the Dana Point Harbor Revitalization project

$3,454 for the Airport’s Paularino Gate Improvements project

Additional information on the County’s commitments for capital expenditures can be found in Note 14,
Construction and Other Significant Commitments.

Long-Term Debt

At June 30, 2017, the County had total debt obligations outstanding of $362,210 excluding long-term liabilities
such as compensated employee absences payable, Civic Center Facilities Master Plan financing, and capital
lease obligations payable. During the year, the County’s outstanding debt obligations decreased by 21%, which is
primarily attributable to the retirement of $136,187 of bond obligations, offset by $31,536 in additional Teeter Plan
Notes and $6,070 in additional interest accretion on capital appreciation bonds (CABs).

The County is limited by law in issuing general obligation bonded debt to 1.25 percent of the last equalized
assessment property tax roll. However, this does not affect the financing of any of the County’s planned facilities
or services. As of the end of the fiscal year, the County had no net general obligation bonded debt. The County’s
debt obligations are in the form of bonds, certificates of participation (COPs), notes, and other forms of debt not
covered by the general obligation bonded debt limitation.
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The following table summarizes the County’s long-term debt obligations at June 30, 2017:

LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total (Decrease)

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 % Change

Revenue Bonds $ 74,300 $ 122,870 $ 189,539 $ 197,069 $ 263,839 $ 319,939 (18)%

Certificates of Participation 811 1,262 - - 811 1,262 (36)%

Pension Obligation Bonds 11,220 19,140 - - 11,220 19,140 (41)%

Teeter Plan Notes 27,868 30,191 = - 27,868 30,191 (8)%
Add: Premium/(Discount)

on Bonds Payable 14,052 18,275 (2,221) (1,942) 11,831 16,333 (28)%

Add: Interest Accretion
on CABs 46,641 73,926 - - 46,641 73,926 B7)%
Total $ 174,892 $ 265,664 $ 187,318 $ 195,127 $ 362,210 $ 460,791 (21)%

The following summarizes the County’s long-term debt issuance during FY 2016-17:

Teeter Plan Notes On July 13, 2016, the County issued an additional $31,536 in Teeter Plan Notes to finance the
purchase of the delinquent property tax receivables associated with the Teeter Plan, leaving an outstanding
balance of $61,727. Proceeds of this issuance paid the participating agencies in the Teeter Plan the full amount of
their taxes from the secured property tax roll.

On December 29, 2016 and June 27, 2017, the County used all of the accumulated base taxes to redeem
$24,364 and $9,495, respectively, of the Teeter Plan Notes. As of June 30, 2017, the outstanding principal
amount of the Teeter Plan Notes was $27,868.

Additional information on the County’s long-term debt activity can be found in Note 10, Long-Term Obligations,
and Note 20, Subsequent Events.

Bond Ratings

The County maintained its Issuer Credit Rating (ICR) of Aa1 from Moody’s Investors Service (Moody's), AA+ from
Standard & Poor’s Global Ratings (S&P), and AA+ Issuer Default Rating (IDR) from Fitch Ratings. The IDR was
previously referred to as an implied General Obligation (GO) Bond rating. The implied rating was not reported
because the County does not have any general obligation bonds outstanding. In FY 2016-17, the following changes
occurred in the County’s underlying debt:

On October 4, 2016, Moody’s upgraded the ratings on the County’s 2005 Lease Revenue Bonds, 2006 Lease
Revenue Bonds, 2012 Lease Revenue Bonds, and 1991 Parking COPs to Aa2 from Aa3.

The County has the following long-term underlying debt ratings:

LONG-TERM DEBT RATINGS
June 30, 2017

Standard & Poor’s Moody’s Fitch
2005 Lease Revenue Bonds AA Aa2 AA
2006 Lease Revenue Bonds AA Aa2 AA
2012 Lease Revenue Bonds AA Aa2 NR
2016 Lease Revenue Bonds AA NR NR
1991 Parking COPs NR Aa2 NR
Teeter Plan Notes NR NR NR
1997A Pension Obligation Bonds NR Aa1 AA
Airport 2009A Revenue Bonds AA- Aa3 AA-
Airport 2009B Revenue Bonds AA- Aa3 AA-
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OTHER POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT MATTERS

The County’s management has determined that the following are significant matters that have a potential impact on
the County’s financial position or changes in financial position:

State Legislation and Budget

In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS)

On June 28, 2017, the State budget was enacted and included State General Fund to mitigate increases to
counties for the IHSS program associated with the end of the Coordinated Care Initiative. The increased cost may
constrain the ability to fully fund current and future operations; however, actual impacts to programs and services
is still being evaluated. The County’s CEO is participating in a state-wide working group developing options for
reform to enhance program sustainability and address long-term impacts to counties.

Orange County Vehicle License Fees (VLF)
On June 30, 2011, the Governor signed SB 89, which redirected the County’s annual receipt of approximately
$49,000 in VLF revenue (Revenue & Taxation Code Section 11001.5(a)(1) and 11005(a)).

All counties in California receive property taxes in lieu of VLF pursuant to Section 97.70 of the Revenue and
Taxation Code as a result of the VLF for property tax swap of 2004. However, in 2004, the County’s share of
property tax in lieu of VLF, which is also known as its “vehicle license fee adjustment amount (VLFAA),” was
reduced by approximately $54,000. This reduction was to offset the amount of VLF the County received until the
passage of SB 89, and that had been pledged for the service of bankruptcy related indebtedness at the time that
Section 97.70 was adopted in 2004.

The elimination of the County’s VLF revenue required the Auditor-Controller to calculate the County’s allocation of
property taxes in lieu of VLF in a manner consistent with the other 57 counties in the State. Due to the growth in
property valuation since 2005, when the VLF Swap was enacted, the calculated property tax in lieu of VLF was
$73,500 for FY 2012-13. This amount was included in the County’s budget for FY 2011-12 and 2012-13. In an
attempt to deprive the County not only of the $54,000 in VLF revenue, but also the $73,500 of annual property tax
revenue that was legally owed, the State Department of Finance initiated litigation to challenge the County’s
calculation of the VLFAA. Ultimately, the Court ruled in favor of the State.

The Court’s ruling resulted in the loss of the $73,500 VLFAA revenue and a requirement for the County to repay
$150,000 to the State ($147,000 retained in FYs 2011-12 and 2012-13, plus interest). On September 27, 2013,
Assembly Bill (AB) 701 was signed by the Governor to resolve the dispute between the State and the County. AB
701 provides for an additional $53,000 in annual VLFAA beginning in FY 2013-14, including growth, in lieu of the
$50,000 in property tax revenue previously provided by SB 8 X3, which was a flat amount with no growth. AB 701
provides stability for the County by securing the property tax revenues, including growth, and by allowing for
repayment of the $150,000 over five years. The $150,000 due to the State was formally set aside in reserve in the
FY 2013-14 First Quarter Budget Report. As of June 30, 2017, the remaining obligation to the State is $105,000.

Long-Term Financial Planning

Funding Progress of the County’s Retirement System (System)

The funded ratio of the System is a measure of the ability of the System to make obligated payments to current
retirees and future retirees. The funded ratio (valuation value of plan assets divided by actuarial accrued liability)
dropped from 82.76% in 2002 to 70.85% in 2004. Since 2004, the funded ratio increased to 74.08% in 2007 then
dropped to 62.52% in 2012. As of December 31, 2016, the funded ratio has increased to 73.06%. Despite the
increase in funding ratio resulting from 2016 actual market returns greater than expected, the System’s Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) has increased primarily due to the following factors: (1) higher than expected
salary increases, (2) unfavorable investment returns (after smoothing), and (3) actual contributions less than
expected, offset somewhat by (4) lower than expected cost of living adjustment (COLA) increases, and (5)
additional UAAL payments made by certain employers.
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On November 4, 2008, the voters in Orange County approved Measure J, which requires voter approval for any
future pension benefit enhancements. The County carefully monitors the activities at OCERS and regularly
provides input to OCERS management, as well as providing input at OCERS Board meetings as deemed
appropriate.

Reduction in OCERS Assumed Investment Rate of Return
The assumed investment rate of return is the rate of investment yield that the Plan will earn over the long-term
future.

On December 5, 2012, the OCERS Board voted to reduce the assumed investment rate of return from 7.75% to
7.25% effective July 2015. On October 16, 2017, the OCERS Board adopted a reduction in the assumed
investment rate of return to 7.00% effective July 1, 2019. The assumed rate of return reduction had the impact of
increasing contribution rates of members and plan sponsors.

OCERS Actuarial Funding Policy (Amortization)

On November 18, 2013, the OCERS Board adopted the actuarial funding policy to reduce the amortization period
for future UAAL from 30 years to 20 years, which included combining and re-amortizing the entire outstanding
UAAL balance as of December 31, 2012, over a single 20-year period. This will allow for future UAAL to be paid
off in a shorter period of time and will ultimately reduce retirement rates and costs over time.

OCERS Actuarial Assumptions

The 2014 through 2016 valuations were impacted by economic assumption changes, which flowed from the 2014
Triennial Study of Actuarial Assumptions. These changes, adopted by the OCERS Board on September 23, 2014,
included a decrease in the inflation assumption from 3.25% to 3.00% per annum. As a result of the 2017
Triennial Study of Actuarial Assumptions, the OCERS Board, on October 16, 2017, adopted a further decrease in
the inflation assumption to 2.75%, which will be effective with the 2017 valuation.

Requests for Information

We hope that the preceding information provided a general overview of the County’s overall financial status. For
questions or comments concerning information contained in this report, please contact the Auditor-Controller's
Office, County of Orange, 12 Civic Center Plaza, Santa Ana, CA 92701 or you can access our website at
WWW.ac.0cgov.com.
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Primary Units Primary Units
! . Governmental  Business-Type Governmental  Proprietary
Governmental  Business-Type Governmental  Proprietai o ess
Activities Activities Total CFcoc Catoptima Activities Activities Total CFcoc CalOptima
ASSETS LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 17575 S 31665 § 149240 § 2818 §
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2367012 S 615734 § 2982746 § 47449 § 527,773 ! - .
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 356,760 156,941 512,701 - 300 Sajaries and Employee Benefits Payable 46,825 1,020 47,845 27
Investments 67,557 39,300 106,857 - 1,599,854 Retainage Payable 5,720 1,102 6,822 1281
Deposits In-Lieu of Cash 25 46,903 46,928 - - Interest Payable 3.269 4,910 8,179 -
Intornal Balangos (9208) 0,205 - - Deposits from Others 50,569 48,405 98,974 - -
Due from Component Unit 339 e 339 - Due to Primary Government - - - 339 -
Due from Primary Government - - - 1 Due to Component Unit § 1 - 1 - -
Propaid Costs a22.327 4355 326,682 151 Due to Other Governmental Agencies 31,536 3,507 35,133 3818 198,205
Inventory of Materials and Supplies 910 > 1910 " Unearned Revenue 65,906 4,120 70,026 . 102,298
Roctivablos, Nt of Alowances Short-Term Bonds Payable 375,540 - 375,540 - -
Accounts 8,566 17,937 26,503 2 Long-Term Liabilties
Taxes 27,458 - 27,458 2425 Due Within One Year
Interest/Dividends. 5,688 1,665 7,353 42 SARI Line Loans 912 912 -
Deposits 1e21 100 son1 5231 Estimated Liabilty - Litigation and Claims 57,400 57,400 -
Advances W0 - %0 " - Interest Accretion on Capital Appreciation Bonds Payable 14,176 14,176 -
Due from Other Governmental Agencies, Net 410,849 3358 414,207 1,048 Insurance Claims Payable 54,026 - 54,026 >
Notes Receivable, Net 27,572 - 27,572 - g:;:l‘::"‘o?“:':“:w’j:hy:::zs - - - - 12333%
Net Other Postemployment Benefits 44,838 - 44,838 - - - - - - -
Capital Assels plov Compensated Employee Absences Payable 99,957 2,362 102,319 38 -
Not Depreciable/Amortizable 1,027,884 142,020 1,169,913 - 6,579 Capital Lease Obligations Payable 12607 - 12,607 -
Depreciable/Amortizable, Net 1,905,756 755,710 2,661,466 - 47722 Bonds Payable 21,826 35,090 56,916 -
Total Capital Assets 2 897,739 3,831,379 = 54,301 Pollution Remediation Obligation - 570 570 - -
Total Assets 6,569,107 1,793,327 8,362,434 56,349 2,731,406 Intangible Assets Obligations Payable 194 110 304 - -
——=— —meas. _Re=s SR Landfil Site Closure/Postclosure Liabilty - 2613 2613 - -
Due in More than One Year
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES SARI Line Loans 22,988 22,988 -
— Civic Center Faciliies Master Plan Loan 175,340 175,340 -
Deferred Charge on Refunding Estimated Liabilty - Litigation and Claims 55,000 - 55,000 - -
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pension Interest Accretion on Capital Appreciation Bonds Payable 32,465 - 32,465 -
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources Insurance Claims Payable 148,145 -~ 148,145 -
Compensated Employee Absences Payable 86,649 2,209 88,948 9
Arbitrage Rebate Payable 365 - 365 -
Capital Lease Obligations Payable 43,134 - 43,134 - -
Notes Payable 27,868 - 27,868 -
Bonds Payable 78,557 152,228 230,785 -
Pollution Remediation Obligation - 16,114 16,114 - -
Intangible Assets Obligations Payable 1,629 44 1,673 - -
Landfil Site Closure/Postclosure Liabilty - 155,868 155,868 - -
Net Pension Liability - - - - 15,431
Orange County Employees Retirement System 3,957,838 86,800 4,044,638 3,158 -
Extra-Help Defined Benefit Plan 1,952 43 1905 - -
Net Other Postemployment Benefit Obligation - - -
Total Liabilties 548,960 6,130,019 11,468
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension 546,666 11,658 558,324 1413

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,813,206 708,286 3,521,582 - 54,104
Restricted for:
Expendable
Pension Benefits 125,876 - 125,876 -
Capital Projects 164,400 - 164,400 -
Debt Service 33,409 36,181 69,590 -
Legally Segregated for Grants and Other Purposes 1,192,827 - 1,192,827 -
Regional Park Endowment 145 - 145 -
CalOptima - - -
Passenger Facility Charges Approved Capital Projects 2775 2,775 -
Capital Projects - Replacements and Renewals - 1,000 1,000 -
Landfil Closure/Postclosure 28,962 28,962 -
Landfil Corrective Action 8278 8,278 -
Wetland 879 879 -
Prima Deshecha/La Pata Closure - 104 104 - -
Nonexpendable
Regional Park Endowment 19 - 196 -
Unrestricted (Deficit) 2,611,463)

Total Net Position

$ 2,505,151
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County of Orange
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Basic Financial Statements
Statement of Activities
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Program
Indirect Operating
Direct Expenses Charges for Grants and
rograms Allocation Services Contributi
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
General Government $ $ (52.773) $ 41988 $ 12874 $ 95,199
Public Protection 31,273 307,630 566,760 10,171
Public Ways and Facilties (2.577) 67,796 64,603 7,292
Health and Sanitation 7,503 117,170 434,607 -
Public Assistance 11,559 40,589 987,695 618
Education 912 1,274 262 -
Recreation and Cultural Services 2,197 47,763 976 201
Interest on Long-Term Debt - - - -
Total Governmental Activities 1,906) 624,210 2,067,777 113,481
Business-Type Activities
Airport 124,610 912 150,260 51 270
Waste Management 104,170 979 153,842 18 1,558
Compressed Natural Gas 352 15 248 -~ -
Total Business-Type Activities 229,132 1,906 304,350 1,828
Total Primary Government 928560 § 2,067,846 $ 115,309
Component Units
Children and Families
Commission of Orange County ~ $ 34394 § - % - 8 26233 § -
CalOptima 3,513,349 - 3,551,420 15,766 -
Total Component Units § 3547743 § § 3551420 3 21999 3 -

Net (Expense) Revenue and Change

General Revenues
Taxes

Property Taxes, Levied for General Fund
Property Taxes, Levied for Flood Control District
Property Taxes, Levied for OC Parks
Property Taxes, Levied for OC Public Libraries
Property Taxes in-Lieu of Motor Vehicle License Fees
Other Taxes
Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs
State Allocation of Motor Vehicle License Fees
Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous

Transfers

Net
Net

Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Position

Position - Beginning of Year

Position - End of Year

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Primary c Units
Governmental _ Business-Type Governmental Proprietary
A Activiti Total CFcoc CalOptima g
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
$ (36.279) $ $ (36.279) § - s - General Government
(600,576) (600,576) - - Public Protection
41,763 41,763 - - Public Ways and Facilties
(41,840) (41,840) - - Health and Sanitation
(68,425) - (68,425) - - Public Assistance
(42,974) (42,974) - - Education
(63,809) (63,809) - Recreation and Cultural Services
(17.544) (17.544) -~ Interest on Long-Term Debt
829,684, Total Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities
- 25,059 25,059 - - Airport
- 50,269 50,269 - - Waste Management
- (119) (119) - - Compressed Natural Gas
- 75,209 75,209 - - Total Business-Type Activities
(829.684) 75,209 (754,475) - — Total Primary Government
Component Units
Children and Families
(8.161) - Commission or Orange County
- CalOptima
(8.161 37 Total Component Units
General Revenues
Taxes
287,212 287,212 - - Property Taxes, Levied for General Fund
98,563 98,563 - - Property Taxes, Levied for Flood Control District
76,493 76,493 - - Property Taxes, Levied for OC Parks
47,804 - 47,804 - - Property Taxes, Levied for OC Public Libraries
351,011 - 351,011 - Property Taxes in-Lieu of Motor Vehicle License Fees
98,216 78 98,294 - Other Taxes
8,434 - 8434 - ~ Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs
1,234 - 1,234 - ~ State Allocation of Motor Vehicle License Fees
19,760 3497 23,257 343 ~ Unrestricted Investment Eamings
80,229 1,386 81,615 231 27 Miscellaneous
25,922 (25.922) - - — Transfers
1,094,878 (20,961) 1073917 574 27 Total General Revenues and Transfers
265,194 54,248 319,442 (7.587) 53,864 Change in Net Position
989,997 1,195,712 2,185,709 51,622 662,467  Net Position - Beginning of Year
5 1255191 § 1249960 § 2505151 $ 44035 § 716331 Net Position - End of Year
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County of Orange Basic Financial Statements

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report Balance Sheet
June 30, 2017 Governmental Funds
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands) (Dollar Amounts in Thousands)
Flood Other Mental Other Total
General Control Public Health Governmental ~ Governmental
Fund District Protection Services Act Funds Funds
ASSETS ASSETS
Pooled Cash/Investments $ 531,226 § 460,016 § 179,285 $ 260,491 $ 684314 § 2115332 Pooled Cash/Investments
Cash/Cash Equivalents - - 12,188 - - 12,188 Cash/Cash Equivalents
Imprest Cash Funds 1,834 - - - - 1,834 Imprest Cash Funds
Restricted Cash and Investments with Trustee 1 - - - 355,754 355,755 Restricted Cash and Investments with Trustee
Investments 67,557 - - - - 67,557 Investments
Deposits In-Lieu of Cash - - - - 25 25 Deposits In-Lieu of Cash
Receivables Receivables
Accounts 9,590 635 176 - 2,502 12,903 Accounts
Taxes 5,701 1,460 - - 20,297 27,458 Taxes
Interest/Dividends 1,794 1,022 436 613 1,335 5,200 Interest/Dividends
Deposits 524 2,149 - - 2,148 4,821 Deposits
Advances 40 - - - - 40 Advances
Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables (4,077) (249) - - (96) (4,422) Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables
Due from Other Funds 104,918 2,802 3,608 - 37,963 149,291 Due from Other Funds
Due from Component Unit 339 - - - - 339 Due from Component Unit
Due from Other Governmental Agencies, Net 330,367 30,137 2,338 15,854 31,101 409,797 Due from Other Governmental Agencies, Net
Inventory of Materials and Supplies 838 346 317 - - 1,501 Inventory of Materials and Supplies
Prepaid Costs 367,934 4877 1,228 - 14,733 388,772 Prepaid Costs
Advances to Other Funds 3,800 - - - - 3,800 Advances to Other Funds
Notes Receivable, Net - - - - 27,572 27,572 Notes Receivable, Net
Total Assets $ 1,422,386 $ 503,195 $ 199,576 $ 276,958 $ 1177,648 $ 3,579,763 Total Assets
LIABILITIES LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 47,903 $ 9,028 § 12,913 $ - $ 26,475 $ 96,319 Accounts Payable
Retainage Payable 1,750 1,172 1 - 2,785 5,708 Retainage Payable
Salaries and Employee Benefits Payable 43,688 603 149 - 1,917 46,357 Salaries and Employee Benefits Payable
Interest Payable 2,376 - - - 34 2,410 Interest Payable
Deposits from Others 1,534 8,837 20,975 - 19,223 50,569 Deposits from Others
Due to Other Funds 43,725 10,431 15,307 15,288 60,321 145,072 Due to Other Funds
Due to Component Unit - - - - 1 1 Due to Component Unit
Due to Other Governmental Agencies 14,634 1 5,404 248 11,236 31,5623 Due to Other Governmental Agencies
Estimated Litigation and Claims - 7,400 - - - 7,400 Estimated Litigation and Claims
Unearned Revenue 38,668 786 675 4,463 21,314 65,906 Unearned Revenue
Bonds Payable 375,540 - - - - 375,540 Bonds Payable
Advances from Other Funds 784 - - - 32,640 33,424 Advances from Other Funds
Total Liabilities 570,602 38,258 55,424 19,999 175,946 860,229 Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Intergovernmental Revenues 58,651 25,118 855 - 11,015 95,639 Unavailable Revenue - Intergovernmental Revenues
Unavailable Revenue - Senate Bill 90 Mandated Claims, Net 24,637 - - - - 24,637 Unavailable Revenue - Senate Bill 90 Mandated Claims, Net
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 8,364 1,267 - - 1,390 11,021 Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes
Unavailable Revenue - Long-Term Notes Receivables - - - - 255 255 Unavailable Revenue - Long-Term Notes Receivables
Unavailable Revenue - Other 9,240 - - - 273 9,513 Unavailable Revenue - Other
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 100,892 26,385 855 - 12,933 141,065 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
FUND BALANCES FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 372,572 5,223 1,545 - 14,929 394,269 Nonspendable
Restricted 39,581 433,329 140,238 256,959 804,882 1,674,989 Restricted
Assigned 265,293 - 1,514 - 168,958 435,765 Assigned
Unassigned 73,446 - - - - 73,446 Unassigned
Total Fund Balances 750,892 438,552 143,297 256,959 988,769 2,578,469 Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances $ 1,422,386 $ 503,195 $ 199,576 $ 276,958 $ 1177648 $ 3,579,763 and Fund Balances

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Orange

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
June 30, 2017 to the Statement of Net Position
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands) (Dollar Amounts in Thousands)
The governmental funds Balance Sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balances — total governmental funds .
and net position — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. The Deferred Inflows of Resources:
difference in fund balances of ($1,323,278) is due to the long-term economic focus of the Statement of Net Position Deferred Inflows of Resources that have been earned but not
versus the short-term economic focus of the governmental funds. The components of the difference are described available to finance expenditures in the current period 141,065
below. Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension (541,059)
Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 2578469 Long-term liabilities, including bonds and notes payable, are not due and
Capital assets used in the operations of the County are not reported in the payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the
governmental funds financial statements: governmental funds:
Land 839,273
Structures and Improvements 1,235,290 Bonds gnd COPs Payable, Net (100.383)
Equipment 324,600 SARI Line Loans (23,900)
Software 122’549 Civic Center Facilities Master Plan Loan (175,340)
Infrastructure 1 760y496 Teeter Plan Notes Payable (27,868)
Land Use Rights ! 7’602 Compensated Employee Absences Payable (184,344)
Land Improvgments 4’246 Capital Lease Obligations Payable (48,931)
Construction in Progress 173’601 Intangible Assets Obligations Payable (1,823)
Intangible in Progress 5'497 Arbitrage Rebate Payable (365)
- - ' Interest Payable on Bonds (859)
Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization —(1.508,108) 2,875,046 Interest Accretion on Capital Appreciation Bonds (46,641)
Estimated Liability - Litigation and Claims (105,000)
Other assets used in governmental activities do not consume current financial County's Net Pension Liability —(3.921275)  (4,636,729)

resources, and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds: GASB Statement No. 45, "Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers

Prepaid Pension Investment with OCERS 125,876 for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions" requires an employer to
Prepaid Bond Insurance 71 125,947 record a net Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) asset for the difference
between the annual required contribution (ARC) and the amounts actually
The assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of contributed to the OPEB Plan. 44,838
resources of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities
in the Statement of Net Position. 47,444 Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 1,255,191

Deferred outflows of resources are similar to assets, but they do not meet the
definition of an asset at June 30, 2017. When all the recognition criteria are
met, the deferred outflows of resources will become an expense. The
counterpart to deferred outflows of resources are deferred inflows of
resources, which are not technically liabilities at June 30, 2017. When all
recognition criteria are met, the deferred inflows of resources will become
revenue or an increase to net position. The County reports the different types
of deferred outflows and inflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position
as follows:

Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Deferred Charge on Refunding 1,516
Employer retirement contribution subsequent to measurement date
and deferred recognition of changes to the net pension liability 618,654

Reclassification of prepaid pension contribution from prepaid costs to
deferred outflows of resources for the portion to be recognized in the next
measurement period. Refer to Note 17, Retirement Plans for further

information.
Prepaid Pension Contribution (194,218)
Deferred Outflows of Resources 194,218

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Orange

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Flood Other
General Control Public
Fund District Protection
Revenues
Taxes $ 681,836 108,050 -
Licenses, Permits, and Franchises 25,362 579 424
Fines, Forfeitures, and Penalties 67,648 13 4,010
Use of Money and Property 6,733 3,298 3,836
Intergovernmental 1,613,969 18,435 27,795
Charges for Services 442,591 14,771 17,880
Other 17,790 5,842 8,551
Total Revenues 2,855,929 150,988 62,496
Expenditures
Current
General Government 195,250 - -
Public Protection 1,260,068 111,708 29,078
Public Ways and Facilities 30,633 - -
Health and Sanitation 577,050 - -
Public Assistance 891,309 - -
Education - - -
Recreation and Cultural Services - - -
Capital Outlay 23,532 24,643 22,683
Debt Service
Principal Retirement 5,129 4177 -
Interest 8,564 8 -
Total Expenditures 2,991,535 140,536 51,761
w Excess (Deficit) of Revenues
1 Over Expenditures (135,606) 10,452 10,735
w
()] Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 311,968 365 16,578
Transfers Out (153,308) (3,933) (29,826)
Debt Issued - - -
Loan Proceeds - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 158,660 (3,568) (13,248)
Net Change in Fund Balances 23,054 6,884 (2,513)
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 727,838 431,668 145,810
Fund Balances - End of Year $ 750,892 438,552 143,297

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Mental Other Total
Health Governmental Governmental
Services Act Funds Funds
$ - $ 133,675 $ 923,561
- 1,844 28,209
- 25,279 96,950
1,247 53,384 68,498
151,829 359,985 2,172,013
- 55,641 530,883
- 31,766 63,949
153,076 661,574 3,884,063
- 72,413 267,663
- 840 1,401,694
- 66,536 97,169
161 1,561 578,772
- 182,655 1,073,964
- 42,564 42,564
- 106,356 106,356
- 105,450 176,308
- 90,813 100,119
- 38,517 47,089
161 707,705 3,891,698
152,915 (46,131) (7,635)
- 324,682 653,593
(137,914) (306,910) (631,891)
- 31,536 31,536
- 175,340 175,340
(137,914) 224,648 228,578
15,001 178,517 220,943
241,958 810,252 2,357,526
$ 256,959 $ 988,769 3 2,578,469

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses, Permits, and Franchises
Fines, Forfeitures, and Penalties
Use of Money and Property
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Other
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current
General Government
Public Protection
Public Ways and Facilities
Health and Sanitation
Public Assistance
Education
Recreation and Cultural Services
Capital Outlay
Debt Service
Principal Retirement
Interest
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficit) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Debt Issued
Loan Proceeds
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year
Fund Balances - End of Year
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County of Orange

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

The Net Change in Fund Balances for governmental funds of $220,943 in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances differs from the Change in Net Position for governmental activities of $265,194 reported in the
government-wide Statement of Activities. The differences arise primarily from the long-term economic focus of the
Statement of Activities versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental funds. The main components of

the difference are described below.

Net Change in Fund Balances — Total Governmental Funds

When capital assets used in governmental activities are purchased or
constructed in the current fiscal year, the resources expended for those
assets are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.
However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of these assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
or amortization expense. In addition, donations, transfers, gains or
losses from sales and other disposals/acquisitions of capital assets are
not reported in governmental funds. These assets, and their
associated depreciation/amortization expense, must be reported or
removed in the government-wide financial statements. The details of
the expenditures for capital outlay, capital contributions, depreciation
/amortization and other disposals/acquisitions of capital assets are as
follows:

Expenditures for Capital Outlay:
Land
Construction in Progress
Equipment
Software
Net of Gains/(Losses) on Capital Assets Dispositions
Depreciation/Amortization Expense
Capital Contributions

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds) is recorded as an other
financing source in the governmental funds because it provides current
financial resources. Similarly, the repayment of principal on long—term
debt or the payment of other long-term liabilities is reported as an
expenditure in the governmental funds because current financial
resources have been consumed. Bond proceeds, net of payments to
escrow agents and principal payments, are reported as financing
sources in governmental funds and thus contribute to the change in
fund balance. These transactions do not have any effect on net
position in the government-wide financial statements. The details of the
principal and other long-term liability payments and other financing
sources are as follows:

Teeter Plan Notes Proceeds
Civic Center Facilities Master Plan Loan Proceeds
Principal and Other Long-Term Liability Payments:
Bonds Payable
Teeter Plan Notes Payable
SARI Line Loans Payable
Capital Lease Obligations Payable

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 220,943

2,599
127,943
38,381
13,459
16,103
(82,233)
436 116,688

(31,536)
(175,340)

56,941
33,859
4,122

5197 (106,757)

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)
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Revenues related to prior years that are available in the current fiscal
year are reported as revenue in the governmental funds. In contrast,
revenues that are earned, but unavailable in the current year are
deferred in the governmental funds. For government-wide reporting,
revenue is recognized when earned, regardless of availability. The
following amounts reflect the net effect of the timing differences for
revenue recognition:

Government Mandated and Voluntary Nonexchange
Property Tax Revenues

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require
the use of current financial resources; and therefore, are not reported
as expenditures in the governmental funds until paid. The following
amounts represent the net effect of these differences in the treatment
of long-term liabilities:

Accrued Interest Expense on Bonds Payable
Amortization of Deferred Charges

Change in Compensated Employee Absences
Change in Arbitrage Rebate

OCERS Investment Gain

Estimated Litigation and Claims Expense
Interest Accretion on Capital Appreciation Bonds

Internal service funds (ISF) are used by management to charge the
costs of certain activities, such as insurance, transportation, and
telephone services to individual governmental funds. The operating
income of internal service funds is eliminated in the Statement of

Activities as an adjustment to the various functions to arrive at a break-

even basis. Also, general or non-program revenues and expenses of
the internal service funds are recorded in governmental activities.

Allocation of ISF's Operating Gain to Governmental
Activities, net of Business-Type Activities
Consolidation of Nonoperating Revenues, Expenses
and Transfers to Governmental Activities

For FY 2016-17, the OPEB cost was $46,122, and the County
contributed $47,853, which was deposited in the Retiree Medical
Trust. The County contributed more than the required OPEB cost.
Cumulatively, the County still has a net OPEB Asset.

GASB Statement No. 68 requires an employer to record pension
expense and employer contribution that affects the County's
proportionate share of the net pension liability.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

(16,132)
(3,058) (19,190)
520
35,097
(1,510)
(132)
14,236
25,000
(6,070) 67,141
24,944
12,660 37,604
1,731
(52,966)
$ 265,194
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County of Orange

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Budgetary Comparison Statement
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - GENERAL FUND

Variance
Actual on Positive
Original Budget Final Budget Budgetary Basis (Negative)
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Taxes s 67135  § 671487  § 681312 § 9,825
Licenses, Permits, and Franchises 25952 26,192 25276 (916)
Fines, Forfeitures, and Penalties 33,713 63426 67,275 3849
Use of Money and Property 6,837 6,837 9,929 3,092
Intergovernmental 1,639,779 1,650,850 1,628,329 (22,521)
Charges for Services 476,842 478,732 451,566 (27,166)
Other 21,131 19,823 21782 1,959
Transfers In 373,468 404,277 307,279 (96,998)
Bond Issuance Proceeds - 100 - (100)
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 3249078 3,321,724 3,192,748 (128,976)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
General Government:
Assessor 40,006 40074 37,122 2952
Auditor-Controller 21,094 21,162 19,137 2,025
Board of Supervisors - 1st District 1,243 1,243 1,172 7
Board of Supervisors - 2nd District 1,309 1,309 973 336
Board of Supervisors - 3rd District 1218 1,218 949 269
Board of Supervisors - 4th District 1,203 1,203 1,051 152
Board of Supervisors - 5th District 1,186 1,186 1,097 89
Capital Acquisition Financing 5,856 5,856 5,843 13
Capital Projects 57,726 63478 52,123 11,355
CAPS Program 15,127 15,962 14,091 1,871
Clerk of the Board 4725 4861 4,394 467
County Counsel 13,712 11,780 8,790 2,990
County Executive Office 22,208 23,779 21374 2,405
Data Systems Development Project 9,391 10,658 8,207 2451
Employee Benefits 1,657 2,157 1,391 766
Human Resources 6,886 6,950 51477 1,773
w IBM Mainframe 3471 3471 3171 ~
d IT Support Services 772 1,925 1,887 38
w Miscellaneous 55,352 83,081 72,588 10,493
OC Campaign Finance and Ethics Commission 549 549 128 421
~ Prepaid Pension Obligation - 100 1 99
Property Tax System Centralized O & M Support 7.762 7,762 3078 4,684
Registrar of Voters 15,755 16,223 15,672 551
The Office of the Performance Audit 807 606 73 533
Treasurer - Tax Collector 14,526 14,594 12,119 2475
Utiities 14,886 15,580 13,297 2,283
2005 Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds 11,245 22964 22,964 -
Public Protection:
Alternate Defense 7,190 7,140 5,166 1,974
Building & Safety 14,535 15,672 15,588 8
Child Support Services 59,118 59,118 55499 3619
Clerk-Recorder 14,613 15,012 13,586 1,426
Detention Release 2014 2,064 1,469 595
District Attorney 141,726 142,356 137,817 4539
District Attorney - Public Administrator 3216 3216 2,604 612
Emergency Management Division 4370 3820 3409 411
Grand Jury 584 985 914 71
HCA Public Guardian 5616 5817 4,932 885
Juvenile Justice Commission 178 178 134 44
Office of Independent Review 455 455 21 434
Probation 183,558 184,278 178,284 5,994
Public Defender 74,443 74514 71,863 2,651
Sheriff - Coroner 652,049 671,863 657,647 14,216
Sheriff - Coroner Communications 12,963 13,141 10,248 2,893
Sheriff Court Operations 59,866 63,431 63,182 249
Trial Courts 65,069 67,003 65,331 1,762
Public Ways and Facilies:
OC Public Works 51,622 53,809 44,740 9,069
Health and Sanitation:
Health Care Agency 631,240 634,131 575,893 58,238
0OC Watersheds 16,510 16,510 12,241 4,269
Public Assistance:
OC Community Resources 66,174 67,581 57,111 10,470
Social Services Agency 901,649 918,401 853,459 64,042
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 3,208,130 3400016 3.159,007 241,009
Excess (Deficit) of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses. (49,052) (78,202) 33741 § 33
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 688,657 688,657 688,657
Fund Balances - End of Year 5 639605 $ 610365 § 722,398

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT

53

Variance
Actual on Positive
Original Budget Final Budget Budgetary Basis (Negative)
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Taxes s 95,371 § 95371 § 107,845  $ 12474
Licenses, Permits, and Franchises 135 135 579 444
Fines, Forfeitures, and Penalties 12 12 13 1
Use of Money and Property 2611 2611 5354 2,743
Intergovernmental 30,541 30,541 3,790 (26,751)
Charges for Services 13,570 14,559 15211 652
Other 961 961 5,857 4,89
Transfers In 365 365 365
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 143,566 144,555 139,014 (5.541)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Public Protection:
OC Flood 195,019 198,707 122,450 76,257
OC Santa Ana River 80 80 - 80
OC Flood - Capital 65,998 65,998 14,857 51,141
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 261,097 264,785 137,307 127,478
Excess (Deficit) of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (117,531) (120,230) 1707 § 121,937
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 445,843 445,843 445,843
Fund Balances - End of Year s 328312 § 325613 § 447,550
54



8e-d

County of Orange
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 Budgetary Comparison Statement
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands) (Dollar Amounts in Thousands)
BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - OTHER PUBLIC PROTECTION MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT
Variance Variance
Actual on Positive Actual on Positive
Original Budget Final Budget Budgetary Basis (Negative) Original Budget Final Budget Budgetary Basis (Negative)
Revenues and Other Financing Sources Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Licenses, Permits, and Franchises $ 363 § 363 $ 424 $ 61 Use of Money and Property $ 800 § 800 § 2,385 § 1,585
Fines, Forfeitures, and Penalties 2,517 2,517 4,010 1,493 Intergovernmental 146,403 146,403 151,829 5,426
Use of Money and Property 826 838 4464 3626 Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 147,203 147,203 154,214 7,011
Intergovernmental 15,727 20,723 27,795 7,072
Charges for Services 20,136 20,585 17,876 (2,709) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Other 11,191 10,469 8,542 (1,927) General Government:
Transfers In 5308 21,881 20,541 (1,340) Mental Health Services Act 167,066 167,066 138,075 28,991
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 56,068 77.376 83.652 6.276 Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 167,066 167,066 138,075 28,991
Excess (Deficit) of Revenues and Other Financing
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses Sources Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (19,863) (19,863) 16,139

Public Protection:

Orange County Methamphetamine Lab Investigation Team 437 530 339 191 Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 241,257 241,257 241,257
County Automated Fingerprint Identification 1,498 1424 1,228 196 Fund Balances - End of Year $ 221394 S 221394 $ 257,396
Building and Safety - Operating Reserve 1,556 4,856 1975 2,881
Narcotic Forfeiture and Seizure 455 455 410 45
Sheriff-Regional Narcotics Suppression Program 6,205 9,667 5,407 4,260
Motor Vehicle Theft Task Force 3,245 3,491 3330 161
Regional Narcotic Suppression Program-Dept of Treasury 459 463 248 215
Regional Narcotic Suppression Program-Other 2,851 2,387 1,126 1,261
Clerk Recorder Special Revenue 8,209 8,209 5,090 3,119
Clerk Recorder Operating Reserve 2,005 2,005 1 2,004
Real Estate Prosecution 1,653 1,679 1,678 1
Proposition 64 - Consumer Protection 3,654 3,654 2,882 772
Proposition 69 - DNA Identification 1,401 1,984 931 1,053
Traffic Violator 1,161 1,161 218 943
Sheriff Narcotics Program - Dept of Treasury - 1 - 1
Sheriff Narcotics Program - Dept of Justice 3976 3,906 2,628 1,278
Sheriff Narcotics Program - Other 520 802 49 753
Orange County Jail 1,848 1,819 501 1,318
Sheriff Narcotics Program - CALMMET - Treasury 1,160 1,797 639 1,158
Sheriff's State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 1,765 1,765 1418 347
California Automated Fingerprint Identification Operational Costs 1,246 1,213 1014 199
California Automated Fingerprint Identification Systems Costs 28,622 28,622 624 27,998
Sheriff's Supplemental Law Enforcement Services 3,115 3,115 1,256 1,859
District Attorney's Supplemental Law Enforcement Services 1,027 1,034 1,034 -
Excess Public Safety Sales Tax 6,259 6,259 6,056 203
Sheriff - Coroner Replacement and Maintenance 12,433 12,433 1,661 10,772
Ward Welfare 164 164 131 33
Sheriff's Substations Fee Program 3343 3343 44 3,299
Jail Commissary 11,063 11,002 8451 2,641
Inmate Welfare 9,044 9,044 3,89 5148
Child Support Program Development 3524 3,524 1,028 2,49
800 MHz Countywide C c i System 18,165 27,534 24,802 2,642
Delta Special Revenue 28 28 4 24
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 142,091 159,460 80,189 79,271
Excess (Deficit) of Revenues and Other Financing

Sources Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (86,023) (82,084) 3,463

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 129,132 129,132 129,132

Fund Balances - End of Year $ 43109 § 47048 S 132,595

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Business-Type Activities -

6€-d

Business-Type Activities -

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Governmental Compressed Activities -
Compressed Activities - Waste Natural Gas Internal
Waste Natural Gas nternal Airport Management (Nonmajor) Total Service Funds
Airport Management (Nonmajor) Total Service Funds LIABILITIES
ASSETS
= Current Liabilties
Current Assets Accounts Payable $ 21242 § 10,421 2 s 31665 21,256
Pooled CashInvestments 204655 $ 392373 § 100 § 597,128 § 237,275 Retainage Payable 52 1,050 - 1,102 12
Cash Equivalents/Specific Investments 11,195 - - 11,195 - Salaries and Employee Benefits Payable 433 587 - 1,020 468
Cash/Cash Equivalents 7,362 - - 7,362 375 Unearned Revenue 3984 136 - 4,120 -
Imprest Cash Funds 14 35 - 49 8 Due to Other Funds 2,605 3934 19 6,558 2,521
Restricted Cash and Investments with Trustee 41,091 - - 41,091 5 Due to Other Governmental Agencies 154 3443 - 3,507 13
Restrioted Pooled Cash/investments 1,613 647 - 2,260 - Insurance Claims Payable - - - 54,026
Deposits In - Lieu of Cash 29,969 16,934 - 46,903 - Compensated Employee Absences Payable 1,057 1,305 2,362 1,068
Receivables Pollution Remediation Obligation - 570 - 570 -
Accounts 4,170 10,737 - 14,907 137 Intangible Assets Obligations Payable 103 7 110 -
Passenger Facility Charges 2775 - - 2,775 - Landfill Site Closure/Postclosure Liabilty - 2613 2,613 -
Interest/Dividends 576 1,089 - 1,665 488 Bonds Payable 35,090 - - 35,090
Deposits - 100 - 100 - Capital Lease Obligations Payable - - - -
Pollution Remediation Obligation Recoveries 256 - - 256 - Interest Payable 4,910 - - 4,910
Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables - (1) - ) (52) Deposits from Others 30,582 17,823 -~ 48,405

Due from Other Funds 52 86 5 143 4717 Total Current Liabilties 100,212 41,889 21 142,122

Due from Other Governmental Agencies 649 2,709 - 3,358 1,052

Inventory of Materials and Supplies - - - - 409 Noncurrent Liabiliies

Prepaid Costs 2,149 2,206 - 4,355 1,826 Insurance Claims Payable - - - - 148,145

Total Current Assets 306,526 426,915 105 733,546 246,240 Compensated Employee Absences Payable 951 1,348 - 1,194
Pollution Remediation Obligation 994 15,120 -

Noncurrent Assets Intangible Assets Obligations Payable 37 7 - -
Restricted Cash and Investments with Trustee 12,824 - - 12,824 - Landfil Site Closure/Postclosure Liabilty - 155,868 - -
Restricted Pooled Cash/investments - 9,482 - 9,482 - Bonds Payable 152,228 - -
Restricted Pooled Cash/investments - Closure Net Pension Liability 38,570 48,273

and Postclosure Care Costs - 91,284 - 91,284 - Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Specific Investments 39,300 - - 39,300 -
Advances to Other Funds - 29,624 - 29,624 - Total Liabilities 21 274,118
Capital Assets:
Land 15,678 22,164 - 37,842 - DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Construction in Progress 76,247 27,685 - 103,932 1,846
Intangible Assets in Progress - 255 - 255 65 Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension 5157 6,501 - 11,658 5,607
Structures and Improvements 764,854 24,409 - 789,263 11,788 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 5,157 6,501 - 11,658 5,607
Accumulated Depreciation (295,672) (12,364) - (308,036) (6412)
Equipment : 71,151 - ,963 129,026 NET POSITION
goumulated Depreciation 2'28133? 3(;?1 o - (58.374) (77.719) Net Investment n Capital Assots 423306 284,980 - 708,286 51,694
Accumulated Depreciation (183,006) (192,159) - - Restricted for:
Intangible Assets - Amortizable 3,015 626 - Debt Service § 36,181 36,181 -
mcumulated Amortisation 528 220 - Passenger Facility Charges Approved Capital Projects 2,775 2,775 -
628 (222) Capital Projects - Replacements and Renewals 1,000 - 1,000 -
Total Capital Assets 612,745 284,994 -
Total Noncomont Aveate 64560 5381 = Landfil Closure/Postclosure - 28,962 - 28,962 -
. . Landfil Corrective Action - 8,278 - 8,278 -
Wetland - 879 - 879 -
Total Assets 971,395 842,209 105 1,813,799 304,834 Prima Deshechalla Pata Closure - o - 10 -
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES Unrestricted 217,656 259,669 84 477,409 (18,164)
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pension 7672 9579 - 17,251 8,421 Total Net Position $ 680918 § 582872 84 1.263874  $ 33,530
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 7672 9,579 - 17,251 8,421
Adjustment to Reflect the Consolidation of Internal Service
Funds' Activities Related to Enterprise Funds 996
Cumulative Effect of Prior Years' Internal Service Funds Allocation (14,910)
Net Position of Business-Type Activities $ 1,249,960
The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

STATEMENT OF , AND IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds
Governmental
Compressed Activities -
Waste Natural Gas Internal
Airport Management (Nonmajor) Total Service Funds
Operating Revenues
Use of Money and Property § 111401 § 4443 § - 5 115844 1,889
Licenses, Permits, and Franchises - 56 - 5 -
Charges for Services 18,760 149,302 248 168,310 94,841
Insurance Premiums - - - - 324,975
Total Operating Revenues 130,161 153,801 248 284,210 421,705
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Employee Benefits 19,497 26,271 - 45,768 21,815
Services and Supplies 28,186 19,339 313 47,838 25,816
Professional Services 40,963 14,478 53 55,494 58,366
Operating Leases 293 702 1 996 1,630
Insurance Claims and Premiums - - 279,586
Pollution Remediation Expense 5178 5178 -
Other Charges - - - 455
Taxes and Other Fees 166 21,800 21,966 1
Landfill Site Closure/Postclosure Costs - 418 418 -
Depreciation/Amortization 29,820 17.439 47,259 8,086
Total Operating Expenses 118,925 105,625 224917 395,765
Operating Income (Loss) 11,236 48,176 59,293 25,940
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Fines, Forfeitures, and Penalties 198 41 239 -
Intergovernmental Revenues 51 18 69 1,147
Interest and Investment Income 1,436 2,061 3,497 791
Interest Expense (7,104) - - (7,104) -
Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Capital Assets (23) 1 - (12) 248
Passenger Facility Charges Revenue 19,901 - - 19,901 -~
Other Taxes - - 78 78 1
Other Revenue, Net 863 522 - 1,385 5789
Total Nonoperating Revenues 15,322 2653 78 18,053 7,986
Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers 26,558 50,829 @1) 77,346 33,926
Capital Grant Contributions - - 270 -
Capital Contributions 1,558 - 1,558 454
Transfers In 33 - 33 8,321
Transfers Out (25.805) 150 (25.955) (4.101)
Change in Net Position 26,828 26,615 (191) 53,252 38,600
Net Position - Beginning of Year 654,090 556,257 (5.070)
Net Position - End of Year § 680918 § 582,872 35 33,530
Adjustment to Reflect the Consolidation of Internal Service
Funds' Activities Related to Enterprise Funds 996
Increase in Net Position of Business-Type Activities $ 54,248

The notes to the basic financial are an integral part of this
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County of Orange

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Basic Financial Statements
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers
Cash Received for Premiums within the County's Entity
Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services
Payments to Employees for Services
Payments for Interfund Services
Receipts for Interfund Services Used
Landfill Site Closure/Postclosure Care Costs
Payment for Taxes and Other Fees
Other Operating Receipts
Other Operating Payments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Intergovernmental Revenues
Other Taxes
Advances to Other Funds
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing
Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Capital Assets
Principal Paid on Bonds
Interest Paid on Long - Term Debt
Capital Grant Contributions
Passenger Facility Charges Received
Principal Paid on Capital Lease Obligations
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing
Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on Investments
Purchase of Investments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Governmental

Compressed Activities -

Waste Natural Gas Internal

Airport (Nonmajor) Total Service Funds
$ 131375 § 153921 § 248 285544 $ 28870
- - - - 324,975
(67.613) (31,893) (367) (99,873) (381,042)
(19,903) (27.165) - (47,068) (22,101)
(95) - (254) (349) (3,242)
- 4,901 - 4,901 70,395

- (2.613) - (2.613) -
(166) (21,800) - (21,966) (1)
967 5,504 - 6471 5,789
- (5.880) - (5.880) (2.404)
44,565 74,975 (373) 119,167 21,229
- 33 - 33 8,321

= (25.805) (150) (25.955) (4,101)
152 18 - 170 1,147
- - 78 78 11

- (24,057) - (24,057) -
152 (49.811) (72) (49.731) 5378
(46,159) (31.917) - (78,076) (13,658)
(7.530) - - (7.530) -
(9.999) - - (9.999) -
1,915 - - 1,915 -
19,267 - - 19,267 -
- - - - (6.900)

9 11 - 20 -
(42.497) (31,906) - (74.403) (20558)
1,424 1,778 2 3,204 685
(13.851) - - (13.851) -
(12.427) 1,778 2 (10,647) 685
(10,207) (4.964) (443) (15,614) 6,734
276,137 498,785 543 775,465 230,929
$ 265930 § 493821 § 100 750851 § __ 237.663

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Compressed Activities -
Waste Natural Gas Internal
Airport Management Nonmaijor) Total Service Funds
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss) $ 11236 $ 48176 § (119§ 59293 § 25940
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation/Amortization 29,820 17,439 - 47,259 8,086
Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties 198 2 - 239 -
Other Revenue 863 522 - 1,385 5789
(Increases) Decreases In:
Deposits In-Lieu of Cash 1,460 (363) - 1,007 -
Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowances 801 (262) - 539 (29)
Due from Other Funds (52) 3,302 3) 3,247 (2.134)
Due from Other Governmental Agencies (81) 188 - 107 (397)
Inventory of Materials and Supplies - - - - 3
Prepaid Costs (222) (169) - (391) (213)
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pension 2,454 3,246 - 5,700 3,063
Increases (Decreases) In
Accounts Payable 1,882 1,549 2 3433 245
Retainage Payable 3 - - 3 10
Salaries and Employee Benefits Payable (614) (796) - (1.410) (686)
Unearned Revenue 521 16 - 537 -
Due to Other Funds (43) 1,599 (253) 1,303 1532
Due to Other Governmental Agencies (24) 375 - 351 8
Insurance Claims Payable - - - - (17.325)
Compensated Employee Absences Payable (34) (98) - (132) 148
Pollution Remediation Obligation - 4,500 - 4,500 -
Deposits from Others (1,557) 557 - (1.000) -
Net Pension Liability (2,916) (3.776) - (6.692) (4.008)
Landfil Site Closure/ Postclosure Liability - (2.194) - (2.194) -
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension 870 1123 - 1,993 1,197
Total Adjustments 33,329 26,799 (254) 59,874 @.711)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities § 44565 § 74975 § (373) § 119167 § 21,229
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents to
Statement of Net Position Accounts
Pooled Cash/lnvestments $ 204655 $ 392373 § 100 § 507128 § 237,275
Cash Equivalents/Specific Investments 11,195 - - 11,195 -
Cash/Cash Equivalents 7,362 - - 7,362 375
Imprest Cash Funds 14 35 - 49 8
Restricted Cash and Investments with Trustee 41,091 (1) - - 41,001 5
Restricted Pooled Cash/Investments 1,613 10,129 - 11,742
Restricted Pooled Cash/Investments - Closure and
Postclosure Care Costs - 91,284 -~ 91,284 -
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 265930 § 493821 § 100 $ 750851 S 237,663

Schedule of Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
- The Internal Service Funds gained $248 on disposition of capital assets.

- Airport had a $23 loss on disposition of capital assets.

- Waste Management gained $11 on disposition of capital assets.

- The Internal Service Funds' acquisition of capital assets with accounts payable is $1,532.
- Airport's acquisition of capital assets with accounts payable is $14,759.

- Airport's acquisition of capital assets with retainage payable is $45.

- Waste Management's acquisition of capital assets with accounts payable is $2.414.

(1) Does not include $12,824 from Airport's nonliquid Restricted Cash and Investments with Trustee.
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June 30, 2017
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Basic Financial Statements
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Private- Pension and Other Post-
Purpose Trust Investment Employment Benefit Agency
Funds Trust Funds Trust Funds Funds
ASSETS
Pooled Cash/Investments $ 62,928 § 5241317 § 297 352,816
Cash/Cash Equivalents - - - 206
Restricted Cash and Investments
Restricted Investments with Trustee
Money Market Mutual Funds 4,653 - 109,503 38,313
Mutual Bond Funds - - 6,377 -
Stable Value Fund - - 15,499 -
Restricted Cash with OCERS - - 268,394 -
Total Restricted Cash and Investments 4,653 - 399,773 38,313
Investments - - - 1,082
Deposits In-Lieu of Cash - - - 54,565
Receivables
Accounts - - - 475
Taxes - - - 302,964
Interest/Dividends 155 15,706 14 12,145
Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables - - - (179,589)
Due from Other Governmental Agencies 1 - 1,477 3,181
Land and Improvements Held for Resale 133 - - -
Notes Receivable - - - 29,431
Total Assets 67,870 5,257,023 401,561 615,589
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charge on Refunding 333 - - -
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 333 - - =
LIABILITIES
Bonds Payable 26,238 - - -
Interest Payable 339 - - 9,907
Deposits from Others - - - 18,457
Monies Held for Others - - - 203,981
Due to Other Governmental Agencies 7 115 2 66,011
Unapportioned Taxes - - - 317,233
Total Liabilities 26,584 115 2 615,589
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charge on Refunding 114 - - -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 114 - - -
NET POSITION
Restricted for Pension Benefits and Other Purposes 41,505 5,256,908 401,559 -
Total Net Position $ 41505 $ 5256908 $ 401,559 -

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Additions:

Contributions to Pension and Other Postemployment

Benefit Trust Funds:
Employer
Employee
Contributions to Pooled Investments
Contributions to Private-Purpose Trust
Intergovernmental Revenues
Other Revenues
Interest and Investment Income
Less: Investment Expense
Total Additions

Deductions:
Benefits Paid to Participants
Distributions from Pooled Ir

Distributions from Private-Purpose Trust
Professional Services
Tax Pass-Throughs
Interest Expense
Total Deductions

Change in Net Position:
Private-Purpose Trust
External Investment Pool
Employees' Pension and Other Post-
Employment Benefits
Net Position, Beginning of Year
Net Position, End of Year

Private-

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Purpose Trust

Funds

Pension and Other Post-
Employment Benefit
Trust Funds

Investment
Trust Funds

$ - - 8 64,006
- - 3,687

- 9,048,148 -
72,203 - -
5,137 - -
628 - -
609 23,135 40,148
(5) (2,814) (603)
78,572 9,068,469 107,238
- - 37,722

- 8,384,013 -
65,213 - -
112 - 47

23 - -

931 - -
66,279 8,384,013 37,769
12,293 - -
- 684,456 -

- - 69,469
29,212 4,572,452 332,090
B 41,505 5256908 _§ 401,559

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Orange

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report Notes to the Basic
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 Financial Statements
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands) (Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies of the County of Orange: A. Reporting Entity (Continued
A. Reporting Entity Blended Component Units (Continued)

The County is a legal subdivision of the State of California charged with general governmental powers. The
County's powers are exercised through an elected five-member Board of Supervisors (the Board), which, as
the governing body, is responsible for the legislative and executive control of the County. The County
provides a full range of general government services, including police protection, detention and correction,
public assistance, health and sanitation, recreation, library, flood control, public ways and facilities, waste
management, airport management, and general financial and administrative support.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of America, these
financial statements present financial information for both the County (the primary government) and its
component units, entities for which the County is considered to be financially accountable. Blended
component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance, part of the County's operations, and
the Board is typically their governing body. Therefore, data from these component units are combined with
data of the primary government. Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in
the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the County.
Management applied the criteria of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14,
“The Financial Reporting Entity,” Statement No. 39, “Determining Whether Certain Organizations are
Component Units — An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14,” Statement No. 61, “The Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus — An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34,” and Statement No.
80, “Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units — An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14,” to
determine whether the component units should be reported as blended or discretely presented component
units. The criteria included whether the County appoints the voting majority, there is a financial
benefit/burden relationship, the County is able to impose its will, the component unit is fiscally dependent on
the County, the component unit’s governing body is substantially the same as the County, and management
of the County have operational responsibility for the activities of the component unit. These criteria were
used to determine the following:

Blended Component Units

Orange County Flood Control District The governing body of the District is the County’s governing
body. Among its duties, it approves the District’s budget, determines the District’s tax rates, approves
contracts, and appoints the management. The District is reported in governmental fund types.

Orange County Housing Authority The governing body of the Authority is the County’s governing body.
Among its duties, it approves the Authority’s budget and policies that govern the administration of
housing assistance programs and appoints the management. The Authority is reported in governmental
fund types.

Orange County Public Financing Authority The Authority is a joint powers authority of the County and
the Orange County Development Agency (OCDA), formed to provide financial assistance to the County
by financing the acquisition, construction and improvement of public facilities in the County. The
governing body of the Authority is the County’'s governing body. The Authority is reported in
governmental fund types. With the passage of ABX1 26 dissolving redevelopment agencies statewide
effective February 1, 2012, the Authority will not issue any new debt.

South Orange County Public Financing Authority The Authority is a joint powers authority of the County
and Community Facilities District 88-2 of the County of Orange (Lomas Laguna), formed to provide for
the financing of public capital improvements. The governing body of the Authority is the County’s
governing body. The Authority is reported in governmental fund types.

Capital Facilities Development Corporation The Corporation has its own three member governing body
appointed by the County’s governing body. The purpose of the Corporation is to facilitate financings,
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acquisitions of property, and other financial and property related transactions, by or for the benefit of the
County, including but not limited to purchasing property from or for the benefit of, borrowing or loaning
money and selling or leasing property to, and otherwise participating in financial and leasing
transactions with the County.

Orange County Public Facilities Corporation The Corporation has its own five member governing body
appointed by the County’s governing body and provides services entirely to the primary government,
the County, through the purchases, construction or leasing of land and/or facilities, which are then
leased back to the County. The Corporation is reported in governmental fund types.

County Service Areas, Special Assessment Districts, and Community Facilities Districts The governing
body of County Service Areas, Special Assessment Districts, and Community Facilities Districts (special
districts) is the County’s governing body. Among its duties, it approves the special districts’ budgets, and
approves parcel fees, special assessments and special taxes. The special districts are reported in
governmental fund types.

In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS) Public Authority The governing body of the Authority is the
County's governing body. The Authority was established by the Board to act as the employer of record
for the individual providers for the IHSS program. The duties of the Authority include collective
bargaining for the individual providers, establishing a registry of providers, investigating the background
of providers and providing training to both IHSS providers and consumers. The Authority is reported in
governmental fund types.

Fiduciary Component Unit
County of Orange Redevelopment Successor Agency (Successor Agency) The Successor Agency was

established when the Orange County Development Agency (OCDA) was dissolved effective February
1, 2012 in accordance with ABX1 26 and Health and Safety Code 34172. An Oversight Board was
appointed to oversee the dissolution process. A Private-Purpose Trust Fund, administered by the
County of Orange, was established to account for the assets and liabilities of the former OCDA. For
additional information related to the activities of the Successor Agency and its on-going Enforceable
Obligations, please refer to its separate financial statements. Copies of the Successor Agency's
financial statements can be obtained from the OC Community Resources Department or by accessing
Orange County’s website: www.ac.ocgov.com.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Children and Families Commission of Orange County (CFCOC) The CFCOC is administered by a
governing board of nine members, who are appointed by the Board. Its purpose is to develop, adopt,
promote and implement early childhood development programs in the County. It is funded by additional
State taxes on tobacco products and approved by California voters via Proposition 10 in November
1998. The CFCOC is presented as a discretely presented component unit of the County because,
although the County Board has no control over the revenues, budgets, staff, or funding decisions made
by the CFCOC, the appointed CFCOC members serve at the will of the Board members who appoint
them. A separate stand-alone annual financial report can be obtained by writing to the Children and
Families Commission of Orange County, 1505 E. 17th Street, Suite 230, Santa Ana, CA 92705, or by
accessing Orange County’s website: www.ac.ocgov.com.
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Reporting Entity (Continued)
Discretely Presented Component Units (Continued)

Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/dba Orange Prevention and Treatment Integrated
Medical Assistance (CalOptima) The Board established CalOptima in 1993. The governing board of
CalOptima is comprised of nine voting members and includes two County Board members and one
County Board member alternate; all other members are appointed by the Board. This is a County
organized health system whose purpose is to administer health insurance programs for low-income
families, children, seniors, and persons with disabilities throughout the County. These programs include
Medi-Cal, OneCare (HMO SNP), OneCare Connect Cal MediConnect Plan, and Program of All-
Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE). CalOptima is presented as a discretely presented component unit
of the County because, although the County Board has no control over the revenues, budgets, staff, or
funding decisions made by CalOptima, the appointed CalOptima members serve at the will of the Board
members who appoint them. CalOptima will continue until such time as the Board takes action to
terminate CalOptima. A separate stand-alone annual financial report can be obtained by writing to
CalOptima, 505 City Parkway West, Orange, CA 92868 or can be accessed via the website
http://wpso.dmhc.ca.gov/fe/search/.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and the economic
resources measurement focus. The government-wide financial statements report long-term liabilities and
capital assets. Depreciation/amortization expense and accumulated depreciation/amortization are displayed
on the government-wide financial statements. The capital assets and related depreciation include the costs
and depreciation of infrastructure assets.

The fund financial statements for the governmental funds are prepared under the modified accrual basis of
accounting and the current financial resources measurement focus. Fund financial statements are shown
separately for specific major governmental funds and in total for all other governmental funds. Fund financial
statements for proprietary funds are reported under the accrual basis of accounting and the economic
resources measurement focus. Major enterprise funds are shown separately, with internal service funds
shown in total. Financial data for the internal service funds is included with the governmental funds for
presentation in the government-wide financial statements. Fiduciary funds are displayed by category in the
fund financial statements, but are not reported in the government-wide financial statements, because the
assets of these funds are not available to the County.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

GASB Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for
State and Local Governments” (GASB Statement No. 34), as amended by GASB Statement No. 63
“Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position”
(GASB Statement No. 63), mandates the presentation of two basic government-wide financial
statements:

e Statement of Net Position
e Statement of Activities

The scope of the government-wide financial statements is to report information on all of the non-fiduciary
activities of the primary government and its component units.

Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, other
nonexchange revenues, and business-type activities, which are financed by fees charged to external parties
for goods or services, are reported in separate columns with a combined total column presented for the
primary government. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from the legally separate
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B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued

component units, CFCOC and CalOptima, for which the primary government is financially accountable. The
government-wide Statement of Net Position displays the financial position of the primary government, in this
case, the County and its discretely presented component units. The Statement of Net Position reports the
County's financial and capital resources, including infrastructure, as well as the County's long-term
obligations. The difference between the County’s assets plus deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities
plus deferred inflows of resources is its net position. Net position represents the resources that the County
has available for use in providing services after its debt is settled.

These resources may not be readily available or spendable and consequently are classified into the
following categories of net position in the government-wide financial statements:

e Net Investment in Capital Assets This amount is derived by subtracting the outstanding debts incurred
by the County, including debt-related deferred outflows and inflows of resources, to buy or construct
capital assets shown in the Statement of Net Position, net of depreciation.

e Restricted Net Position This category represents restrictions imposed on the use of the County's
resources by parties outside of the government or by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. All of the County’s net position restrictions are externally imposed by outside parties,
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Examples of restricted net position include federal and
state grants that are restricted by grant agreements for specific purposes and restricted cash set aside
for debt service payments. At June 30, 2017, the County’s governmental activities reported restricted
net position of $1,516,853 and is restricted for pension benefits related to the Orange County
Retirement System (OCERS) Investment Account, capital projects, debt service, legally segregated
funds restricted for grants and other purposes, and regional park endowment. Restricted Net Position
for business-type activities amounted to $78,179 and is restricted for the use of Airport and Waste
Management activities, including debt service, passenger facility charges (PFC), capital projects
replacements and renewals, landfill closure/postclosure, and landfill corrective action. At June 30, 2017,
the County reported $2,775 of net position restricted by enabling legislation related to the Airport's PFC.

« Unrestricted Net Position These assets are resources of the County that can be used for any purpose,
though they may not necessarily be liquid. In addition, assets in a fund that exceed the amounts
required to be restricted by external parties or enabling legislation are reported as unrestricted net
position. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy
to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The government-wide Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment are offset by program revenues and the extent to which the function or segment
is supported by general government revenues, such as property taxes, local unrestricted sales taxes, and
investment earnings. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Indirect expenses are allocated to the programs where the revenue is earned. Program revenues
include:

e Charges and fees to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, including fines,
forfeitures, and penalties related to the program

e Operating grants and contributions

e Capital grants and contributions, including special assessments

Taxes and other items such as unrestricted investment earnings not properly included among program
revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
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Fund Financial Statements

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. The focus of
governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on major funds. The financial information of each
major fund is shown in a separate column in the fund financial statements, with the data for all nonmajor
governmental funds aggregated into a single column and all nonmajor proprietary funds aggregated into a
single column. GASB Statement No. 34, as amended by GASB Statement No. 65 “ltems Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities” (GASB Statement No. 65), sets forth minimum criteria (specified
minimum percentages of the assets plus deferred outflows of resources, liabilities plus deferred inflows of
resources, revenues or expenditures/expenses of a fund category and of the governmental and enterprise
funds combined) for the determination of major funds. In addition to funds that meet the minimum criteria,
any other governmental or enterprise fund that the government believes is of particular importance to
financial statement users may be reported as a major fund.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund This fund accounts for resources traditionally associated with government and all other
resources, which are not required legally, or by sound financial management, to be accounted for in another
fund. Revenues are primarily derived from taxes; licenses, permits and franchises; fines, forfeitures and
penalties; use of money and property; intergovernmental revenues; charges for services; and other
revenues. Expenditures are primarily expended for functions of general government, public protection,
public ways and facilities, health and sanitation, public assistance, capital outlay, and debt service.

Flood Control District This fund accounts for the planning, construction, operation, and maintenance of
regional flood protection and water conservation works, such as dams, control channels, retarding basins,
and other flood control infrastructure, charges for services revenue, along with property taxes restricted for
flood control activities, provide most of this fund’s revenues.

Other Public Protection This fund accounts for revenues restricted for safety and law enforcement activities
such as the child support program, automated fingerprint identification systems, and investigation team.
Revenues consist primarily of federal grants, state grants, fines, use of money and property, and charges for
services.

Mental Health Services Act This fund accounts for the County’s mental health programs for children,
transition age youth, adults, older adults and families pursuant to the State of California Mental Health
Services Act. Revenues consist primarily from a one percent income tax on personal income in excess of
one million dollars.

The County reports the following proprietary enterprise funds:

Airport  This major fund accounts for major construction and for self-supporting aviation-related activities
rendered at John Wayne Airport, Orange County. The airport’s staff coordinates and administers general
business activities related to the Airport, including concessions, commercial and general aviation operations,
leased property, auto parking, and aircraft tie-down facilities.

Waste Management This major fund accounts for the operation, expansion, and closing of existing landfills.
Monies are collected through landfill disposal fees, which users pay based primarily on tonnage.

Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) This nonmajor fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the
CNG facility. Revenues consist primarily of CNG sales to both the County and the public.
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Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds The County reports nine Internal Service Fund types. These proprietary funds are
used to report activities that provide goods or services to other funds of the County. These funds account for
fleet services, publishing services, and risk management services (including claims for workers’
compensation, property damage, Information & Technology, Insurance and various health programs)
provided to other County departments or agencies, or other governmental entities. The Internal Service
Funds receive revenues on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Fund Types The County has a total of 366 individual trust and agency funds for FY 2016-17.
These trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties or employees,
including other governments. When these assets are held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, a
private-purpose trust, pension trust or Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) trust fund is used. An
investment trust fund is used for the portion of the County investment pool representing external pool
participants. Agency funds are used to account for assets that the County holds on behalf of others as their
agent.

The County reports the following trust and agency funds:

Private-Purpose Trust These funds are used to account for trust arrangements where the principal and
income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments. Examples of private-purpose trusts
include unidentified funds, unclaimed prisoner funds, and decedents’ property held for escheatment. Also
included are the County accounts for the former redevelopment agency as a fiduciary component unit for
the Successor Agency.

Investment Trust

Orange County Investment Pool

These funds are used to account for assets, consisting primarily of cash and investments, of separate
legal entities, other than school and community college districts, which participate in the County
Treasurer's External Investment Pool, and includes debt reserves for school and community college
districts.

Orange County Educational Investment Pool

These funds are used to account for assets, consisting primarily of cash and investments, of school and
community college districts that participate in the County Treasurer's External Educational Investment
Pool.

Pension and Other Employee Benefits Trust The County reports six Pension and OPEB Trust funds. These
trust funds are used to account for resources that are required to be held in trust for the members and
beneficiaries of defined benefit and defined contribution pension and post-employment benefit plans.

Agency Funds These funds are custodial in nature and do not report operating results. These funds are
used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for various local governments and individuals,
such as unapportioned taxes for other local government agencies, monies collected for the Redevelopment
Property Tax Trust funds, civil filing fees, and special assessment districts debt service funds. Accordingly,
assets reported in the statements are offset by a liability for resources held on behalf of others.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
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Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

and the accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, all assets, deferred outflows of resources
and all liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, associated with the operation of these funds are included on
the Statement of Net Position. Receivables are reported net of allowances for uncollectible receivables in
the Statement of Net Position. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

For purposes of not overstating the true costs and program revenues reported for the various functions,
interfund activities (e.g. interfund transfers and interfund reimbursements) have been eliminated from the
government-wide Statement of Activities. Exceptions to the general rule are interfund services provided and
used between functions, such as charges for auditing and accounting fees between the general government
function and various other functions of the primary government. Elimination of these interfund activities
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. When
both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use restricted
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. Additionally, only the interfund transfers
between governmental and business-type activities are reported in the Statement of Activities.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds are used to report all governmental activities that are not primarily self-funded by fees
or charges to external users or other funds and are not fiduciary activities. These activities include the
County’s basic services to its citizenry and to other agencies, including general government, public
protection, public ways and facilities, health and sanitation, public assistance, education, and recreation and
cultural services. There are five types of governmental funds:

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Debt Service Funds
Permanent Fund

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method of accounting, revenues and other
governmental fund type financial resources (e.g., bond issuance proceeds) are recognized in the accounting
period in which they become susceptible to accrual - that is, when they become both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County considers
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after the end of the current fiscal period.

Revenues that are accrued include real and personal property taxes, sales taxes, property taxes in-lieu of
motor vehicle license fees, fines, forfeitures and penalties, interest, federal and state grants and
subventions, charges for current services, and the portion of long-term sales contracts and leases
receivable that are measurable and available and where collectability is assured. Revenues that are not
considered susceptible to accrual include penalties on delinquent property taxes and minor licenses and
permits. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met, provided that the revenues are also available. If intergovernmental revenues
are expected to be received later than 60 days following the end of the fiscal year, then a receivable is
recorded along with deferred inflows of resources. Once the grant reimbursement is received, revenue and
cash are recorded, and the receivable and deferred inflows of resources are eliminated. Receipts that have
not met all of the earning requirements are reported as unearned revenue received. As of June 30, 2017,
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the County reported $141,065 of deferred inflows of resources and $65,906 of unearned revenue received
in the governmental funds’ Balance Sheet.

Most expenditures are recorded when the related fund liabilities are incurred. However, inventory type items
are considered expenditures at the time of use and principal and interest expenditures on bonded debt and
capital leases are recorded in the year they become due for payment. Costs of claims, judgments,
compensated employee absences and employer pension contributions are recorded as expenditures at
fiscal year-end if they are due and payable. The related long-term obligation is recorded in the government-
wide financial statements. Commitments such as purchase orders and contracts for materials and services
are recorded as encumbrances.

Because the fund financial statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of
accounting than the government-wide financial statements, a reconciliation is presented to explain the
adjustments necessary to reconcile fund financial statements to the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary funds are used to account for business-type activities, which
are financed mainly by fees and charges to users of the services provided by the funds’ operations.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

There are two types of proprietary funds:

e Enterprise Funds
e Internal Service Funds

The County has three enterprise funds: Airport, Waste Management, and CNG. The principal operating
revenues of the Airport, Waste Management, and CNG enterprise funds are charges to customers for (1)
landing fees, terminal space rental, auto parking, concessions, and aircraft tie-down fees, (2) disposal fees
charged to users of the waste disposal sites, and (3) natural gas sales, respectively.

Internal Service Funds are used to report activities that provide goods or services to other funds of the
County. The internal service funds receive revenues through cost-reimbursements of the goods and
services provided to other County departments and agencies. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and
internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee or agency capacity and cannot be used to
support the County’'s own programs. Trust funds are accounted for using the economic resources
measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. Agency funds report only assets and liabilities and
therefore, do not have a measurement focus; however, agency funds use the accrual basis of accounting to
recognize receivables and payables.

Budget Adoption and Revision

No later than October 2nd of each year, after conducting public hearings concerning the recommended
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budget, the Board adopts a budget in accordance with Government Code Sections 29000-29144 and
30200. The County publishes the results of this initial budgeting process in a separate report, the "Adopted
Budget," which specifies all accounts established within each fund/department/budget control (a collection of
account numbers necessary to fund a certain division or set of goal-related activities) and will not include the
carried forward prior year encumbrances. However, the original and final budget amounts presented in the
financial statements may differ due to the inclusion of the carried forward prior year encumbrances.

Throughout the year, the original budget is adjusted to reflect increases or decreases in revenues and
changes in fund balance, offset by an equal amount of adjustments to appropriations. Department heads
are authorized to approve appropriation transfers within a fund/department/budget control. However,
appropriation transfers between funds/departments/budget controls require approval of the Board.
Accordingly, the lowest level of budgetary control exercised by the County's governing body is the
fund/department/budget control level.

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP except for the general fund and major special
revenue funds as detailed in the Budgetary Comparison Statement reconciliation between the budgetary
basis and GAAP basis. Budgeted governmental funds consist of the general fund, major funds, and other
nonmajor governmental funds. Budgetary comparison statements are prepared only for the general fund
and major special revenue funds (listed below) for which the County legally adopts annual budgets, and are
presented as part of the basic financial statements. The County did not legally adopt annual budgets for the
OC Public Facilities Corporation Bonds, Master Lease Fund, the South OC Public Financing Authority Fund,
Capital Facilities Development Corporation, and the Orange County Public Financing Authority Fund. The
budgetary comparison statements provide three separate types of information: (1) the original budget, which
is the first complete appropriated budget; (2) the final amended budget, which includes all legally authorized
changes regardless of when they occurred; and (3) the actual revenues and expenditures during the year
for budget-to-actual comparisons.

The major special revenue fund Budgetary Comparison Statements reported by the County in the Basic
Financial Statements are:

e Flood Control District
e Other Public Protection
e Mental Health Services Act

The intent of preparing the Budgetary Comparison Statement reconciliation is to provide the reader with a
more complete understanding and appreciation for the difference between budgetary revenues and other
financing sources and expenditures and other financing uses presented in the Budgetary Comparison
Statements and the revenues, expenditures, and other financing sources (uses) reported on the Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances, which is prepared in accordance with GAAP.
The major areas of difference are as follows:

e Under the budgetary basis, investment income is recognized on an amortized cost basis. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools" (GASB Statement No. 31), all investment income,
including changes in fair value (gains/losses) of investments, are recognized as investment income.

e Under the budgetary basis, redirected investment income is recognized as investment income in the
recipient fund. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, investment income assigned to another
fund due to management decision is recognized in the fund that reports the investment and reported
as a transfer to the recipient fund in the GAAP financial statements.

e Under the budgetary basis, revenues are normally recorded when earned. For GAAP basis, in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Transactions” (GASB Statement No. 33), and GASB Statement No. 65, all nonexchange transactions,
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such as government-mandated nonexchange transactions and voluntary nonexchange transactions,
can be accrued only if they are measurable and “available.” “Available” has been defined by GASB
Statement No. 33 as “collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.” The County has established the
availability period as 60 days after the end of the fiscal year. In order to ensure all transactions for the
current fiscal year meet this criterion, the County analyzes revenue receipts through August 30 and
records adjustments to deferred inflows of resources for transactions that are not collected.

GASB Statement No. 34 states, “Fiduciary funds should be used to report assets held in a trustee or
agency capacity for others and therefore, cannot be used to support the government’'s own
programs.” For the GAAP financial statements, an adjustment to record public-purpose trust monies
as revenue in the benefitting funds is recorded for funds which continue to be accounted for as
fiduciary funds on a budgetary basis but do not meet the definition of a fiduciary fund.

Under the budgetary basis, intrafund transfers are recognized as other financing sources (uses). For
the GAAP financial statements, intrafund transfers are eliminated to minimize the “grossing-up” of
intrafund transfers.

The County reclassified to the General Fund all the activities of certain special revenue funds, which
no longer meet the definition of a special revenue fund in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54,
“Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions” (GASB Statement No. 54).

For budgetary purposes, the loan from Waste Management to the General Fund was recognized as
other financing sources (uses). In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, an adjustment to record
the interfund loan as an interfund receivable in the lender fund and interfund payable in the borrower
fund was recorded for the GAAP financial statements.

Under the budgetary basis, interfund reimbursements or repayments from funds responsible for
particular expenditures or expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are recorded as revenues
in the payer fund. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, an adjustment to eliminate interfund
reimbursements is recorded for the GAAP financial statements.

In accordance with GAAP, the County has established guidelines for recording accruals. In order to
reasonably ensure that accruals for current fiscal year transactions are materially accurate, the County
performs an analysis to identify expenditure accruals for the GAAP financial statements.

The General Fund revenue adjustment was recorded due to the overbilling to Waste Management for
the Republic Services and LA Sanitation District importation proceeds.

The OC Animal Care Center uses cash basis to record money it receives from invoicing due to the
low collection rate. Per GAAP, the receivables and the amount of the allowance for the doubtful
accounts should be recorded.
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The following schedule shows the Budgetary Comparison Statement reconciliation between the budgetary
basis and GAAP basis for the General Fund and major special revenue funds:

Flood Other Mental
General Control Public Health
Fund District Protection _ Services Act
Actual Revenues and Other Financing Sources from the Budgetary
Comparison Statements $ 3192748 § 139,014 § 83652 § 154,214
Differences-budget to GAAP:
Change in unrealized loss on investment (2,558) (2,057) (750) (1,138)
Adjustment to report redirected investmentincome as transfers - - 13 -
Adjustment of revenue accruals for 60 day recognition period (3,122) 14,752 3 -
Adjustment to record Public-Purpose Trust Fund monies
as revenue in benefitting fund (4,433) 84 - -
Adjustment to eliminate intrafund transfers (3.877) - (3,964) -
ion of direct billing reimb paid by fund for the
benefit of other funds (13,937) (440) - -
Certain budgeted special revenue funds do not meet the criteria for
separate reporting and are reported within the General Fund in the
GAAP financial statements 16 - - -
Revenues and Other Financing sources for non-budgeted funds are
excluded in the Budgetary Comparison Statements - - 120 -
Recognition of outstanding invoices for OC Animal Care Center 84 - - -
Adjustment of imported waste revenues overpaid to the General Fund 2,976 - - -
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources as reported on the Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances $ 3167897 $§ 151353 § 79074 $ 153076
Actual Expenditures and Other Financing Uses from the Budgetary
Comparison Statements $ 3,159,007 $ 137,307 $ 80,189 § 138,075
Differences-budget to GAAP:
dj to report redi - - 13 -
Adjustment of expenditure accruals for iming differences 555 7,602 (173) -
Adjustment to eliminate intrafund transfers (3,877) - (3,964) -
R ion of direct billing rei paid by fund for the
benefit of other funds (13,937) (440) - -
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses for non-budgeted
funds are excluded in the Budgetary Comparison Statements - - 5,522 -
Certain budgeted special revenue funds do not meet the criteria for
separate reporting and are reported within the General Fund in the
GAAP financial statements 3,879 - - -
Reclassification of loan repayment from General Fund
to Waste Management (784) - - -
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses as reported on the Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances $ 3144843 $ 144469 $ 81587 § 138,075

21380/
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Fund Balance

The County applies GASB Statement No. 54 for financial statement purposes. The intent of this statement is
to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that
can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund type definitions.

The balance sheet reports the following five different classifications of fund balance:

Nonspendable Fund Balance Amounts that are not in a spendable form, such as long-term receivables,
inventory or prepaid costs, or that are required to be maintained intact, such as the corpus of an endowment
fund. The County's Regional Park Endowment Permanent Fund reports the original donation as
nonspendable in accordance with donor requirements.

Restricted Fund Balance Amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors,
bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance Amounts constrained to specific purposes by a formal action of the highest level
of decision making authority. The constraint remains binding unless the government takes the same
highest-level action to remove or change the constraint. The Board is the County’s highest level of decision-
making authority. The highest level of formal action to commit resources is an ordinance.

Assigned Fund Balance Amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose that are neither
restricted nor committed; intent can be expressed by the governing body (Board) or by an official or body to
which the governing body delegates authority (County Executive Officer (CEO), County Department Heads,
and County Purchasing Agent). The County’s budget development guidelines provide the policy that is used
by all County departments to determine the designation of assigned fund balance. Assigned fund balance
includes the aggregation of resources for capital projects, which are expected to develop in future periods
and fund balance reserved for outstanding contractual obligations for which goods and services have not yet
been received or approved by the Board for appropriation in FY 2016-17, through the County’s budget
process.

Unassigned Fund Balance Residual amounts within the General Fund in excess of what can be properly
classified in one of the four other fund balance classifications. Within all other governmental funds,
unassigned fund balance is comprised of the negative residual in excess of what can be properly classified
as nonspendable, restricted, or committed.

In the hierarchy for spending, when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balances are available, the County’s policy is to spend restricted fund balance before
unrestricted fund balance. When committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance is available for the
same specific purpose, the County’s policy is to expend fund balance according to the following priority:
committed, assigned, and then unassigned.

Following are detailed descriptions within each fund balance classification reported in the balance sheet:
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
E. Fund Balance (Continued

Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Flood Other Other Total
General Control Public  Mental Health ~ Governmental  Governmental
Fund District _ _Protection _ _Services Act Funds Funds
Nonspendable:
Inventory s 838 § 346 § 317§ ) - 1,501
Prepaid costs 367,934 4,877 1,228 - 14,733 388,772
Endow ment - - - - 196 196
Long-Term Advances to Other Funds 3,800 - - - - 3,800
Total Nonspendable Fund Balance 372,572 5223 1,545 - 14,929 394,269
Restricted for:
Court Operations 5874 - - - - 5874
Tobacco and CHIP Programs 152 - - - - 152
Public Safety Realignment 32,367 - - - - 32,367
Registrar of Voters 1,188 - - - - 1,188
Flood Control District -~ 209629 - - - 209,629
Flood Control District - Construction & Maintenance - 22,651 - - - 22,651
Flood Control District - Project Management - 26,182 - - - 26,182
Flood Control District Capital Projects - 141,638 - - - 141,638
Flood Control District Capital Projects Management - 33,145 - - - 33,145
Santa Ana River Projects - 84 - - - 84
Buiding & Safety Operating Reserve - - 14,645 - - 14,645
Child Support Program Development - - 13,407 - - 13,407
Clerk Recorder Special Revenue - - 16,559 - - 16,559
Sheriff-Coroner Replacement & Maintenance - - 12,523 - - 12,523
CAL-ID System Costs - - 29,131 - - 29,131
Jail Commissary - - 4,663 - - 4,663
Inmate Welfare - - 8421 - - 8,421
Prop 64 - Consumer Protection - - 6,662 - - 6,662
Regional Narcotics Suppression Program - - 10,198 - - 10,198
Other Public Safety Programs - - 24,029 - - 24,029
Mental Health Services Adults/Chidren - - - 19,863 - 19,863
Mental Health Services General - - - 237,096 - 237,096
OC Dana Point Harbor Projects - - - - 67,355 67,355
Community and Weffare Services - - - - 56,318 56,318
Low and Moderate Income Housing Program - - - - 31,541 31,541
Health Care Programs - - - - 21,867 21,867
Civic Center Parking/Maintenance - - - - 4,545 4,545
Roads - - - - 70,759 70,759
Public Libraries - - - - 38,480 38,480
Bankruptcy Recovery - - - - 17,130 17,130
OC Parks - - - - 49,012 49,012
OC Parks - Capital Projects - - - - 32,388 32,388
County Tidelands - New port Bay - - - - 5715 5715
Service Areas, Lighting, Maintenance

and Assessment Districts - - - - 78,087 78,087
Other Environmental Management - - - - 2,732 2,732
Tobacco Settlement Programs - - - - 11,437 11,437
Housing Programs - - - - 16,805 16,805
Technological and Capital

Acquisitions/improvements - - - - 1,368 1,368
Endow ment - - - - 145 145
OC Public Facilties Corporation Bonds,

Master Lease - - - - 2,943 2,943
Pension Obligation Bonds - - - - 61,460 61,460
South OC Public Financing Authority - - - - 23,287 23,287
Orange County Public Financing Authority - - - - 7,465 7,465
Teeter Note - - - - 18,471 18,471
Capital Projects:

Criminal Justice Facilties Improvement - - - - 12,563 12,563

Capital Facilties Development Corporation Construction - - - - 151,471 151,471
Capital Facilies Development Corporation - - - - 21,538 21,538
Total Restricted Fund Balance S 30581 § 433,320 § 140238 S 256,950 § 804882 S 1,674,980
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Balance (Continued

Flood Other Other Total
General Control Public Mental Health  Governmental Governmental
Fund District Protection _Services Act Funds Funds
Assigned to:
General Services:
General Services - Operations $ 127,959 § - 8 - $ - 8 - 8 127,959
Maintenance and Construction 11,600 - - - - 11,600
Imprest Cash 1,834 - - - - 1,834
Public Safety 18,804 - - - - 18,804
Public Works 2,266 - - - - 2,266
Watershed Programs 1,243 - - - - 1,243
Social Services Programs 5,660 - - - - 5,660
Tax Loss Reserve 46,653 - - - - 46,653
Health Care Programs 1,314 - - - 12,083 13,397
Teeter Note - - - - 53,316 53,316
Capital Projects:
Property Tax Softw are Development 5,076 - - - - 5,076
Criminal Justice Facilities 6,645 - - - - 6,645
Central Utiliies Facility Replacement 1,239 - - - - 1,239
Bection System Upgrade 20,000 - - - - 20,000
Sheriff Closed Circuit TV 2,000 - - - - 2,000
Micellaneous Capital Projects 13,000 - - - - 13,000
800MHz County-Wide Coordinated
Communications System - - 1,514 - - 1,514
Countyw ide Projects. - - - - 46,566 46,566
Parking Faciliies - - - - 746 746
OC Parks - - - - 12,083 12,083
Air Quality Improvement - - - - 3,827 3,827
Community and Welfare Services - - - - 26,015 26,015
Orange County Public Financing Authority - - - - 14,322 14,322
Total Assigned Fund Balance 265,293 - 1,514 - 168,958 435,765
Unassigned 73,446 - - - 73,446
Total Unassigned Fund Balance 73,446 - - - 73,446
Total Fund Balances mwﬂ $ 143297 § 256,95¢ S&_B% $ 2,578,469

Annually, the Board adopts a five-year Strategic Financial Plan (SFP). The County of Orange 2017 SFP
includes a policy for Fund Balance Unassigned (FBU) that eliminates FBU as a funding source for the next
year’s budget as a significant step toward reducing structural reliance on one-time funds. Positive variances
in estimated FBU are to be added to Strategic Reserves, consistent with the Board policy.

The County prepays its pension contribution and reports the prepaid amount as Nonspendable Fund
Balance rather than Unassigned Fund Balance as required by GASB Statement No. 54. For FY 2016-17,
the proceeds of $375,540 was for short-term Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds to prepay its FY 2017-18
pension contribution at a discount. Of this amount $367,590 is the prepaid costs for General Fund and is
Nonspendable. Refer to Note 9, Short-Term Obligations, and Note 17, Retirement Plans for additional
information.

Deposits and Investments

The County maintains two cash and investment pools: the Orange County Investment Pool (OCIP) and the
Orange County Educational Investment Pool (OCEIP), the latter of which is utilized exclusively by the
County’s public school and community college districts. These pools are maintained for the County and
other Non-County entities for the purpose of benefitting from economies of scale through pooled investment
activities. In addition, the County maintains the Airport Investment Fund and other non-pooled specific
investments.

The County has stated required investments at fair value in the accompanying financial statements, using
the fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy established by GAAP.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F.

Deposits and Investments (Continued

Other than proceeds held by the County in the OCIP, proceeds from County-issued bonds are held by
trustees and are invested in instruments authorized by the respective trust agreements including money
market mutual funds, investment agreements, repurchase agreements, and U.S. Government securities.
Short-term investments are reported at amortized cost, while long-term investments, such as U.S.
Government securities, are stated at fair value. The trustee uses an independent service to value those
securities.

The Pools value participants’ shares using an amortized cost basis. Specifically, the Pools distribute income
to participants based on their relative participation during the period. Income is calculated based on (1)
realized investment gains and losses calculated on an amortized cost basis, (2) interest income based on
stated rates (both paid and accrued), (3) amortization of discounts and premiums on a straight-line basis,
and reduced by (4) actual administrative cost of such investing, depositing or handling of funds. This method
differs from the fair value method used to value investments in this statement because the amortized cost
method is not designed to distribute to participants all unrealized gains and losses in the fair values of the
Pools’ investments. Refer to Note 3, Deposits and Investments for additional information.

The investments in the Retiree Medical Defined Benefit Trust are managed by OCERS and are reported at
fair value. Refer to Note 17, Retirement Plans, to obtain OCERS stand-alone annual financial statements.

Inventory of Materials and Supplies

Inventories consist of expendable materials and supplies held for consumption. Inventories are valued at
cost, which is determined on a moving weighted average basis. Applicable fund balances are nonspendable
for amounts equal to the inventories on hand at the end of the fiscal year, as these amounts are not
available for appropriation and expenditure. The costs of inventory items are recorded as
expenditures/expenses when issued to user departments/agencies.

Prepaid Costs

The County pays for certain types of services in advance, such as pension costs and rents, and recognizes
these costs in the period during which services are provided. Prepaid costs in the governmental funds
Balance Sheet include $388,772, which primarily consist of $388,427 for the County's FY 2017-18 pension
contribution at a discount.

Prepaid costs in the government-wide financial statements include the prepaid costs reported in the fund
financial statements, reduced for 50% of the prepaid asset related to the pension contribution after the
measurement date in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68 and GASB Statement No. 71. Refer to Note
17, Retirement Plans for additional information.

Land and Improvements Held for Resale

These assets, held by the Successor Agency, are valued at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable
value.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined as assets of a long-term character that are intended to be held or used in
operations, such as land, structures and improvements, equipment, intangible, and infrastructure.
Infrastructure assets are grouped by networks consisting of flood channels, roads, bridges, trails, traffic
signals, and harbors.

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of the donation. Capital assets with an
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

J.

Capital Assets (Continued

original unit cost equal to or greater than the County’s capitalization threshold shown in the table below are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements.

Asset Type Capitalization Threshold
Land $0
Land Improvements $150
Structures and Improvements $150
Equipment $5
Intangible:
Software 5
All Other 150
Infrastructure 150

Depreciation and amortization are calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets. No depreciation or amortization is provided on construction in progress or intangible assets
in progress, respectively, until the project is completed and the asset is placed into service. Estimated useful
lives of structures and improvements, equipment, intangibles, and infrastructure are as follows:

Land Improvements 10 to 20 years
Structures and Improvements 10 to 60 years
Equipment 2to 20 years
Intangibles:
Computer Software 2to 15 years
Infrastructure:
Flood Channels 20 to 100 years
Roads 10 to 20 years
Bridges 50 to 75 years
Trails 20 years
Traffic Signals 15 to 20 years
Harbors 20 to 50 years
Airport — Runways, Taxis, and Aprons 15 to 60 years

Waste Management — Cell Development, Drainage
Channels, Facility Improvements, Habitat, Landfill
Gas/Environmental, Closure/Other Earthwork

3to 71 years

Maintenance and repair costs are expensed in the period incurred. Expenditures that materially increase the
capacity or efficiency or extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized and depreciated. Upon the sale or
retirement of the capital asset, the cost and related accumulated depreciation, if applicable, are eliminated
from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in the Statement of Activities and
Proprietary Funds’ Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position.

For business-type activities, interest is capitalized on construction in progress. Capitalized interest is the
total interest expense of the borrowing net of related interest earnings on the reinvested unexpended tax-
exempt debt proceeds and amortization of premium or discount. For governmental activities, interest is not
capitalized as a cost of the capital asset in accordance with GAAP.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the government-wide Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources, which represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

K.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued

so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The County only has
two items that qualify for reporting in this category. They are the deferred charge on refunding and deferred
outflows of resources related to pension. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the
carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the
shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The deferral of resources related to pension results
from the net difference between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments,
changes of assumptions and changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions and the
proportionate share of contributions calculated by actuarial study. The deferred outflows of resources
related to pension also include employer contributions made after the measurement date and a portion of
the County’s prepaid retirement contribution.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, which represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The County has two items that qualify for reporting in this category. They
are the deferred inflows of resources related to unavailable revenues and deferred inflows of resources
related to pension. The County has deferred inflows of resources related to unavailable revenues reported
under the modified accrual basis of accounting in the governmental funds Balance Sheet. The governmental
funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, SB90, and other
sources as appropriate. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period
that amounts become available. The SB90 deferred inflows of resources amount of $24,637 is net of an
allowance for the estimated uncollectible of $10,236.

The table below details out all deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pension. Please refer to
Note 17, Retirement Plans, for further information.

Governmental Waste
Activities Airport Management Total
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pension per Actuarial Studies
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings
on Pension Plan Investments $ 324,534 $ 3278 § 4079 § 331,891
Changes of Assumptions 69,889 712 881 71,482
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between Employer
Contribut and i Share of Contri 16,265 144 183 16,592
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pension - Employer
Contributions after Measurement Date 214,565 1,784 2,328 218,677
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Prepaid Contributi 196,040 1,754 2,108 199,902
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pension $ 821,293 § 7672 $ 9,579 § 838,544
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension per Actuarial Studies
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings
on Pension Plan Investments $ 17 8 - $ - 8 17
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 432,439 3,993 5,062 441,494
Changes of Assumptions 114,088 1,163 1438 116,689
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between Employer
Contributi and Share of Contril 122 1 1 124
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension $ 546,666 $ 5157 § 6,501 § 558,324

Self-Insurance

The County is self-insured for general and automobile liability claims, workers' compensation claims, and for
claims arising under the County self-insured PPO Health Plans, short-term disability plans, dental plan,
Reserve Deputy Sheriff accidental death and dismemberment plan, and unemployment benefits program.
Liabilities are accrued based upon case reserves, development of known claims, incurred but not reported
claims and allocated and unallocated loss adjustment expenses. For additional information, refer to Note 15,
Self-Insurance.
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M. Property Taxes

The provisions of the California Constitution and Revenue and Taxation Code govern assessment,
collection, and apportionment of real and personal property taxes. Real and personal property taxes are
computed by applying approved property tax rates to the assessed value of properties as determined by the
County Assessor, in the case of locally assessed property and as determined by the State Board of
Equalization in the case of state-assessed properties. Property taxes are levied annually, with the exception
of the supplemental property taxes, which are levied when supplemental assessment events, such as sales
of property or new construction, take place.

The County collects property taxes on behalf of all property tax-receiving agencies in Orange County.
Property tax-receiving agencies include the school districts, cities, independently governed special districts
not governed by the Board, special districts governed by the Board, redevelopment successor agencies,
and the County General Fund.

Property taxes receivables are recorded as of the date levied in property tax unapportioned funds, which are
classified as agency funds. When collected, the property taxes are deposited into the County Treasury in
the property tax unapportioned funds, where they are held in the unapportioned taxes liability accounts
pending periodic apportionment to the tax-receiving agencies. The property tax unapportioned funds are
included in the agency funds category of the County’s fund financial statements because the unapportioned
taxes are collected and held on behalf of other governmental agencies.

Property tax collections are apportioned (disbursed) to the tax-receiving agencies periodically from the tax
unapportioned funds based on various factors including statutory requirements, materiality of collections
received, tax delinquency dates, the type of property tax roll unapportioned fund (secured, unsecured,
supplemental, delinquent secured, delinquent unsecured, delinquent supplemental, homeowners’ property
tax subvention, or state-assessed properties), and cash flow needs of the tax-receiving agencies.

Property tax revenues are recognized in the fiscal year for which they are levied, provided they are due
within the fiscal year and collected within 60 days after the fiscal year-end. Property tax revenues are also
recognized for unsecured and supplemental property taxes that are due at year-end, and are collected
within 60 days after the fiscal year-end, but will not be apportioned until the next fiscal year due to the timing
of the tax apportionment schedule. The County's portion of the unapportioned taxes at June 30, 2017 is
allocated to and recorded in the corresponding funds for reporting purposes.

Unsecured and supplemental property tax levies that are due within the fiscal year but are unpaid at fiscal
year-end, are recorded as deferred inflows of resources in the fund-level financial statements, and
recognized as revenue in the government-wide financial statements. The County records an allowance to
recognize uncollectible taxes receivable.

The County maintains records of disputed property taxes, such as those properties for which the values
have been appealed to the local Assessment Appeals Boards. Upon final disposition of the appeals and
disputes, the amounts are either refunded to taxpayers or the tax bills are corrected. As of June 30, 2017,
tax refunds and assessed value tax roll corrections resulting from property tax appeals and other disputes
represented approximately 0.87% of the combined beginning secured and unsecured property tax roll
charge.

The following are significant dates on the property tax calendar:

California Revenue
& Taxation Code Section

Supplemental assessments are effective on the 1st day of the month following

the new construction or ownership change. 75.41
Property tax lien date is January 1. 2192
Unsecured taxes on the roll as of July 31 are delinquent August 31. 2922
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M. Property Taxes (Continued)

California Revenue
& Taxation Code Section

Assessor delivers roll to Auditor-Controller July 1. 616, 617
Tax roll is delivered to the Tax Collector on or before the levy date

(the 4th Monday in September). 2601
Secured tax payment due dates are:

1st Installment - November 1, and 2605

2nd Installment - February 1. 2606
Declaration of default for unpaid taxes occurs July 1. 3436
Power to sell is effective five years after tax default. 3691

N. Compensated Employee Absences

Compensated employee absences (vacation, compensatory time off, performance incentive plan time off,
annual leave, and sick leave) are accrued as an expense and liability in the proprietary funds when incurred.
In the governmental funds, only those amounts that are due and payable at year-end are accrued.
Compensated employee absences that exceed this amount represent a reconciling item between the fund
and government-wide presentations.

O. Pensions

The County recognizes a net pension liability to reflect the County’s proportionate share of the excess of the
total pension liability over the fiduciary net position of the County’s retirement plans. The actuarial valuation
for the retirement plans through OCERS is based on the December 31, 2016 measurement date for the
County reporting as of June 30, 2017. The actuarial valuation for the Extra-Help Defined Benefit Plan is
based on the June 30, 2017 measurement date for the County reporting as of June 30, 2017.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
OCERS and the Extra-Help Defined Benefit Plan and additions to/deductions to OCERS and the Extra-Help
Defined Benefit Plan fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
OCERS and the Extra-Help Defined Benefit Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

At June 30, 2017, the County’s net pension liability from OCERS was measured as of December 31, 2016,
and the total pension liability (TPL) used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by rolling
forward the December 31, 2015 valuation to December 31, 2016. The County’s net pension liability from
Extra-Help Defined Benefit Plan was measured as of June 30, 2017; the plan’s TPL was calculated using
the data and assets as of July 1, 2015, rolled forward to June 30, 2017 using actual benefit payments for FY
2015-16 and FY 2016-17.

P. Statement of Cash Flows
A Statement of Cash Flows is presented for proprietary fund types. The County's cash and cash equivalents
for cash flow reporting purposes are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, unrestricted and
restricted investments held in the County Treasury’s investment pooled funds and outside trustees.

Q. Indirect Costs

County indirect costs are allocated to benefitting departments in the “Indirect Expenses Allocation” column
of the government-wide Statement of Activities. Allocated costs are from the County's FY 2016-17 County-
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Q. Indirect Costs (Continued)

Wide Cost Allocation Plan (CWCAP), which was prepared in accordance with the Code of Federal
Regulation, Title 2, Part 200. For Financial Statement purposes, the County has elected to allocate indirect
costs to budget controls within the General Fund in order to match the reimbursement of indirect costs
recorded as program revenues to the same function where the related expense is recorded.

Effects of New Pronouncements
The following lists recent GASB pronouncements implemented or are effective in FY 2016-17:

In August 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 77, “Tax Abatement Disclosures.” This statement defines a
tax abatement as resulting from an agreement between a government and an individual or entity in which
the government promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity promises to subsequently take a
specific action that contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the government or its
citizens. This statement requires disclosure of tax abatement information about (1) a reporting government's
own tax abatement agreements and (2) those that are entered into by other governments and that reduce
the reporting government'’s tax revenues. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2015, which requires the County to implement this statement in FY
2016-17. The statement was implemented. The effect was immaterial to the County’s financial statements.
Therefore, no note disclosures are presented as a result of this GASB statement.

In December 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 78, “Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple- Employer
Defined Benefit Pension Plans.” This statement amends the scope and applicability of Statement No. 68 to
exclude pensions provided to employees of state or local governmental employers through a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that (1) is not a state or local governmental pension plan, (2)
is used to provide defined benefit pensions both to employees of state or local governmental employers and
to employees of employers that are not state or local governmental employers, and (3) has no predominant
state or local governmental employer (either individually or collectively with ot